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A few of the residants of Waecloo County, who
have purchased Goutlay Pianos, are”

WATERLOO Robt. S Pollard, Esq.

3 Geo, Wegenast. Esq. Mrs. Sem Marun
' Herbert M. Sayder, Mr. E Bricker
: Esq. Rev C W. Cousins
i Peter H Roos, Esq Mr. W H Ruoesgen
! Miss Anna R. Bean Wi, M Cress

Byron E Bechtel
' Chas Bechrel GALT

A. B. McBride Dr. Wardlaw

Dr W. J. Stesling Jas Johnston, Esq.

W K. Trapp. Esq.

BERLIN Geo Landeen Esq.
Miss M Mutler Robt, Cranston, Esg
Miss JM Euter Wm Benimrd, Exg.
Mr. J Ruce ). C. Cavers, Esq.
Dr. Fred Fearson W. A Hunter. Esq
Miss Jessie Kaemp ) T
Mrs. D- A Bean lehrs Adamson Esq
Mr Chss. P Zuelsdocf HESPELER
Miss M. Birch Mr, John Murphy
John Brown. Esq. Me }. S. Baker
PRESTON ELMIRA
Geo. Paminsn, Esq. e e -
. . MBP. Simon Ratz, Esq. :
au * 7+ aomenal Success of the Gourlay Pranos is not accidental, Geo. Clare. Esq., MP. NEW HAMBURG
wut the natural result of the reahzation of 1 Ligher ideal in pianc qualty Pezer Bernhrdh, Esq. Muss Aznes M Rennie
thah cver befor. werded in the history of Canadian piano building.
M. a2t e lovers who are ready to acknowledge Gﬂm‘lay, wmter & Leeming
RTINS -+« wpetlatve qualines and voluntanly paid
r q ' P 188 Yonge St. Toronto
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T FOREWORD P

HE RECORD of cne hundred years' progress in Waterloo Gounty, its agricultural and industrial advance-
ment, is a theme which thousands of printed pages cannot exhaust, and if the following effort is meagre in
comparisor, it is because the subject is so stupendous that after months of work the result is only what is here

produced. The succeeding pages, however, have been carefullv compiled from documentary record, historical research
and pioneer recollections, and contair 2ll the principal features that are involved in one hundred years of evolution.

From the primeval forest of scarce more than a century ago, where nature alone reigned with unbroken sway
until the opening decade of the present century, evolution, though gradual. has been marked by a solidity, stability and
phenomenal growth that gives Waterloo the undisputed title of the most prosperous county in the Dominion. The farm,
the mill, the factory and the numercus tributary enterprises combine to bestow this honor. and the fame of each is
known, not only from the eastern to the western shores of Canadian territory, but in that ambitious land te the south
and other countries of the globe where the products of Waterlco brains, energy and industry have become indispensable
articles in the woild’s commerce.

The broad acres of well-tilled fertile farm land, smiling under the benign influence of bounteous nature and
fostered by the intelligent and urceasing care of the experienced and skilled agriculturist, are indestructible monuments
of honer to the memory of the pioneer, whose posterity is reaping the harvest from the seed sown amid early hardships,
privations and ndomilable perseverance. The selfl binder has taken the place of the sickle, the old time flail is super-
seded b; tie steam thresher; the horse, the railway and the trolley make the markets easy of access, and what in the
old days required a week o perform is now more profitably accomplished in a few hours.

Wheie the labyrinth of unbroken swamp and woodland one hundred years ago afforded sanctuary to the
wild denizen 11 its native clime, prosperous towns and villages have been founded, stately buildings have been reared, and
human life presents a kaleidoscope suggestive of a nation’s activity. The bells from the church towers call to matins.
service and vespers, and the schools are filled with eager, happy youth, ambitious to take their places in the arena of
life, and in the coming years add still greater laurels to those alieady won by their progenitors. Tall chimneys belch
forth the smoke that is the index of a busy hive of industry beneath, where the products of the land, the forest and the
mine are transformed into the marketable articles which this age of world progress demands wherever the banner of
civilization has been planted.

Like the pulsating arteries of an animate form that conveys life throughout its system, is the gridiron of railways,
steam and electric, covering the county, tapping the bases of supply and demand, and giving easy egress and ingress
in all directions. Distance and time have been annihilated and Waterloo Gounty &nds the world at its doors.

What the future has in store may be fairly outlined through the spectacles of past progress. The rapid develop-
ment of the Great West is taxing to the utmost the manufacturing and commercial enterprises of e East. Old
establishments are being enlarged and extended, rew ones are springing up, loreign capital is being invested in the
manufacture of yoods on Canadian territory, and while past achievements are of the most gratifying kind. it is undeni-
able that industrial activity in Waterloo County is only commencing to mount to the crest of prosperity’s wave. The
introduction of electrical energy is destined to revolutionize the laws of production and demand. In lessening the cost
of the former it will increase the volume of the latter. The Gounty of Waterloo, in the enjoyment of its present advan-
tage and cantiguous to the source of electnic power. cannot fail to benefit. Under these circumstances. what the naxt
decade will bring forth is simply conjecture and the application of the multiplication table to its factories will give
a fair idea of the result.

Looking at all these facts the publisher of this Souvenir offers no apology for its presentation in commemoration
of the 50th year of publication of the Ghronicle-Telegraph. Gare has been taken to secure the most accurate jnforma-
tion possible and valuable assistance has beer accorded by many who are authonties on pioneer reminiscences. This,
briefly, is why we publish the work and trust it will be received with the appreciation commensurate with the labor it
has occasioned and be treasured and valued 2s a souvenir of dear oid Waterlco.

THE PUBLISHER.
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? Gonditions Prior to Settlement %’

Sooriye % HEN out of chaos the Great Architect of the Universe had evolved and formed the planet on

. ?g}g‘sﬁv_‘\ ] . . . . P ; .

| Vo “?"W . which we live, there existed a little spot, 305,250 acres in extent, on what is now the
ey uty 1 North American continent. In the countless succeeding ages that little spot was destined
= &7 IR ! to become famous and be known as the County of Waterloo. In the great world com-

ARRR N L . .. e . . .
. petition of the present strenuous activity it has, by the indomitable perseverance of its people,

won for itself a place in the front ranks of education, industry and commerce, and thus exerts an influence
towards progress in less favored localities and among less enterpnsing people.  Age followed age, centuries
might be counted as days, but the work of evolution continued in what to human minds may have been a
slow precess, but nature, guided by the Great Architect, never faltered, and long after completion the favored
place was discovered by descendants of the Caucasian race, whose civilizing influence and commercial instincts
have developed the present conditions.  Natwe, ever bounteous, has used a generous hand in dealing with
Waterloo.  The land, the water, the climate, possess all the essentials necessary for a prosperous community
and, settled as it has been by a thrifty and progressive people, nature’s designs have been consummated
and the anticipations of the carly pioneers more than realized.

So far as at present known to geologists, who have given some study to the outcropping rock which
appears in a few lecalities, and from matenial taken from the decpest boring made within the confines of the
county, the strata that underlies the soil is a limestone, known as the “Guelph™ formation, which comes to the
surface at Galt, Preston, Doon and along the bed of the Grand River.  In other portions of the county well
borings have tapped the bed rock at various depths, the deepest yet known being at the Town of Waterloo,
where it was found at a distance of 150 feet below the surface, after passing soil, blue clay and a gravelly
mixture.  Underdying the “Guelph™ was found the “Niagara,” a limestone of a different character, and below
this the drill picrced what geologists call the “Onondaga™ formation, another class of limestone.  But this is not
a geological treatise.  The object of this work is to tell of the surface and what has transpired thereon.
Valuable commercial deposits may be buried far below, of which there is no present knowledge.  Just now.
what is underncath occasions little concern among the people, beyord the springs which feed the wells and
are found at various depths.

Between Freeport and Doon, on the old Wildfang homestead, now owned by Mrs. Ferdinand Miller,
there exists a spring that has excited some curiosity and been subject to considerable examination by a few
geological devotees.  The water from this spring oozes from the bank of the Grand River, about cighty feet
above its bed, at the rate of about one hundred gallons per minute.  In the neighborhood it is popularly
known as the “peinfying spring,” from the fact that varicus objects subjected to the action of its waters are
coated with the calcarcous substance which at first glance has the appearance of petnfication.  Experts who
have visited it express the opinion that it was, in ages past. a gevset or “boiling spring” similar to those now in
cxistence in the famous Yellowstone Park of Colorado, basing their opinien upon the fact that the white
calcarccus deposits in the vicinity are identical in composition with the sediment ejected by the famed geysers
of the west.  In the northeast corner of the township of Wilinot along a little tributary of the river Nith zre
found many mteresting fossils and evidences of fermer deep sca life, indicative of the vastly different conditicns
which existed in centuries now long past.  These are just a few facts that are interesting enough to demonstrate
that in prehistoric times the spot that is now krown as Watcrloo County was quite different m its physical

{eatures from what it 1s to-day.

No wecalth producing mines, petrolevm deposits or natural gas veins have yet been discovered in the county,
nor arc there any surface indications now known to mincralogists that lead to the supposition that suck exist.
Scme years ago, in the town of Waterloo, the presence of oxide of .ron en the water of Litle Reaver Creck
convinced some cnthusiasts that the appearance was an indication of petroleum.  There was mild excitement
for a ime and hopes ran high. Cempanies were formed, about $15,600 was willingly subscribed, and a
hole in the carth was drilled to a depth of 2.250 feet. At that depth indications were no more promising
than on the surface.  The dill and sod became embedded in the rock and lost and the hole was abandoncd,

GIANT PINE
Cut down on the farm of Enoch Erb,

:}\rc? miles wtc-!: of \lfga}crlo:, Euf nothing having been discovered mere valuable than an artesian well.  This, however, was not utilized. The
umference a t : . v . . :

height 140 fect.  The reader will nore hole™ left in its abandoned state, filled in and stepped the flow, and at the present time that well, the rod and
that besido 1t the other lare trees the dsll, are buried beneath many feet of carth. It is frem the tep that industry, commerce and conse-

look like saplings. . o : - .
N ne quent “wealth is cvolved. and it is to the exterior conditions and advancement that the writer now turns.
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The surface of the county is of a diversified character, undulating in
formation and watered by numerous streams that wind their serpentine courses
within its borders like the trail of a huge python, draining the land and furnish-
ing numerous water powers for marufacturing purposes. The hills and valleys
" are fettile, stony and swampy ‘and of small and insignificant area. The land is
varied in chatacter but very productive. The soil in Wellesley Township is
principally heavy clay. In other parts of the county it is clay and sandy loam,
with here and there small patches of stony and gravelly surface. Rock crops
out in but few places and surface stones are not numerous. A few boulders
are encountered in some sections. These undoubtedly came frem the Lake
Superior region and were dropped by the great glaciers of the ice age when
the present topography had its birth.

Of the streams that traverse the county the most important is the Grand
River which rises in Dufferin County and runs its course of one hundred miles
until it empties into Lake Erie at Pot Maitland in Haldimand County. This
histotic stream along whose banks the aboriginal tribes roamed and found favorite
hunting grounds, enters the county at the northeast end of Woolwich Town-
ship, runs through the village of West Montrose and on to Conestogo, and a
lide father on enters Waterloo Township. Then on to the villages of
Lexington, Bridgeport and Breslau, following its serpentine course on down
through the villages of Freeport, Doon, Blair and the town of Preston,
until it reaches the town of Galt, from which point it pursues a comparatively
straight course until it enters Brant. The Conestogo River has its source in
Peel Township, county of Wellington, and empties into the Grand near the
village of Conestogo. This stream is said to have received its name from
George Eby, one of a small exploting party from Lancaster County, Pennsyl-
vania. In crossing, one of the party remarked upon its smilarity to the Conestogo
River of Lancaster County, to which Mr. Eby replied *Conestogo it shall be,”
and 3o it has been called ever since. Emptying into the Grand at the Town
of Preston is the river Speed, which finds the county border a littie northwest
of the village of Hespeler through which place it makes its course. For “ways
that are crooked” the most remarkable stream is the Nith River, formerly known
as-Smith's Creck. The intricacies of its course are almost indefinable: the
*winding trail of the scrpent” or the proverbial “Chinesc puzzle” are straight
lines in comparison. Taken in a straight linc as the crow flies, from where
it enters the county until it makes its exit, the distance is about twenty miles,
But to follow the stream in its fantastic windings it is necessary to traverse
about forty-five miles.  The river comes out of Perth County and finds
Waterloo's border near the southwest comer of Welledey Township.  On the
southern boundary it deviates into Perth County, then retums to Watetloo
at the northwest comer of Wilmot, leaving that township at its
southern border and disappearing into the county of Oxford, but again enters
Waterdoo on the western border of North Dumfries whers it takes a snake-
like course to the village of Ayr. and with an abrupt tum makes exit again
into Oxford. Creeks and brooklets are numerous throughout the whole
county. and there ate few farms that do not possess the advantage of “running
water.”  Noteworthy among these brooklets is one nising from 2 hole on
the farm of Geotge Glennic. This “hole™ shows a surface measurement of
about twelve square fect and a depth of fifteen, from which pure spring water
flows at the rate of about 150 gallons per minute the year round.

While the land is of a “rolling” character there are but few hills that
possess any conspicuous peculiarity. The highest point of land in the county,
and in fact the greatest altitude along the line of the Grand Trunk Railway
between Toronto and Samia, is situated in the township of Wilmt, and known
as “Baden Hill" rising 1.300 feet above the level of Lake Ontano. In
Waterloo township there is another elevation between three and four hundred
feet above the Grand River. Near Blair is a cone hke hill known as “The
Pinnacle.”” which rises to a considerable height. At the top is a tree from the
branches of which the greater patt of the county can be seen. The general
rolling nature of the land is one of the pleasing features of the county. It
breaks the monotony of a flat landscape, adding a beauty and charm to the
whole district.  The valleys wind in fantastic shapes aniong the hills, which in
a few places tise to a height sufficient to interfere with casy cultivation, or render
highway travel difficult. It is a county of grassy slopes and babbling brooks—
except in winter—and even then the snow clad hills, the leafless branches and
ice imprisoned hrooks have a charm and beauty inherent to the season that
presents just as magnificent an aspect as the vernal birth or summer sheen, only
of a different natwe and complexion. Wateoo is a county pomessing
natural advantages that make it one of the garden spots of Canads, when

viewed by the agncultural eye.

THE CHRONICLE-TELEGRAPH SEMI.GENTENNIAL NUMBER.

The forests which coveted the county were the wonder and admiration
of the eary settlers. The timber was of mammoth growth and diversity.
Stately pines, whose trunks were six feet in diameter, waved their topmost
branches more than two hundred feet above the ground, and in some parts of
the county the stumps of these forest giants are still to be seen—relics of a
former greatness. The oak and the elm flourished in gigantic proportions, and
five and six feet diameters were as much the rule as the exception.  Maple,
beech, birch and other trees abounded and flourished as though engaged in a
rivalry for forest supremacy. Hemlock, cedar, spruce and kindred growths
held sway on the lower lands and developed to the full extent of nature’s law.
Smaller varieties of timber of every kind indigenous to the soll grew every-
whete, filling intervening spaces among their larger neighbors with an almost
impregnable bamier. What a paradise this would have been for the present
day lumberman with modem methods and markets. What a source of revenue
it would be to the Crown Lands Department in the disposal of timber limits.
But, as is destined to be the fate of all things mundane, the grand old forest
has disappeared, a victim of the necessity and avarice of mankind, by whose
despotic will the elements of primeval grandeur are made to serve the ends for
which no doubt they were originally intended. What a change has been
wrought in one hundred years—in some cases less than the period of a human
lifetime. What a century ago was a forest solitude is now an expanse of
prosperous, fertile farms, thriving villages and busy towns, teeming with life and
activity, extracting from the resources of the county the material which tums
the wheels of commerce and progress. A wonderful change, but one not to
be regretted.  Sympathy, however, goes out to those hardy, plucky and per-
sistent pioneers, who, with limited means and primitive facilities, undertook the
almost supethuman task of clearing the land. Necessity was the incentive that
led to ultimate triumph.

Although the solitude and apparent desolation of the Waterloo wilderness
may have had an oppressive and discouraging effect upon the first white settlers,
it was a veritable paradise to the aboriginal Indian tribes, who inhabited the
locality long before the coming of the illustrious Joseph Brant (Thayendanega)
and his “Six Nation" braves after the close of the American Revolution. The
streams abounded in fish, the woods were filled with game and wild fruit, and
the living problem with the Indian was one of casy solution. History, how-
ever, respecting these carlier Indians is fragmentary and in many cases legendary.
A book entitled “Travels and explorations of the Jesuit Missionaries in New
France, 1610-1791" contains some of the earliest records that throw light upon
the subje=t. In the contents of that volume what appears to have most refer-
ence to this particular locality is a letter written at Saint Marie, located some-
where on Georgian Bay, by one of the Jesuit missionaries. It speaks of the
“ Attiwandarons or Peoples of the Neutral Nation™ as a very populous one,
having about forty villages. The tribe or “nation™ numbered about 12,000
with 4000 warriors, and were neutral between the Hurons and Iroquois, but
engaged in bloody battles with other tribes further west. The early French
explorers gave them the name of “Neutrals,” but the Hurons called them
“Attiwandarons,”” which meant “people of a slightly different language.” The
letter then says: “Not long ago the Hurons, Iroquois and Neutrals were
made one people, and it is said they all oniginated from the same family, oc
from a few old stocks which formerly landed on the coasts of this region, but it
is probable that in the progress of time they have become removed and sepa-
rated from one another more or less. in abode, in interests and in affection.
They had cruel wars with western Indians, especially the Aleistathronons, oc
“Fire Nation.” Fragmentary records, discoveries of various relics, etc., lead
to the belief that these people once lived and roamed over the locality which
is now the County of Wateloo, and the district hetween Georgian Bay and
the lower lakes. Mr. David Boyle, curator of the Provincial Museum
at the Normal School building, Toronto, who is probably the best
Canadian authority on Indian archacology, has kindly furnished the
following, which has a direct bearing on Waterloo County: “Archacological
researches in what is known as S. Waterloo lead us to conclude that long
before the white people settled there or even before the French were known
in Canada, the ground was occupicd by some tribe or tribes of Huron-lroquois
stock, known as Neutrals or Attiwandarons. I all peobability Wikmot and
and Waterloo townships were all the northern limit of what & may be Justifi-
able to call the “settlement”” of these people, many traces of whom have been dis-
covered, especially in the latter township, perhaps less 10 m the fohmer ove,
simply because # has nat been 10 thoroughly examined, although there can be
no doubt that trails extending from the main one between Macassa, now Bur-
Lington Bay, and acros the Grand River, a lidde south of Brantford ull #
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reaches the Thames not far from Beachville, must have extended in various
directions northwards, il we may be allowed to form an opinion by an examin-
ation of the stone relics frequently occumng in the Counties of Perth, Wellington,
Huron, Bruce and Grey. It is impossible to state accurately when these people
first appeared so far west n this province, for contrary to the usually received
opinton, | am convinced that some bodies of these people had reached Ontario
dircctly from their onginal seat on the banks of the Ohio i the State of the
same name, as well as from Kentucky, long before the French discovered
Canada.

“In the forthcoming Archacological report an attempt has been made to
show that the hitherto received opinions respecting the coming of these people
westward from the place of their so called origin on the lower St. Lawrence,
13 purely mythical, and those who are supposed to have come, or who really
did come to thus province from Eastern Canada, were but a fragment of the
stock that had found tts way to the Gulf of St. Lawrence by a somewhat cir-
cuitous route up the Ohio to New Brunswick, whence they were expelled by
the Micmacs.”

These are practically all the facts that can be leamed conceming the
earlier Indian tribes who inhabited this part of the country. Many evidences
of their existence have been discovered in the neighborhood of Berlin and
Waterloo, such as stone implements, stone pipes, arrow heads, spears, pottery,
cte. [Excavations in various portions have revealed ancent burying grounds
contaimng many skeletons. Mr. Jacob G. Stroh of the Town of Waterleo
has i his possession a very large and varied collection of those interesting
Indian relics, gathered in

to their conscientious belief.  They sought a new refuge in a new country
under the British crown and emigrated to Canada. Itis to that revolution,
when Britain lost a promising colony, that Waterloo owes its present
prosperity.

Although actual settlement did not commence until the beginning of the
19th century, a sarge portion of the Indian lands were disposed of to specu-
lators a féw years previously. In speaking of this, Hon. James Young, in his
“Reminiscences of the carly history of Galt and the Settlement of Dumfries,”
says: “On the 5th of February, 1798, Colonel Brant, on behalf of the Six
* Nations, and acting as their legal attorney, sold to one Philip Stedman of the
* Niagara District that portion of their lands known as Block No. 1, comprising
* 94,305 acres, and which by an Act of the Legislature became known as
* the Township of Dumfries. The price stipulated was £8,841." This was
apparently the original purchase of Watetloo County lands by the whites, and
was followed by the disposal of Block No. 2, comprising 94,012 acres to
Richard Beasley, James Wilson and John B. Rosseau for £8,887. This
block formed the Township of Waterloo.

JOSEPH SHERK AND SAMUEL BETZNER ARRIVE.

It was some time after this, however, before there was much movement
towards settlement  not until 1800. In that year Joseph Sherk and Samuel
Betzner lo.ated on the Grand River necar Doon, becoming the first permanent
white settlers in the county.  Previous to that time but few whites had visited
the localty, and most of them had been trappers and fur traders whose
residence was only tem-

different  parts  of the
county. In 1784, when
Governo Haldimand re-
presented  the  Bnush
crown in Canada, there
was granted to the “din
Nations" comprising the
Mohawk,Seneca L ayuga,
Onada, Tuscarora and
Onondaga tnbes valuable
tracts of land along the
banks of the Grand Rwer.
then called the Quse, from
Its source to s mouth. It
was valuable land and as

porary, except one named
Dodge, who became a
permanent resident.
Other families followed
but settlement was not
rapid. Canada was then
a wilderness of which
little was known. Due
necessty was the pre-
dommating factor which
induced the pioneers to
cast therr lot i the new
country, and the majority
of those who came eary
found locations near the

such attracted the white
settler, to  whom large
blocks were disposed, the
Indians eventually retiring
to a small reservation on the west side of the nver just south of Brantford,
where the remnant of the once great and powerful lroquois the nation that
was the terror of is enemies n days gone by -now cke out a precarious
existence.  Though Indian wars and attendant cruelties have long disappeared,
it 1s stll open to question whether the cvihzing influences of the white man
have been beneficial to hum of the red complexion.  Alicnated from hereditary
freedom and customs, the Indians have degenerated and become a decaying
race. There are, however, olated cuses where the seeds of education have
found fertile ground, and a few of the descendants of the once savage tribes
have become industrious and wealthy.

EARLY SETTLEMENT.

Few years had elapsed after the land grant had been made by Governor
Haldimand to Brant and his braves until the covetous cye of the white man
was attracted to this secion.  The revolt of the southern colonics against the
Brtish crown rendered that country repugnant to those who were unswerving
i therr loyalty to George 111, and to the “non-conformists™ who had emigrated
to Pennsylvania from Holland, Swatzerland, Germany and Denmark.  These
“non-conformusts” had very pronounced religious scruples against military ser-
vice, judicial oaths, and other conditions imposed by the autocratic rule which
existed 1n those European countnies.  Secking refuge from what to them was a
galling persccution, they had come to the new world and by their inherent
theft and industry became a prosperous colony. The revolution, however,
with 1its attendant obligations upon the residents of the country of the scceders,
so changed matters that a large number of them preferred to adopt pioneer
lfe and cndure personal prwations rather than submit to conditions opposed

SCENE OF THE FIRST SETTLEMENT
The old Sherk and Betzner homesteads on the Grand River near Doon

frontier. The difficulty in
reaching this section, too,
was an obstacle that re-
tarded rapid oc ‘>ationin
the carly days. To reach Watetloo, the since famous Beverley Swamp had
to be traversed, and this at times was almost impassable. So far as known,
George Clemens, who came in 1802, drove the first horse team that ever
came through that dreary, dismal morass. In 1801 a number of families
artived from Pennsylvania after a long and tedious joumey. Among those
who amived that year were George, Abraham and Jacob Bechtel, Dilman
Kinsey, B. Rosenberger, John Biehn, accompanied by their families, and a
few young unmarmied men. Thus the cary settler came into the county, and
m the autumn of 1801 twelve families comprised the population. In 1806
a small settlement was made on the site of the present Town of Waterloo
by Abraham Erb, a more detailed description of which will be found in the
Waterloo town history which appears elsewhere in this publication.

TITLE CAUSES TROUBLE.

Previous to the coming of Mr. Erb, it was discovered that the title to the
lands in Waterloo township, purchased from Richard Beasley, was not of a
gilt edge nature.  Rumcrts of the insecurity of title led to investigation, which
disclosed the fact that a mortgage of $20,000 was recorded against the
“Beasley Tract.” This had a very discouraging effect, retarding the influx of
new residents and causing much anxicty to those who had already made pur-
chases. Beasley was interviewed by the somewhat indignant settlers. He
acknowledged the impeachment, but declared that the mortgage would be
discharged and that there was no occasion for alarm on the part of the
purchasers.  Mr. Beasley's suavity and assurances, however, were not alto-
gether satisfactory and did not inspire implicit confidence in the minds of the
hardy pioncers. Hereditary instincts cngendered suspicion. They were
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honest hard working men, whose “word was as good as their bond,” but they
had no inclination of risking the loss of their property or being lulled into
inaction by unsupported plausible words. Beasley was evidently driven into
a comer, for finding that his assurances were not accepted proposed that

SGHNEIDER AND FERRIL HOMESTEAD AT DOON (TOW TOWN).
101 years old. at present owned by Geoge A Tilt, Waterloo Township Cletk

a company be formed to purchase the entite Tract. offering as an nducement
five hundred acres to the successful promoter of such a syndicate. Relerring
to Ezra . Eby's History of Waterloo we find that the setlers mel in January.
1804. to discuss the situation, and sent Samucl Bricker and Joseph Sherk to
friends in Pennsilvania to enhst asustance in raising the amount necessary to
discharge the monigage. The firt move to accomplish the mission failed.
Mr. Shetk became discouraged and retumed to Canada. but Mr. Bricker. with
characteristic perseverance, femained to make further attempts to bring to
cuccessdul issue the object for which he had been delegated.  He went to
Lancaster County and comvened a meeting of his co-religionists (Mcnnonites)
and n a powerlul speech endeavored to secure their sympathy and financial
aid. While svmpathy was freely evpressed. there was apparcntly litle in-
Jination towards cxtending mon-tary assstan-e.  As the mecting was about
to decide againgt the project. “Hannes™ Eby ams~ and strongly advocated the
cause of Mr. Bricker. not from a speculative or financial point, but as a matter
of chndnan duty towards ther brethien w distress. "Ttus carnest sppeal tumed
the ude of {echng. and prehnunany arrangements were made for the organiza-
tion of a jount stock company. and Apnl of the same vear saw the culmination
of the project with the capnal stock draded 1nto cight shares. onc of which
was the maximum and onc-cighth the mnumnum which any member could
Al Bucker took onc-half share and was appomted the Compauy’s

possess
The acwly formed company

agent, with Dzmel Eib as an asedant
genetoudy offered to pay expenses and a fair salary to these gentlemen, but
thev. baving w mind the difficalties which confronted the sctlers. and thewr
limted financial resources, oflered ther senvces free. and statted for Canada
wath $20000, all 1 sher dollars, weured m a Tstrong bov.” making the
journey of five hundred mlee wathout mishap. although subjected 20 consider-
able anaety concerming the vare of the ancent which had been entrusted
1o them.

1.cgal procedure wm the old dave apparenthy jogged along m the same
Iesuredv manner that 3 dues at the present tame We quote Mr Fbyv, who sws:
*“There was some delay n htng the mostgage. Howerer. after all the lega'
Jdocuments were exammed and the gate of affaus thotoughly mvestigated by
the Tlon Wilkam Dickson of \iagara, who recaved twenty guineas for s
servces and legal advce, thinge were amxably arranged and the deed be-
tween Richard Besdey and s wife Hennelta, conveyving 6OU00 arres of land
for £10000 Canadian cureany to Damiel Frb and Jacob Exb, who, at the
request of Sarvel Bnckern, wae appomted  agents of the Company. was
atsdaciordy executed”  The land was sun ~ved and lad out m lots of 448
acres cach, and a draft of the present Township of Watctloo was made by «
sutvever named Jenes. A\ capy of this map was sent to the sharcholders in
Pennsylvana. among whom the land not already takeu up by sctilers was
apposticned by a method of “castmg lots”" and in this way the lemtory was
Jdivided among the whsequent amvals.  The ongnal deed made by Beadey
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and his wife is still preserved in the Berlin Registry Office. It is inscribed on,
parchment 18 x 24 inches in size. It is now yellow with age and the writing
has faded to a dimness that makes the document difficult to decipher. It was.
the intention of the publisher of this book to give a photographic reproduc-
tion of the old deed. but the unkind ravages of time have rendered it impos-
sible to secure a plate that would give an adequate and readable reproduction.

The preamble of this ancient conveyance the oldest in the county registry
reads:

“This indenture, made at Barton in the County of Lincoln and
District of Niagara, of the Province of Upper Canada, June 29th, 1805,
between Richard Beadey of Barton aforesad, Esquire, and Henrietta,
lus wife, of one part, and Daniel Erb. of Block No. Two, on the Grand
River m the County of York and Home District of the Province afore-
said, and Jacob Eib, of the same place. yeoman, of the other part,
witnesseth that the said Beadey. for and m consideration of the sum of
Ten Thousand Pounds of lawful money of Canada, etc.. hath granted.
ctc.. unto them. the said Damel Exb and Jacob Erb, and their heus and
assigns forever. all that certain parcel or tract of land situated in the
County of York and Home Distnct aforesaid, contammg by admeasure-
ment Sixty Thousand Acres, morc or less.”

The description of the tract, conditions and obligations follow, and the
document is duly signed and sealed.

After thus securing a valid title to the land, the members of the Company
sought to turn their holdings to the best account possible. [t was not exploited
through newspaper and magazine advertising :n the manner adopted Ly present
dav land purchasces and speculators. Every sharcholder was a boria fide owner
and either settled upon the land or disposed of his holding to some one who
wished to make a new home in a new country.  Space here does nct permit
a detailed record of the families who composed those first hardy scttless, whose
strenuous lives among scencs of continual toil. hardship and pration 1zde them

archives

men of brawn and action.

EARLY HARDSHIPS AND PRIVATIONS.

Many storics are told by the descendants to the carly and perseverning
pioncess, how they battled agam«t dificulties and overcame obstacles, and of
the trials they endured in the tedious joumey from Pennsyhania to Waterloo.

FIRST APPLE TREE
Grown lrom seed broeght from Pennaylvania i the yoar 1800 and planted on the

okl Sherk MHomestend. opposte Village of Doon. on the Grand River. 1t war
stll standmng and boaung frmit up o a coaple of yoars ago, when ot war Hlown

down detinz a scvere wind storm

Transpoctation in thosc days was not accomplished by the casy and pleasant
methods of twenticth century rogress.  The distance to Waterloo from the
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part of Pennsylvania from which most of these carly settlers came is about
500 miles, and the means of transportation were of primitive nature.  Horses
and wagons were mainly used, but the route lay over mountains, across nivers
and through swamps, over roads that were almost unpassable, and in many
places that did not exist at all.  In some places it was necessary to construct a
road before proceeding, and while this work was being prosecuted the families
of the workers camped in the woods. In this way it sometimes took several
days to proceed a few miles. Of one party it is told that nine hours were con-
sumed in making a distance of three miles while crossing the Alleghany. moun-
tains. The way through the Beverley swamp, however, was the dread of the
traveller. It was a morass of treacherous soil and unknown depths, and passage
was made over the old fashioned “corduroy” which had to be constructed
before progress could be made.  As time rolled by armvals became mere num-
erous, but it was many years before the roads were much improved. Such
10ad construction as was carried out was only what absolute necessity required
and was done by voluntary labor.

When the first setilers amved there were no houses ready for ' -ir recep-
tion. They camped bencath the wide spreading branches of the mammoth
trees, makmg themsches as comfortable as limited means v-ould allow, untid a
rough shelter of logs could be erected.  Hardware stores and lumber yards were
an unknown luxury ncarer than Little York (Tcronto). or Niagara, consequently
the first buildings were of rude construction and  built with the aid of a few
primitive tools which had been brought from Pennsylvania.  But these hardy
pioncers worked with a will and were happy in the new home they had
selected, and not subjected to delay by strikes and laber roubles so prevalent at
the present day.  Among these fust dwelfings was
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resulting, and necessitaling a fifty mile journey through mud, water, swamp and
forest to sccure a fresh supply.

MAKING APPLE BUTTER

A famihiar scene in the coantry home

Durng the war of 1812, a number of these Watetloo scttlers were
pressed mto senvice as teamstets, much aganat 17 anclination, but at the close
of hostilities they were amply remunerated for services

one crected by Christian Schnetder, near Doon, which
1s still standing. Some time tn 1806 a saw mll was
crected at Preston by John Erb and provided lumber
that greatly facilitated luture building operations.  In-
terior fumishings, too, v.cre mostly of home censtruction
and though not afferding the comlferts of modeam
articles they served the purpose and were then re-
garded almost i the light of luxunes. The first table
used in the county was in the dwdlling «f Jes=ph
Sherk and cousisted of a huge pine stump. fhe fect 0
diamcter, over which the house had been crected.
While hard work and persistence eventually leads to
success, the final accomplishment is seldom reached
without some adversity., and of thus the piencers had
ther share.  The first disaster of note was a fire in
1806 which destroyed several buildings and many
fences and rmuned  censderable valuable standing

Saltzberger, 1819

MARY (BIEHN) SALTZBERGER

Bern Apad 24th, 1800, fist whate
i Watetln County, married to Jobn Fh
Died Dec 2nh, 1B8R

and zny loss they had sustained.  Each succeeding
vear brought its quota of new amivals, and progress
became more rapid as the years rolled on.

SETTLEMENT OF GALT AND
DUMFRILES.

Following cles= upzn the settlement of Waterloo
Township. attent on was atwacted to the focalty now
| known as the Tor u of Galt and Township of North
Dumfrics.  As presiously mentioned, the land had
been purchased by Philip Sicadman, who, however,
did not wm his purchass to immediate account, and
shortly after obtaining his patent from the Crown.
dicd intestate.  The property was inherited by his
sister. who in 1811 conveved the land 1o Hon.
Thomas Clatk of Stamiford. now in Welland County.
This propenty was afterwards purchased by Hon.

—

hild brrn

timber.  Among those who suffered were Abraham
Staufler, . \braham Bechitel, Jacob Bechtel and Nathamel Dodge.  Prowisions,
clothing and many other necessinies were consumed. consderable hordship

FELLING A BIC PINE,

The subject of the above prctere was cut down on the farm of Henry S Stroh,
Dedgenort, in 1895,  Diameter five leet, hoight 130 Tect. and the last of these forest puants
16 be cut down in ths locelny.

Witham Dicksen. whe subscquently became  what
might be termed the father of the localitv.  He was a Scotchman by
burth. came to Canada in 1792, sctiled in Niagara. where he practised law,
and took an active part i the war of 1812, It was seme time after M.
Dicksen's purchase, however, hefore settlement made any rapid advancement.
It was m 18106 that Mr. Dickson engaged the services of Absslom Shade, a
voung Amencan carpenter 1o whom he had taken a farcy.  Mr. Dickson was
anvious to know the value of hus property and leam of the prospects it offered
ter colemzation.  He and Mr. Shade made a jont viat of mspection. and after
some difficulty in penctrating the forest with the aid of an Indian guide they
halted at the spot where Gak nrw stands.  The intention was to establish
a wllage with a gnst and saw mil for the convenience of the incoming scttlere.
At this poimt Mill Creck and the Grand River offered good water power anl
the locality was finally sclected as the site of the embryo vithge.  The onlr
evidernce of human habatation thev found was a dilajudated building that had
undoubtedly been crected for a mill. It was afterwards discovered that thas
had been constructed by ore Alexander Méller, who had bargained with the
Indians for several hundred acies of land in the vizmity, but afterwards findin~y
his tile valucless abandened his claim.

Through the cfforts of Mcsgs. Dickson and Shade the willage was
cventeally founded and known as "Shade’s Mille”  Senlement followed slow!:
ard W was not until ahout 1825 that the number of amvals showed much -
crease sn North Dumines, winch was populated by jueple mostle of Scotch engir.

WILMOT ATTRACTS ATTENTION.

Wilmot Towndip was the next section of the present rounty to attract
the attention of the peaple wha were looking for land upon which to make
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homes for themsslves and posterity. The pioneer of that township was
Christian Naffsiger, and no better or more comprehensive statement of the
early setilement can be made than by quoting the following from Fzra E.Eby's
biographical history, which says:

“The townzhip of Wilmot was principally settled by a society of Germans
belonging to the Non-Conformists, whose leader was one by the name of
Chrnistian Naffsiger. . - Naffsiger came originally from Amsterdam to
New Orleans and travelled through the Southern States northward until he
came to Lancaster County, Pennsylvania, where

\

case before him. His visit 1o His Majesty was also very successful as the king
also agreed that the land in question should be given in the same way as the
Governor had promised. Some of these people arived here in th~ vear 1824,
though Naffsiger was hindered, for certain reasons, from coti..g until the
summer of 1826."

Thus was the first settlement of Wilmot cflected.  The first settler, how-
ever. to take up actual residence in the township was Andrew Schoerg, who
moved from Waterloo township in 1824.

he met with some friends who urged him to
continue his joumey to Canada and there take
up a tract of land for his co-religionists.  In
August, 1822, he arived in Waterloo town-
ship, where he made himself acquainted with
some of the settlers. who advised him to secure
the township west of Waterloo, now known
as Wilmot township. After examining the
township, he decided that it was just the place
he and kis ccuniymen ard ce-religiciisis
wanted. He then went to Terento
{: see the Gowerror of Upper Canada. with
a view 1o securing, i possible. this tract of land
fer his ccun'tyman in the fatherland, who pro-
posed emigratir 1 to some forcign pant of the
world. The Govemcr very liserally offered
to give cach fzmily fifty acres free. and allow
them to pur.kase at a very low rate any ad-
divional lard they might wish to have. . . . . . . He returned to his
native land fer the purpase of bringing to Canada his family and friends. In
order. howcver. to be perfectly certain in the matter pertaining to his land, on
his way home he waited upon George 1V, King of England. presenting his

been regtaced by a shingle roof

A RELIC OF PIONEER PiIOTOGRAPHY.

W hat remairs of the Trave'ling Dag:ecereotype Wagsn of the
notonio s Lou Mudge at Strasburg, now owned by Mrs. H Schwartz,
who received 1t as o present from h.s sstes

WOOLWICH AND WELLESLEY
FOLLOW.

The sattlement of Woolwich and Wellesley
townships, formerly known as the “Queen’s
Bush,” followed some years later. The people
entered the county from the South and finding
Dumfrics, Waterloo and Wilmot well occupied
they pushed farther northward to find unoccupicd
land. In these northern townships the sctilers
were of mixed nationality, comprising English,
Scotch, Irish and German, with religious beliefs
of a varied character.

From that time until the present uninter-
rupted prosperity characterized the progress
of the county. Among individual residents
there were ups and downs, trials and vicise-
tudes, just the same as in present day life,
but successful progress was not retarded and
Waterloo emerged as the peer of any among the counties of the Province,

The Hon. James Young of Ga't. whose authonty on Waterloo nty
histcry is unquestioned, has kindly contributed the following reminiscences which
give much information respecting carly history:---

The glass sky-light has

I AIS N W\YY)

Scene in the Foley-Bowman Election.
From an old picture kindly loancd by Mr. Geo. B. Schaefer. Watcrloo.

MR. FOLEY'S RECEPTION IN BERLIN. APRIL 4m. 1864.

The Paveraar Generai blashing through hs specs at the Grand Demonstration

Bowmar Toe crmwd 1 not very furge Mo Foley but s vespectabiinty will make up for
that defect

Dr ' lethin olf” Tman ronfess thatss rathera hierd Jooking aquad after all my cuertons

Me Gro® They i a biack jook avt for our Sude, Di | and ali the PILLS in your Box cant

3NV uR

N K-

5 Golored Lady  Colly Masss Grof, how you do march to the Munie

6 Pat Mioney Lave the way ye dirthy blackgaard ava Sonava ould Naggar vl 1 get
a sgquint at Mickey

7 Barney Finnctass (8 G TR cmployee) Now boys, three Checra for Mickey and the
Grand Trunk
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Old Time Reminiscences

?

By HON. JAMES YOUNG, Gait.

Y RECOLLECTIONS easily go back to a period when there
was no Waterloo County, and | remember quite distinctly the
excitement aroused when in 185 1the Hincks government brought
in a measure to sub-divide what was then called Upper Canada

into smaller judicial and municipal districts, of which Waterloo County was
made one, with Berlin as the county town. Prior to this date -—-over half a
century ago- the province had long been divided into twenty immense districts.
The township of Dumfries, both north and south, and the village of Galt then
constituted a part of the old Gore district, of which the city of Hamilton was
the judicial centre, whilst the townships of Waterloo, Woolwich, Wilmot and
Wellesley were comprised m a large tract of country called the Wellington
distict.  Guelph was then as now the largest place in Wellington, although it
made very slow progress for two or three decades after the famous novelist
John Galt, as commissioner for the Canada Company. laid out and founded the
place. This was as carly as 1826, The bnlliant and genial author of “The
Annals of our Parish,” made “Shade’s Mills,”

paper is printed here called the Geman Canadian, and there is a
Lutheran meeting house.  Post office: post twice a week.  Professions and
Trades: one physician and surgeon, one lawyer, three stores, one brewery,
one printing office, two taverns, one pump maker and two blacksmiths.” Time
and space prevent me entering at length into the county town battle, but in
later years when | became connected with the press and parliament, | looked
a little into the causes which led to Berlin's selection. 'When the measure was
first introduced into the Legislature, it was generally conceded, Mr. Hincks
himself being favorable, that Galt should be the seat of one of the new
counties. The tories and reformers of Galt, whose relations were generally very
bitter in those days. were alike cock-sure on this point, and this finally proved
to be the principal cause of their discomfiture. The Hon. David Christie
was at that time a power with the Hincks government.  His will was almost
law in thissection. He was naturally determined to have Brantford one of the
new county towns, and for this reason wanted to have Dumfries divided into two
townships. As the Dicksons had owned the
whole township and Galt was the centre of

which Galt was then called, his headquarters

their operations, they and their fellow citizens

for a time. Hec cut a road through the un.
broken forest northwards, chopped down the
first tree on the site chosen for the future
city, and christened it Guelph in honor of
the royal family. He became so popular
during his stay in “Shade’s Mills™ that Mr.
Dickson and the citizens decided to change
its name to that of the illustrious author. and
that is how Galt obtained the name it hasso
long and proudly borne.

Between these stiming carly times and
the founding of the county of Waterloo under
the Hincks Act, a quarter of a century rolled.
This period was essentially that of the early
pioncers of this district.  These were the
days when settlers flocked in hungry for
land. when forest cleanng was the general
pursuit, and the stroke of the woodman’s
axe and the crash of falling timber grected
the cars at every tum.  The Pennsylvanians
and Germans in Waterloo and Wilmot and
the Scotchmen in Dumfrics vied with cach
other as to whe would get their farms
cleared first. and as neary all were poor and

bitterly opposed Mr. Christie’s proposals. He
was antagonized at public meetings, and one
of the Galt newspapers systematically assailed
him with personal abuse and mistepresenta-
tion. This was a tactical blunder with such
a powerful supporter of the government, and
drove Mr. Christie into active hostility to Galt
and its claims. My enquiries several years
ago led me to believe that, notwithstanding
Betlin’s undoubted advantage in being more
central. the members of the Hincks govemn-
ment were loth to pass over Galt, and
dclayed action as long as possible in the
hope that the difficultics would be adjusted.
And it was only at the last stages of the bill,
and after certain leading Galtonians, with
stubborn misjudgment, instructed their dele-
gates to stand frm to the last against any
division of Dumlfrics, that Mr. Hincks finally
decided to pass over Galt and make its
then lintle rival the county seat.

The question being settled, the smoke of
this memorable battle soon blew over, and
the interest of the people centered on the

dependent on their small cleavances for a
crop. it was a hard struggle during the very
carly years. Moncy, too. was then scarce

HON JAMES YOUNG. GALT.

ncw county's inauguration. They had not
long to wait. The court house and gaol
were crected it 1832, and the county was

but corduroy roads abundant. and the log
houses were poor and the bams poorer:
nevertheless, 1 do not remember cver meeting one of those aged pioncers who
did not speak with a sparkle in his cves of thasc rough but healthy, jolly dayvs
with their blazing winter fires and pastimes, and sociality and kindncss almost
universal among all classes of the scuters.  As a witty Inshman, with a gift for
oratory and long a resident of Galt. said of these pioncer days: “We were
all poor. but when you called at any neighbor’s, you were always sure of the
warmedt side of the fire and the biggest potato in the pat.”

The setting apart of this county in 1831 was signalized by one of the
most cxcitmg and bitter hights which ever convulsed the community.  Whether
Galt or Balin should be the county town was the prize at stake. and many
readers will dearly remember what 2 strenuous struggle it was. At that time
Galt was nearing incorporation as a town. and was the foremost place between
Hamilton and London. Brantford and Guclph were not at that time so
prominent, and Berlin, now on the verge of cityhood, was only a small straggling
village. Six ycas beforc, in 1846, Smith's Canadian Gazetteer desenbed it
as follows: “A village in the township of Waterloo nme miles from Galt;
contains about 400 inhabitants, who are principally Germans. A tews-

set apant for judicial purposes on the 21st

day of January. 1853. The officers appointed by the Hincks government were:

Judge - - Mr. William Miller:

Shenfft  Mr. George Davidson:

Clerk of the Peace  Mr. fEmilius Inving ;

Clerk County Court Mr. Jas. Colquhoun:

Registrar  Mr. D. S. Shoemaker:

Clerk Surrogate Court  Mr. Christian Enslin:

Jailer— Mr. William \Walden.
When the first county council met, much interest was taken in who should
first fill the warden's chair. as well as the other county officials. The honor of
being the first Warden fcll on Dr. John Scott of Berlin, and a very grand man
he was: Mr. Wilkam Davidson was elected county clerk, and Mr. C. A.
Ahrens, ticasurer. It is sad to think that Mr. lrving, so far as | know, is the
only onc of these grand men still alive.  That gentleman still enjoys a green
old age in. Toronto as trcaswrer of the Law Society. He is the senior
practising barrister in Ontano, has been sixty-iwo years a member of
the Law Socicty, and recently had the honor of knighthood conferred
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upon him. lts selection as the county capital secems to have been the
tuming point in Berlin’s good fortune. 1 first saw it when a boy. about
the year 1850, and the only things I can recall are the old Huber store
which so long stood at the prncipal cross-roads, two or three hotels, and
the quaint old Mennomst meeting house.  What a wonderful *ransformation
has since taken place] To-day all classes of our citizens are proud of Berlin
as our county town, which is, indeed, one of the most prosperous and prelty to
be found throughout our wide Dominion.  Some of the many thraving towns
and villages which now adomn our prosperous county were mere hamlets at
the carly pericd under review.  Smith’s Canadian Gazetteer, already quoted
{1846), gives the population of some of them as follows. Haysville 70,
New Hope (now Hespeler) 100, Ayr 230, Waterloo Village 200, New
Hamburg 300 and Preston 600.  Alter tho latter three places, the words

WATERLOO
1 Dr A OCHS. Hespeter 2 ' F MASTER Ty Wilmat, New Dondee I? O

5 H J BOUWMAN, County Clerk
# JOMN SHIEL, Tie N Durtnes. Galt
12 S 1} CHERRY (Warden). Preaton

arc added “pnncipally Germans,” and prnapally Germans they continue to
this day. but Preston, Hespeler and New Hamburg have now become large.
prospcrous and enterpnising places. and stnkingly  dhstrate what Germman
industry and sk ran do i the grand work of bulding up our Canadian nation.

Canada’s cutlook brightened not a hitle during the decade beginning 1850,
The carly pioncers had done thar weik well, and such counties as Watetloo
were by that ume farly well cleared up and cultivated.  The Russian war
with Brtain, France and Turkey soon afterwards occurred ; the price of wheat
touched as lagh as $2 per bushel and a general commercial boom and reckless
speculation set . Neventheless, things thioughout the provinee were in a very
backward state compared with the presert ume.  How wonderfully we have

COUNTY GOUNGIL,

~ FREDK SCHAEFER. Trx Waterioo,

advanced dunng the last half century may be gauged by the following facts: -
As late as 1852 we had no railroads, the stcamboat, stage coach and wagon
and sleigh were the chief means of transportation; good houses and bank barns
were the exception, not the rule ; reapers and mowers were not in general use,
and the old cadle and scythe were still in evidence at harvest tme ; musical
mnstruments were few and far between: manufactures were generally rude
and poor; telegraphic communication was only beginning: bankers were not
then tumbling over you trying to loan you moncy, and such luxunes as the
telephone and electric light, not to mention trolley cars, automobiles and wircless
telegraphy, were simply undreamt of.  Strange to say the people of the early days
seemed just as happy and a good deal healthier and jollier than our present
generation with all our boasted modern improvements. But if some genit
could waft our country back to the misty past, even half a century ago.

1906.

3 W R PLUM, New Hamburg 4 Dr J H. RADFORD. Gair
Breslawu T GEO M DcBUS. Bertin 8 JONN B FISCHER., Waterloo

11t Val Otterbein, Ty Wellesley, Heudelberg 11 DARL RATZ. Elmwa
11 LEARDER BOWMAN, T Woolwrch, Winterbourne P O

14 THERON BUGHANAN, Galt

s to b~ feared that the Canadizns of to-day would be staggered with
the difficulies and privations they would meet with on every hand. We
certamly would not grapple with them so light-heartedly and successfully as
did our carly pioncers, for whom | have entertamed fe-long and profound
respect. and for nonc mote than those grand old Pennsylvanians who were the
hirst 1o scile i Watcrloo township shontly after 1800, and whose descendants
have donc so much by their untinng industry and unswerving integrily to make
this county what it is to-day.

The Scotch, Gennan and other early scitlers equally deserve our praise,
and | repeat what 1 have often maintained before, that whilst other lands have
their heroes of the batlle ficld and the deep. the true heroes of Canada are

TN T TS
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Scenery between Huron and Bleam™s Road, nostheast of New Dundec,
where nine different species of trees are mingled together.

our carly pioncers, who found this country a hewling wilderness and by their
indoinitable energy and perscienng toil made «t blossom into frutfulness and
beauty. They did their duly nobly in their day. Well will it be for this now
immense Dominion if we as fathfully and successfully discharge ours!  Mary
prcssing duties cunfrunt us as wbizens l\rda_v. Some of them ate \;!d"_y
important to our national future and descrve earncst consideration.  But | mus?
content mysell at present by simply pointing out, that in these days when com-
mercial and financial prosperity threatens to make our rulers and people alike

JOSEPH KINZIE

Of Doon, apiarist and breeder of fine Ayratute cattle  The straw bee-hive shown
13 over 100 years old, beiny once of a colony of 150 huves

giddy, not the least pressing duty devolving upon cvery Canadian is to stand
firm as a rock for strict integnity in business Lfe, rectitude and punty in our
governments and all public trusts, the spread of education to our remotest
bounds, and unwavering maintenance of those grand. moral and religious
principles for which our beloved Canada has alrcady won an enviable reputa-
tion throughout the waorld.

7@%% i@f; %
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“Fristone Villa,” Winterbourne.

This fine country residence is owned and occupied by Mr. Mathew
Durrant.  Mr. Durrant was bemm and brought up on the site of the present
property sixty nine years ago, recening his education at the public school at
Winterbourne.  Although stll living on the farm, he has rctired from its

“FRISTONE VILLA.*
Gountry Home of Mr. Mathew Dusrant.

managernent in favor of his youngest son John. A Mecthodist in religion, a
Reformer in politics, in the cnjoyment of good health and a keen intellect, he
is likely to enjoy a life of usefulness for yvears to come.

(GREEN, PHOTG, 111 RUIND

A Pionecer Trio.

JOS., HUMMEL. THOS HUMMEL., MARTIN HUMMEL

Of NewGermany  Tho combined ages of thia vencrable trio of brothers are 274 years,
averagang over 31 years  Therr eges are 83, 94 and 99 years. respectively.
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‘f | Early Gounty Organization %

HE FIRST MEETING of the provisional council of the County of

Waterloo was held in the township hall, Berlin, on the 3rd day of May,

1852, pursuant to a proclamation issued by the Governor-General on

the 1 1th of February of the same ycar. At this mecting the following
representatives were present :

Watetloo Township- Dr. John Scott, Recve, and Henry Snyder,
Deputy Reeve.

Wilmot Township-- John Ernst, Reeve, and Anthony Kaiser, Deputy
Reeve.

Woolwich Township - John Meyer, Reeve, and Peter Winger, Deputy
Reeve.

North Dumfries Township - Dr.Charles
McGeorge, Reeve, and Duncan Ferguson,
Deputy Reeve.

Wellesley Township  John Hawke,

wish of the inhabitants were granted, must shortly be annexed to this county)
likewise joining the Grand river. These main arteries along with a mu'titude
of smaller tributaries are now nearly all employed in propelling machinery of
every description, and to an amount not to be equalled in any section of Canada
West.  Within the county you have 20 large gristmills. The number of saw
mills I cannot enumerate, besides carding and fulling mills, foundeties, tanneries,
and factories of alnost every description, and all in constant and active cpera-
tion. The possession of such a vast supply of water power, the general fer-
tility of the soil, the extensive amount of pine timber, a healthy climate, an
industrious and enterptisng populatior:, now numbering according to the late
census over 26,000, excellent roads and
good markets render your county onc of the
most favored in Upper Canada and present
a field for the investment of capital in almost
every department of industry not to be sur-

Reeve, and Gabriel Hawke, Deputy Receve. passed in the province; again, the completion
Galt Village:  Absolom Shade, Reeve. of the Galt branch of the Great Westem
Preston Village  Jacob Hespeler, railway while it will incalculably facilitate

Reeve. the transmission of your exports and impotts,

will closely connect your county with every

THE WARDENS ADDRESS. other part of this vast continent; the central
Dr. Scctt was selected as the first location of your county town will render the
warden and. having taken the oath of office, THE LATE PETER WINGER THE LATE BENJAMIN BURKHOLDER  transaction of municipal and judicial business
delivered the following adcress: E“"’;;;i,X‘:}',‘,‘:“cf:,;:'(‘;:,‘;;;{‘ mem: An slduime schoolmarter. cheap and convenient, as no party can pos-
“Gentlemen:  Allew sibly travel over 20 miles to

me to return vou thanks for attend courts or councils, thus
the honorable distinction vou curtailing and  cqualizing
have conferred upon me in mileage in the service and
electing me provisional war- execution of writs and pro-
den of the important County cesses, and tendening casy
of Waterdeo. In retumn per- and convenient the atten-
mit me to congratulate vou dance of all parties having
upon the altainment so far of business to transact at the
your long chenished desires county town. Furthermore,
of being a new and inde- the location of the county

pendent county, and on the town at Betdin opens up a

proud position you now oc- ANNA (Bietr} BOWMAN MAGDALENA (Stoemaberd DEVITT  ELIZABETH (Sattaberged SGHWARTZ  niew field for railway enter-

cupy as ats first mumapal 3 o0 -;;iz’;;":;;:i;‘!,,‘é'g,_‘i',:.:“- Ot etz Orag Dore N sember kb, O Suasburg, been March 1ih, 13- mer prisc, as undoubtedly, at no
council.  The necessity of a =/ 772 Sgembe b, 1Wi Re Nt T et Tonar dhed an 186 distant day it will be con-
scparate  and independent R S e 2rb 11 nected by raihway either withs
centre  of the Galt
municipal branch of the
and  judicial Great West-
jurisdic- «n, or the
ton hia<heen Toronto and
long felt and Guclph rail-
achnoew- road; again.
ledged b the proximity
the whala. and intimate
tants of the conncction in
territory every pomnt
composing of view exist-
e mew | JULUNCE 0D Sk T UON S DR TS LT ASNON SUDE G0 SN g between
county  of Tawg s b 10 raerr, ean e G mp s B Ve T eanshy, 4 Dym beng w3 an a3 “Shede's M IV wiedn ., where he was born this county
N N a- Foaen' ; rew b S IEIEN L o cttle i te eaily ders IS

Waterloo, e lar anere and the

and | think A GROUP OF PIONEERS. county of

vou will Perth sender

agree with me that the L eg Jiture bas evinced a igh degree of sagacity and dis-
crunmation i selecting these tmnshise 1 compate the new vounty. Lt ue
glnce at < topographical fe-tures omd we find tiwee of the nost mportant
townshipnat, Woolwich, Waterloo ard North Dumlnes, lnked together by that
aoble stream. the Grand mver, mto whieh after pacang through Waterloo flows
the Spred at Preston. higher up alter traversing Welled'ey and Woohwich it is
joned by the picturesque Conestogo.  To the southwest of the county we find
the nver Nath meandering through Welie-ley and Wilmot and after traversing
the township of Blenheim (the north half of alich, if the almost unammous

their intetests mutual, and which of judiciously and fairly developed must tend
to the advantage and prosperity of both.  Your first duty then, gentlemen, will
be to adopt prompt measures for the crection and completion of your county
buildings. so as to procure as carly a scparation as practicable from the other
countics with which you are now united, as from the geographical position of at
feast one of these counties your interests can never bezome identified.  The
necessity and +xpediency of this step will, 1 feel confident, meet with your
unaaimous approval. In accomplishing, therefore, this important object, for
which the Legidature has proclimed you a provisional council, 1 sincercly
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hope you will act with unanimity and promptitude, as by so doing you will
not only be carrying out the benevolent enactments of the Legislature, but
accelerating the settlement and improvement of adjoining townships and pro-
moting the general welfare and prosperity of your own noble county.™

CONTRACT FOR COURT HOUSE AWARDED.

One of the principal items of business at this first meeting was the move-
ment towards the selection of a site and erection of the necessary county
buildings. For this purpose, after a motion and several amendu. -uts, the whole
council was appointed a commiltce to examine and choose the ground and
report at the next meeting. The present site, then owned by Fiederick Gaukel,
was selected, and after some negotiations that gentleman executed a free deed
of the propetty.  Plans and specifications for the buildings were called for and
submitted by four firms, the award being made to Messrs. Mellish & Russell,
of Brantford, who were paid £10 on the
proviso that the cost of the completed build-
ings should not exceed £5000. When
tenders for erection were asked the contract
was also awarded to Messts. Mellish &
Russell, whose offer was £4,875. It was
not without some difficulty and a good deal
of discussion, however, that the work of con-
struction was proceeded with.  Then, as
now, the average ratepayer had an abher-
rence of taxes, which were regarded as an
unavoidable necessity to be kept down to
the lowest possible figure, regardless of con-
sequent inconvenience or the extra cost which
procrastination might entall upon themselves
or future generations. The
new County of Walterioo
found itself facing many obli-
gations which had to be met,
and i those days of sparce
settlement and  limited re-
sources the financiers of the
new  municipality  entered
upon a path more numerous-
ly strewn with thorns than
roses. At a meeting on the
3td of May, 1852, the
finance committee composed
of Messrs. Absolom Shade,

MR GEO SEILER

ISAAC W B SHERK

Qi Brestav a2 well knownnbus t-

Mr and Mes Genrde Seiler wha lived in Waterloo Townshup, two miles notth of Waterloo
settled here in 1585, Mr Seder walling fiom Buffala ts thix place t take up lard
He died in 1903, oged eighty-nine years, and Mrs Seder died a yeor fater,
aged cighty-three years.
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contract and authorizing the issue of debentures to raise the necessary
funds for construction.

BUILDINGS COMPLETED IN 1853.

At the final meeting of the provisional council held on January 15th,
1853, which was the twelfth session, the building commiltee reported that
the construction of the county buildings had been completed, with the
exception of a few minor details, which could be more advantageously finished
in the spring, recommending the retention of a sufficient amount of the contract
price to provide security for the completion of the work. The amount thus
retained was one hundred pounds. The buildings were insured in the
Provincial and Western Insurance Companies, and as an extra precaution a
lightning rod was reared.  Spring saw the completion of all minor details and
the council of the infant county then had a permanent home.

These buildings, erccted over fifty
years ago, have been preserved in their
pristine  state —as the contractors made
them and without alteration—until the
present time, when considerable repairs
and changes are being made. While
no changes have been made in the original
structure, increase in population and the
consequent business demands of county
legistation, administration of justice, etc.,
required more room, and the buildings
now used as the registry office, surrogate
and clerk’s offices, judge’s chambers, etc.,
were erected on the east side at a later
date.

MRS GEO. SEILER.

FIRST HOUSE OF
REFUCE IN THE
PROVINCE.

In June, 1867, the council
purchased a farm of 142
acres from John Eby, in
Waterloo Township, near
Berlin, on which to erect a
House of Refuge.  Adver-
tisements were inserted in the
Toronto papers asking for
plans and specifications. MNo
response  being received a
commiltece was sent to visit

THE LATE JOHN MEYER
Ex rcove § Weolnich Township and men-

Duncan Ferguson and Jacob

Hespeler, in concluding a

JOEL GOOD
b 5= vy Lancaster County, Pa . o6 Delex-
be S 1M Game to Watedloo
o oaprng (1SS

ber b the Krst Gounty G ancid simi];\[

institutions  in
United States, and on their

the

lengthy  re-
port, favored
a delay
the crection
of the county
buldings n
the following
clause:

“Havinw
taken ali
these matters
into con-

THE LATE JOHN STROM

THE LATE ' B SNIDER

return plans
were pre-
pared by the
county c¢n-
gincer,
Joseph Hob-
son, C. E.,
now  chicf
cngneer  of
the rand
Trunk Rail-

way System,

OLD MRS WEILER 10SEPH SHERK, JR.

sideration, Roeve ..(‘\\'!i’;- '-l. I_an.':;nihx; !.ql teer Leatrdtn miles s vth o Watelwn  Ore i‘dl"' t“l ;";‘U'"} - hNe\\,G:‘n--nv Y mu;:! v\}h‘b-"'l';l-‘- Sherk ':; ";:; Doun. and on Feb-
W J— years, 1INl N2 e I NG Died &F atih Lol and m ther . er Father Weler ~ early bald, apposnted about
with lhc very On S\‘[:ﬂ‘bel h o thal vear “":il: :vh‘-.!he: 'y::’n ot Betle ! the ime “uh: became the tuary ZSth'
A lO\\' price 0[ e passed away nly Town 1868. lhc

A GROUP OF PIONEERS.

il 1

.

W

produce and

the prospect of a not over abundart harvest, your committee would recom-
mend that no assesment for the erection of the county buildmgs be made
this year.” Before the hnal adoption of the report and after some warm
discussion the clause advocatng delay was amended and  procedure of
the work authorized. This, however, was not the final disposal of the
matter.  The ratepaver arose i his might and cvoked the power of
numerously signed petitons praying for delay, and at the meeting of June
T4th, 1852, a number of these petitions were presented.  .\n animated
debate cnsued which culminated in 1gnonng the petiions, awarding the

contract for
the buwldings was let, which were practically completed before the following
winter set in. but the fist inmate was not admitted until 1869, The
county of Norfolk erccted onc the following year and admitted an inmate
before the Waterloo institution.  This gives Norfolk the distinction of being
the first to proude for its poor, but to Waterloo belongs the honor of pro-
viding the first refuge in the province.  The cost of the farm and buildings
was $20.000. and up to the present time it has upneld its initial honor
by being the best and most successfully conducted institution of the kind
in the province.  The hist keeper was James McMahon, who was followed
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by Peter ltter, Jas. Laitd and Geo. Martin.
about seven years.
EARLY COUNTY,OFFICIALS.

When the first county clerk was appointed there was some fivalry between
Mr. Wm. Davidson and Mr. Geddes, the former gentleman securing the office
to which was attached a salary of £40 per annum.  Mr. Davidson held the
the position until {861, when he was succeeded by Mr. Israel D. Bowman,
who held the office until his death on Sept. 4th, 1896. His son, Mr. Herbert
J. Bowman, C.E., was next appointed and is
the present incumbent of the office. The
first county treasurer was Charles 1.
Alirens, whose salary was fixed at £50
per annum.  He was succeeded in 1854
by Chiistian Enslin, who was followed the
next year by Chas. Stanton The latter
gentleman occupied the position until 1879,
when the offices of clerk and treasarer were

The latter has held the position

combined and have so continued since
Members of the council were allowed
six shillings and thrce pence per day fer
attendance. and the Warden was paid the
sum of ffty pounds per annum in addition to
his allowance as a member of the council.

WARDENS OF THE COUNTY.

PLASTERED LOG HOUSE
To publish a list of the county council |y gae state of preseevation ¢ farm of Jos. Kinzie, Doon.

members who represented the various muni-
cipalities since that first mceting in 1852 would require more space than the
writer has at his disposal, but it will be interesting to note the successive
wardens from the inauguration of the county to the present day:

Dr. lohn Scott, Waterloo Township, 1852 1856.

lsaac Clemens, Preston, 1857 - 1860.

Wendell Bowman, Watetloo Township, 1861.

Henry S. Huber, Betlin, 1862 - 1863.

Thos. Chisholm. North Dumfries Township, 186

Henry D. Tye, Wilmot Township, 1865.

Wm. H. Vardon, M. D.. Wellesley Township, 1866.

Ephraim Esb, Waterloo Townchip, 1867.

Chas. Hendry, Woolwich Township, 1868.

John Flemming, Galt. 1869.

George Randall, Waterloo, 1870.

Abram A. Erb, Preston, 1871.

Grorge Hespeler, Hespeler. 1872.

Samuel Merner, New Hamburg, 1873.

Abram Tyson, Betlin, 1874.

John N. Moore. North
Township. 1875.

Christopher Zocger. Wilmot Town-
ship, 1876.

Ferdinand Walter, Woelledey Town-
ship. 1877.

Henry McNally, Waterloo Township,
1878.

John B. Snvder, Woolwich Town-
ship, 1879,

Richard Jaffray, Berlin. 1880.

Wm. Snider. Waterloo, 1881,

Wm. C. Schlueter, Presten. 1882.

Lewis Kribs, Hespeler. 1883.

Otto Pressprich, New Hamburg, 1884.

John Watson, Avr, 1885.

J. M. Scully, Betlin, 1886.

Joseph Wiigley. North Dumfries, 1887.

F. Holwell, Wilmot Township, 1888.

Ferdinand Walter, Wellesley Township, 1889,

Jas. P. Phin, Waterloo Township. 1890.

Jacob L. Umbach, Woolwich Township, 1891.

Robert Githolm, Galt, 1892.

George Moore, Watetloo, 1893.

Gen. A. Clare, Preston, 1894,

Dumfries

THE SUNBONNET GIRLS

Wm. A. Kribs, Hespeler, 1895.

Hon. Samuel Merner, New Hamburg, 1896.

Alonzo H. Etb, Elmira, 1897.

Louis J. Breithaupt, Berlin, 1898.

Menno Hallman, Notth Dumfries, 1899.

Jacob S. Hallman, Wilmot Township, 1900.

Ferdinand Walter, Wellesley Township, 1901.

Tilman S. Shantz, Waterloo Township, 1902.

Alex. Peterson, Wellesley Township,

1903.

George Laird, Galt, 1904.

Geo. M. DcBus, Berin, 1905.

Samuel J. Chenry, Preston, 1906.

Of this long list of men, who from the
creation of the county to the present year
held the highest office in the gift of the
municipal vote, many have pased away,
leaving a record for valiant and conscientious
work stll green in the memory of the people.

In 1897 the new county council act
became operative and by its provisions
representation in  the county council by
reeves and deputy reeves was abolished.
The county was divided into seven districts
from which two representatives cach were
dected. These districts were comprised at
follows:

No. | The Town of Berlin.

No. 2 The Town of Galt.

No. 3 The Township of Waterloo and Town of Hespeler.

No. 4 The Township of North Dumfries and Villages of Preston
and Ayr.

No. 5 The Township of Wilmot and Village of New Hamburg.

No. 6 The Township of Wellesley and Town of Waterloo.

No. 7 The Township of Woolwich and Village of Elmira.

On the first clection, under the new regulations, the following represent-
atves were accorded the confidences of the people:

No. | L. ]J. Breithaupt and John R. Eden.

No. 2 J. C. Dietrich and Robert Gilholm.

No. 3 W. A. Kribs and James P. Phin.

No. 4 Menno Hallman and P. E. Shantz.

No. 5 J. S. Hallman and W. R.
Plum.

No. 6 Geo. Moore and F. Walter.

No. 7 A. H. Eb and C. 5. Weber.

COUNTY OFFICIALS.

On another page Mr. Young gives
the names of the first judicial county officers
appointed by the Hincks government, none
of whom now survive except Mr. fEmclius
Irving. whose present position is mentioned
by Mr. Young. Judge Miller, who was
much csteemed and of whom there are
many pleasant remembrances, held office
unti! his death in 1887 when he was suc-
ceeded by Anthony Lacourse, who had
been appointed Junior Judge in 1873, He
had formerly been a law student in the
office of the late Sir John A. McDonald at
Kingston, and subscquently practiced, at
Lindsay. of which place he was a resident when he received the appointment
to this county. Judge Lacoursc held the office until his death in 1895, He
was succeeded by His Honor Judge Chisholm, the present incumbent, who
came from Poit Hope when appointed junior judge after the promotion of
Mr. Lacourse. Since his clevation to the senior judgeship no junior judge has
been appointed.

Sheriff Davidson held office until his death in 1881, His successor was
Moses Springer. Mr. Springer was one of the prominent representative men of his
generation, and his identity with the progress of the town of Watetloo istecorded

About 75 years old.




surrogate court, and local registrar of the high court.
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in his many years of service as councillor, reeve ard mayor. His pepularity and
ability was [urther attested by his electicn as the representative of the riding to
the legislature in 1867 —the first provincial political centest after Cenfederaticn.
He continued to represent his constituents until his appointment as shenffin 1881,
Sheriff Springer died in 1898, but it was nearly three years aftcrwards before
a successor was appointed. During this interval the cffice was acministered by
Mr. W. H. Bowlby, the present county ctown attorney and clerk of the peace.
In January, 1891, Mr. John Motz, the present occupant of the office received
his appointment. Among the successful men of the county Mr. Motz stands
out prominent. He was born in Prussia on  June 25th, 1830, and came to
Canada in 1848. His inclination tended towards journalism and while he
was still a student at the old Berlin Grammar School he did editorial work for
the German Canadian newspaper.  In 1859 he became a partner of Mr., F.
Rittinger in the publication of the Berliner Journal, a business with which he
was connected for 39 years. He setved the public as councillor, deputy reeve
and mayor of Berlin, was a member of the separate, high school and free
library boards. He is a staunch Liberal and in past years took an active part
in organization work for the party of his choice, yet political zeal was ever
tempered with kindness and moderation that won the esteem and friendship of
his opponents.

Mr. Amilius Irving resigned the office of clerk of the peace in 1858 and
was succeeded by the late Thomas Millar of the law firm of Millar & Durand.
He held the office until 1867 when he
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man of Waterloo, Mr. McDougall enjoyed the confidence and esteem of the
people, and was for a number of years an active member of the schoo! board,
part of which time he held the honorable position of chairman.  Being of an
active temperament with political leanings towards the Liberal party -as most
Scotchmen have-—he identified himsell with the interests of the party of his
choice, and from 1862 until 1868 was sccretary of the North Watetloo
Reform Association, and succeeded the late Cyrus Bowers as president, a
position he held unti! appointment to his present office, when he eschewed
politics and administers the affairs of his office in the impartial manner that has
made him popular with all classes of people with whom his official position
brings him in contact.

M. D. S. Shoemaker, the first registrar, was followed by D. McDougall,
Isaac Master and the present registrar, Mr. John D. Moore. who was
appointed on the Ist of june, 1901. Mr. Moore is a native of North
Dumfries, where he was bomn in 1843 and became one of the successful
farmers and prominent men of the township. He was a councillor in 1871,
deputy reeve in 1872-3, reeve in 1874-5, and warden of the county mn the
latter year. He was ever active in movements towards progress and pubhc
welfare, and his appointment as registrar gave universal satisfaction.

The first jailer, William Walden, held office until his death in 1873. His
successor was John Pearson, who died during the fall of 18(7. In the spnng
of 1888, Mr. Jonathan Cool, the present jailer, received his appointment and
has ever since been a popular and esteem-

resigned to accept the judgeship of the
county of Halton. On his retirement
Mr. W. H. Bowlby was called to the
office which he still continues to fill with
honor ard efficiency. Mr. Bowlby has
the distinction of being the oldest clerk of
the peace in Ontario and the first official
to be gazetted by the first Provincial
Legislature after Confederation. He was
bern in Waterford, Norfolk county, in
1834, e¢ducated at the Wocdhcuse
Rectery School and the Grammar Schools
of St. Thomas and Simcoe. In 1856 he
took his B.A. degree at Toronto Uni-
versity and reccived his L.L.B. in 1858.
He studied law with the late Sir Adam
Wilson of Toroato. He was called to
the bar in 1858 and practiced his pro-
fession in Berlin until he received his
appointment to the office which he still
holds.

Mr. C. Enslin, the first clerk of the
surrogate court, held office untl 1855,
when he was succeeded by the late A. J.

ed official.  Mr. Cook first saw light in
Blenheim, Oxford County, and in 1869
removed to Wilmot township, where for
some years he taught school in Sections
4 and 5. He abandoned the “book
and the birch™ for a mercantile career
and became a merchant in the village of
Haysville where he camied on busiress
for about five years. He was afterwards
made division court bailif for No. 5
District, and satisfactorily performed the
duties of the office until his appointment
as jailer in 1888. Mr. Cook is a
gentleman we all like to meet in a social
way but not in his official capacity.
While he is the perfect soul of good
nature and honest fellowship, there is
about him a firmness ot character and
indomitable will characteristic of the ideal
jailer—-kind, but firm ; strong, but merciful.
His eighteen years tenure of office have
been somewhat eventful in the criminal
iccords of the county,

Peterson, who administered the duties of
the postion until his death in May, 1900.
Mr. Colquhoun was clerk of the peace
until 1887 and was followed by Mr.
John McDougall. In 1900, after the
death of Mr. Peterson th: two offices were combined. Mr. McDougall
reccived the appointment and stll continues in the dual position with credit
to himself and satisfaction to the publicc. While speaking of the sutrogate
court it may be interesting to note that the first will offered for probate after
the inauguration of the county was that of Jacob Schacider of Waterloo Town-
ship. It was dated 14th June, 184! and presented for probate on the i4th
of March, 1853. Mr. McDougall was bom in Kclso, Roxborough, Scotland,
in 1836, and came to Cobourg. Canada, in 1852, where he was engaged as
acletk in the hardware store of the late Senator Andrew Jaffray.  Alfter four
years' service there he came to Galt and entered the employ of James
Wharnock & Co. From there he removed to the town of Waterloo and
engaged in the hardware business on his own account until in 1872 he soid
out to the late F. Fairman with the intention of engaging in paint manufacture
at Winterbourne in company with the late H. M. Finlayson. Recciving the
appointiment of inspector of weights and measures for the county, he disposed
of his paint intcrests to his partner.  This position he resigned in 1900 when
B his appointment was gazetted as clerk of the county court, clerk of the
As a citizen and business

Residence of the late Jacob J. Hailer, King Street East.
in 1833 and was 1t ¢ first German to come to Berlin direct.
Berlin®s first furniture manufacturers, and father of Mrs. C. Breit-

haupt. the oldest native born lady inhabitant of Berlin.

The past belonged to the great and
silent majority. The present and future
arc of more immediate concem to the
people of Waterloo county to-day.
But, it must not be forgotten that the
present prosperity is due to the pluck and persistency of the pioncers, whose
descendants, with hereditary instincts and an education gained by practical
expericnce in the present day necessities and methods, have followed along the
same lines of perseverance that characterized their forefathers, and have made
Waterloo one of the most prosperous counties in this vast Dominion. The
progress of the past onc hundred years has been of a solid and substantial
character. It has been fou ded on a rock that is destined to stand the tests of
time and all indications surely point to a future prospenty unparalleled.

“Self preservation is the first law of nature.” so the old adage runs. It
was “sclf prescrvation™ which induced the first settlers to cast their lot in the
wilderness of old Waterloo and extract from the soil and other resources which
a kind Providence had provided, the necessities of life for themselves and thar
familics. It was “sclf preservation™ which induced the more thnfty and fortun-
ate to provide convenicnces for their fellows in the establishment of mercantile
manufucturing and cducational facilities, and in thus “helping their neighbor™
made profit for themsclves, which has eventually resulted in placing Waterloo
in the front ranks of commerce and agriculture.  As an agricultural county it
has few cquals and no superiors.

Mr. Hailer came to Berlin

He wa s one of
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? Progress in

P

Agriculture

By A. C. HALLMAN, Spring Brook Stock Farm, Breslau, Ont.

NE HUNDRED YEARS m the listory of the grand old
County of Waterloo without considenng agriculture and its great
achievements, the natural resources, the wonderful wealth and the
value of field and forest, nver and stream, would be like missing a
Iink or losing the key to ~v .. .1l greatness. A country's greatness 1s
measured not by the . - -
army and navy. but by its trade and
commerce.  Waterloo m lstory e IR
means victory on account of s P T
deasive battle.  Waterloo County NN 3
stands foremost on account of L ¢ y S ;
s great andustey, wealth, trade S p U
and commerce.  \What has placed AR /4
the county mn the front rank? ; <
Not the ghttering wealth of
the country of the Klondike
or a Cobalt, but the great
wealth of natural resources and
the people who apphed the brams
and energy.

When our forelathers, the
proneers of the county, journeved
westward from the good old State
of Pennsylvama in search of a

g 9 ot s

future home they must have been
full of hope and ambition, wend-
ng ther way over mountam top,
hll and dale, fording river and
stream, encountening wmaumerable,
almost  surmountable obstacles,
but onward thev went and must
have had great courage and a
cherished hope of what would be !
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When the hardy, industrious pioneer with stout heart and streng will
struck the fist blow with his axe to clear his farm, he must have been full of
hope and courage. There was a great work before him.  The first trzes that
fell made room for his log house and stable. Logs were rudely fashioned into
shape. The buldings were generally located near some streain or flowing
spring to furnish water for family
and stock. The beautiful timber
was cut down and great skill used
in felling trees to lap and form a
continuous windrow or a solid mass
in order to get “a good burn.”
Alter the fire was sent through,
cleaning up the tops and smaller
timber, large picces of trunk stll
remained.  These were formed
] P into heaps and burned when dry.

‘ Logging bees were the urder of the
day; ncighbors would assist cach
=1 other. The ox team Buck and

N : . )
;i 4 Bright played a very important part

in this work. ““Whoaback,” “whoa
haw,” and “ges Buck,” was the
music that cchoed through th= air.
1f old Buck or Bright resented in
the least, the lash was vigorously
- brought into play and the air be-
cwme a little flavored with brims-
tns. The men with wooden
lrandspikes and the oxen and driver
became so skilled that immense,
heavy logs were lifted and rolled
on top of each other to form huge
- piles.  Fires would occasionally get

found beyvond. The frontier coun-
ties, the beaunful Niagara Penm-
sula and the adjoning counties
westward,  scemed to have no
charm, until finally they reached the
County of Waterloo. When their
eyes gazed upen this fertle country and beheld the beautful landscape,
the great wealth of forest the lofty pine, the towerng oak, the emblemanc
maple. the stately elm, the beautful linden, the beech, cherry, ash, buch, the
cedar and other varicties of evergrecn  with the majestic Grand River gently
roling down through the centre, with its many tributary streams and spring
crocks all over the county tecming with fish, the spring creeks full of speckled
trout, the beautiful waterfalls, the country abounding with game, is it any
wonder that they halted, pched ther tents and journeyed no further? Their
dreams must have been more than realized.  That the County of Waterloo
possessed many natural advantages over many other sections to the pioneer
sedler 1s evident. It had within it borders all that is required to make and
buld up a great country.  The soil was diversified and fertile, the timber was
all that mzn could desite ; the whole country was watered by {lowing strecams,
with numrrous natural water-powers to furnish the means to convert the timber
mto lumb=r and grnd the golden grain into flour. What a delightful
hentage 15 begin with!

DANTE (Ilmp.} 133 (5578).

Bred by J W Marshall. Kerby Condalythe. Englind. imported by J Donlan, Riverview,
owned by Dr Campbell. Berlin . are Dagenham (4214) dam [(3556) Bugthorze
Laly . by Yorkstare Prckwillow (880

beyond the control of the settler,
causing immense loss destroying
home and property. Each year
as much more was cleared as the
settler and his family could manage
themselves, or if he had mcans he
would hire men to cut the tinber.  Acre by acre, land was cleared and the
umber burned untll the clearng reached the requirement of the sctiler.  As
timber became more valuable and saw-mills were established, it was used for
bulding, commercial and other purposcs.

The virgin soil was naturally very fertile, full of vegetable deposits (humus)
and all that was nccessary for the begimner was to tickle the sol with the suck
or hoe and it would laugh out a bountiful crop.  The implements were rude and
simple. The V shaped harrow, rudely constructed of small umber to form the
beams with wooden or iron teeth dnven through, formed the first and very im-
portant implement on the farm.  The gran sown broadcast by hand was scattered
among the stumps and followed with the harrow.  Some even tied brush together
and scratched the soil which would make 2 sufficient sced bed to ensure a good
ctop. The first plows were nearly all made out of wood, a wooden mould
board covered with sheet iron and the point made of wrought won.  This was
soon replaced by the old No. 4 plough, which played a very important part in
the carly history of agriculture and proved a very uscful implement.  Alter the
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smaller stumps had been removed, a harrow was constructed out of wood, with
six or cight bars hinged together in the centre, and the team hitched to one
comer. This allowed the one side to be tipped up in passing a stump, stone
or other obstruction, and was considered a decided improvement over the first
harrow. It would cover about five feet at a time. If a man had a harrow, a
plough, a wagon and sleigh or sled made out of wood with a natural crook
without shoes (in many cases arswer.ng the purposes of a svagon), he was con-
sidered to have a complete outht of farm implements. The harvest tools
consisted of a sickle, a scythe and snath, a grain cradle with a staight handle
and a woocden hand-rake. Soon a cradle with a crooked handle (the
Muley) was introduced and considered a wonderful improvement. Everything
was hand work. At haying ume the scythe came into use, the grass was
mowed by hand and left n witrows. When partially dry it was turned over
with a fork and when cured, put into heaps and followed with the hand-rake.
The day's work began with daylreak and cnded when the sun went down.
Mowing about two acres was considered a gocd day’s work. The price paid
would be from 37'. to 50 cents an acre. At harvest the grain cradle came
into use. A man would follow the cradle and bind as fast, if a good smart
binder, as the grain was cut.  This meant hard work. Two men could cut
and bind from three to ive acres a day. according to the grain.  Both haying
and harvesting was done in this

way until about 1860 or 1865

when some reapers were intro-
duced but proved to be very cum-
bersome and quite unsatisfactory.
Men generally worked in gangs of
from four to ten men, according to
the size of the farm.  Although
the work was hard they had a
roval good time.

Threshing in the carly days
was done mostly m winter with a
hand-flail. A woaden handle about
five [cet long with a piece of timber
two [ect long by three inches m
diameter tied to the end with a
piece of buckskin formed the first
separator.  Sheaves were scattered
on the barn floor and pounded
until the gramn was separated or
tramped out by catile or horses.
It was cleaned by throwing it into
the air with a wooden scoop shovel
or by a fanning mill.  Soon, how-
ever, the old eylinder was invented
and horse-power was used, which
was a gr-at boon to the cary
proneer. The gram was afterwards
separated from the chaff with a fan-
ningmill. The principal crops were
wheat, rye and oats, barley for

ROYAL DREWTON (Imp.) 218 (§626).
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of fresh running water. The first settlers had a natural instinct for animal
husbandry, no doubt largely due to the countries they originally came from,
where the rearing of live stock was their main occupation. Markets were dis-
tant and the means of transportation slow and wearisome. There were no
railroads in those days; the public roads were merely winding trails through
the woods, trying to escape hills and swamps, and in wet seasons were almost
impassable.  Corduroy roads (timber laid side by side to form a bed) had to
be made through swamps or boggy places. The greatest barrier to the county
was the road to Dundas, leading through what was knowa as the Beverly
Swamp, where miles of corduroy roads had to be made before settlers could
pass through with loads. In the carly days the nearest mills and market were
at Dundas. When a grist was wanted it took days to go and return, some-
times on horseback, sometimes on foot.  Wheat was generally teamed in the
winter and due bills taken, waiting for the money until after navigation opened.
Nearly every other product of the farm was bartered or exchanged, no money.
In later years the wheat was ground in the county, mills being erected along
the rivers and streams, and the flour teamed by the farmers to Dundas and
Hamilton, bringing loads of goods back on the return trip for the merchants.
The mails were few and far between. No daily papers to get the latest news
or to watch the markets. Dundas was the nearest past office and Little York
(Toronto) the county town. Land
was cheap and taxes low. The
first settlers all located on the banks
of the Crand River, no doubt on
account of its picturesque scenery
and its beautiful water, the land
Leing especially adapted to fall
wheat growing. There was also
an advantage in disposing of the
manure which was dumped over
the banks into theriver. In 1812,
in some of the best sections of the
county north of the Town of Wat-
crloo and through Woolwich, land
was still sclling at $1 an acre,
which is now worth $75 to $100
an acce, Mr. Tilman Shantz a few
years ago paying a little over the
latter figure for Mr. Groff's farm
although in some of the older settle-
ments it was selling from $4 to $5
an acre. The same year we find
that the taxes on a tract of land of
2,000 acres belonging to Mr. Bru-
bacher in the vicinity of Berlin
amounted to $14.00. There were
no local markets beyond the actual
requirementsof the incoming sctilers,
Any surplus grain produced over
and above these requirements had
to be teamed long distances to

! Chestnut Foaled 1901 Bred by Frank Ushes, Kettlethorpe, South Cove. Yorks, England. imported
malling, peas to fatten the hogs. i 1904 by R Berth, Bowmansille, present owner Dr Gampbell, Berlin,  Swe micket.  Farm produce had no
Indian corn (mostly for family usc) ths Majesty (2513 dam [11033) Boaquet] by Wildfire 112241 sale.  Wheat was selling at 90c to

and some buckwheat and lots of

potatoes and vegetables. Wheat was the money crop, principally fall wheat.
The mode of living was good, plain and sinple. The wheat made excellent
flour. Tt did not require one-third of No. 1 Hard Manitoba mixed with it to
make good bread. Lots of pea-fed perk from hogs one to two years old and
over, weighing from 350 to 400 lbs. dressed, as fat as mud. smoked ham
and bacon about four by four, potatoss and vegetables, formed the substantial
part of their diet with venison and speckled trout for a pleasant change.  Mush
and milk was quite regularly on the bill of fare with buckwheat pancakes and
maple syrup galore. Old Brindle always provided them with lots of good
wholesome milk, cream and butter, whilst Biddy (the old hen) kept busily
scratching around the plantation gatheting up the fragments to supply the
family with cggs, the children cagerly watching to hear her cackle so that
she would not hide her nest or surprise the good wife with a brood of young

. chickens.  Such was pioncer life in the happy days on the good old farm!

Live stock was always a lcading [caturc in the County of Waterloo, the
land being naturally well adapted for it with its varied soil and plentiful supply

$1.05 at Dundas and as in-
crcased quantities were raised the price dropped to 50 and 60 cents per
bushel. The war of 1812.15 created great disturbance among the settlers
and fixed war prices for their produse, oats after the war sclling at $2.00 a
bushel. The year 1816 called the “cold year,” was a disastrous one to the
settlers.  There was frost every month.  On the moming of Junc the first, ice
was frozen over mud puddles strong enough to carry wagon and team. On
June 21st snow fell.  Ali kinds of provisions were very scarce and dear.
Wheat was selling at $2.00 and $3.00 a bushel. The only hay that farmers
could secure was made from the wild grassalong the banks of the rir er, marshes
or beaver dams. Food for man and beast was selling at starvation prices. The
vear 1817 was ncarly as cold and unfuitful as the previous year.  Bountiful
harvests {ollowed and the land was again blessed with plenty. In 1816 Ab.
salom Shade, a shrewd, encrgetic Pennsylvanian, a carpenter by trade, settled
in Galt. He rebuilt the little mill, 24x28 fect, one and a half stories high,
crected in 1802 by John Miller of Niagara. He built a two storey log house
and started a store.  He built a boat or scow and placed it on the Grand
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siver.  When the water was high he shipped his flour down the river to the
lake where it was loaded on larger boats.  He is credited with shipping the
first flour that ever left the county. Mz Miller resided at Niagara and gave
the contract to Mr. Dodge, a millwright. The necessary machinery was put in
and the first miller was a mar. named Maas. Mr. Miller owned this mill,
1000 acres of land and other property. He took an active part with the
Americans in the war of 1812-15 and consequently forfeited all his property
on the Grand river.  The Hon. Wm. Dickson, who owned the township of
North Dumfries, appointed Mr. Shade his land agent.  In 1816 a few setilers
of Scotch origin from York State settled along the Beverly line and some years
later settlers came direct from Scotland and settled the most of North Dumfries.
The county by this time was favorably known. Large numbers came from
Pennsylvania and settled in the townships of Waterloo and Woolwich.
Wilmot was largely settled by a man named Nafziger and h's co-religion-
ists from different countries of Europe. The first actual settler was Andrew
Sherk in 1822. This township is one of the best and wealthiest in the county.
In the carly days the land scemed to be especially adapted to flax growing.
Baden, one of the principal villages of the township, was made famous the
world over by this industry through the efforts of Messrs. J. & J. Livingston
who have a world wide reputation for their linseed oil works, oil cake and tow
made outof the fibre of the flax. The Messts Perine of Doon deserve equal
credit in assisting the flax industry by manufacturing the fibre into a commercial
product.
The scttlers after 1820 began to come in rapidly from the different count-
ries of Europe and the
United States and in a
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ranged from 80 cents to $1.00 and it was no uncommon thing for farmers to-
get $1.25 to $1.50 per bushel. Malting became a great business in our own
county. A great trade sprung up in shipping all kinds of live stock, cattle,
sheep, lambs and some live hogs whigh found a ready sale on the Buffalo
markets. Toronto and other Canadian points also became large trading centres.
More mixed farming was done and live stock fed for city and butcher's
markets.

The period from the fifties to the eighties was a golden era for the farmers.
of Waterloo county.  Prices of all kinds of farm produce were high, wheat
$1.10 to $1.50 and over and barley at prices alrcady stated. Live stock of
all kinds commanded good prices.  Small fortunes were made out of timber,
which became very valuable.  The price of land went up still higher, good
farms selling at $75, $30 and $90 per acre. Farmers became independent
and even wealthy. But gradually changes were made which brought on a
crists.  The old homesteads were sold at high figures to the younger generation ;
tanff changes i our own and foreign countries upset our trade and forced us
with disadvantageous cclenty into new lines of farming; the McKinley Bill
kiled the barley business and the large trade that had sprung up in poultry and
eggs met a smilar fate.  With the old system of growing grain, selling every-
thing off the farm, the soil became slowly exhausted, losing its natural fertility
of mineral and vegetable deposits.  The essential elements in plant life were
drawn out of the soil and disposed of with the crop.  The country now cleared
up, forests gone and swamps dramned, high winds, severe climatic changes with
the humus that holds the mossture gone, drought became more general and our
bountiful crops began to
cease and the people to

few years the whole
county was settled though
somewhat sparsely in some
sections. By 1835 immi-
gration from Pennsylvama
had practically ceased,
only a few families coming
after that. Wages were
low and help plentiful,
Five to six Yotk shillings,
62 1.2 cents to 75 cents
par day m summer at
harvest was considered a
good wage. In winter
25 to 50 cents a day was
paid. In 1825 harvest
hands worked from sunrise
to sunset for 37 1-2 cents
a day. In winter they
were paid for threshing
(days twelve hours long) one shilling, 12 1-2 cents a day. Many worked
for their board. Good men worked by the yeir for $75 to $100 and good
strong boys {or the summer months weuld get from $3 » $4 a month. All
kinds of farm produce was very low and store trade atthat  Butter sold from 6
to 10 cents per pound, cggs at the same price per dozen, and pork dressed
at any pnce they could get exchange fer, waork or trade, very litle money.
The winter months was the only time that pork could be handled as it had to
be frozen for transportation. No hogs were sold live weight  Hog killing was
done once a year, generally in November and December and the meat salted
down and smoked for future use. Feor live stock there was always consider-
able demand created by incoming scttlers in this and surrounding counties.

As the land became settled and cleared conditions began to change.
Villages sprung up and markets were created within the borders of the county.,
with new ones abroad.  The highways were improved, schools and churches
established, log buldings replaced by more modemn, substantial, better finished
structures of bnch, stone or frame, large bank barns erected with good, warm
stabling and outbuildings. and orchards planted.

Land values increased steadlly and {armers through industry, cconomy
and patient toll became comfortable and in casy circumstances.  With the
bulding of the Great Western and Grand Trunk Railways in the fifties anew cra
dawned.  Other markets were established and the demand for other farm pro-
duce created. Wheat growing had become a habit. It was still the main moncy
crop. With increased transportation facilities the coarser grains became valuable.
There was a good market in the United States for barley for malting.  Prices

HOLSTEIN-FRIESIAN CGATTLE.

Bred by A. C. Haliman, Springbroock Farm., Breshu

leave the country and go
west. Land decreased
in value: competition from
the west became keener;
prices for all kinds of
grain, farm stock and pro-
duce became very low
wheat selling at 50 to 70
cents a bushel, barley at
30 to 40 cents, oats at
15 to 20 cents and all
farm products at similar
low figures.

Goced horses which
in the prosperous years
were worth $150 to
$200 were sold at less.
than one-half of these
figures and droves of good
horses a little aged or
blemished were taken to the glue factories and killed. The hum of many
of our industries in towns and villages cecased, mortgages were foreclosed
and numbers of honest and mmdustnous farmers were dniven into financial
difficulties and many failed.  The depression was general over the whole
country. But that which scemed to threaten the country with utter ruin proved
to be a blessing in disguise. The people- of Canada are too resourceful and
our geographical position is such that tanfl changes and cfforts to block our
avenucs to forcign markets will but strengthen our position. The great water
ways were improved, transportation facihities increased, great transcontinental
lines were constructed to reach the great markets of the world.  With changed
conditions the people of Waterloo, ever alert, were quick to grapple with the
situation.  Farmers began to work with their brains as well as with their hands.
The lost fertility so largely drawn from the soil had agan to be vestored.  The
farmers have never lost sight of good farming or of the value of good manure.
The more progressive among them at once took steps to mect new conditions.
In the year 1885 the Ontano government through the Department of Agri-
culture at Toronto, inaugurated the system known as the Farmers” Institutes of
Ontario, with the object to disseminate useful, practical knowledge to the farmer.
Practical farmers, men with advanced 1deas who had made a success of ther
calling and other practical men were selected as speakers to lead in discussion
and to deal with all the different phases along the ines of successful agriculture.
The success was unbounded.  These msttutes assisted greatly to revolutionize
the whole system of farming and added largely to the wealth and prosperity of
the country.  Strange to say there arc still farmers opposed to Farmers' Insti-
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tutes who are constantly receiving benefits from the organization.  In the dairy
and bacon hog industry alone it has acdded many millions of wealth to this
country in which the farmers of Waterloo county have shared very liberally.
Itis only fair to state that Waterloo is nght in the van in this work, South
Waterloo having had for a number of years the largest membership of any

£ division in the province.  The Supenntendent of Farmers™ Institutes at Toronto,
Mr. G. A. Putnam, is considering the giving of a medal to mark his apprecia-
tion of the excellent services rendered the farming community.  Not only does
this county stand high in the estimation of the Superintendent of Farmers™ Insti-
tutes, but every speaker sent to . -is county testifies to the fact that the farmers
of Waterloo county are among the most progressive and up-to-date in all lines
of agriculture and live stock.

What are the conditions in the county to-day ? The hand of Prosperity
reaches out everywhere.  Agnculture is the backbone of the country and live
stock the backbone of agriculture. Mixed farming  live stock, dairying, special-
izing along certain lines 15 the keynote to success.  Wheat 1s no longer the
prinaipal crop but only a convenient crop in rotation to be raised in hmited
quantities and worth from 70 to 80 cents per bushel. Qats, barley and peas,
or mixed grains are a staple crop, valuable for feeding, worth about a cent a
pound. The up-to-date farmer of to-day should be cunsidured a manufacturer
converting his raw material into a finished product in

the form of beef, bacon hogs, milk, cheese, Lutter, poultny, cte.. realizing a
higher price for his grain per bushel, at the same time mahing valuable manure
to keep up the fertility of the soil.  Instead of the bate summer fallow quite a
large acreage is now set aside for a hoe crop
sugar beets, ctc. raising a profitable crop, at the same time cleaning the soil
of weeds. Clover is the

grain, hay, vats, etc.

corn, turnips, manglcs, potatoes,

21

pump the water and grind the grain; everything is modern and a machine for
everything,

The live stock industry has bccome a great factor in this county.  Ever
since export trade was established with England, some thirty years ago, Water-
loo county has stood in the front rank for prime, well finished cattle for which
farmers reccived 5 1-2 to 6 cents per pound and occasionally more. The
bacon hog industry has also received a great deal of attention and for type,
quality and production is not excelled by any other county in the province.
Great numbers leave our shipping points every weck for the packing houses.
The price for the last few years has averaged $5.12 percwt. At the present
time bacon hogs are quoted at 7 3-4 to 8 cents per pound live weight.

Horses are at a premium, selling at enormous prices average farm horses,
fairly good ones, at $175 to $200; heavy horses from $200 10 $250 and
$300, good dnvers the same. This county has never been noted for its
dairying, still there are large numbers of good dairy cows kept. It was never
famous for its cheese industry, however, Waterloo county as catly as 1870 had
a cheese factory operated by R. H. Sherk of Wilmot and there was a tme
when they were quite numerous.  They were given a fair trial but the markets
were so low and fluctuated so much that the margtn was too small for the pro-
gressive Waterloo farmers and most of the factories were abandoned.  There
are stll several good cheese factories in operation and a few very successful
creameries. General farming and fecding cattle for export was considered a
more congenial and profitable business. This stimulated home dairying for
which our county is especially noted  choice butter, farmer’s cheese, and the
celebrated hmburger. \We have some excellent home dairies which make choice
butter to ship to Toronto and other large cities. M. Baird of Wilmot deserves

spectal mention.  He was

farmer's best friend.  As a
crop for valuable feed and to
restore lost fertility to the soil
it has no cqual. Its roots
penctrate deeply, bringing up
lost fertility, gathering up the
nitrogen in the soll and the
plant, anrtesting the nitrogen in
the air, depositing it in the
ground and thus making ot
available for other plants to
fced on.  With this method

one of the fist to embark n
this profitable business and
has now onc of the finest
dairies in the country.  There
are others who make a special
business with other lines of
farming to supply our numer-
ous busy manufacturing towns
with milk, butter and cream.
it i surprising the number
of cows that are required for
this purpose alone.  With

of farming our soil is very
rapidly being built up and
brought back to itz natural
state of fertility and again
producing abundant crops.
The growing of sugar beets fur commercial purposes is becoming a very im-
portant industry and is of more recent introduction.  When the Ontario Govern-
ment was investigating the advisability of this industry, experimental plots were
laid out all over the province. The plots in Waterloo county proved very
satisfactory as to the results obtained, and when the Ontanto Sugar Comipany
were bidding for a place to locate their plant ofter {ully investigating the suit-
ability and fertility of the soil fer the purpose. the weographical position and the
class cf people to assist the industry, they cranimensh Jicse Waterloo county
and located a factory in Berlin ~ Sugar beet growing is becomiing very populer
with the farmers as a money «op and w.ll prove of mmense value to the agri-
culturalist and to the citizens of Berlin.

The labor question has been for some ycars a most scnous problem with
the farmers. Wages are very high and help scarce. Men who ten ycars ago
reccived frem $125 to $150 per year now getfrom $2235 to $240 and board.
By day work $1.25 to $1.50 per day and board is paid.  However. the labor
question is now largely overcome with improved farm machmery which makes
farming casy. Onec man with three horses attached 1o a sell  binder in the
harvest field will do mare and better work than ten men did in the early days.
In hay making the same holds good.  Cutting, raking. loading and unloading
is all done by machinery. In threshing there is no more pounding with the
hand flail but a complete stecam outfit of the most modern construction will do
its own feeding, stack the straw and carry the grain fnto the bin, although the
common way yet is to feed and bushel by hand.  The implements for cultivat-
ing the soil are rapid. thorough and comnlete.  Plows, disc harrows, cultivators
and seeders are nearly all butlt of slecl and iron and constracted to cover a
grcat deal of ground ina day.  There are wind, hydrachc or gas motors to

TAMWORTH SWINE.
Bred by A G Hallman. Springbrook Farm, Breslau

the igh prices for all kinds of
dairy products and the un-
limited demand of home und
foreign markets many farmers

are turning their attention
more and more to this industry and we are fast becoming a dairy county.

This county has long been famous for its live stock, its good horses and
finc herds and flocks. Ever since the writer's carliest recollection pure bred
sires were used in breeding.  This is especially true of cattle. In the breeding
of pute bred stock Waterloo has long been recognized as a leader and many
are the laurels won by its ambitious breeders in the hottest contests both n the
Dominion and abroad.  In the breeding of horses Mr. George Moore of Wat-
erloo has done much to establish a name for heavy draught horses by the ligh
honars won at our large exhibitions and at Chicago. In thoroughbred race
horses Joseph E. Seagram. M. P., of the same place, has made a great name
by his King’s Platers at the Woodbine.  Mr. Dictrich of Galt has done much
in the breeding of fancy light horses and Miss Wilkes has a'so won great ment
w.th her high type driving horses. Hastings Bros., of Crosshill, Dr. Campbell
of Berlin and a hostof others that might be mentioned are also fast coming to
the front.  The Sniders of German Mills in the carlier days with thar famous
stud of Percheion horses created a great sensation in therr time and won many
a grand honor for the county. Not less famous was their fine herd of short-
homn cattle which were almost invincible in the show ring.  The Grofls of
Watetloo and Elmira were always cluse to their heels and brought noless honor
to the county with their excellent herd of Shorthorns.  Shorthorns have fer a
long time been very popular in the county in the breeding of which the names
of Mr. Hill of Welledey, Mr. Amos, the Cowans and Browns of Galt, the
Shantzes and Masters of Wilmot, the Sniders. Stauffers, Shantzes and W eavers
of Waterloo, Meyers of Kossuth and many others are inseparably associated.

In Ayrshires Mr. Gildner of Berlin and Mr. Kinzic of Doon are worthy
of mention.  Jerseys have long since been the favonite breed of Mr. R. Read
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of Berlin who is considered one of the best judges of Jerseys in Canada and
has now a very fine herd in Bridgeport. Mr. John Fennell of Betdin was one
of the first fanciers of the breed in the county. Geotge Latsch of Centreville
and others might also be mentioned in this connection.  Holsteins were fust
introduced into Canada by the late John S. Hallman and two of his neighbors
C. Wagler and H. Hillgartner, though a few had crossed the lines just previous
to theirs. They were from an importation direct from Holland and some of
the finest specimens that ever came to Canada.  They are now very popular.
Among the breeders of Holsteins might be mentioned E. Pannabaker and
Rife, Hespeler; C. R. Gies, Heidelberg; R. Martin, Elmira; M. Shantz,
Breslau and many others. Succesdful dairying depends largely on the kind of
cow that is kept and to realize a profit farmers must link themselves to the best
dairy breeds.

In passing | would like to contrast the old system of dairying with the
modern system.  Qur good old mother and grandmother milked old Brindle
by the straw stack, put the milk in a crock or shallow pan, set it in water or
the cellar bottom or on a shelf in the pantry, skimming it a few days later when
the cream was sour. kept the cream in a large crock for many days surrounded
with all kinds of vcgetable flavors, then churned it in the old Dash chum, The
butter was washed and squeezed with the hand and pounded into a large roll
or put in tubs containing from 50 to 100 pounds and marketed at any time
within the year. This system is now superseded by the modem dairy cow in
the modern stable with all modern applances. The milking in many places is
done by machinery cven, the milk run through a centrifugal machine {cream
separator) and the butter fat exhausted
while thermilkis yet warm ; the cream
kept sweet to within 24 hours of churn-
ng. churned in alarge revolving barrel
<hurn, butter never touched by hand.
moulded into pound prnts, enclosed in
butter parchment and sold fresh.  The
up-to-date darvman tnes to tickle the
palate of the consumer e puts up the
goods m proper form, caters to his taste
and gets the price.

In the cather days every farmer
kept sheep. the county being well
adapted for . There was a good
market :n Buffalo {or sheep and lambs
and woollen nlls were neatiy as num-
vrous as grst mills, but since the bacon
hoz has become 5o popular sheep rais-
mghasdeclned.  Thete are still excel-
lent flocks.  Among the prominent
sheep brecders such names as the late
Jame<and John Phin and A\, Rudell. Hespeler. the late T. C. Douglas, Galt:
A Flotand M. On, Gali: Hastings Bres., Croshill and many others descrve
menticn The swine mdustey 15 now one of the most profitable in the county
and crery farmrer reaps large benefits fom 1. The “modern bacon hog™ with
a hght head and strong back. deeps side. good length. well fleshed, not too fat,
weighing from 160 10 220 pounds hve woght, 1s what is wanted in unhmited
numbers. Among the successful breeders are Willam Elhott, Galt o H. Dedals,
Bredau. J Hill. Welledev. C. Rickert, Manohem and J. and L. Maser,
Wilmot.  EFverybody keeps fonl andthe revenue denved istarger than from any
ather source considenng the money mvested.  Thete are scotes of poultsy fanciers.

Wheremn fies the secret of Watctloo county’s greatness ? We mentioned at
the heginnmg our great wealth of natural resources and the energy, mdustry
and enterprise of the people  No pasticular creed or nationality need feel
boastlul or clam an undur shate of credit.  Fovers unatonality bas plaved s
part and plaved 2 well.  The poncer setilers came {from different pants of the
word and were a hardv, mdusnous, mtelhgent, shrewd class of people © voung,
adventzous, oo ambitious to remam 1 thar own country, willing 1o meet the
hard condiions that confronted them and work out their own destiny.  They
were men of diffierent occupations  farmers, tradesmen. mechanics. merchants,
Iaborers  occupations as van~d as thase of the countnies from which they came.
They found a land in Watrrdoo county so divernfied i s natural resources as
1o meel the natural mstincts of mostly every settler. s the country became
cleatrd ar 1 developed these men began to {ollow their own occupations.  In-
dusines w re establslicd as required and we became prosperous. The mter-
mmglmg . | these people coming from diffezent countnies, cach {ollowing their

of 150 acres

Model Buildings of A D Kunzic, at “"Sunny Bracs’ Farm. Roscwille. the farm cors sung
Thus 15 the old Detweiler homestcad, the land being
cleared by Jacob Detneider, who came oul from

Pennaylvania about 1818
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own trade or profession, no doubt is the sccret of our greatness. The Penn-
sylvania German gets much credit for what he has done in moulding the destiny
of the county. He gets no more than he deserves.  His honesty, industry,
self sacrificing spirit, high moral and religious principles must have had a healthy
influence among all who associated withhim.  But the men of other nationalities
have done {ully as much for the welfare of the county.

We have briefly reviewed the past, we have considered the present, what
about the future 2 The future of this county should be even brighter than the
past. The country is row cleared ; its natural resources developed ; inland
and forcign markets for manufactured and farm products established ; great
transportation lines stretching from ocean to ocean over land and water with a
network of intermediate lines, steam and electric, reaching right to our own
doors. No mote pioncer hardships. 'We are no longer foreignersin this good
land but Canadians, proud citizens of Cznada, with a thorough knowledge of
its requirements, capable of grappling with any emergency and in possession of
on:e of the grandest cotnties in the Dominion. The farmer of the future like
the farmer of to-day must remain the important cog in the wheel of progress.
When the soil yields bountifully the people are prosperous. Farming is no
longer a mere occupation but a profession and a science. The farmer
must be broad mindcd, practical, up-to-date in his methods, of good business
ability, have advanced ideas and be well informed alongall lines of his profession.
The experience of the past, its success and failures, will furnish a grand head-
light for the future.  Our soil is again fertile and yields abundantly. Our methods
of farming are cntirely changed and modemized. With the rapid growth
of towns and cities mote intensive farm-
ing must follow to feed the ever in-
creasing population  smaller farms,
more live stock. larger setums per acte.
The demand for our produce will in-
crcase, our shipping facilities multiply
and “cheap power from Niagara™ will
be no longer a drcam but a reality.
Independent of this our numerous water
powers all over the county that did
good scrvice in the carlier days in fur-
nishing power for the various small in-
dustrics will in the future be utilized to
{urnish the rural sections with clectric
Ight and power. While the large
immigration to the west the last five
years has depressed the value of farm
lands somewhat, these conditions are
a'ready changing and farm fand  has
goncup from 2010 30 percent. Espe-
cally is this truc near our larger towns.
Intead of gomg west mvestor. will be attracted our way and the value of
real cstate ot many years to came will double or treble.  What we want in
Watrrloo county 1s nat betier upporiunities but a truer and more general appre-
ciation of them. coupled with more mental encrgy. A man with a few hundred
dollars can start right here and by steady thaft and reasonable enterprisc make
good moaey from the beginning. enjoy a fuller and more comfortable life than
lic could on the plains and lav up a competency for a grcen old age.  There
are still good opporiunitics to be had and the man that invests now will he on
the ground floor of a winnmg proposttion.  With the grand record of the past,
as the chanot of Time rolls on. the good old county of Watctloo will never lose

s presige but wili keep pace wath the times and maintain its position always
mthe {ront rank.

R. JACOR G. STROH, :anner, of Waterloo, 1s in posscssion of a valu-
able collechion of rckes of the cary davs.  A\lmost every concavable
article of usc, ormament ar othenwise, known in the catly history of the

county. 1s included inthe collection.  There are primitive agricultural smplements,
cooking ulensils, old fumiture, flint lock muskets, geological specimens. Indian
tehes. and hundreds of articles of various kinds, old German almanacsand copics
of the first Englsh and German newspapers published in the county and a large
collection of hicrature that js of lustorical interest to the county.  Among the
collection 100, are many photas of okd scencs that have long since disap-
peared.  These accumulations of relics are sufficient to stock a small muscum
and are of mestmable value m the preservation of object iessons i carly county
history. Many dustinguished people have called on Mr. Stroh to sec his collection.

b i L
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Educational History of the Gounty " %

HAT desire to have their children receive a good, practical education,
which 1s a marked characteristic of the inhabitants of this county to-day,
manifested itself just as strongly in the pioncers in the carly part of the
last century.

Prior to 1842 all schools were voluntary. They were kept in private
houses, meeting houses, abandoned dwellings, unused shops or under any avail-
able and convenient shelter.  On i the 20°s and 30’s an occasional small log
schoolhouse was built and paid for by private subscription.  Schools were kept
open during the winter months only. The teachers were mostly itinerants
ex-soldiers or unsuccessful tradesmen  who were enzaged in other occupations
the rest of the year.  Their scholarship was unknown, examinatioas and centifi-
cates being unheard of.

The people of Waterloo township have the honor of opening the first
school m the county in 1809, ahout one and one-hall miles northeast of
Preston. The wiclder of the bich was David Strehm.  Two years later
Tobias Wanner kept school in a log dwelling house at Doon.  Shortiy after-
wards three other schools were opened, one cast of Berlin (Eby’s, later known
as the Red Schoolhouse), one at Blair,
and another at Centreville (O'Lone’s

Guelph, who presided. The candidates for certificates were Amos Adams,
Benjamin Burkholder, Nelson Newcombe, Elias Eby and one Lazarus who
was then teaching in Berlin. Mr. Lazarus, after glancing around the room and
making an estimate of the calibre of the Board, walked out remarking quite
audibly that he was not going to be examined by a “set of farmers.” The
other four reccived their certificates, the first issued in the county, but Mr.
Lazarus received none and had to resign his position in Berlin.  For subsequent
cxaminations teachers were oblignd to go t> Guelph, the then county town of
the united counties of Wellington, Waterioo and Grey.

In 1844 the office of School Commissioner was abolished and that of
Local Superintendent substituted.  The first Superintendents appointed in this
county were Alexander Allan, M. A.. Robert Brydon, Martin Rudolf, and
James Dow.

The decade following the establishment of Common Schools was one of
great progress. During t the Wellesley lands were nearly all taken up and
schoothouses crected in that township and ¢'sew here throughout the county where
requited.

On the Ist January 1852 there

School).

Between 1820 and 1840 the feril-
ity of the soil and the salubrity of the
climate of Waterlos county having bern
heard of far and wide, settlers, especially
from across the border. flocked mto it very
rapidly, so that m 1842, when the first
Common Schoo! Act was passed, there
were 31 fairly well estabhished schools m
the county 13 in Waterloo township,
8 in North Dumfnes, 7 m Wikinot and
3 in Woolwich.  Squatters were about
this time pourmng into Wellesley (The
Queen’s Bush). There were then no
incorporated towns or wllages w the

)
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county.

Among the oldest of these 31
schools. omutting the five alvcady men-
tioned, were, in Waterloo township  onc
m the town of Waterloo and one near
Fisher's Mills; in North Dumfries  onc
cach at Galt. iatle’s, Wnglev's Corners
and Whistlebare : and one in Woolwich
near Martin's Mccting House  about
three miles north of Watetloo.

The most noted of the schoolhouses of that penied 15 the Waterloo log
schnothouse which was hult about 1820 and. after school had been kept in 1t
for 20 vears, was removed to Greenbush whete t was occupied as a dwelling
house for about fifty ycars and then removed back to Waterlos where #t may
be scen to-day in the Public Park.

The most promment teachers of thuse carly days were Benjamin Eby
(Bishop). James Deary o Derry, William Tih. James Dickson. James Milroy,
Wilkam Vetch, Noak Bechtel, Willam Telfer, lsaae Z. Hunsicker. Jonathan
Good and John Bowman (father of the late I E. Bowman, M. P.)

The fitt Common School  Act, the {oundation upon which our present
school system rests, came to forer in 1843, Under this Act the townstups
& wace dwded mto School Distrcts (the term District was changed to Section in
& 1840). trustees were clected school rates leried, schoothouses crected, teachers
8 cxamincd and hicensed. a course of study preszabed and the firt Government
Grants paid to rural schools.

The forming et altening of boundaties of School Sections was at first done
by Commissioners, but in 1830 this power was transferred to the township
§ councils.

The first mectng to examme teachers in this county was held at Freeport
8 in December 1843, The commissioners present were  Dr. Fulsom, James
Phin, William Tilt, Jacob Lutz and a Chuich of England clergyman from
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A PIONEER SCHOOL HOUSE OF WATERLOO.

Buil: 1820  Removed to Westside Patk. Waterloo
about 14 yoars ago

were 79 schools in the county 75
Common and 4 R. C. Separate.  There
were 81 tcachers 77 males and 4

females. The number of pupils was 5250.
The amcnt expended on education that
vear was a little over $17.000.

In March 1833, the year following
the scparation of Waterloo county from
the Union with Wellington and Grey, the
first meeting of the Board of Public Instruc-
tion for this county was heid in Berlin.
The Local Superintendents constituted the
Board. They were Rev. Jaines Sims,
chairman; Alexander Allan, 87 * Sec-
retary; Martin Rudolf, Otto Klotz and
John Caven. The Board held five meet-
ings that year, three of them for the
cxamination of teachers.  There were
63 centificates granted at the three mect-
ings of which 15 were renewals of cer-
tificates previously obtained at Guelph.
At this tunc and for some vears after-
wards it waz the practice of the Boa:d to
grant very few cettificates for a longer
period than two years, while a number
were valid for onlv six months and some even for only three months.

These Local Supenntendents and their successors m ofice. who admin-
wtered and directed the educational affairs of this county from 1853 10 1871,
when the offize was abolished. have not. in the opinion of the writer. reccived
from the public the credit for their work to which they were entitled.  They
were all educated. broad-minded, unsclfish men. ever ready and willing to assist
and aduse the teacher and explain, the almost uaexplainable schoo! law, to the
trustees.  The obstacles which they were continually  cncountering, m the
pedformance of their dutics, were many and difficult.

In this conncction special mention i1s due Rev. James Suns  Loocal Super-
intendent for Welleslew for twelve vears and chairman of the Board of Public
Instruction for cight  Mesas. Rebert Brydon, Oito Klotz, Henry Liersch,
James Colquhioun, Rev. Duncan McRuer, Rev. Geo. Cuthbenson, Rev.
James Boyd. Henry F. J. Jackson and Isaac L. Bowman.

A few of the teachers of the time, who are not yet forgotten by cldedy
people, were Messis. Robert Mclcar, Jaracs Baikie, Alexander Young. John
Klein, Benjamin Butkholder, David Knox, James Beattic. John J. Bowman and
John McK. Arnderson.

Contemporancoudy with the autonomy of our county in 1852 the people of
the southern portion became ambitious to step onto a higher educational planc
than then existed: resull  the next vear a Grammar School was opened
at Galt with Mr. William Tassic M. A. hcad master.  Mr. Tassc, a
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gentleman of rare ability and widely known as a great disciplinarian, remained
at the head of this school for nearly thinty years. The fame of the institution,
familiatly known as “Tassie’s School,” reached the most distant parts of Canada
and the neighboring republic.

The Berlin Grammar School was established two years later, Rev. Henry
McMeckin, head master.  For the first fifteen years this institution consisted of
one department which was conducted in an upper room in the Central School
building. lts progress was retarded, to sone extent, by the frequent changes of
masters. still advancement was made and although slow was steady.

Statistics show that at the end of 1870 there wete 96 schools in the
county 2 Grammar Schools, 89 Common Schools and 5 R. C. Scparate
Schools. There were 152 teachers 96 males and 56 females and
12,445 pupils.  The amount expended on education in the county that year
was $60,200.

1871 TO 1906.

The amendments to the School Law in 1871 were many and most of
them very important.  The name Grammar School was changed ts High
School and that of Common School to Public School: the Boatd of Public
Instruction 2nd the office of Local Superintendent were abolished and the
County Board of Examiners and a County lrspector. tespectively. substituted
therefor: all Public and Scparate Schools were made free : and attendance of
pupils mage compulsory.

But it was the centrahza-

THE CHRONIGLE-TELEGRAPH SEMI-CENTENNIAL NUMBER.

teachers’ association has been organized, which is onc of the largest and ma:t
progressive in the Province.

The following are the names of a few of the teachers of that time, who
have contributed largely towards our present cnviable, educational position in
the Province, and whose noble work is still fresh in the memories of the people
of this county (omitting those still in harness): Messrs. J. W. Connor, B. A..
Robert Alexander. R. H. Knowles, Wiliam Stahlschmidt, the late A. J.
Brewster, Robert Blackwood, G. A. Mclntyre, G. W, Woodward, the late
William Petrie, David Bean, the late Adolf Mueller, David Bergey. C. B.
Linton, the late Saruch Eby, Sylvester Moyer, Thos. Ballantyne, S. S. Hemer,
Z. A. Hall, Moses E. Braendle, the late Ezra E. Eby, Andiew Weiden-
hammer and F. W. Thomas.

Besides these, if spa¢e permitted, there could be given a long lis* of public
spirited trustees who have, without remuneration, meny of them for over a
quarter of a century, managed not only the financial affairs of the schools but,
in addition. have lost no opportunity to aid and enceurage their over-worked
but under-paid teachers.  The only recompense these worthy men have, after
serving the public for ycars and years, is a self-consciousness that they have ver-
formed a publiz duty to the best of their ability.

There are now (1906) 107 schools in the county 2 Collegate lnsti-
tutes, 94 Public Schoolsand 11 R.CSeparate: 247 teachers 16 in Collegiate
Institutes. 207 in Public Schools, including 11 Kindergartners, and 24 in R.
C. Separate Schools  sex of
tcachers, males 75, females

tion frature of the measure that
completely revolutiemzed the
working and adminstration of
thessstem.  Hencelorth all ex-
ammatiens and authenty becanar
centred in the Educatien De-
partmert.  The Grammar (now
High) School luspector had
been fiom the beguammng an
officer of the Departiment, the
County Publi. Schoel Inspector
now became pracucally one, and
a lttle later «n the R CL Sepe-
rate School luspector bevamie
one. so that from 1871 to the
present tine the Education De-

partment has been m close
touch, through these  offiaals
with every detall of the dongs
and progress of the schoolk.

Mr. Thomas Pearce was
the fust County Inspector
appowted.  He entered upon Ins duties Tst Julv, 1871, ard was sole wspecter
ull 1s July, 1504, when a dmason of the county was made and he was
appomnted for No. | Divcon and Me. . W Sheppard tor No. 2 Diviaen.
The membes of the frt Ceunty Beard of Examincts were Mesers. Thomas
Peatce. chazman. Thomas Hilliard, secret 1o, Rev James Bevd, and John
M. Moran. M Hilhiard remained a mest offrcent ard valued member of the
Board {cr thaty vears.

The new  tequresments @ accotmendaticrs and cquipments, thanks to the
Iberality of the School Boards m this countv, were met most cheafulh acthe
foum\mg will shaw:  From 1871 to the presert lune 617 new school houses
have been crected, 10 enlarged and 15 re-modelled . a lage number of plav-
grcunds have been enlarged and smproved and the cqupment all the schnals
increased ot renewed.  Some of the bulddings are verv fine stectutes, rotalily
the Galt Collegaate Instiuir. now alme<t ready Ior occupation, and  the Berlin
Callegiate and Tedhmcal Insttite Other sckenl birldimgs that do geat crednt
to the trustees and ratepavet ate five n Berdn  four Pullic and one Separate

thiee m Galt and one cach m W aterloo, Preston. Hespelar, \wt. New
HMamburg, Flinta, Welledev and Baden

Dunng the same peread the scholanta. of bab teackers and pupnls has
reached a high standard. the avetage attendance of pujale has mircased fuily
fiflty per cent. twa madel schionls fer the ta g of teachers have been estabe
lshed. c:glt kirdergantens bove Leen opered. manual-tranang and huuschold
science depatments have Teen ostablndbed, and lat Yul netleast a county

A MODERN COUNTY SCHOOL.

Beriin Coideginte and Technwal Inaitate

1722 12,154 pupils 560 in
Collegiate lnstitutes, 10,157 in
Public Schools, including the
Kindergartens.and 1437inR.C.
Scparate Schools. The amount
cxpended in the county on edu-
cation Jast year, was $184,260.

St. Jetome's College, Ber-
lin. being a pavate institution, 1s
not mcluded i the foregoing
sketch, stll an educational out-
tne of aur county is not com-
plete with it omtted.  Tlus
colege, estallished in 1865, s
conducted 1w the Fathers of
the Resurrection. It has at pres-
ent 13 professors and tutors and
over 100 students from Canada
and the Unded States.  Its cur-
niculum comprises complete com-

mercial, science. classical and
philosophical courscs.

The wrter behieves i wall be generally conceded that in no other depart-
ment of human thought and actmty i this prasperous County of Waterloo,
has thare Licen more satisfactory growth and progress tnan i the important
onc of cducation. H M

R, ABRAM CLEMENS HALLMAN, the subjeat of thus sketch, 1

a son of the Iate Jokn S. Hallman, and was ban m the Townshup of

Wilmot near New Dundee on Oct. 25th, 1838

up on hus father's farm and receved a common school educaten  Inlus youth
hie cvnced a keen wtezest n five toek.  He fust engaged w farming in Wilmot.
startmg with pure bred  Holstem cattle, is famm bemg known as the “Spung
Brook Stock. Fatm.”™  He first exhiluted in 18806 at the Frovinaal Fawr, London
and also at Toranto the same vear and was one of the first breeders i Canada
of Holdem catlle which were mported from the United States.  In 1893 My
Hallman started brecding pure bied Tamworth Swine.  He ha: improgted c2ttle
wice from Fngland and now has a herd of aver 6O head.  Mr. Hallnan ha

He was brought

occupicd a posstion on the stafl of Instiute speakers for 12 vears and has acted
a< a judge of stock at all the leading exbubutions as far west as Wannipeg.  He
has also heen ane of the expert judges 1 connection with the Depantment <
Agnculture ever since s inception. Mr Hallman has met with well mented
suscess i his occupation of farming and stock Lrceding, the sesult of wichga
study and industnous appheation of the knowledge thus gamed.




THE GHRONICLE-TELEGRAPH
MANUFACTURING PREEMINENCE.

While agriculture is the prime source of human existence, and education
the factor which leads to perfection, the manufacturing industries of a commun-
ity are the dominant features which contribute to wealth and prestige, yet
dependert on agriculture and education for ultimate success.

In no single county in Canada are the manufacturing industries better
developed or of a more varied character than in Waterloo, omitting one or two
where some of the larger cities ate included in their borders but do not partici-
R pate in, or contribute to, the municipal government of the county. Waterloo
3B has no separated cities or municipalities and every acre of land within the con-
‘B fines of its boundary lines is under the jurisdiction of county officials, and as a
county so comstituted it stands precminent in Canada as the manufacturing
Mecca. Nearly cvery article required in ordinary life and commerce, and
many of the luxuries, are produced. with markets extending over the whole
veorld.  Practically Waterloo is self-sustaining and produces everything that its
inhabitants require.

RAILWAY FACILITIES

In 1853 the Grand Trunk Railway Company, who were constructing a
"M linc across the province, from Montreal to Sarnia, had their road ready for
B lraffic through the county, and crossed, about midway. the townships of
Waterloo and Wilmot.  This was one of the first railway Enes in Canada and
its advent marks an
important cpech in
@  the history of Water- - T
W loo. lis operation
gave casy access to
lar ger markets and
sources of supplies,
and, to some cxtent,
to the people who
lived in the vicinity
of the line, the
troubles and diffcul-
tics of bad roads and
corduroy bridges be-
camc morc of a
memory than a real-
itv. Therecollection
of the firstlocomotive
scen in the county is
yetvivid in the minds
of many of the old
resdents, to most of
2 whom itwas the first
B sight of the “iron
g hotse” and many
S amusing storics arc
S told of the trepidation of the first local ravellers who with a fortitvde bomn of
B desperation and a huny to get somewhere, fear and alarm depicted on cevery
& (caturc, submitted to being drawn over the rails at the incredible speed of from
3B tcn to fifteen miles an hour.
E: Two years after the advent of the Grand Trunk the Galt branch of the
& Great Western Railway was opened and a short time afterwards extended on
3 to Guelph arnd rorthward.  The inauguration of these railway lines was hailed
with delight and proved a boon to the people. A few years ago the Canadian
B Padfic Railway was opened through North Dumfrics, and this vear, 19006, the
3 Guclph and Goderich branch of the same rathvay, which runs through Wool-
f wich and Welledey townships. is under construction and will serve a large terrie
tory not hitherto having the cnjoyment and advantages of raihway connection.
With clectric traction the south-castern portion of the county is at present
faitly well scrved wath Jocal and radial lines that afford transportation facilities
W 7ot available from the steam roads.  The first of these roads i the courty was
B thc Watctloo and Berdin line. which was constructed in 1886 by a company
otganized in the town of Waterloo and promoted by Mr. T. M. Burt of New
a8 Yok, who was manager for the company unti! 1894, The linc was first
BB operated by the old-fashioned horse cars ard changed 1o the clectric system in
f 1894, The second clectiic r0ad in the county was the Galt, Preston and
Hespeler line, which commenced operations in 1894, and gave good service.
b In 1903 the linc was extended to Berlm and w1905 10 Waterdoo. In 1902
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COMPARATIVE. ASSESSMENTS.
1

) . County Tax
Municipality A“IBSG ) A 1906 ?s;(t):s

- - e e [V RO

TOWl;lhi s .
Watedoo - - - | $2,032572 | $3993230 | $6.591
Wilmot - - - - 1,314,336 2,895,610 4.881

Wellesley - - - 767,044 2,872,158 4.755
Woolwich - : - 952,148 ' 2.831.284 | 4.360
T North Dumfries - - 972800 | 2,044818 3414
Gat - - . -1 9850831 4152555 | 4303
Betin - - - 363740 | 4948009 | 4.662
Wateroo - - - 141,740 |  1.861.936 | 2.041
Preston - - - | 315630 921,445 |  1.040
v‘"Hcspclcx (Inc. 1858) - - - - 797,420 961
"New Hamburg (inc. 1857) ... 435081 | 520
Ayr (Inc. 1884) - . - 303035 | 416
Elmira (Inc. 1887) - - - - 490.280; 441
—_— - - - - -
$7.845,093 | $28.546.861 , $38.585

The oln ve figures compuled frim the County Clerk's recurds show the steady increase in property values.
(M}

the line be tween
Berlin and Bridge-
port was opened,
and in 1905 the
Grand Valley Road
made connection be-
tween Galt and
Brantford.

Present indica-
tions are that in the
very near future the
county will be grid-
irencd by electric
traction lines that will
give service to nearly
every village and
hamlet. The Pres-
ton and Berlin Com.
pany contemplate
extending to Welles-
ley: the stockholders
who control the Ber-
lin and Bridgeport
P. STREET RAILWAY, PRESTON. line are moving to-

\ wards an extension

to Collingwood

where they will tap a Georgian Bay lake port.  Arnother projected clectric

10ad, which will likely be constructed and operated before the close of 1907,
15 onc from Hamilton 10 Galt and Watctloo.

POST OFFICES.

With mail facilitics and privileges the county is well supplicd with a daily
senvice, supplying cach of the following thity-nine posc-offices:

Ayt Baden, Bamberg, Betlin, Bloomingdale, Branchton, Breslau, Bridge-
port. Conestogo, Crosshill. Doon. Etbsville, Elmira, Floradale, Freeport. Galt.
Geman Mills, Hawkswlle, Haysville, Heidelberg, Hespeler. Linwood, Mann-
hem, New Dundee, New Germany, New Hamburg: Philipsburg, Petersburg,
Preston. Roseville, St. Clements, St. Jacobs, Strasburg, Walleastein, Waterloo,
Wessenburg, Wellesley, West Montrose, Winterbourne.

" The twenticth century belongs to Canadz.™ and 10 no other part of the
Dominion has the prophetic expression better application than 1o the county of
Watcrloo. In brains, brawn and rescurces she possesses all the cssentials to
keep her present position in the van of Canadian twenticth century progress.

(*) The forcgoing table givesthe comparisen for fifty vears. and shows an
increase during that time of $20.701.768.  Since 1856 Hespeler, New Ham-
burg, Ayr and Elmira have been incorporated as separate municipalities, and
at the time-of their incorporation their asscssment was as follows

New Famburg, 1857, $133.022: Hespeler, 1858, $34.247; Ayr.
1884, $204.936: Elmira, 1887, §102928.

i o g
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Galt, Preston and Hespeler Street Railway Go. I

?

July 27th, 1894, was brought into existence almost entirely by the efforts

of the late Thos. Todd, and was one of the first roads on the continent

to handle freight. Two years later, in 1896, the road was extended to
Hespeler and the name changed to the Galt, Preston and Hespeler St. Rail-
way. In 1901 M. John Patterson of Hamilton, the
well-known railway promoter, uadertook to build from
Preston to Berlin, but through unforeseen circumstances
he was not in a position to complete it. Local capital-
ists took hold of the enterprisc and completed it in
1903, after which it was sold to the Galt, Preston and
Hespeler Street Railway Co.  After operating the road
to Berlin for about two years and realizing the wisdom
of further extension, the Company carly in 1905 built its
line as far as Waterloo, and the people of Berlin and
Watcrloo are patiently awaiting the decision of the
company to extend its line to Wellesley or some other
notthern point connecting with the Guelph and Goderich
Railway and intervening points, thus bringing the people
of widely separated scctions within casy touch of cach
other and furnishing to the farmers of these localities
cheap travel and facilitics for marketing their products.

The management of the Company scem to be firm
believers in the old adage that anything that is worth
doing is worth doing well, and in line with this belief
the road has been built in the best possible manner -
cqual to any stcam road while the cquipment is the
best that money could procure.

This Company has a very closc connection with the C. P. R.. which it
represents in the towns of Preston. Hespeler, Berlin and Watetloo, and for
this purpose first-class facilities for handling freight, express and passenger bus:-
ness of these
towns have

’I‘HE Galt and Preston Strect Railway, which was opened for trafic on

PRESIDENT TODD.

pleasure in any outing when the scenery is inviting and the surroundings are varied.

From the hum of the busy workshops of Galt, the traveller is quickly
transported along the banks of the River Grand to the far-famed Preston
Mineral Springs that gush from artesian wells whose curative properties have
been established for decades. Passng to Hespeler one arrives at the woollen
manufacturing centre of westem Ontario.

From Preston to Berlin (The Grand Rapids of
Canada) is a ride of less than thirty minutes through a
charming stretch of country. Here connection may be
had by trolley for Waterloo and Bridgeport or with the
main line of the Granc. Trunk.

The officers of the Company are: President,
Martin N. Todd; Vice-President, Geo. D. Forbes:
Secretary-Treasurer, W. H. Lutz; Supt., P. J. Clemens;
Master Mechanic, N. W. Kirkwood ; Ageat, Berlin, Jas.
McTavish; Agent, Waterloo, C. J. Whitney; Agent,
Preston, E. H. Ewald: Agent, Hespeler, A. Wittinack.

ONRAD STROH wasone of the mighty hunters

of by-gone days. He lived on the banks of the

Grand River. about one mile east of Conestogo,

and died at the good old age of 87 some eight years ago.
Conrad was an unerring marksman, and when he pulled
the trigger of the old flint lock the bullet sped with
undeviating accuracy to the objective pont. A friend
and companion of Conrad'’s was Jacob Benner, of West
Montrose, who was also a Nimrod whohad won his
reputation by practical and visible results.  He, too, was a keen-sighted marks-
man and prided himself on never missing his aim.  Although the two wexe fast
friends there cxisted a little good-natured rivalry between them regasding the
supremacy of marksmanship. One day a test of skill was determined oa. Each
was to frre at

aspot on a

been provid-
ed. Large
freight trains
drawn by
heavy fraght
molors run
bLetween
these pomts
and the C.P.
R. station at
Galt continu-
ally, and the
large and m-
<creaurg bus-
ness that s
bang hand-
fed showsthe
populanty of
the quick
senvice given
the manufac-
turersof these
busy towns
who seem to
appreciate
the advant-
age of the
short curvesthat can be made on the clectne road and also the absolute safety
aganst loss by fire.

The clectric roads are also attracting a large amount of tourist traffic,
transporting the wiitor through a portion of the nchest agncultural and scenic
<ountry in Western Ontatio and through a quartettc of growingtowns. There is

AN ELECTRIC FREIGHT

certain lree.
Both fired,
but on ex-
amination
only one bul-
et hole was
found. Both
claimed i1,
and adispute
arsse which
<ooled thex
friendship
' and dweat-
ened an open
Tupture. In
those days
the settlers
made their
own bullets
and Jead was
scarce. Same
days after-
wards Ben-
ner, passog
the spot
where the
trial had
taken place, thought to save the lead by cutting out the ball em-
bedded in the tee. Imagne his surprise when he found both bul-
lcts i the onc hole. Benner communicated the discovery to his friend
and the warm comradeship was resumed that was never aftcrwards
broken.

e T it B et b i
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f Township of Waterloo %

R the first twenty odd years after the location
of the fiust settlers in the township we have no
record of Municipal Government or of the man-
ner in which municipal affairs were managed. We

therefore conclude there was none, and that probably a
few neighbors would occasionally meet together and
appoint what was known as a “Bee,” when all inter-
ested would join to remove some obstructions on the pub-
lic roads or fords of the river. We are informed that
the fist bridge across the Grand River at Blair, as a
means of communication between the settlers on the
castern and western sides of the river at all seasons of
the year, was erected by a series of these ** Bres.” sup-
plemented by extra labor on the part of the more skillful
in mechanical work among the farmers, these workmen
being again repaid by exchange of labor on their farms
from those less adept in such work as the construction of
bridges.

In the year 1822, however, the first town meeting
was held, and such meetings were held yearly thereafter
until 1842, when a more complete system of Municipal
Government was inaugurated. At these town meetings
the whole municipal business, such as the clection of
officers, ordering of public improvements and levving of
the rate of taxation, was transacted. From the records
referred to we find that in 1822, George Clemens was
clected town clerk, Samuel Eib and Daniel Enider.
assessors, and Abraham Erb, collector. At this meeting:
also, as cattle, sheep and hogs were allowed to roam the
woods at large, we find that an ordinance was passed
that all owners of stock must register with the township
clerk the brands or marks by which their stock could
be distinguished from those of their neighbors. In com-
pliance with this ordinance George Clemens registered his
mark as “the right car cropped and a slit in the same ;™
Samucl Sherk reversed his to the *lcft ear cropped and
a dit in the same:” Jonathan Bowman “a slit in the
left car only,” and others had various devices. In 1823
Jacob Bock was appointed Town Cletk ; Samuel Sherk
and Jacob Bock, assessors : and Abraham Erb. collector.
Jacob Bock held the position of town clerk for 4 years
when he was succeeded by David Clemens, who then
held the office for two ycears and was followed by Daniel
Lutz for onc year. when David Clemens was again ap-
pointed. and held the positicn till 1838, and this is the
last record we have for some years.

The Township of Waterloo was originally a portion
of the County of York. but the affairs of the township
were conducted by the Magistrates of the Gore District
who met in quarter sessions at Hamilton, and upen Hal-
ton being carved out this county and township was in-
cluded within the limits of that county. and had to con-
tribute its full share towards the crection of county build-
ings. It remained part of the County of Halton until
the year 1842, when it was attached to the District of
Wellington and again had to contribute towards the crec-
tion of the District buildings at Guelph.

In 1850 the township was sct apart as a separate
municipality, and for the fist time clected a council who
had control of their own local improvements, while the
Reeve and Deputy Reeve had a seat at the County
Council Boatrd of Wellington. In 1852 Waterloo
County was sct apart as a provisional County.

The oldest assessment roll we have been able to find
in the archives of the township is for the year 1848.

OWEN REIST, Reeve.

J S. SNYDER

JOSEPH ABRA

JOSIAH STAUFFER

WATERLOO
TOWNSHIP COUNCIL
1906

It is described as the “ Assessment Roll of the Township
of Waterloo, in the District of Wellington," and one
William Koplin was the assessor. The assessment was
made equal on all parties on the different classes of prop-
erty, no matter whether the property was of equal value
or not. For instance, we find that the following rates
were levied under the different heads, the rate being levied
in York currency —$4 to the £: On squared or hewed
log housz, under 2 stories, £20; on every additional
fireplace more than one, £4; framed house, under 2
stories, £35; cach extra fire-place, £5. Squared or
hew=d log house, 2 stories, £30; additional firc-places,
£8. Brick or stone house, under 2 stories, £40 ; each
extra fire-place, £10. Frame, brick or stone house, 2
stories, £60; each extra fire-place, £10. Grist mill,
wrought by water, with one run of stones, £150; each
additional run of stones, £50; Saw mills, £100 ; Mer-
chant shops, £200: stallions kept for service, £199;
horses three years old and upwards, £8; oxen four years
old and upwards, £4: milch cows, £3; young cattle
trom two to four years old. £1: close carmriages with
four wheels, £100: open carriage with four wheels,
£25: carioles, gigs, &c.. with two wheels, £20; plea-
sure wagons, £15; distilleries varied, as did also dogs,
there being no fixed rate. Land bore a fixed rate per
acre, but more than half the assessment was from build-
ings and personal property. From the same Roll we
find that in that year there were 47,2321 acres assessed
as uncultivated, and 37.1311 acres as cultivated, making
a total of 84,304 acres; there were 57 hewed or log
houses under two stories, containing two extra fire-places ;
222 framed houses under two stories, with 7 extra fire-
places: 58 squared or hewed log houses, two stories,
with 4 extra fire-places; 26 brick or stone buildings
under two stoties, with no extra fire-places; 188 frame
or brick, two stories, with thirteen extra fire-places: 11
grist mills with 23 extra run of stone: 27 saw mills; 21
merchant shops: 11 stallions kept for service; 1,285
horses, 3 years old and upwards: 820 oxen, 4 years old
and upwards: 2.537 milch cows: 1.299 young cattle,
from 2 to 4 vears old: 1 close camriage with four wheels
(which was owned by George Roos of Preston): 6
open carriages with 4 wheels, and 2 gigs: 138 pleasure
wagons: 6 distillerics. and 11 dogs.  The total assessment
on land was £46.,578 (yvearly value) and on rateable
property other than land, £59.894-- 1otal assessment,
£106472. There was raised in taxes on this assess-
ment the sum of £1.013 Is. 5d.. and an additional
extra schoo! tax of £438 0s. 6d.  In ail there was levied
the sum of $5.804.47. The reader must bear in mind
that at this date the Towns of Berlin and Waterloo, and
the Villages of Preston and Hespeler, wete still all em-
braced within the limits of the Township of Waterloo.

From the Asscssment Roll of the Township for
1904 wc gather that the total number of acres is
82.238. The assessment of real property was $3,637.-
795, personal property $400, and incoine $5.750, total
assessment $3.643945. There were 12,300 catile,
2,096 sheep, 10,650 hogs, 3.587 horses and 710 dogs.
The total population was 6.544. There were 1,895
ratepayers on the roll.

The first Reeve of Waterloo Township was Mr.
Jonathan Bowman and his successors were: Ehias Snider,
1851; John Scott, 1852-3: lsaac Clemens, 1854.60;

- T {Gontinuedon m(; W)
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? | Township of Wellesley f

ELLESLEY was the latest settled of the

townships of the county, owing to the fact that

its lands were the last to be placed on the

market. The first settlers of whom we have
any record were Messs. Blum and Anselle, the latter a
Frenchman. who located on the site of Heidelberg in
1832. Blum settled onLot 11, Concession A, and Ans-
elle Lot 9, north of the present highway, where he kept
a tavem. They were soon followed by the Beising,
Cuntis, Focrster. Kertes and Lackner families who settled
in the vicinity of Heidelberg. In St. Clements the pioncer
was Adolph Schittler.  He wassoon followed by Adolph
Stroh, who opened a tavern, in which was located the post
office which was established soon after. A log school
house and chapel combined had been erected in the vicin-
ity, and a missionary on being asked to suggest a name
{or the post office chose the name of the saint which the
village now bears.  The first stores were those of Borres
& Clyck and Herbert Gilles, opened about 1844.
Ambrose Starr located here about the same year. The
township was surveved in 1842, but the active settlement
did not take place until after the survey.

The vicnity of Hawksille was scttled by John
Gabriel Percival and William Hawke, who came from
England with their father in 1846, They built a grist
mill on the site of the present village, and Percival built a
saw mill about fcur miles further west.  Gabriel opened
the first store soon after.  Other pioncers in this district
wete Messrs. Hughes, Thomson and Empy.  Between
1846 and 1847 the village of linwood was seitled.
Messrs. Thos. Ransom., John Brown. Robert Crooks,
\'m. Owens, Archibald Calder and Messrs. Ryan,
McCormick being numbered ameng its pionecrs.  To
the west of Linwood B. Woodman and Arndiew Case
were among the first to settle and the southwardly see-
tion of the townslup had ameng uts first setters Chrstian
EFrmst, Wm. Chalmers and Chas. Robertsen.  The locality
of Crosshill. which 1s abeut the centre of the Township,
was settled about the time of the survey, and among the
first to amive were David and W, Hastings, the Glass-
ter family, George Hewitt and the Mesas. Campbell,
Godbe and Forwell.  The southern and castern portions
of the township were largely settled by Old Country
Germans, among whom wete John Moser, the Kroctsch
family. Adam Esbaugh and Ambirose Starr - Ta the south-
west the foundation of which is now Welledey Village
was commenced by one Joln Smith, a rquattcr. who
came in before the surves.  Other pioncers were .
Docring, Christian Boshant, Charles Qumarn and Joln
Zocger, the last named of whom oaened the firatstore m
the village.  In the notth-western section of the townslap
the early sctlement was cliefly by Indhi and the balance
of the western sunvev was peopled by Enghsh and Scotch,
there being a considerable setiement of lush w the south.
west and of Messtan Lutherans along the fifth bine.

There 1s no more important muniapahity i the County
than the Township of Welledev A< an agneu'teral d-
trict it has few cquals and feveer supeniore The land s
composed mustly of cther a cay loam o1 heavy day,
hence the land 5 not onlv drong Lt exceedingly  dur-
able. The townsup 1s dinided into two sectings, the
castern and western, and contame about 60,000 acres of
land.

The lard in the township s bud out wn blocks Ly
the roads (which are iz a faely good conditen) runeng

ALEXANDER B. ROBERTSON

Reeve

1 N HUEMN

WELLESLEY
TOW/NSHIP GOUNGIL
19C6.

one and one-half miles, by one and a quarter miles across.
The advent of modern agricultural machinery had the
cffect of decreasing the population at least for a time.

The first municipal election was held in Crosshill.
From 1850 to 1865 the township was divided inte five
wards, each ward retuming its respective municipal rep-
resentative.  Now, however, the township retums its
Council elected by the township as a whole. The C.
P.R. route is laid out through Wallenstein, Linwood
and Millbank. A substantial sun has been voted
towards an Electric Railway to run west from Berlin and
Waterloo to Wellesley Village, which will probably be
built 1 the near future, and which would certainly be a
great advantage to all concerned. The inhabitants of
Wellesley Township are industrions, progressive, frugal
and well-to-do, and when the proposed railway connee-
tions have been made the township will rival in import-
ance any municipality in the County of Waterloo.

The reeves of Wellesley Township were: John
Hawk. 1832, 1859-63; Adam Erbach. 1853; M.P.
Empy., 1854 John Zocger, 1855-8, 1864: \W. H.
Varden, M. D., 1805-8 ; Ferdinand Walter. 1869-96:
Alex. Rennie, 1897-1900; Thomas Short, 1901.4;
Rabert J. nerr, 1905; Alexander B. Robertson, 1906.

WATERLOO TOWNSHIP.
(Continued from pege 27)

Wendell Bowman, 1861 ; Cyrus Bowers, 1862 ; Samue}
D. Martin, 1863 ; Ephraim Eb, 1864-9: FHenry Me-
Nally, {8701, 1875, 1877-8; Joel Clemens, 1872 ;
Jacob S. Betzner, 1873.4: Lewis Knbs, 1876 Ed-
ward Halter, 1879 Isaac Groh, 1880-3: Tilman B.
Snider, 1884-5; Jositth Smder. 1866: Jas. P. Phin,
1887-90 : Tiiman S. Shantz, 1891, 1996: John N.
Sipes, 18935 Jos. B. Hagey, 1897-8: Noah Weber,
1899: Fred. K. Shafer, 1900-01: Louis Nochler,
1902.03 : John Amos. 1904-05: Owen Reist, 19006.
David S. Shoemaker held the position of clerk and
trcasvrer from 1850 to 1861, when he resigned, being
succceded by William Tilt as clerk and Elas Eby as
treasuter.  Upon the resignation of Mr. Eby in 1865,
Mr. Isaac L. Bowman was appointed treasurer. and held
the positon for a number of years, bang succeeded by
M. Levi Stauffer, who held the posiion for somewhat
over a year, when the present trcasurer, Mr. Peter
Skerk. was appointed.  Upon the death of Mr. William

Tilt i 1883, his son, Mr. Geo. A, Tilt, was appointed
township clerk.

ENRY N. HUEHN, of Heidelberg. is a native of
Waterloo County. Afterreceiving a public school
cducation he served three years' apprenticeship

in the harncss trade i Heidelberg, and was alterwards
employed in Wellesley Village, Berlin and later at Hamil.
ton. where he was employed fer three years in what was
then one of thelargest hamess concerns in Canada.  The
experience received there wasthe foundation of his (uture
success.  In 1875 he commenced business in the village
of Heidelberg, and about twelve years age added to hus
progressing  business a general stack of hardware and
stoves, and at the present time posscsses onc of the best
cquipped hardware and hamess steres of any village in
the County of Waterloo. In 1885 he was appointed
lssuer of Martiage Licenses, which positien he still holds.
In 1902 he was clected counciller by acclamation, and
successfully contested the clection in 1905.
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‘? Township of Wilmot

? |

HE first settlement of the township was made in

1822, by Christian Naffziger, a German of the

Amish-Mennonite persuasion, from Bavaria. He

secured a free grant of 50 acres for each family
who should “emigrate with him from Germany, and in
1826 he returned from the old country with a number
of settlers.  The settlement of Amishmen increased until
it spread over the northern two-thirds of the township to
the almost entire exclusion of all other classes. Settle-
ment did not extend as far west as New Hamburg until
about 1832, when Wm. Scott located here and took up
a large portion of the village site, followed later by Paul
Bechner and Samuel and Fred. Memer. In this vicinity
the pioneer farmers were the Millers, Brennemans and
Jacob Gingerich. The four most southetly concessions,
constituting Block A, were granted to the Canada Com-
pany, and between the first and second concessions the
so-called Dundas Road was cut out in 1828, along
which the first settlers began to locate in 1832, among
whom were Wm. Hobson, Wm. Puddicombe and
Edward Everett. Robert Hays, from the notth of Ire-
land, came to this locality in 1835, and purchased the
mill site where Haysville is now situated. Here he
erected a saw and grist mill, and opened a store, thus
laying the foundation of the village. The post office was
opened here in 1837, and Mr. Hays became the first
postmaster. To the west of Haysville the carliest settlers
were Henry Puddicombe, John Laird, and the McGee.
Walker, Mallett, Stockwell, Llingworth and other fami-
lies. Some distance east of the village, a2 man named
Ford kept a farm and tavern combined. and among
other residents were David Miller, who kept a store,
and the Bean family. David and John Miller founded
New Dundee in 1835, where they also conducted a
store. Among the pioneers of New Dundee was the
late John Allchin, cletk of the division court. To
the south of Haysville the pioncers were John Stauffer,
Wm. Anderson and his three sons, the Green and Bean
families and others, forming what is called the Green and
Bean Settlement, which was located about 1836. The
onginal pioncer of this section was John Tennant, who
remained but a short time, subsequently removing to the
Township of Elma.

Eardy scttlers in the vicinity of Petersburg were
John Emst, Peter Wilker, Jacob Stacbler, Deobold
Seyler, John Martini, the Schwartzentrubers, Schultzes
and Metzes and John Meyer, who came in about 1838,
Mr. Emst being the first postmaster of Petersburg.

Mr. Chnistopher Docring was the piencer at Philips-
burg, where he scttled in 1835, and St. Agatha claims
among its carlicr sctlers Anthony Kaiser and Peter
Tschirhart.

The village of Mannheim was located and sur-
veyed as catly as 1820, being laid out by Mesas. P. B,
Zocger, lsaac C. Shantz and Isaac Latschar.

An idea of the progress of the township may be
formed from the fact that the total assessment grew from
the sum of $1,314.336 i 1856 to $2,595.610 m
1896. From a vecent assessment roll we glean that
the population of the township is 6,583, the number of
ratepayers 1.368. The total number of acres assessed
15 82,190 and the amount of the total assessment is
$3.993.230. There were 12,300 cattle, 2.096 sheep.

- 10,652 hogs, 3.587 horses and 710 dogs.
The reeves of Wilmot Township from the date

HENRY ZOELLER. Reeve

SAMUEL GASSEL

JOHN T. OTTO

WILMOT
TOWNSHIP COUNCIL

1906

of organization in 1850 were: Jacob Bettschen, 1850;
John Emst, 1851-2, 1857.8: Wm. Scott, 1853-5;
Wm. Hunter, 1856; Anthony Kaiser, 1859-62; H. D.
Tye, 1863-70; Christopher Zoeger, 1871-7; James
Livingstor 1878-82; Fred. Holwell, 1883.8; J. S.
Hallman, 1889-96; Josiah Hallman, 1897-1900;
Henry Zoeller, 1901-06.

Michzel Meyers was the first clerk of the township
and held the position from 1850 to 1878, when he was
succeeded by Henry Liersch, who relinquished the posi-
tion in [888. He was followed by Alfred Kaufman,
who was shortly after succeeded Ly Fred. Holwell,
the present cleck.

George C. Master held the position of treasurer
from 1850 to 1854, being succeeded by John Allchin,
who acted for four years. Mr. Christizn Emst held the
position from 1858 to 1861, Michael Morley from
1861 to 1381, Alfred Kaufman from 1881 to 1900.
He was succeeded by the present treasurer, Fred.
Holwell, who discharges the duties of the dual office of
clerk and treasurer.

ENRY ZOELLER, son of Valentine Zoeller,
was born in Waterloo Township on Oct. 5th,
1848, where he was brought up, receiving his
education at S, S. No. 10, Wilmot Township. In 1872
he bought the farm which he now occupies from his
father, who purchased it in 1852. The farm which is
situated on Lot 15, B. R.S., Wilmot, was formerly
owned by Urich Geiger, who first cleared the land.
Mr. Zodler was a member of the Wilmot Township
Courcil from Jan. 1896 to 1900, and since 1900 has
held the position cf reeve.

AMUEL CASSEL was born on a farm two miles
S northeast of Washington in the Township of
Blenheim in the year 1858. In the year 1861
his parentz, Mr. and Mrs. Henry B. Casscl, moved to a
farm on the Huron Road in the Township of Wilmot,
three miles west of Haysville. Here Mr. Cassel spent
his boyhood days. Alfter securing an education at S.S.
No. 5, where he distinguished himself as a brilliant scholar,
he embarked in business for himself. Heu purchased the
homestead in 1885. Three years ago he bought the
west half of Lot 27, known as “Spruce Farm”, adjoining
his own property, from Mr. Manley Martk, theteby
securing onc of the fincst 200 acre farms in the county.
Mr. Cassel was manied to Miss Mark, eldest daughter
of the late Samucl Mark, in the year 1885. Mr. Cassel
has won an ecnviable rcputation as a feeder of export
cattle.  Visitors from all scctions visit his large bamns to
admire the beautiful cattle that are to be found in his
stables. e fceds 70 cxporters every year.  He has
been sckool trustee for three terms, besides being continu-
ous sccretary-treasuter of his school section for several
vears. He was a member of the school board when the
prescut schoolhouse was built and was largely instrumen-
tal in making it cne of the finest schoolhouses in the
county. He is a member of the Church of England
and takes an active interest in its welfare.  In 1902 he
was clected township councillor and has since been a
very creditable member.  He was appointed a justice
of the peace in 1903 and rcappointed by the present
government in 1705,
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Township of Woolwich f

more than passing interest to every inhabitant of

Woolwich Township. It is dated the fifth of

February, 1798, and by it the Crown deeded to
William Wallace of Niagara 86,078 actes of land on
the Grand River, which now forms the major part of
Woolwich Township, the consideration being £16,364.
By a deed dated July 24th. 1807, William Wallace
deeded to Augustus Jones and John and Jacob Erb
45,195 acres which forms what is known as the Ger-
man Company Tract of the Township of Woolwich,
and these gentlemen sold the lots as rapidly as pur-
chasers could be found. The pioneer of Woolwich
was a squalter named Thomas Smith, who located just
east of the Grand River near Conestogo about 1810.
In 1813 Geo. Eby settled on Lot 2, west of the Grand
River near the Waterloo border. A few years later he
was followed by Simon Cress, Henty Mattin and David
Mussclman, who all settled in the vicinity of Conestogo.
Samuel Reist and John Gingerich were the next to ar-
rive, the former locating on Lot 34, between Conestogo
and St. Jacobs. The first mill in the township was
established at Conestogo by David Musselman about
the year 1834.  That portion of the township between
St. Jacobs and Heidelberg claims John Meyer and John
Kressler among its carly settlers, the first named gentle-
man having laid out the southeast portion of Heidel-
berg, while the last named became the first postmaster of
the village.  The first settler in the vicinity of Elmira was
Edward Bristow, who located just south of the site of
the present village about the year 1825, He was soon
followed by Geo. Streeter, Thos. Walker, James Gass
and Robent Kenning.  John O'Brien and Martin Half-
penny located north of Elmira in 1840, and in 1845
George Girling settled cast of the village.

Rav. Philip Winkler. of Si. lacobs, now in his 86th
year, says that when the families of his father, Jacob
Winkler, and his father's brother-in-law Martin Hauch,
.cam= to this country fron Baden, Gzrmany, in 1834,
they settled on Lot No. 9. G.C.T.. Township of Wool-
wich, on 100 acres of land which they bought from
Joseph Zehr at $3 an acre.  The lower or southern
section of the township was at that time settled by Henry,
Chnstian, Daniel, Samue!, John and David Martin, all
brothers, and sons of Peter Marin who came from
Pennsylvama mn 1819, Mr. Peter Martin, who resided
on the farm now owned by Mr. Menno Gmgerich in
Waterloo Township un to the ime of his death in 1831,
had a family of scventeen children. all of whom were
married and came to Canada with the exception of two
daughters who remancd n Pennsylvania.  Among other
settlers in this part of the township in 1834 were: Daniel
Good. David Horst, Samuel Hoffman, John W. and
John S. Brubacher, John B. Bowman, Isaac Weber,
l_evi Bowman, Chrisian Bowman, Joha Meyer, John
Miller, Geo. Ament, Peter Eby, Ephraim and Jacob
Cress, neatly all of the Mennomte faith; also Joseph
Zchr, Chnstian Ebersohl and Peter Forney of the Amish
denomination. these three families afterwards removing to
AVilmot Township.

Henry Bowman, father of Chustian and Levi Bow-
man, purchased and setled on a 130 acre farm ncar
Hedelberg in 1827, for which he pad £96. Charles
Peterson, fathier of the late Andrew Peterson and . W.
Peterson.no ¢ of FHawkswille, and grandfather of ex-war-

THE Registry Office at Betlin contains a deed of

ADAM MATTUSCH

Reeve

JOSEPH COOD HURST

JOHNSON J. WILKINSON

WOOLWIGH
TOV/NSHIP COUNGIL
1906.

den Alex. Peterson, farmer, was also one of the pioncers
of the Woolwich Township.

From 1856 to 1906 the assessed value of the
township grew from $952,148 to $2,831,284.

The reeves of Woolwich Township were: John
Meyer, 1852, 1861-3; Peter Winger, 1853-8; Wm.
Veitch, £1859-60; Charles Hendry, 1864-8, 1872;
John ‘B. Snyder, 1869-71, 1873, 1884 and part of
1885 ; John Ratz, part of 1885 ; D. S. Snyder, 1886-8,
1892-4; J.L.Umbach, 1889, 1891; Alex. Peterson,
1890; Aaron Weber, 1895 ; Chris. S. Weber, 1896;
Lcander Bowman, 1897-8; James Glennie, 1899
John Walker, 1900; Geo. Auman, 1901-02; Jas.
Howlett, 1903.05.

James Dow was the first cleck and treasurer of the
township. He was followed by B. B. Bemis. About
1858 1. E. Bowman was appointed clerk and treasurer,
tesigning in 1873, when John L. Wideman was ap-
pointed and held the office until 1905. He was suc-
ceeded by the present clerk, Walter J. Snider.  Upon
the removal of I. E. Bowman to Waterloo, Jesse B.
Snyder was appointed treasurer, holding the office until
his death about five ycars ago. e was succeeded by
his son Addison B. Snider, the present treasurer.

DAM MATTUSCH was born in the northern
part of Woolwich Township in 1860, where
he has always resided, being engaged in the

occupation of farming. He received his education in the
public school. He became a member of Woolwich
Township Council in 1901, and has by intclligent and
strict attention to his duties as a member of the Council
gained the confidence of the public in a marked degree.
He was elected reeve in 1906.

OSEPH GOOD HURST was bom in the
Township of {Woolwich December 2nd, 1839.
He received his education in the public schools of
this township. also attending the Betlin High School (now
the Bedin Collegiate Institute), the Toronto Normal
Schoo! and the Bloomington University, 1ll., taking the
non-resident course.  He taught school for about ten
years, when he retited from the profession to follow the
occupation of farming, and now resides on a farm bor-
dering on the village of Conestogo.  Mr. Hurst is a past
President of the Waterloo County Teachers” Association
and is also an ex-president of the North Watetloo Farm-
crs Institute.  Hle was a Justice of the Peace until the
tecent revision, when he sccured the appointment of
commissioner {or taking affidavits.

OHNSON J. WILKINSON, fourth son of the late
John Wilkinson, was bom in the Township of
Wellesley ncar Hawksville. He moved to the

Township of Woolwich in 1878, and has since that tim
tesided on the farm which he now occupies.  Mr. Wil-
kinson hias been a member of Woolwich Township
Council for five years.

OLOMON KOCH was born in 1864, receiving
his schooling at Conestogo. He is a farmer by
occupation, and has for the past nine years de-

voted his attention quite particularly to raising live stock
e has been a member of Woolwich Township Counait
for the past six years.
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Township of North Dumfries

| %

cences of the Early History of Galt and Settlement of Dumlries,”

the land now comprising the townships of North and South Dum-

frics was deeded to one Philip Stedman on the fifth of February,
1798, the conveyance being signed by Colonel Brant on behalf of the Six
Nation Indians. The lands were described as Block No. 1, comprising
94,305 acres, and the stipulated price was £8,841. Stedman died a few
years after obtaining the patent from the Crown, when *he property was
inherited by his sister, who in 1811 sold it to the Hon. Thos. Clarke of
Lincoln County. No part of the principal money agreed upon by Stedman
had up to this time bsen paid, Clarke executing a mortgage on the lands for
£8,841 and intcrest. In 1816 Wm. Dickson, whose name has been so
intimately associated with the history of Dumfries, bought the entire block,
paying £24,000 or a little over one dollar an acre. He had the township
promptly surveyed and induced a clever Pennsylvanian named Absolom Shade
to locate in the then wilderness, and these two gentlemen may propeily be
looked upon as the founders of Galt and Dumfries. Messrs. Donald Fraser,
Thomas McBean and Willlam Mackenzie were the first scttlers to arrive,
walking from New York State in 1817, Following them the same ycar came
John Buchanan, Robt. Carrick, Alexander Harvie, Daniel McArthur and
Dugald McColl.  According to a Government authority there were in 1818
only thirty-cight settlers, comprising a total population of sixty-three.  Settle-
ment proceeded slowly up to 1825 when newcomers began to amive more
frequently the majority of them coming direct from Scotland.

The municipal history of Dumfries dates from 1819, when the first town
meeting was called, the following town and parish officers being chosen::

Township clerk, John Scott; assessors, John Buchanan, Lawrence Scham-
methorn; collector, Ephraim Munson; wardens, A. Harvie and Richard
Philips; pathmasters, Cornelius Conners, Enos Griffith, James McCarty and
John Leece; pound keeper, John Lawrasor.

The only business transacted at the meeting was the adoption of the fol-
lowing motions: (1) Resolved, “That a fence shall be deemed unlawful unless
it has stakes and riders, is five fect high and has no cracks exceeding six inches
in width for the first two feet in height.”  (2) “The meeting also resolves that

A CCORDING to the Hon. Jas. Young's excellent work ** Remnis-

all creatures shall be free commoners, excepting studhorses and pigs under six
months old.”

These town meetings were continued until 1836, when a new law was
passsd by the Provincial Legislature empowering the ratepayers of Dumfries to
clect three Township Commissioners in addition to former oficers. The first
elestion under the new act resulted : —Thos. Rich, towaship clerk; Carlton C.
Saith, Henry V. S. Maus, Wendell Bowman, commissioners; William Veitch,
assessor; Jas. Wilson, collector. In 1842 Alex. Buchanan and Hiram Capron
were elected the first “‘District Councillors for the Township of Dumfries.”” In
1850 another important change was made in the Municipal Act, and the rate-
payers of the township were called upon to elect five councillors to manage the
affairs of the township. The election resulted in the return of Elam Stimson,
Daniel Anderson, Absalom Shade, David Shantz and Wendell Bowman, Dx.
Stimson becoming the first reeve.  Two years afterward, by an Act of Parlia-
ment, Dumfries was divided into two townships, the North attached to the
County of Waterloo and the South to the County of Brant.

The first municipal council elected after the division was composed of

reeve, Dr. Chas. McGeorge; deputy-reeve, Duncan Ferguson, and coun-
cillors, Alexander Buchanan, Robt. Cranston and David Shantz.
__ The resves since that time were: D Charles M:Gzorge, 1852 ; Alex.
Buchanan, 1853; Duncan Ferguson, 1854-5; Thos. Chisholm, 1856.9,
1861-4; John Unger, 1860: Thos. Marshall, 1865, 1871 ; Gszo. Simpson,
1872-3; John D. Moore, 1874-5: Alex. Barrie, 1876-8; Theron
Buchanan, 1879-83 ; T.C. Douglas, 1884-6, 97-8; Jos. Wrigley, 1887-8;
M. Hallman, 1889, 1901; Gz=o. R. Barrie, 1892-4; Robt. Cranston,
1895-6; Jas. L. Robson, 1899-1900: Jno. A. McDonald, 1901-2; Jno.
Shiel, 1903-4: And. A. Dryden, 1905-6.

The fist manufacturing industry in the township was Shade’s grist mill.
AToag othsr pioneer industries ware a saw mill (running in 1817), whos= site
is now occupied by the Great Western Railway Bridge at Galt; the Dum-
frics mills, built in 1818; and a distillery, which began operations in 1820.

The population of the Towaship of Damfries in 1905 was 1,874, the
land assessed was 44,380 acres and the total assessmant $2,044,818. There
were 5,134 catile, 1,658 shaep, 4,312 hogs, 1,565 horses and 286 dogs.

Township Representatives and Officials

ETER F. SCHUMMER, St. Clements, was born in the City of Syra-

cuse. New York State, on March 19th, 1857. His parents died when

he was but two years old, and he was brought up by his grandparents,
residing with them until fourtecn years of age, when he was employed in the
store of his uncle in that city for a year. He subsequently learned the tin-
smithing trade, and later attended colleges at Buffalo, Baltimore and Berlin,
Ontario, at the age of twenty-two receiving the position of teacher ar the
Separate School, St. Clements, which he held for three years. He afterwards
opened up a tinsmith shop in the village and three years later entered into pant-
nership with Mr. A. Star,

e

Township of Wellesley and postmaster of St. Clements, both of which offices
he stilt holds. M. Schummer has also been the cfficient organist in the R. C.
Church, St. Clements, for 32 years.

ALTER J. SNIDER, cletk of the Township of Woolwich, was

born in Conestogo in 1869. He was cducated at the Conestogo

public schoo! and also attended the Berdin High School (now the

Berlin Collegiate Institute) in 1883 and 1884 and the British American Busi-
ness College in 1886, He

purchasing what was known
as the old McNab store.
In two ycars he bought out
his partner’s interest and
became the sole owner.
canying on a gencral store
business. Fourtcen ycars
ago he built the present store
and dwelling, and in addi-
tion to a general store busi-
ness also carnies on a tin-
smithing trade. In 1897
. Mr. Schummer reccived the

appointment of clerk of the

P. F. SCHUMMER
Glerk of Wellesley Tawnship

ADDISON SNYDER

Teeasuter of Woolnich Tonnship,

is a miller by occupation.
On May 30, 1905, he was
appointed clerk of Wool-
wich Township.

DDISON SNY-
DER, treasurer of
Woolwich Town-

ship, succeeded to this posi-
tion upon the death of his
father, thelate Jesse Snyder
in 1901,

WALTER J. SNIDER
Clerk of Woolwich Township
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in the Township of Markham, York County, Ontario, Dec. 27th

1833. He served the firat sixteen years of his life on a farm, after
which he was a carpenter for two years. In 1852 he was engaged in John
W. Eby's drug store in Betlin as clerk, but in the fall of the same year he
came to St. Jacobs and engaged as clerk in the gencral store of Geo. W.
Eby. In the fall of 1854 he became a member of the firm afterwards
known as Yost. Winkler & Wideman, general merchants, and which con-
tinued for several years. He collected the taxes of Woolwich Township for
three years in succession, from 1861 to 1863. In later years he carrfied on
a gencral mercantle business in St. Jacobs, and for about 18 years he had
the wholesale agency of the publishing house of the

J L. WIDEMAN, the veteran Clerk of Woolwich Township, was born
PN
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WEN REIST, V.S., of Kossutb. was born in Woolwich in 1866.

After passing through the public school of Kossuth he took his
second-class teacher's certificate at the Galt Collegiate in 1886,
afterward attending the Ontario Veterinary College, where he received the
degree of V.S. in 1888, and has successfully practised his profession ever
since. In 1892 he assumed his father's faum, later acquiring more farm prop-
erty, in all nearly 300 acres. M. Reist held the position of Sanitary Inspector
for Waterloo Township from 1891 to 1900, when he resigned to accept a
scat in the township council, being elected reeve in 1906, He was ap-
pointed a justice of the peace in 1902 and re-appointed in 1905. He has held
the office of school trustee and is recording steward for the Zion circuit of

the Methodist Church.

Evangelical Association, of Cleveland, Ohio, for Canada,
and supplicd the Canada Conference of that denomination
with books. He has a well stocked book and drug
store in St. Jacobs at present. In 1866 he was elected a
member of the Woolwich Township Council, and the
following year became deputy-reeve, holding that office
five years in succession, from 1867 to 1871, In 1873 he
was appointed clerk of the township. In 1865 he was
appointed postmaster at St. Jacobs, and holds the office
at present.  In 1867 he was appointed Clerk of the
Seventh Division Court in the County of \Waterloo,
and after holding the office for twenty-six ycars, he
resigned, W. H. Winkler being appointed his successor,
In 1871 hereceived a commussion for taking affidavits, etc.,
and in 1879 he was appointed a notary public. He is
also iustice of the teace and issuer of marriage licenses.
tn 1876, when the Crook’s Act came into force, he was
one of the first commissioners, and was chairman of the
license board of North Waterloo for ten years. He is
at present, and hasbeen for a number of years, a director
of the Waterloo Mutual Fire Insurance Co. In religion he is a member of the
Evangehcal Assccration, and in politics a life-long reformer. ~ After being clerk
of the Township of Woolwich for nearly 32 years, on account of his health failing
and old age. he resigned in 19C5, Walter J. Snider of Concstogo being
appointed his succescor.

ETER BERG. scn of Henry and Elizabeth Berg, was born at Philips-

burg Feb. Idth, 1860. He was brought up on the old homestead

and cducated at the Philipsburg common school.  The farm is situated

on Lot 18, scuthof Erb's Road, and was cleared in part by his grandfather,

who settled on the farm in 1837, Henry Berg, father of the present owner,

took possession on March 7th, 1848. Peter Berg subscquently secured

the farm on March 22nd, 1889, and engaged in mixed farming. He held

the position of scheol trustee from 1900 to 1904, and was clected a coun-
allor for Wilmot Township by acclamation 1905 to 1906.

JOSEFPH W RIGLEY was born at
Wrgley's Comers near Ayr on

Cut. Tth, 1849, He attended the
1 ubiic school and graduated from the
Canadian  Latcrary lnsttute, Wood-
steck, m 186K, and has since that
tme cngaged m the occupatien of
farmmg. He became a member of
the North Bumlrics Counal in 1880,
and occupied a seat at the council
board for nine years. e has held
the pesiion of reeve, deputy-recve and
warden, beng clected to the latter
poston in 1867, He wasappomted
clerk ard treasurer m 1889, and has
attended every meeting of the North
Pumlnes Courcl for twenty-seven
vears. Mr. Wngley has also been see-
retary-trcasurer of the Ayr Famers'
Mutual Fire lr surance Co. since 1893,

JOSLEM WRIGLEY

J. L. WIDEMAN
For 32 years Gletk of Woolwich Township

LEXANDER B. ROBERTSON was born in
Wellesley Township on the farm now owped
and occupied by him fifty-nine years ago. His

parents, who were natives of the Highlands of Perth-
shire, near Dunkeld, Scotland, were among the early
sattlers of the township coming to Canada in 1844, M.
Robertson was brought up on the farm, and received an
education in the public schools. On the death of his
father in 1868 he took possession of the farm and suc-
cessfully operated it until two years ago, when he retired
{rom the active duties of farming. 1ln 1892 Mr. Raobert-
son was clected to the township council, resigning in
1894 to accept the nomination of the Liberals of North
Waterloo to contest the scat in the legislature and was
clected by one of the largest majorities in the history of the
riding. Ile retired four years later after serving his con-
stituents with acceptance.  He was not long to be left in
retirement. being re-clected to the township council
some time after, and now holds the pesition of reeve.

OSEPH ABRA was born in Dumfries Township, near Reseville, in
1849, where he was broughtup. e moved on the farm he at present
owns and occupies in 1874, He was tax collector for the township from
1900 to 1905, and first clected to the councd of the township in 1906,

being elected by acclamation.

S.

since.

E.SHANTZ is a native of the County of Waterloo, where he was
cducated and has since been engaged in farming. He was elected
township cauncillor in 1901, which office he has held continually cver
Mr. Shantz was a member of the board of health of the township of

Waterloo for five vears.

RED. HOLWELL, the subject of this sketch, was born in Brantford

in 1845, and scttled in the Township of Wilmot in 1870. He was

appomnted township auditor i 1878, which office he held vntl 1883,
when he was clected reeve six con-
secutive years and warden of the
County of Waterloo in 1888. He
resigned his office as reeve near the
close of the year and was appointed
township clerk, and in 1900 was
appomted treasurer, both of which
offces he stll retams.  He s also sce-
ret.ry and treasurer of the Wilmrot
Agricultural Socicty, which office he
has held for the lasttwenty years. Mr.
Holwell was the unsuccessful cen-
servative candidate for the local Legi:-
lature n 1886. During his term in
the county council he took an active
interest as chaiman of the finance
and house of industry committec.
In addition 1o his municipal office,
Mr. Holwell is a conveyancer, etz,
and postmaster at the wllage «f

Baden.

FRED HOLWELL
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LBERT GIBBONS, Linwood, son of Anthony Gibbons, was born in
the Township of Wellesley in the year 1864, receiving his early edu-
cation at the Macton Separate School. Mr. Gibbons is a successful

farmer, his farm being situated about a mile and a half north of Linwood.
After filling the position of tax collector for the township from 1895 to 1905,
Mr. Gibbons was clected to step up higher by his constituency and became a
township councillor in 1906.

DAM HEIPEL, Wellesley, son of the late John Heipel, was bern in
Wilmot Township in 1857. At the age of 21 years he began
farming and a few years after purchased the farm which he still occu-

pies on Concession 3, Lot 10, Wellesley Township.
He was elected to the Wellesley Township Council

HE settlement of the north corner of Waterloo Township dates back
1826, the first settlers being Mathias Fehrenbach, Felix Scharbach, Chris-
tian Rich and Joseph Thoman, who came from Baden, Germany. They
first settled near Bloomingdale and a few years later bought the back lots of
the German Company, receiving kind help from their Mennonite brethren of
the German Company, for which they always felt grateful. Joseph Lauber,
Michael Mosack and Gotilieb Brohmann were the next settlers to arrive, fol-
lowed in 1831 by Andrew Weiler, Ignatz Weiler his father and Lucas Zettal.
The first Catholic service was held in 1832 in the house of Christian Rich,
conducted by a Guelph priest, and from 1834 Father Veriat visited the vicin-
ity frequently. The first resident priest, however, was Father Schneider in
1836. e built the first priest house and enlarged the log church. Next
came Father Sander in 1844, these missionarics visiting the missions between
Guelph and Goderich. In 1847 the Jesuit Fathers

Iucas, Coveng and Fritsch arrived and conducted a

in 1901, and has held the position continuously ever
since. He is a breeder of pure bred Clydesdale
horses and hackneys. He was married to Miss Elta

Roth in 1884.

on March 2, 1859, and received his educa-

tion at Union School No. Il in Oxford County.
He is engaged in farming on a large scale, beng
the owner of 350 acres situated on Lots 11 and 12,
First Concession, Block A, Wilmot. Mr. Otto wa:
clected a municipal counciller in 1900 and created «
Justice of the Peace in 1905.

JOHN T. OTTO was born near New Hamburg

HARLES STOESER was bem at Josephe-

burg in the year 1870, being a son of the fate

Joseph Stoeser, one of the carly pionears

He was brought up on lus father's farm, recciving

his cducation at the public schools. After a few

years spent at the carpenter trade Mr. Stoescr pur-

chased the fine farm near St. Agatha en which he

now resides.  Ile is now serving his second term as member of the Wilmot
Township Council.

P. DAMMEIER was born in the vear 1860 on Lot 6, Concession

A 14, castern scction of Wellesley Township, where he is still living.

His father was one of the pioncers coming from the vicinity of Hes-

peler and located on the farm now occupicd by his son in the eardy fortics,

hewing out a home for himself and fanmuly in what was then a vast wildemess.

Mr. Dammeier was first elected to the Townstap Council in 1904, and has
since discharged the dutics appertaining thereto very satisfactonly.

ST. BONIFAGL GHURGCH. Nu. otiid. 1

mission, in addition to Fathers F. Kobler, Holzer,
Sattler and Ritter, Father Hclzer building the first
stone church in 1848. When the Jesutt Fathers
moved to Guelph in 1850, Father Baumgartner took
charge of the mission. The Resurrectionist Fathers
Revs. Glovalski, Breitkopf and L. Elena, L.L.D.,
attended the mission from 1860 to 1873. The
priest’s house was built in 1873 and a new church
erected by Rev. Clem. Nieman in 1878, Rev. S.
Forster being the present incumbent. The new
schoolhouse was built in 1898 and in 1904 a winter
chapel and sisters” house were erected, all substant’al
buildings.

N event worthy of note in the life of Benjamin
Hamilton, Winterbourne, occurred when he
was two years old, the lad becoming lost in

the woods in the fall of the year. A scarch party of
one hundred, after an almost fruitless scarch of two
days, located him but life was almost extinct. It was
supposed that wolves had devoured Lim.

HAT portion of the Township of Woolwich just south of Winterbourne

was first settled by Thomas Smith (Captain Smith), Elisha Hewitt, Lumon

Woodward, B. B. Bemis (father of the late B. Bemis of Bloomingdale)
and Zephenia Saxton. The first three named resided on the west side of the
road leading south from Winterbourne and the latter two on the east side.  The
land which now constitutes the Proudfoot farm was first cleared by the late
Lumon Woodward, father of Geo. W. Woodward, excise officer. Waterloo,
the acre of land comprising the old cemetery being given by the late Lumon
Woodward for the purpose. These carly pioneers were obliged to carry
their produce to Dundas for marketing, which must have been a trying experi-
ence considering the state of the roads or rather want of roads at that time.

BIRDS.EYE VIEW OF WATERLOO.
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FROM THE FIRST SETTLEMENT
TO THE PRESENT TIME.

(Gompiled from Records and Recollections of Old Settlers.)

O the vounger generation now resident in
the Town of Waterloo, living among daily
scenes of commercial activity, social pnvileges
and in the enjovment of present day progress,
some stretch of imagination is
necessary to draw a mind pic-
ture of the town site as it was
when Abraham Erb first be-
held its solitude and desolation
in the vear 1806.

Where the wheels of com-
merce now turn in their un-
remitting round, where broad
ard well kept streets are flanked by busy mercantile
establishments. where the stately residence and the
attisan’s cottage with their bloomng gardens and grassy
Jawns are bnght evidences of peace, prospenty and plenty, was
then a dreary waste of cedar swamp, umnviting in appearance,
Dficult of access and of doubtful wtlity.  Does the mind of the present
generation 1cahre the change that

5
WATLRLUD 'K 1854 "

According to Ezra Eby's biographical history of the County of Waterloo,
published in 1895, Abraham Erb was the first settler on the land where the
town now stands to perpetuate his memory. Contrary to the wish of his
brother John, who deemed the locality worthless, he located there in 1806.
He was one of a numerous company who came from Franklin County,
Pennsylvania, led by the inducements of a German Syndicate formed in that
state, who had secured a sound title to 6,000 acres of land for $4,000.
Previous to this time considerable difficuly had been experienced in attracting
settlers, owing to doubts entertained respecting the validity and security of the
land titles held by Richard Beasley who had clhimed to have purchased
the property from the Indians with whom the eatlicr scttlers had to deal.

Abraham Erb became the possessor of nine hundred acres of land and
was followed into the cedar swamp by a cumber of people from the state of
Pennsylvania.  The majority of these carly scttlers were of German origin,
forced te seck a refuge in the British-American colories from the persecution
they were subjected to in consequence of their religious scruples in the matter
of military service and judicial oaths. Emigrating from the fatherland, and
severing ties that birth, custom and tradition had made dear, they settled in
the ncighborhood of Germantown, Pennsylvaria, where they remained in

peace and comparative happiness un-

has taken {1nv?  Can ot grasp and
aral.ze the urdertaking which con-
froated this ~ettler who first wielded
the ane m the secluson of that
tan 2-d Caradiin jungle. whete the
sored of e <rokes anoke echoes
that were new and foraen  a
strange seund to the wild detzens
that had hitherto roamed at will and
without molestation.

From the small cleanng made
with the first strokes of Abraham
Erbs ave, a lde

where the Union Mills now stand,

southeast  of

has been evolved the present town,
which 1s resdents are proud to call
thew home.  This aradual process

of development has consumed one

tl the outbreak of hostilitics between
England and her American colonies.
Opposed to war and inclined to look
with disfavor upon the cause of the
revolutionists, complications arose that
were antagonigtic to their faith, and
rather than endure the inconvenient
result that was likely to follow, they
emulated the example of the United
Empire Loyalists, came to Canuda
and settled in Waterloo.

With few exceptions, these people
were adherents of the Mennonite
faith. They were men whose piety
was exemplified in their daily lives,
but they were accustomed to battle
with difficulties and overcome ob-
stacles. and as such were well adapt-

hundred vears m its accomphshment

Step by step it has advanced, and

like the growing »f a tree hardly perceptible. It s the result of work com-
meaced by hardy proneers, making for themsehes a home m the wildemess.
An they succeeded. others, attracted by the beacon of success. followed their
wake.  Thusthe httle settlement grew and prospered.  Each suceceding year
brought 1ts falures, s trals and 1ts tnumphs, but perseverar ce and pluck pre-
valed.  The pioncers of one hundred vears ago were largely dependent on
phvsical energy and muscular force, and to the unstinted  excraise of these
hardy virtues i the untiatory steps of settlement 1s due the prosperity of what
1< now one of the mast thaving towns 1w the Dommon,

Just how the name, Waterloo. was chosen 1s not quite clear, but old
<ctilers mform the wnter that 2t came to be an acce, ‘ed name among the carly
recedents from the fact that most of them had come from the neighborhood of
the Waterloo of the Fatherland. 1t was a name dear to memory and carly
associations. and thus became the name of their new home m an alien land.
The name b-came hnown to others of similar natonality sccking new homes
ard was a -widing star to those sccking the companionship of compainots.

GARNEGIE LIBRARY WATLRLOO

ed to the pioneer life of Canada.
They were men of sterling character,
atrong purpose and wide mtelhgence, and entered heartily and sturdily into the
ngorous conditions of thewr new hfe. Ta their energy. enterprise and patient
tol belongs much of the credit for the important and in-
fluential position the town and neighborhood row
holds among the important and successful
communities of Canada.

The
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hardships which these people endured dunng the carly years of settlement were
many and extreme, such as now would be deemed of an mpossible nature,
Their food was the product of the land they tilled,
supplemented by wild game and fish with which the
woods and strecams abounded.  The nearest gnst n.ill
was at Dundas, thirty-five miles distant, and thither the
settler took his grist to mill, travelling by a path through
the forest and carrying his gramn and flour on horseback.

In 1816 Abraham Erb erected a saw mill and
shertly afterward a grist mill propelled by water with
the old-fashioned overshot wheel.  These mills were
of inestimable benefit to the young :etlement, reliev-
ing many a weary journcy and vroviding advantages
that were then considered almost luxuries.  The advent
of these mills brought the scttlement into more pro-
minent notice and other enterpnses sought entry, but
Mr. Erb was reluctant to sell lus property mn small lots,
and rapid scttlement was consequently retarded.

Not long afterward, however, Jacob C. Snider,
who had moved {rom Pennsylvama to a location a
little west of the present town site, purchased the Eib
property and continued the operation of the mills.
M. Snider had quite a large family and was anxious
to preserve the fand as an inheritance for his childien,
refusing repeated offers for small lots, This action excluded many contem-
plating settlers and checked advancement until the early fifties, when another
change took place which gave Watetloo the impetus that led 1o its present
cordition.

Owing to low water at certain seasons of the year Mr. Snidcr experienced
some difficulty in sccuring sufficient power to operate his mills. One day a
man named Shoemaker, who had a mill at Bndgeport and plenty of power,
visited the Snider mill which was grinding very slowly.  He made some rather
sarcastic remarks and treated the slow movement with considerable levity.
This roused Mr. Snider to greater actwity and he installed steam which he
tried to work in conjunction with the water power.  This was a falure, how-
ever. there was then too much power and the two would not work together.
Mr. Snider then introduced a still to use the surplus energy, which, besides
surmounting the difficulty, was a source of additional revenue.  Not long after
this Mr. Snider’s son Elias rented the mill from his father on condition that the
still would be removed as he had some scruples agamst the manufacture of its
product.  The still was accordingly removed to Mr. Smder’s farm, and Elias
operated the mille,

In the year 1854 Mr. Elias Snider disposed of most of the land to John
Hoffman and Isaac Weber for $32.000.  These gentlemen inaugurated a new
and progressive policy, and from that time Waterloo commenced to grow. The
propetty was surveyed, staked off into lots and put on the market.  The owners
did not, however, wait for the tardy scttler to come.  They cmployed an
auctioneer and made known the intention of disposing of the lots by auction at

A B. McBRIDE, Town Glerk.
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a certain date.  Many buyers came, many lots were sold and rapid settlement
followed. The method by which this sale was conducted is unique. A large
wagon, drawn by an ox tcam, was loaded with refreshments, liquid and solid.
On this the auctioncer took his stand and moved from lot to lot, while the
people helped themselves to whatever refreshment their palate fancied.

Alter this emigrants from Germany came in large numbers, attracted by
the name Waterloo, and the fact that it was one of the few places in Canada
where their language was spoken and their national customs observed. This
ned essitated manufacturing and trading establishments where people could
transact business with those of their own nationality. These were introduced
as the demand warranted, and thus the structure of Waterloo's present pros-
perity continued to advance, cemented by a bond of national and fraternal
fecling that was in many instances stronger than commercial instincts.

The first retail store +as opened by John Hamilton, who kept a varied
stock of the staple articles in demand. It was in a small building among the
trees, where the Lutheran church now stands. The next to open a similar
establishment was Daniel Snider, and after this others [ollowed as the pop.ula-
tion mereased.  The people who patronized the stores in those days, however,
had httle money to spend. Business was principally transacted by a barter of
commodties such as butter, eggs, meat, hides, furs, grain or such other articles
as the merchant could dispose of at Dundas or Little York (Toronto) where
he purchased his goods. What does the thrifty farmer’s wife of to-day think
of selling butter at five and six cents a pound, eggs at the same rate per dozen,
and receiving goods at a high price in payment? That was the condition in
those days, and the people were happy and contented.

The first hotel, or tavern as it was called in those
days, was opened in 1840 by Henry Bowman, in a
substantial brick building, which was burned ten years
later.

The exact date when the first post office was
established has not been leorned, but the first post-
master was Daniel Snider and the mails were trans-
mitted once a week by way of Dundas.

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT.

The erection of a saw and grist mill by Abraham
Erb in 1816 marked the beginning of Waterloo’s in-
dustrial history, but at that time no thought was enter-
tained bevond manufactuting for the local demand.
Fowever, it was not untdl the fifties that the spinit of
manufacturing enterprise began to assert itself and lay
the foundation for the progressive industrial era which
followed. In 1851 Jacob Bricker, imbued with the
enthusiasm of enterprise conceived in the observation
of the growing needs of the scttlement, established a
foundry and machine shop for the manufacture of such
agricultural implements and machinery then in demand. The building was
erccted in the midst of the swamp where the subsoil was deep and of a yield-

- WATERLCO FIRE HALL.
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g nature, and to obtam a sausfactory foundation eleven feet of excavation
was necessary.  The busmess of this establishment grew to considerabls pro-
portions and the output extended untl the products included plows. harrows,
horsepowers, threshing machines, boilers, engwes and vanous other articles then
m demand, upwards of thinty-five workmen being emploved.  This was before
the days of trade umons and labor troubles, and the average wages pad varied
from $1.25 to $1.50 per day. M. Brcker conducted the business for thinty-

three veas, and then transferred it to lis sons. It was continued for some

Resdence of Ger Moae Union St

rears lmdf‘l’ dlﬁ(‘f(‘nl management, :\ﬂd was
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that the establishment was absorbed by the present Waterloo Manufacturing Co.

Along in the sixties a woo'en mill was started on a small scale, but even-
tually giew to large proportions and paid gind dividends to its stockholders.
Cail days overtook the concern, however, when an amalgamation was made
with the Canada Woolen Mills Co., business decreased and was finally dis-
continued, and its memory is recorded as one of the few failures that have
o.curred in Waterloo.

As the years rolled on the marzh of industrial progress kept pace.  M-=n

Residence of 1 E Seagram, M P . Witlow St

eventually abnorhed in the mauguration of larger
concetns.

In 1855 Hoflman & Weber, who had
previowsh jaurchased o laree tract of the Smder
property, paut ujp what was then consudered a
large <tecamt <aw mill with a capaaty of 13.000
fect per day  Neatly the whole of  this cutpan
wac conumed by the local demarad, veny bule
bemg Japped 10 outade pomts owang o the
abeen cof tranportation fachities

e manufacture of fumitare, b wheh
Waterher has now became fimous, was -
avgutated by Mathias Wegenast, whe opened
what wasthen called o cabnet factory, produe-

Resgerre o N S Matlman AT A F A S, Aten

endowed with shrewd business capabilities and
afted with prophetic vision invested their capital
11 the establishment of such industrics as com-
manded a ready market. and thus from an
obscure rursl hamlet the place has grown to the
dignty of a manufacturing centre. On May 3rd.
1877. an agreement was entered into between
the municipality of Waterloo and the Grand
Trunk Railway Co. wherehy the corporation
agreed to buy the right of wa, from Betlin to
\Waterlon, purchase a «te for station grounds and
pav the G. T R.$10,000 i cash. in consider-
ation of which the sud Company would extend
their ke 0 Waterlon,  This matked the advent
»f the railwayv and 1t gave new unpetus, stimu-
Iited enterprice and opeaed the doors of a wider

Wegrwd dil a aoad rade, bt exprnieneed a number of ieverses through
tire, from which his cdablshmrnt saffered «veral tmes The busmess was
extended and exlarged at vanous tmes and was the nucleus of the preseat
¢ anada Fumiture Manufacturers” plant.

A v ond foundry and mackime sthep was statied by Bueller X Snder,
whe, alter condu-tme it b a short ume, <ol € M ] Nommgstan, whe i
tum digured of the bueness to Abs, Memer, and w wa - duting hi management

Hiseder e of 1 M Sevder Aty 3¢

ficdd of dstebuton .\ Jhiezal poliy a the ensuagement of manufacturers

was maugwrated 1. the mumapal autbenties and supported by the people
Loxal capital was supplemented by outsde wealth, industnies multiplied, and
row 1 every endhized country of the globe 1 found the product of Watcrloo
factones.

As a manufacturmg town Waterloo s well stuated, located as it is in the
ceatte of Western Oatarro, and in (s h=art of thr fined ageicaltural district of
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the province. The shipping and railway fadlties are admirable over the two
geeat trunk line systems of Canada, the Grand Trunk and Canadian Pacific,
with convenient eledtric transportation to many poats. O the many mdustnes
now located here, thriving mereantile establishments and proaunent residents
more minute details are given further on in these pages.

Looking into the future only the rosy has of bright prospects s vsible.
Tue rapid development of the great Dominion, the thousands of new residents

who are powing in and distrbuting themsehes over the vast expanse of tern-

>

Resdence of Geo Randa'l, King St

tory <1 factors that are creating a demnand for all
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composing the first counail  reeve, Moses Springer, councillors, Daniel Snider
Hartmann Schnarr, John Foffman and  Jacob Teuscher, with W. Roberts as
cerk.  The machinery of self government was set in motion and evidently per-
formed satisfactory service, as the follow.ng year found the same council returned
by acclamation.  For five successive years Mr. Springer accupied the first magis-
terial chair.  In 1862 Daniel Smder was accorded the honor for one year, and
was [ollowed by John Moffman who retained the position until 1867, when
Moses Springer was again elected, holding the office until 1870. In that year

Res zence of Mayor E. F Scagram. King St

George Raudall v 1< elect=d and continued in

commoditics. The age of electuety, vet in ats
infancy, and the imventive faculty of fertile brains
are d «eloping facihtics and cheapenmg produc-
tion to such an estent that manulactunmg 1
rendered casy in comparison with a few vears
ago.  Millions of dullarsthreughout the countny
are anaiting profitable mestment i legtimate
manufacturing concerns, ard 1« the dimand La
goods mcreases so s the supphy pro fuced bt
mestment of capital, the «r-ction of tacton <,
mstallatinn of plant and  dindhues of ca o 1.

proper markets.  In this dev-lopment of Lagin

the office untl 187% Then Moses Springer
was agam chesen and held the resveship until
the village became a town m 1876, During
the evolution from village to town four clerks
held office.  Mr. Robents was i office only
ate year, S.S. Bowers followed for taree years
and J. . Bowman for seven years.  F. Colqu-
houn was then appointed and remamed in office
untd aft-r the mcorporation as a town.

Oa imcorporation as a lown the ward svs-
tem w as adopted and the first town council was
composed of the follewing : mavor, Moses

progiects Waterdon . well adapted 1 part;
pate  The energyand cntiryrse whihin tle

past has prompted s prople to grasp the golden

L PELEE
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Residence of Wam Carthew, King St

opporturitics is sull a ruling characteristic, and in the years to come the place is
inevitably desimed to become a manufacturing metropolis of vast proportions.

MUNICIPAL HISTORY IN BRIEF.
The municipal history of the town of Waterloo dates from the year when

R 2 village claster was obtained, and onthe Ist of January, 1857, the place
B asumed the dignity of an incorporated village with the following gentlemen

Sprnger . counall < Nenth Ward, John Kil
ler. G. Hamhecker and Jaoh Brcker: East
W.d, Jlin Shul. George M-ore and Simon

Residenee of Andrew Werdenhammer, Kungg St

Snyder. South Ward, Walter Wells, Abs, Memer and Davd Kuntz;: West
Ward, Wm. Snider, J. Kalbflesch and J. B. Hughes.  In 1887 the popula-
tion had so increased that a deputy reeve was added 1o the personzll of the
council. 1a 1899 the new Municipal At reduced the representation to a
mayor and six councillors. From the datc of town mzotporation uztil the presemt

the mayors and thar terms of office have been as follows. Moses Springer,
1876.7. Geo. Randall. 1878, Chna. Kump{, 1879.80. §8.9 . Benjamin
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Devitt. 1831-3; Geo. Moore, 1884.90; Wun. Snider, 1885.0, 91-2:
Jacob Conrad, 1887: Walter Wells, 1893; R. Y. Fish, 1894; Simon
Sayder, 1895-7; J. B. Hughes, 1898 : Geo. Dicbel, 1899-1900; David
Bean, 1901-83 and Jacob Utfelmann, 1904.05. Dunng this time only one
change has occurred in the town clerkship. At the time of incorporation F.
Colquhoun was the incumbent of the office which he held unti} the close of
1897 when the present clerk, A, B. McBride, was appointed. The council
and municipal officers for thicycar (1906) are; Mayor, E. . Scagram : coun-
allors, Levi Graybill, J. Chatles Mucller, Andren Weidenhammer, George
Suggt, Levi Stauffer and David C. Kuatz ; clerk, AL B, McBride : treasurer,

Re sdence of S, B. Buadker. hing D

R i “'v_r 1
4:‘ é v,,b.

Resrenie ¢

Lobe 2

Hesder w of L 1 11 et

Ford & Kumpl, medual Ledtafi oo 11! Nanatawe, chaef of grlice
and sntenvmgeeter, S Thon et Dt Jopaime, RY Swan
Jutater the wmonggenton.s s fae Tood CoSuder doncted the Tt
m feoet of where the pabd vy s tad for the site of a munn pal buld-
g o whrh a wrall st e wae s nei Fulebisened aca tnn hall and
firee Bl Tlas budding o4 !

Sanat! s R wl fiee U, “\l-"!!ﬂg was
ereded n 1803 ata o

S TIRTATE

Anang the frtimpatat b b pesd Bothe wdoe cnan il was one
v estad i Mozt Hepe cone o, whihios eard At ol asent on the
19th of Jravare, 18670 Numjesiud crai Ve towa’e progts . wasmarked
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by the opening of the Grand Trunk Railway, the branch having its terminus
here for some years until extended to Elmira in 1889. The termmal point
was located where the present station now stands and strong opposition yas
made to the rails crossing King steeet. W, Snider of the Union Mills was
very anxious to run a switch to lns mill but met with determined opposition
among cven his best (riends.  The contention was that the line crossing King
street would be a menace to pubhic safety and dark pictures were drawn of slaugh-
tered and maimed people if such a step were allowed. M. Snider’s persistency
and perauasive powers, ho vever, eventually prevailed and the switch was laid
on the proviso that the cars shou'd be mased by horses and the engine not

Hewdeace of G W Schiedel, Albeat St

Readence of W. A, Greere. George St.

Allownd 0 cross the street. But when the atzens saw the difficulty that wo
expenienced i movag loaded cars by horas power, they vwere moved gt
the ammals and eonsented 1o the cossng of the won horse. This was a gon
many years ago and the prophetic visions of slaughter and bloodshed have -
far faded to mate nalze.

The opemng f the dreet talway between Watetloa and Berdin w1852
was another pronument milestone i the onward march.  The onginal chait »

for the constructon and oprration of the raad was obtaned by W, Smdi.. -

] B. Smder, Smen Savder and D. L. Bowman. Thesc gentlemen, hower .
3id not procend w i th= construction but disposed of the charter and franckh -
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to an Amencan orgamzation who went en with the work and alterwards sold
their mterests to a Canadian company m which local capitabsts were prominent
members.  In 1889 the road was opened for traffic wnd tun as a horse car
Ime until 1894 when the system was chansed o electre v and an mproved
service gnen. In 1903 the connecting fink was made with the Galt and
Preston clectne railway, and at the present time a contivuous trolley service is
azatlable as fursouth as Brantford,  Other branches are bemg projpeeted through
the county avd connections will soon be made with projected haes that will
provide electnd transportation 1o Guelph, Hant'ton, Toronto, Nireara Falls,
Fulfalo and all unportant pomts m Westenn Ontano.

Kesden e I H B Duecnng King St

Riv i
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Revdencr of lobn Fuscher. Queen St

Well hept gravel and macadam readware, mles of gasohthie walks and
geod srwers dennte a wise admimtiation and a progressrie poliev that has
gnen Watrtion the name of a wellkept and wellgoverned *own.  The con-
stsction of coment walks was commenced m 1893 on the locdl imprenement
plan by which the cost 15 assessed 1o the property covermg a petid of twenty
veare  Tounk sewers ate constructed from the public funds and connections
made bn the pioperty owners.

MUNICIPAL STATISTICS.

The population of Watciloo 1s shghtly over 4,000, and w compan-

son with many Canadian towns the rate of taxation is very favorable. Last
year it was 19 mills, of which the schoo! rate was 5 mills. The estimated
true value of taxable property within the municipal limits was $2,350,000, on
which the assessable value {or taxation was $1,859,236. The net debenture
debt was $165.711 05 and flosting debt nl, with property owned by the
municipality valued at $150,000.

BOARD OF TRADE.

1. an actve, ageresave and harmoni cus working Board of Trade the
Towr of Waterloo 1s indebted for a large share of its present prosperity.  The

¥
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Resdence of Lew Staufer, George St

firat orgamization was efferted s V1 b, TRON, threugh the active efforts of Julius
H. Roos wha circulated a +titin urans the then mayor. George Moore. to
call a mecting of the ctizens whah was very largely attended and resulted in
the wauguration of the Board wath the following officers: presdent. Christian
Kumpl: vice-president, Wm. Stader ;. seeretany treasurer, J. 1. Roos: coundl,
R. Y. Fih, Geo. Mucre. PoH Sime, Simon Savder, W, H. Riddell, H. J.
Grassett, Gee. Wegenadt, Iohn Shuh, 1. E. Bowman. A, G. Habbick, Rich.
Roschman, and J. M. Scully.

Argresave wark was commenced a1 once and commercial aclivity was
given new mpetus. Promment among the beneliaal results of the Bozrd's
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labors were the securing for the town of the Schaeler-Killer fumiture factory. the
rebuilding of the factory of the Canada Furniture Manufacturers, the Woeller,
Boldue & Co. fumiture factory, the W. A. Greene collar and cuff factory, the
Valentine & Fischer shoe factory and the Schierholtz-Zinkann Co.. Limited,
furniture and upho'sterng factory  One of the mostimportant moves, however,
was the successtul 1ssue of the effort to secure connection with the Galt and
Preston electri. rahway, which was accomplished a litle over a year ago aud

SEMI-CENTENNIAL NUMBER.

put forward, and the grovnds upon which such a building is asked for can
hardly be ignored by the Dominion authorities. There are nine inland revenue
officers and according to the inland revenue returns for the year ending June
30th, 1905, the amount collected in Waterloo was $474,1-47. 73, being
$299.198.40 more than the combined returns of all the other offices in the
district, mcluding the head office at Guelph.  The district comprises seven stations
with revenue collections as follows as shown by the last published blue book:

Hewvaene of I Siub Ris .

with tcadvent a U PR vomnection ot Galt vowred To merchante sanu-
facterers and avne uhtunads e has been et aduantare, g a2t does tn
the town shapo mg Lachties that are upsurjoseed The \1avara pawet question
has also engaged « large amount of attenten e ne monbers ol the Dol
Another quetion, and a venv aapwartwt onr, tha! ¢« now beng o a
good deal of atertion by the Brand, 1 a movement to secure the crection of a

government bulding i Watrtloo  In- suppont of tas strong claims are being

Resdence »f Jobu Hdtaer, Young 3t

Resdem e ol Thus  Hiliard, Witlam St

Watetloo - - - - $37-L147 75
Pedin - - - - - - STVOE § W
Guelph . - - - - 63190390
Galt . - - - - R 10,384 82
Preston . . - . - 7.14253
New Hambug - - - . 3,539.50
Salem - . - - . - 50.00
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Watetloo receipts are derived from the f{ollowing sources: (1) licences,
$575.00; (2) spirits, $425,101.43; (3) malt, $34.144.23; (4) tobacco,
$1.819.10; (5) cigars, $0.420.00; (6) clectric light inspection fees. $25.00;
other receipts, $6,062.99,

The Watetloo postal revenue according to last returns was $7,890.19,
and the customs receipts, $60,666.00, which, added to the nland revenue
veceipts, makes the total amount of government revenue collected in Waterloo

$542,703.94.

Residence of Dr,

Resdence of £, Ho Gond  Albert St

Resrlepce of W. H. Riuddell, King 3t

“The officers and council of the Poard for the present year are: President.
J. M. Muir: vice-president, W'. G. Weichel; sccretary-treasurer. E. P. Flin-
toft: council, J. B. Hughes. J. I. Roos. L. Shuh, J. B. Fischer, Dr. J. H.
Webb, W. H. Riddell, Dr. W, L. Hilhard, R. Roschman. C. WV, Schiedel.
1 Ufflmann, S. B. Brcker. B. E. Pechte!, Geo. Moore, Frank Haight and
F. S. Kumpf.

The membership of the Board has shown a steady increase frem year to

year since its organization and now stands at 142, with a membership fee
of one dallar.

MUNICIPAL. OWNERSHIP.

A number of yecars ago Waterloo showed its faith in the idea of
municipal ownership of public utliies by installing its own waterworks
plant. In 1889 the maius of the Berin system were extended to Water-
loo for fire protection purposes and “when the franchise of the Waterloo

C. T. Noccker. Albert St.

Remdence of Geo W Woodward, Caroline St

Resdence Geo. Wegenast, King St.

Waterworks Company cxpired ten years later the sum of $40,000 was voted
for the purchase of the mains and the installation of a complete watenworks
plant. Three artesian wells were sunk with a combined daily flow of 750,000
impcnal gallons, the water as shown by official tests being of the purest and
most wholesome character for domestic purposes. A\ pump house was crected,
two cighty horsc power boilers and a Northey duplex pump of 1.500.000
gallons capacity installed and a steel standpipe with a basc «f cighty fect above
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and for fire purposes this pressure can be raiced as high as 145 pounds if
necessary by pumping direct.  The rates to consumers are very reasonable
and for domestic use 30 cents a thousand gallons with a discount of 25 per

the level of the pumping station, 20 fect in” diameter and 115 fect in height,
with a capacity of 225,009 imperial gillons, was crected.  Since 1899 addi-
tional sums aggregating $30,000 ha.e been votea for the extension of the

;
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Residential Strect  Allen Street

Residence of Chas  Kicutzpsr, Lrb St
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Resddential Street Albert Street
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municipal ownership is largely due to continuity of management and there being
practically no change m this respect since the mauguration of the system.  Th-
first commusston was composedd of David Bean (chawman), Aloyes Bauer, John
Ritzer and Mayor Dicbel. In 1901 Dawd Bean was elected mayor and
retired from the chairmanship, his place being taken by George Diebel, since
which time the three gentlemen, George Dicbel, Aloyes Baver and John Ritzer,
have been given their seats on the board from year to year by acclamation.
J. M. Scully, F.C.A., was appointed secretary-treasurer of the commission

SEMI-GENTENNIAL NUMBER.

e, Rates have been fixed at $1.50 a thousand for illuminating and fuel pur-
poses, which seems to produce cnough revenue to meet the cost of maintenance
and matured debentures and interest.  The gas is of an excellent quality and
very satisfactory to consumers, The works are under the control of a light
commission composed of the same gentlemen as the water commission.

THE WATERLOO PARK.

One of Waterleo's beauty spots is Westside Park, a pretty tract of land

THE WILLOWS Adioining Silver Lake.

WATERLOOQ PARK Silver Lake and Town in the Distance.

about two years ago.  R. O. Dobbin has been the engineer m charge since

PR ——
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the installation of the plant.

Of the success of the mumapal management of the gas plant litdle can be
sud at preseut. In 1904 a by-law was passed authonzing the issue of $20,000
debentures for the purchase and improvement of the plant, but it was only at
the commencement of the present year that the deal was finally completed and
the warks tronsferted to the town.  Consderable improvement is under wav
and contemplated. but some ume must clapse before tangible results will be appar-

of sixty-five acres adjommg the town.  Time was, and not so very long ago
cither, when the only available recreation grounds were the road sides, vacant
lots and the old far grou.d. Advancement in business enterprises, increasing
poputation and the consequent influence towards outdoor recreation led to the
agitation for more suitable and convenicat “breathing places.™  The realization
of this movement was accomplished in 1890 by the popular vote of the
citizens, the adoption of the provisions of the “Public Parks Act™ and the pur-
chase of the property from the Jacob Eby cstate.  The location is particularly
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suted for the purpose. A beautiful strip of woodland surmounts a gentle slope
and at the rear and one side 1s a body of water called Silver Lake. Anexten-
sive campus for athletic sports circled by a substantial quanter mile bicycle track
was laid out, shade trees were planted, a commodious pavilion and grand stand
erected and boat house provided. Generous municipal support and private
subscriptions have been contributed to the maintenance, and cach year wit-
nesses some improvement. Waterloo has reason to be proud of its park and
in the knowledge that in this respect it is far in advance of many larger Cana-

SEMI-CENTENNIAL NUMBER.
Charles Moogk, P. H. Sims, Harry Nafe, L. Graybill and C. M. Taylor.

The services of Mr. Noah Zeller were sccured as instructor, and the
band made good progress under his dircction. He remained its leader for
cighteen years. Other leaders who served for short periods were: A. W.
Stares, W. H. Walker and H. Restorfl.  Mr. Restorif was succeeded by W.
Philp, the present leader, who has been the successful conductor for nearly
three years. The band owes its present splendid efficiency to Mr. Philp’s
capable and conscientious work, as well as to the loyalty of the members to

WATERLOO PARK ENTRANGE.

dian towns and aties. A by.law to raise $3,000 for park purposes has
recently been passed, which will be utihzed in making necessary improvements
which will furher enhance the beauty of Waterloo's fine partk.  The entrance
to the park is by the Victoma Jubilee Gateway, a substantial and artistic struc-
ture of sohid piers connected with won gates of beautiful design surmounted by
an ‘arch beautifully dluminated at mght with clectnie hghts. The cost of the
gateway, m the neighborhood of $1,200, was contributed by a voluntary sub-
scription of the ciizens.  The control and management 1s this year in the hands
of the followmg board . Wm. Smder, charman; Chas. Moogk, W. -. Riddell,
J. B Snder, Ford S Kumpf, Fred G. FHughes and the Mayor.

WATERLOO MUSICAL
SOCIETY.
One of the natural charactensties
of the German peojle s their love for

Among the
residents of Waterdoo, who are largely

and proficiency i music.

the offspring of German ancesry, ths
trait has been kept alve nnt onlv n
traditon but i <pint and practical
demonytration.  The band of the
Watetloo Muswal Society 1s one that
ranks prominently with the best musrcal
organizations of the country, and 1< the
cnvy of many a more pretentious and
populous town, a postion that has been
attained  under expert cnticsm and
exacting competition with other bands.

It was on January 27th, 1842, that the Waterloo Musical Society was
organzed  Leadimp atwens wdentificd themselves with the movement with
wmoral cupport and financial ool aed o the beragn runshine of such wiluence
he ety has continued to unocasns v $ msh up to the present day.

The fiest officers were s Proudent, Benjamn Devitt ; vice-president, Wi,
Roas, secretary, John Killer: treaws -+ 7 -on Snyder ; managing committee,

WATERLOO MUSICAL SOCIETY'S BAND.

their respected and talented leader.  Since its inception the career of the
Waterloo Musical Society's Band has been one of signal and continued success.
In many of the leading band competitions of the country it has been a most
successful competitor.  Probably no higher tribute could be paid to its effi-
ciency than the fact that it has been baned from participating in a number of
competitions between first-class bands.  Its reputation is by no means
local, as visits have been made several tunes to Buffalo, N. Y., Cleve-
land, O.. Dectroit, Bay City, Lansing and Ann Arbor, Mich., Eric, Penn.
and other American cities, while Toronto, Hamilton,”London, Guelph, Sarnia
and other Canadian towns have ecnjoved the pleasure of its presence.

The Waterloo Musical Society is
a purely amateur organization, and as
such its success is all the more gratify-
ing. To_the diligence and paticnce
of its members in practice and thex
unsclfish devotion is largely due its
prospenity and enviable carcer. The
opea air concerts given during the sum-
mer months never fail to attract a large
local audience, but invanably brng a
vonsiderable quota from the sunound-
aig localitics.  Naturally the citizens of
Waterloo feel proud of theirband and
not without reason.

The present officers and members
are: Honorary presidents, Mayor £
F. Scagram and F. C. “lughcs, D. D
S.: president, Henry Kress: 1t viee-
president, Charles Treusch: 2nd vice-president. John L-tter: recording secee-
tary, E. M. Devitt; corresponding secretarv. A\ Weidenhammer; treasurer.
Juhus 1. Roos: stock committce, B. Sylvester and Herbert Philp; librarian.
R. Kischel; auditors, E. Haedke aud Chas -\ Hachnel: executive committee
E. Haedke, Henry Schaefer, Wm. Bohlender, P. . Roos, Herbert Smitl
C. W, Wells, A, Ullckmann, Ford S. Kumpf; utizens committee, Edgar
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Fischer, John Ritzer, Roy Bean and Geo. Dodds; recruiting and entertain-
ment committee, P. IF. Roos (chawman), F. Heambecker, Emil Engel, F.
Boffinger, Alex. Bowman; tmekeeper and paymaster, A. Uffelmann; W,
Philp, conductor; C. Kalbflesch, Bb clarinet: Geo. Schmidt, Bb clarinet ;
"C. Frederich, Bb clarmet; Jacob Huegln, Eb clarinet; Geo. Ziegler,
piccolo and flute; Ferd. Fucgln, oboe; A. Uffelmann, Bb clarinet; A.
Engel, Bb clannet; H. Treusch, Bb clarnet; . Kreutzweiser, Bb clan-
net; H. Ziegler, alto clarinet; F. FHembecker, bass clarinet; Herb. Smith,

THE CHRONICLE-TELEGRAPH
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THE PUBLIC LIBRARY.

Waterloo's public library is an institution in which the residents take con-
siderable pride. Its history commenced in November, 1875, when a mecting
was held in the market house to organize a mechanics’ institute.  The project
was carried out and a library established. In 1887 there was a demand on
the pait of the public for better reading acconmodation, and the institute was
converted into a free library which served the purposes of the people for a
number of years. In 1900 and 1901 th~ Education Department threatened

45

George Sugant

Lewi Stauffer J. G Mueller.

F F Scagram. Mayor.

Levi Graybill.

A. Weidenhammer. David Kuntz.

WATERLOO TOWN COUNGIL 1906.

Bb cornet; Spurgeon Sheppard, Bb cornet, John Mepham, Bb comet, A.
Sehl, Bb comet: Mr. Howard, Bb comet, Mr. Thomas, Bb comet. Mr
Chapman, hom; R. Kischel. horn, . Bowman, horn: H. Reucl, horn ;
O. Ziegler, shide tro abone: J. Stellar, shde trombone. L. Engel, slide trom-
bone: H. Ells. shide trombone: Harold Wildgust, bass ttombone . H. Philp.
bantone; F. Boffinger, euphonium; Juhus Beckner, Eb bass, F. Filer, Eb
bass; Mr. Thomas, % bass: Wm. Bohlender, BBb Lass: P. H. Roos, snare
drum; C. Treusch, bass drum.

to withhold the legislative grant unless a more suitable reading room was pro-
vided.  Shrewd officials debated on ways and means to overcome the obstacle
and Mayor David Bean advocated an application to Andrew Camegie for a
grant of $10,000. A favorable reply was received on condition that the
municipality provide a suitable {ree site and spend in maintenance annually at
leastthe sum equivalent to one-tenth of the grant.  The conditions of the dona-
tion were compled with, work on the new building was commenced on July

11th, 1903, and on November 12th

AS A PLACE OF RESI-
DENCE.

As a residential location Water-
loo possesses attractions of a superior
character. Real estate can be pur-
chased ata reasonable figure, all classes
of building material arc available i the
immediate locality, the rate of taxation
1s low, the educational facilities are un-
surpassed, churches are numerous, fra-
ternal socicties are many and one of
the best hospitals in the country 1
located midway between Waterloo
and Bedin. The streets are well
made and kept i good repair and
miles of cement walks have been con-
structed. The water works system and
fite protection arc among the best in
Canada.  Sanitary conditions are most satifact.ry. with a splendid system of
sewerage and perfect drainage through the surrsunding country.  There are
splendid roads and beautiful drives.  Transpertation facilities, both steam and

bas Dewitt

. clectric, afford casy and couvenient access at all times.  Climatic conditions

are favorable, and in every respect Waterloo is an ideal residential town.

EASTERN SECTION OF WATERLCO FORTY YEARS AGO.

The two {aithest houses on the left are those of the late Henry G, Bowman and Barna-

The others reading from left to right are thosc of the Iate H-
A. Zoocllner. Benj Dewit. J B Snider, John Shuh and
Robt Patton on the site of which the residence of

J E Scagram. M. P. now stands.

of the same year the comner stone was
*well and truly laid * by Mayor Bean.
On November Ist, 1905, it was
ready for occupation and the doors
opened to the public.  As it stands
to-day, as is shown by an engraving
on another page, it presents an attract-
ive exterior appearance. It is a two
story structure of red Milton pressed
brick with Credit Valley sandstone
basement.  Thedimensions are 44x54
feet, with interior amangements per-
fectly adapted for the purposes for
which the building was designed.
Ample room is provided for the read-
ing public and most convenient amange-
ments are available for officials and
pattons. The second floor of the
building is devoted to an auditorium
and board room, the former with a seating capacity of three hundred and the
latter 12x16 fect in dimensions.  Numecrous large windows admit abundance
of light.  The brary is well stocked with books by the most popular authors
and ahways provided with the best literature of the day in both English and
Geman.  From its inception the library and its affairs have been perfectly
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managed by a well selected controllng board, which tlus year is composed of
Dawil Bean, charmmn , Chas. A, Fachnel, secretary, Rev. Father Spetz,
Res. K. AL Schule, WL HL Rld-.]c“. Peter rlsdlt:l. Geo. Cork. J G. Stohs
Mayor E. F. Seagram.

THE WATERLOO SCHOOL

It was back i 1820 that one of the first schools of Waterlou County was
csla\)hshcd n the spalscly populalcd settlement m a small but sutable bm“;ng.
This was the fist school house in Waterloo, and the old bulldmg. dll engrasing
of which ts shown on the cover of this book, i« atill plcscncd i the Waterluo
path as a sacred relic of by-gone days.  Among the first teachers were Ben).
Burkholder and Win. DeRay. At first schuol was oudy held about thete months
of the year, and pupils ranged from small childten to adults of twenty -five years.
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Commenting upon the school the inspector hassaid that it has attained that
tugh state of excellence where he has nothing to suggest for its improvement.

Amung the past principals of the school are found the names of J. Sud-
daby. principal of the Model School, Berlin: Wm. Blackwood, Galt and
W’. IF. Chapman, inspector of schools, Toronto. The present incumbent, Geo.
Cork, has held the position for over eighteen years, the length of his service
alune beng sufficient evidence of his ability without further comment.

At the present time the building is taxed to its full capacity, and with the
growing population of Waterloo further enlargement will soon be necessary.

The present board of trustees is composed of M. Braendle, chairman;
Wi M. Reade, secretary-treasurer, Dr. Noecker, C. W. Schiedel, W. Car-
thew, W. Conrad, J. A. Harper and A. E. Devitt, all men of gaod executive
abiliy and fully alive to the requirements of their position.

WATERLOO'S MAYORS SINCE INCORPORATION

4 Jacob Uffielmann 5 Geo Dichel
12 Chust Kumpi

! Simon Snyder 2 R Y Fish 3 David Bean

19 Wm Smicr 11 Benp Dewtt

Abraham I'th, who had a large patt in the carly history of the town,
made possible the next formed step n it educational destiny by presenting the
land on which the present school buldding and prinaipal’s house now stand,
whicth extends from King to Albert Sticet and comprises in the neighbothood
of four acres.  Mi. Tab akso set asde the sum of $300, the mte.. 2t of which
was t provide books for poor culdr-n. The fund 1s sull in existence and
On thus land n 1842 was ereded a sub-
stantial stone schoothouse about mud\\.\.\ Letween the grosent Luilding and
King Street. This senved the purposes of the community for nearly twenty
sears, when part of the present brick structure was eredded. This contamed
four rooms onigmally and was afterwards converted mto an cight-roomed build-
mng.  About sintecn years ago further accommodation was necessany, and the
lnuildmg was exteided to the present dimenyons with twelve rooms. It s a
handsome bulding, valued at $20.000, and the fiicdt to be found m any tawn
of cqual size n the country. The rumber of pupils on the roll 1s about 550
with an average attendance of 500.

used m the pm-.h‘\se of supph(‘.\.

1876 TO 1905.

o J B Hugbes. 7. Walter Wells. 8 Geo Moore
13 Geo Randall 14 Moses Springer.

9. Jacob Conrad.

THE SEPARATE SCHOOL.

About the time the Roman Catholic congregation was orgamzed steps
were taken to found a separate school, which was accommodated in the base-
ment of the new church as soon as it was ready for occupancy, and conducted
by the Sistets of Notre Dame whe, for four or five years, came daily from
Berthn,  In 18935 the hittle convent was built for the convenience of the Sisters.
In 1904 the need of a suitable school bulding became so urgent that plans
were obtained and tenders ashed for.  The figure, however, was too high for
the available funds and operations were postponed for a ycar.  New tenders
were ashed for carly in 1905, the contract let and the building erected. which
wih furnishing, heating, ctc., cost about $8,500. All the interior arrange-
meuts were planned and cartied out in a manner to sccure the maximum of
comfort and convenience. At the inauguration of the school some 50 or 60
children were in attendance, which has <nce increased to about 130, dis-
tributed in three rooms.  For {uture merease another raom is stll available.

W
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The Churches

I

HE religious life of Waterloo is well represented by the splendid edifices
of seven different denominations and their zcalous adhcrents, who
evince a liberal spinit in the performance of those benevolent acts
which arc prompted by true Christian virtue. The following brief

history of the various denominations will be of interest:

LUTHERAN.

Oldest and strongest among the religious denominations of Watetloo is the
Lutheran congregation. lts history dates from 1837, in which year Rev. F.
. Bindemann, who was in charge of the congregation at Betlin, organized a
separate congregation in Waterloo. In 1841 the comer stone was laid for a
new church en King Street, of which Rev. J. Huetiner became the first
pastor, and in 1846 the lot adjoining the church was purchased for cemetery
purposes, and for some years it was the burial place for deceased members.
In 1863 a number of improvements were made, and in 1865 a pipe organ
was installed. By the year 1880 the congregation had outgrown the scating

-v——— - R
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ST. SAVIOUR'S

capacity of the church, ard in 1682 the pretent large and handsome church
was erccted, with a seating capacity of over 1,200 persons. A large pipe
organ adds materially to the eflcctiveness of the services. A cermodious par-
sonage was erected during the pastorate of Rev. Mr. Amdt. A hist of pastors
<nce the orgenization of tle church in Waterloo follows: J. Huettner,
1842-8: Rev. A. Pleifer, 1849 Rev. J. Wurster, 1851-5: Rev. Theo-
dere Huchmann, 1856 Rev. Huchmann was after a short time followed by
Rev. Hodsche, who centitued in the pasterate untl 1873: Rev. ]
Schncider, 1872-81; Rev. Frown, 1882.5: Rev. Rittner, 1883-8: Rev.
Christiansen, 1888.94: Rev. Amdt, 1894-1900; Rev. E. A, Schulz,
1900.06. M. Schulz has suce the wnting of the above resigned.

METHODIST.

The first regular services of the Methodist denomination in Watetloo were
held on Sunday afterzoons in the town hall under the pastorate of Rev. C.
Cookman, superintendent of ke Berlin circuit.  Later, during the pastorate of
Rev. R. W. Williams, the congregation purchased the frame building now
kncwn as Orpheus Hall, and in this building they worshipped untd the year
1690. In 1883 the cengregation separated {rom Betlin, Rev. Wm. Lund
beceming the first pastor.  Fe was succeeded a few months later by Rev. A,
A. Powas, RA. Mr Bewers was followed by Rev. G. F. Salton, whose

tenure was marked by the erection of the present church, a neat, substantial
building of modem design. In the crection of this church and the parsonage
substantial assistance was given by the late 1. E. Bowman, M.P.  Since the
departure of Mr. Salton in 1891, up to the present time, the following min-
isters have been in charge: Revs. J. C. Stevenson, J. A. MacLachlan, M.A.,
J. E. Howell, M.A., Geo. A. Mitchell, MAA., A. E. Lavell, BA., R. J.
Elliott, president of the HHamilton Conterence, the latter having just com-
menced his pastorate.  The present membership of the church is about 160,
and the amount raised this year for all purposcs was something over $1,880.
In 1904 an excellent pipe organ was installed at a cost of $1,600.

PRESBYTERIAN.

The first regular religious services of the Presbyterian dencmination in
Waterloo were week night ones commenced in 1864, in the church of the
United Drethren.  They were conducted by the pastor of St Andrew's
church, Berin, and were alterwards changed to monthly Sabbath services
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GHURCH.

until 1882, when a regular weekly service was established in the town hall, a
Sabbath school being organized about the same time. In the year 1887
Waterloo Presbyterians organized as a congregation. In less than a yeara
church was erccted and opened for service on November 29th, 1888, Rev.
A. E. Mitchell became the first pastor in July. 1889. Under his pastorate
the membership increased from thirty-five to one hundred and onc. Mr.
Mitchell was succeeded by Rev. Samuel Carruthers, who was in 1893 suc-
ceeded by Rev. John McNair, who continued as pastor for six years. Mr.
MecNair was lollowed by the Rev. J. R. Gilchrst, BA., in Febrary, 1900.
The church is 2 handsome structure in the Queen Ann style, built of white
brick, with Acton stone rock face for foundation and basement. The interior
furnishing is in perfect accord with the outside finc appearance. It was erccted
at a cost of $6,000, and since its completion has not been burdened by a
dollar of incumbrance.

EVANGELICAL.

The history of the Evangelical church of Waterloo is a rccord of eamest
work and successful accomplishment. It was back in the years 1837-8 that
missionarics of this denomination fust visited Waterloo and formed the nucleus
of the present flourishing congregation. In August, 1839, a camp mecling
was held on the farm of David Exb, and as a result of this meeting 26 mem-
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bers united with the church and two congregations were formed, one in Berlin
and one in Waterloo, with Rev. Christian Holl, the first regularly appointed
missionary. The first regular meeting place in Waterloo was in a building
erected in 1849 by Samuel Burkholder. in which the meetings were held for
over twenty years. In 1852 the Sunday School was formed.  As the congre-
gation grew and prospered. a scparate mmister, Rev. J. Kaccble, was placed
in charge of Watctloo. Larger premises became necessary, and in 1871,
when the membership was between 60 and 70, a new church was crected
on Cedar Strect when Rev. F. Hetlan was pastor. In 1886, during the
pastorate of Rev. H. Dicrlamm, a new parsonage was built. The corner stone
of the present imposing edifice was laid on August 8th, 1905. The new
edifice is a beautiful piece of architecture and a monument to the integrity of a
faithful congregation, which, under the present pastorate of Rev. S. M. Hauch,
18 in a prosperous condition with a membership of over two hundred.

MENNONITE CHURCH.

A large proportion of the orignal sctilers who came {from Pennsylvania
were adherents of the Mecanonite faith  In the carly days lile bands had
occasional meetings at sanous houses, but it was not until about forty years ago
that 2 movement was made towards the crection of a church, which was a small
but necat brck buildmg located about a mule west of the town. The first
mumster in charge of the flock was Jacob Obetholtzer. who continued his labors

The Most High, under the title of St. Louis IX, Confessor and King of France.
AL its organization the congregation numbered about 50 families. In 1893-4
the membership decreased in consequence of the business depression then preva-
lent. From 1895 to the present time, however, there has bicen a steady
growth and the congregation now numbers about 125 families. Now the
church is beginning to be too small, all available space being utilized.  1f the
town continues to grow, as it undoubtedly will, an addition will become a
necessity. This will likely consit of a transept and sanctuary on the
cast end, giving double the accommodation now afforded. A great deal of
money and labor has been expended on the church, but the congregation can
point with pardonable pride to the property.

ST. SAVIOUR'S CHURCH.

For too many years the position of Anglicans in Waterloo was dishearten-
ing: they could neither attend their distant parish church regularly, nor get any
help in the religious up-bringing of their children. Attempts to remedy this
evil by the Revs. E. W. Murrzy and Dr. Beaumont failed, partly through
opposition from parties outside Waterloo. But in 1887 a fresh start was made,
this tme mn the form of a Sunday School, conducted by two laymen, one the
late Herman Zaple. aided by Mrs. C. W. Wells, as primary teacher. The
premises consisted of an office in the Devitt Block, and then a hall up two flights
of stairs, but later, led by W. Carthew, the parents sccured better quarters in a

RING STREET LAST. WATERLOO

untt) i tetirement about twenty vears age He was followed by Ebas Smder.
whose mumstrations covered a penod of e veare  Alter lum came Noah
Honsberger. the present mauster, who, with Jonas Suder. atiended to the dutics
meumbent upon leaders and mumgters of a devout people Untid about four
vears ago the little back chureh continued to be the mectng place of the fanth-
ful worshipers  Then the growing population with the consequent inczcase of
membership demanded more toom, and the present bandsome church on kb
Strect was erected at a wout of ahout $3.000  Both extenor and itenor of
this building preseats a neat appearanee. The church has a seating capacity of
about 330 The memberdup roll ncludes some 100 persons and s mcreasing.

ST LOUI R C (HURUH

\mong the fine urch buldmgs of the county, St Lows Roman Cathohie
church of Waterloo occupies a pomment place 1t was towards the end of
18R9 that the agtation wav sommenced by the members of the Cathohe
Mutual Benefit Association for the orgamzation of a congregation and the
erection of a chureh 2\ few of the more ambwious Catholics projected a
hurch bulding and in this project Rev Theobald Spetz 100k an active part.
The ste on Allen Street was purchased for $1.000 from the late C. Numpl.
and plans for a bnck church wath sprre and hasement for school. 72x42 lect,
were prepated  Fatle i 1890 the contracts for the bulding were let, angd by
Tanuary Gth, 1901 the church was completed and dedicated to the serace of

room i the market house, where, for about a year, the Rev. 5. L. Smith, of
Briho, held a Sunday aftemoon service.  This, however, was discontinued
through dissension¢ m the Beihn congregation, but the Sunday School was
contmued. and in 1892 five of the senior scholars were confirmed.  Of these
two, now the Revs. Alfred Vale and David Cornush, rendered valuable help,
and m particular orgamized the Boys™ Mission Band. which has for ycars main-
tained a pupil of the Blackfoot Mission School. Invaluable aid came through
the coming of Mr. and Mes, H. J. Grasett. who became and are still zealous
helpers of the movement, gwing both of their means and of thew cfforts.
In January. 1895, th~ Rev F J. Steen. M.A.. the new rector of Bedlin,
resumed the Sunday aftemoon services, the Presbytenan chutch being kiadly
granted {or the purposc at a ronunal real. Mr. Steen's doquence and camesi-
ness gathered a congregation enthusiastic cnough, when the use of the Presby-
tenan church was withdrawn. to build the present handsome and commodious
church. Thus was opeacd in January. 1898, by the lamented Bishop Baldwin,
as the ~ Church of the Holy Saviour ™ The congregation held well tagether
through the next thiee years, although the rector could give only an aftemoon
serice. that 1n the momming being taken by lay readers. But under the Rews.
R. A. Ammstrong. BA. (1901), and S. P. Inwin. BA (1903-05). great
progress was made. The ncw mcumbent, the Rev. R. M. Dumford, has
come with an excellent record. St Saviour's consists of nave and choir. n
catly Englsh architecture, and will accommodate some 200 worshipers

i
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l ? “ Insurance and Financial Interests.

7

The Mutual Life Assurance Gompany
of Ganada.

ERY prominent among the most successful beneficial and busimess insti-
tutions of Waterloo is the Mutual Life Assurance Company of Canada.
To the citizens of Waterloo it is a matter of familiar history that The
Mutual Life is the outcome of a feeling on the part of certain public
men of the town, led by the late C. M. Taylor, who was popularly known in
this locality as the * father of insurance,” who argued that the mutual principle
of insurance, which worked so admirably in the case of the Waterloo Mutual
Fire Insurance Company. might with equal success be applied to life insurance.

ROBERT MELV'N. pvom’!enl.

The result of Mr. Taylor’s labors was the tormation of The Ontano Mutual

Life Assurance Company the onginal namc of the present orgamzation.
Incorperation was sccuted from the Ontano Legistature m December, 1865,

the provisional charter directors named being. Isac E. Bowman, M.P. .
M. Taylor. Moses Sprnger. M.P.P.. John Allchin. Joha B. Snvder. and
J W Walden. M.D.  From the commencement the charter confronted the
duectors with a Herculean task, as it provided that before a policy «ould be
usued five hundred bona fide applications must be recawved and accepted for
e msurance. amounting in the aggregate to not less than $500,000  These
conditions were fullilled by the end of 1869.

At the hrst mecting of the provisional board the following officers were
cected. President, laac F. Bowman, M.P.. sccrctary, Moses Springer.
MP.P.. weasurer, C. M. Taylor. medical referee. J. W. Walden, M.D.
While a iberal measure of «redit 1s duc, not only 1o the gentlemen compnang
this first Loard. but to cach successive oac. who {rom tme to tmc has been
wdeatificd with the business management. 2t will not be comsidered invdious to
lay particular stress upon the senvices tendered the Company by its firet presic

dent, l. E. Bowman, M.P. He was a man of sterling and unimpeachable
character, whose presence on the hoard gave a moral as well as a business
weight to the new venture. He was a man of shrewd, sound business
and good fmancial judgment, combined with a wide practical business
experience aud extensive personal connection throughout the country. To
the rare ability and disinterested service which Mr. Bowman brought to
the Company’s affairs may be accredited much of the popularity and sub-
stantial advancement that has been won. The efficiency and value of his
services can be attested in no better way than by stating that he continued to
ozzupy the presidential chair until the time of his death in 1897,

When Mr. Springer in 1870 retired from his active duties in connection
with the Company, Wm. Hendry was appointed manager, a position he held

GEO. WEGENAST. Manager.

with credit to lums-lf and profit 1o the Company until his retirement from il
health :n 1898.

The statement given at the Company's last annual mecting that it has over
$45.000.000 of busness i force, with a gain of practically $3.000.000 in
the year then ending over the preceding year. tells its own story. It is a forci-
ble and cloquent var of a movement conceived in the faith of a handful of men
who possessed but littic more than their personal integrity and business ability
to back them up in the belief that the people of Canada would welcome and
support a ke company based on the principle of mutual equity, good faith, co-
oprration and participation in benchts arising from its successful operation.

Apart from its mutual basis which cmphasizes the daims of insurers to
cquitable rccognition in the conduct of its business and a just division of its
profits to the individual policyholder. wrespective of social consideration or
length of conncction with the company. of which principle it is yet the exclus-
we representative i Canada, this Company owes its populanty and conscquent
marvellous growth to the fidelity to sound business principles that from its incep-
tion have characterized the management.
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As a means of investigating the conditions that account for its growth and
popularity 1t may be well to consider, in the light of the things that count with
the average person in choosing life insurance, the Company's standing and rela-
tion to these things. Regarding its investments the policy of the management
has always been conservative and safe.  They have sedulously refrained from
anything other than admittedly sound propositions, their money being put out
exclusively on mortgage loans, principally on farm propetties, many of these in
recent years in the growing and financially safe west, as well as in first mort-
gage bonds, muniupal debentures and similar absolutely safe investments. Not
a dollar of its money is involved in any stock or other speculative security.
The consequence has been that throughout its entire history the Company's
investment losses have been almost insignificant. It has realized. doubtless
largely mfluenced by its mutual character, that the fist and last duty is to con-
serve 1ts funds for the policyholders, and that, as was said by an officer at a
recent annual meeting. its first duty is to seck investments which have not
a fluctuating 1alue, and that 1t & culd not engage in buying and selling securi-
ties with the object of making a gain, or, what is just as likely, after making
a purchase trving to prevent a loss. Another substantial factor in the Com-
pany’s pepulanty has been its unswening adherence to the policy adopted at its
carhest meetings  prompt payment of all claime. The Company was the first

W', M. RIDDELL, Secrctary

to mtroduce this practice n Canada. and ne other compan has ever exceeded
it m firm conformity 1o this most acceptable feature. The Autual Lafe unfadl-
ingly pavs cach claim on the verv dav the claim papers and usual discharge
reach ats office.

Snce orgamzatien there have been pad out to policvholders, according
to last vear's teport, as follows- Death claims, £3.130.337 18 matured
cndowments and annuities, $1.232929.67 . casli surplus, $1.425.474.30:
cash surrender values, $1.008,12591, making a total of $6.796.867 006,
while 1t hdd m resene and surplus for the secunty of lving policvholders. as
at December 315t 1903, the sum of $9,162,065.36.

The utmost watchfulness and stuctness obtain i the selection nsks,
wath the realt that the average Jeath rate is gratifymgly small. havinig averaged
dunng the past 15 years onlv 33 pes cent of the expected mortality.

The matter of eapense 1 anather thing that the average man looks to m
consdening a business, and espevially m He insurance.  On this pont the
Mutsal Lae of Canada compates most Ixvorably with any other Canadian
<ompany. the 1atio of ats expetses for the past year to tntal income beng onlv
17 UR pei » ent. probably an uncqualled record.

In the matter of surpluc and rescrve the Company 1 also [avorably stu.
avedate anplus for 1905 hemg $1.263905 on the Guovernment standard

SEMI-GENTENNIAL NUMBER.

and its reserve, $8,210,064. The rate of progress can be well shown by
a comparison of the following figures for decennial perinds:

i
'

! Payment | Assurance
Year. ' lncome. | to Policy- Assels Sutph s in

, holder Force

i

1375 $29,593 |, $4.625 $53.681 | $8.851 $1.177.085
1885 270,697 | 11331 3 753,661 38,802  8.259.3061
1895 735070 | 328427 3123574 178798 19312477
1905 1956518 © 552914 9,296,092 1.263.905 44.197.954

6,

lis policies include the most up-to-date and advantageous featutes. and the
treatment of policyholders is as liberal and just as could well be asked. among
ths conditions being the allowance of one month's grace for the pavment of
premiums, guatanteed surrender values stated in plain figures on the face of
palicies, besides exceedingly fair options and means of esraping lapses.  All
these considerations go to show the safe and progressive character of the Com-
pany's management, its liberality and fairness towards its policyholders, and
make it vasy to understand how it has secured <o warm a place in popular
esteem and rank with the best companics in acknowledged reliabily, stability
and enterpri-e.  lts confidence in the C anadian public has not been misplaced.
The public has most encouragingly responded to its faith in Coanadian vest-

ments for its funds. and in Canadian hves for its business. A proportionably

Head Office
THE MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE GOMPANY OF CANADA
Waterloo, Qntane

srall amount of its tetal business is placed outede of Canada. an idea of which
proportion may Le gathered from the fact that 1903. out of a total new
business of over $6.000.000. only $65.000 was placed outnde of our oun
country.

From almost enurely local significzzn = the Company has grown to national
propottions, so that to-day 1t numbers among s policiholders aot only residents
of every province m the Dominion, but among these the recogmzed leaders in
business arcles, men of the most alent financial acumen and ndisputable sound
business judgment.

It was owing to the national proportions it had assumed that at the annual
mecting of 1900 the Company™ name was changed to the onc 1t now bears,
*The Mulual Life Assurance Company of Canada.”

The present dircctors of the Company ate: Robent Melan, preadent.
Gucph: AMired Hoskin, K. C.. Ist vice-president. Toronto: Hea. M.
Justice Button., 2nd vice-president, Osgoode Hall. Toronto Right Hon. S
Willnd Launer. P2 .. GOMG., Premier of Canada, Oitawa s Tranas ¢
Bruce. Hamilion: ). Kerr Fisken, Torento: E. P. Clement, K.C.. Berbn,
W. J. Kadd. B.A. Ontawa : Geo. . Somerville, London : Walter D. Beard-
more. Torontn: Hon. Mr. Justice Gamaw, Qsgoode Hall, Totonto . W
Smder. Waterlon.  The present officers at Head office. Watetloo, are: Gee.
Wegenast, manager. W H. Ruddell, secretary o Jubue H Roos. trcasurer .
Charles Rubw, actuary: T. R, Earl, supt. of agenaes: J. H. Webh, M.D.

medical drector; C. S, Forreat, mspector of loans, Millar & Sime, sohictore.
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The Dominion Life Assurance
Company.

HIS Company was projected in the sprirg of 1888 by a group of enter-

prising citizens cf Waterlco, mest of whem eventually feund places on the

original board of dircctors. Thetask of precuringthe necessary capital stock
was intrusted to Thos. Hilliard, who drew up the plans, prospectus and charter
of the Company, atter.ded to the passing of the latter through the vanous stages
till it became an Act of Parhament, and in July, 1889, having procured
$262,000 of subscribed steck, with one-fourth of it paid up in cash, opened
the doors for busiuess as managing directer with one clerk as his assistant. A
an instance of the cconomy of management that charactenzed the Company
from the beginning it may be noted that the total expense of orgamzation was
$1,329.

The distinctive features of the Company were and are:

1. Economy of management.

2. Separate classification for total abstamers, non-abstamers and women,
The surplus is equitably distributed among the members of each class accord-
ing to the mortality experienced.

3. Automatic eatersion provided for policies upon which three yearly
premiums have been paid.  (This was the first Canadian company to introduce
this privilege.)

The Waterloo Mutual Fire Insurance
Company-

N the Waterloo Mutual Fire Insurance Company the town has what is
probably the oldest, strongest and most successful fire insurance company
in Waterloo County. It was founded by the late Cyrus M. Taylor,

commonly known as the “ Father of Insurance,” in the year 1863, who for
thirty-five years held the position of sccretary of the Company. By careful
selection of risks, economical management and fair dealing the business of the
Company grew from small beginning to vast proportions. Commencing by
taking only local risks the Company gradually extended its field of operations
until upon the retirement of Mr. Taylor, owing to failing health, in 1898, it
had agencies established throughout Ontario and carried over $25,000,000
of insurance. Mr. Taylor was succeeded by the present manager and scere-
tary, Mr. Frank Haight. Having served for thirteen years under Mr. Taylor
as assistant secretary and being a close and careful student of the subject of
fire insurance, Mr. Haight was unusually well equipped to become the man-
ager of a large and growing company. e instituted thorough and up-to-date
methods both in the office and the field, and under his able management the
business of the Company has largely increased and it now holds a proud and

TriOS HILLIARD
Piessdrat and Manager of The Dominan Life Assurance Company

In 1900 the autherized capital was increased 10 $1.000.000 with
$400.000 subscrbed and $1CCOM0 pad up i cash. After the first three
years the sharcholders recaved dividends, which have steadily increased and
the profits distributed to pelicyholders have not. it is believed. been exceeded
by any other Canadian company. The surplus assets over all Yabilities exceed
that of most othuz companics, and its policy conditions include every real
advantage that can in faimess be given to all,

In view of the present zgitation in the pubhc mind in regard to insurance
investments, it might be well to state that the Dominien Life has akways con-
fined itself to the most gilt-cdged class of sccunitics, preferring absolute sccurity
to speculative vertures.  Its asscts are and always have been limited to loans
on its own policies, first motigages on real estate, bonds and municipal deben-
tures. These are all high class, yel so sclected as to yield a good rate of
interest, the average for the present year being over six per cent. Not a
dollar of cither principal ot interest has ever been lost by the Company. It is
worthy of remark also. that though the dividends paid 1o the stockholders have
been satisfactory, yet cvery dollar of these dividends has been cared by the
stockholders own moncy. the policyholders having never been charged a cent
by the steckholders for thar services in guarantecing the Company's policy
j contacts.  The Company has therelore done all for s policyholders that it
 could have done had it been purely mutual from the beginning.  Hence the
Company is descrvedly popular amongst the best class of business and pro-

B {cssional men, and is steadily growing m popular favor as well.

FRANK HAIGHT.
Manager of the Waterloo Mutual Fure Insurance Gompany.

cnviable position among the solid financial institutions of the country. Both
Mr. Taylor and Mr. Haight have been ably scconded by a be 1d of directors
composed of shrewd, careful and successful business men.

The Company owns its own head office building, a photogravure of which
is shown herewith.  The building has lately been enlarged, its vault room much
increased and fitted with the most moden labor saving devices which
afford casy and quick reference to the thousands of documents there kept
on file.

According to the last financial statement of the Company for the year
cnding 31t December, 1905, the total number of policies in force was
30.363, coverng $30,015,393 of wsurance. The income of lagt year
was $254,696.80 and $128,582.55 was paid in firc losses. The assets
this year rcached $514.642.84, a sum unprecedented in the Company's
history.  Alfter providing for all Babilitics and the reinsurance of all its risks,
there remains a net cash surplus of $126907.75, a very fine showing
indced.

The following gentlemen comprise the board of directors: Geo. Ran-
dall, president, Waterdoo; Wm, Saider. vice-president, Waterloo: James
Livingston, ex-M. P., Baden: P. E. Shantz, Preston: John L. Wideman,
St. Jacobs; Allan Bowman, Bhir: Thes. Gowdy, Guelph; Geo. Dichel.
J. H. Webb, M.D.. Waterloo.
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North Waterloo Farmers Mutual Fire
Insurance Go.

T was partly owing to a natural community of interest and partly to overcome
the then prohibitive rates of Cash companies at that time that a number of
farmers of the North Riding of Waterloo conceived the idea of forming an
independent insurance company on mutual lines.  Following a public meeting
of those interested held in Waterloo on June 20th, 1874, it was decided to
form such a company, and the result is the present successful organization.
Business was commenced on August | 1th, 1874, with the following officers:
President, Levi Stauffer ; vice-president, Solomon Moyer;  secretary, R. M.
Quickfall; directors, Barnabas Devitt, W, Lackner, Wm. Coote, V. Otter-
bein, Andrew Clemens, John S. Bowman and Isaac Devitt. At the first
general meeting of the Company, held at the end of the year, Levi Stauffer
was appointed permanent manager, an office he has continued to hold for over
shinty years to the distnct advantage of the Company and satisfaction of the
members.

Gratifying support has been accorded the Company by the farmers since
its wception and the anticipations of its promoters have been pleasingly realized.

At the lagt annual meeting, held m December, 1905, the financial state-
wment showed 2,791 pohces, involving a total amount at risk of $5.904,940

Head Ofne Huivey
THE WATERLOG MUTUAL FiRL INSURANGE GOMEPANY

and representing a premium note assel of $305.821. This was a deadedly
satisfactory showing. cspeaialhy when the comparatively laated scope of the
Company was taken into consideratien. In additien to this 2 was able to show
a surplus of $24.643.40, despate the fart that o a number of yearst has
been working on the probably unequalled asesment of barely three per cent.
Thas favorable condition w partly due o the fortunate mmumty from heavy
fire losses and largely 1o the ware and prudeace that has characterized the
management in the selection of nsks and watd hfuless in the protection of nsur-
ance property.  The thaft azd seundness of the management is also shown in
the investment of the funds, which has mvamably proven safe and profitable,
being exclusively i hrst mortgages o gt edged secunties.

The Company since e waugutation has been ho ored with a strong board
of ditectors, compased of representatine farmers of the distnet and men well
proven for ther busness caution and <hrew dness. The present board 1 com-
poscd of the follwmg. Presdent. Smon B. Hewt, vie-presdent, Jacob C.
Hallman : manager, Levt Stauffer . duectore, J. L. L mbach, \ alentine Otter-
bein. Geo. F. Lackner, J B. Hagey, John . Campbell, Leander Bowman,
Val. Z. Wagner, Jaceb 5. Hallman, Thies. Marshall, Josiah Maufler.

From a local patronage the Company has extended operations untid 1t now
Jocs busmess 1 the counties of Waterloo, W cllington, Peith, Oxford and
Wentworth and m addition o famm ks takes nshs also oo solated sen-
dences in towns and villages

Raymo Bros.

NE of the greatest business necessities of the present age is insurance,
and the companies that take risks on fire losses, while doing so lor a
profit to themselves, are nevertheless publc bencfactors.  If it were
not for insurance many a business man who has suffered loss of property by
fire would be reduced to poverty and despondency. The placing of good
insurance, however -insurance that is beneficial to the company that takes the
risk and guards the policyholder against probable loss -depends a great deal
on the knowledge and ability of the agent who takes the apphication. The
good agent must be a judge of property values, know something about the
construction of buildings and the worth of their contents, and protect both his
company and his customer. It is just such agents as these that are found in the
firm of Raymo Bros. of Waterloo, who have conducted an insurance, real
estate and financial brokerage for the past cight years. and whose business
during that time has assumed large proportions. They occupy commodious
and convenient offices in the Young Block, and addition to the buuness
mentioned handle the Underwood and Empire typewriters and supplies, the
Globe-Wernicke Co. fyling apparatus and general office supplics.  Strict atten-
tion to all the details of business has secured for them a large trade and the
prospect of a bright future.
The members of the fim were bom in Waterloo, sons of the late William
L. Raymo, who came from Qucbee forty-five ycars ago and who has been
dead about fifteen years.

BANK OF TORONTO.

Bank Of TOI‘OH[O-

MONG Waterloo's many sohd financial wsttutions the Bank of Toronto
stands out prommently It was only this ycar thiat the management of
this old and rehable bank opencd up branches in the growing towns

of Watetloo and Berhn, and the rapid mercase in the number of depositors and
the acquisition of a number of large accounts shows the wisdom of the move.
The clegant bank premises, a hall tone reproduction of which is shown here-
with, are modcls of couvenience and good taste. Although new to Waterloo,
the Bank of Toronto 1s by no means a new institution, being one of the oldest
chartered banks 1 the country. established for over Bfty years.  Its progress
during these years has been steady and ats large business has been built up on
the soundest busincss principles. It capital is now $4.000.000, with a resenve
of $4.400,000, and s total assets amount to $35,000,000. The bank has
over sinty branches i Ontario, Quebee and the West.

C. A. Stephens 15 the manager of the Waterloo branch. and all patrons
of the mstitution are assured courtcous treatinent and cvery reasonable accom-
modation. Special altention 15 given to the savings department, where aums
of $1 and upwards are received and highest current rate of interest is allowed
from the date of deposit A feature of this department is the Savings
Bank pocket choque book, which has proved a  great convenicnce to
depositors. ’
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The MOISOHS Bank.

MONG the institutions which have been instrumental in building up this

A great and glorious Dominion none occupy a more prominent place

than its banks. Conservatively and wiscly managed they have shared

in the general prosperity of the country and contributed in no small measure
towards developing its resources.

One of the pioneer banks of Canada is The Molsons Bank, which com-
pleted the fifticth year of its existence in 1905. It was incorporated in 1855
with a paid-up capital of £300,000, and under careful and prudent manage-
ment has grown and prospered until to-day it has a paid-up capital of $3.-
000,000 and s reserve of $3,000,000. The bank never omitted paying
a dividend, and for the whole period of fifty years dividends averaging 8 per
cent. have been paid.

The bank has branches established in Alberta, British Columbia, Mani-
toba, Ontario, Quebec and also has foreign agents in Great Britain and her
colonies, United States, France, Germany, Belgium, China, Japan and Cuba.
A total of 39 branches has been opened, the first one at London, Ontario, in
1870.

The branch at Waterloo was opened in March, 1881, the offices being
located in Devitt's Block until 1898, when the bank moved to their present
commodious quarters on King Street.

HARDWARE STORE OF M WEIGHEL & SON, WATERLOO.

Jacob Hespeler has been manager of the local branch ever since that
time, upwards of 25 years. and has shown himsell a carelul and prudent man-
ager.  Genial and courtcous. he cnjoys the respect not only of the bank's
patroas, but also of the citizens generally and takes a hvely interest n all mat-
ters pertaming to the welfare and advancement of the town.

r -
Winkler's Livery.

NE of the nccessitics of cvery town 15 a well equipprd hivesy stable.
Although the advent of stcam and electric railways have rendered
the larger volume of travel casy and rapid. they have rather increased

than diminished the demand upoa the livery stables.  A. Winkler, of Water-
loo, is fully alive to this demand and has a well equipped stable where the
requirements of all classes of patrons can be served.  About a dozen horses
are in constant commission, and he has rigs suitable for every nced  -every-
thig from the light ™ runabout " buggy or commercial wagon to the handsome
hack, family carriage o canvall.  Mr. Winkler 1s thoroughly acquainted with
the county and its roads, and a good horseman.  He was previously employed
at the Scagram stables, and thrce years ago purchased his presemt business
from Geo. Suggitt, who had conducted it for a number of years. Heis
always on hand whea wanted, and a pleasing manner and moderate charges
make him popular among his patrons.

Canadian Bank of Gommerce.

HE. Dominion of Canada, which has grown to occupy solarge a part in the

affairs of the world, has just reason to take pride in its banking institutions,

which, operating under wise laws and efficiently and honorably conducted,
have done much towards the upbuilding of the Dominion.

The Canadian Bank of Commerce, which was established in 1867, is
one of the foremost, largest and most important of Canadian banks, and has
ever occupied a foremost place in the front rank of those forces which have
worked to build up the industries and develop the resources of the Dominion.
It has prospered with the country, growing and extending itsell into new fields,
until it now has a capital of ten millions of dollars and a rest of four and a half
millions, whilst its deposits amount to over $80,000,000, and its assets exceed
$100,000,000. It has 155 branches, including offices in London, England,
and several of the principal cities in the United States.

The diversity of the interests of a great bank are remarkable. The gold
producing districts of the Yukon, the mining and lumbering interests of British
Columbia, the fettile grain fields of the Northwest, the varied industries of
Ontario and the shipping, mining, lumbering and fishing of the Atlantic provinces
all contribute to make up the enormous business of this truly national institution.

The head office of the bank is in Toronto, and the chief executive officers,
B. E. Walker, gencral manager, and Alex. Laird, assistant gencral manager,
are justly counted among the ablest financial authorities of the Dominion.

MWELH

HARDWARE STORE OF M. WEICHEL & SON. ELMIRA,

The Waterloo branch has been open for many years, and is now under
the management of J. Moorman.

An important and highly valued branch of the bank's business is that of
the farmers, and the Canadian Bank of Commerce has always given special
attention 1o the interests of this portion of the community, both depositors and
borrowers.

Th= bank’s great steength and extensive connections in all parts of the
world give it special advantages to place at the services of its clients.

In addition to the officc in Waterloo. the Canadian Bank of Commerce
has branches in the county, in Berr'  Galt and Ayr.

John Strebel.

IGHTIEN years ago Mr. Strebel purchased the hamess business car-
E nied on by William Hoceflin, and since that date conducted the estab-
lishment to the satisfaction of his patrons and success of himself. Mr.
Strebel came 1o Waterloo from Wellesley Township in 1877, and has had
no tcason to regret the step. He was born in Ohio, coming with his parents
to Wellesley when thitteen years of age. and aithough not a native born
Canadian he has a love for the land of his adoption and 1s particulatly partial
to the town of Waterloo, whete he has speat so many satisfactory and success-
ful years.
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S Mercantile and Manufacturing Interests “ ?

M. Weichel & Son.

N the march of progress and in the building up of the commercial fabric of
the county the hardware firm of Messts. M. Weichel & Son has been a
leader in enterpnse and the hustory of its rise and progress 18 in reality a

part of the history of \Waterloo County.

Michael Weichel, the senior member of the firm, came to Waterloo
County with his uncle from Germany, when twehe years of age. Until he
was nearly twenty he lived and worked on the farm of Wm. Peterson near
Hawksville.  lnborn commercial trans mduced him to learn the blacksmithing
teade and he served an apprenticeshup with Adam Heller of Elmira. In 1868
his ambition prompted lum to oprn a shop of lis own, which he successfully
conducted for about eighteen years. In 1881 he purchased the hardware
business of Wm. Wachsmuth, which was the initial step towards the large
commerctal enterprise which he and bus sons have since built up by persever-
ance, mtegnty and honorable dealing,  Mr. \Weichel, who is now sixty-four
years of age, has been one of Elmira’s public spirited citizens, and was the
second reeve of the wllage, afterwards scrving another term in the same
capacity. For the advancement of Elmira be has been a hard and con-
scientious worker and he is stll actve i business circles.

Johu S. Weichel, the general manager of the Elmira branch of the busi

MIGHAEL WEICGHEL

ness, has whented the keen business capabilitics of his father with the same
public spintedne.s in public affars As a member of the municipal counal
and 1o 3l board of trade - has parform=d yeoman service for his village.

Ten years ago the Waterloo store was opened with another son, William
G. Woeichel in charge, and the unqualified success which has attended its
establishment 13 ample evidence respecting the business ability of the popular
young manager. As traveller for Messrs. Shutly & Dictrich, saw manufac-
turers, of Galt, he <~cured a good deal of pracucal and hard carned expen-
ence among the hardware dealers of Canada. L.caving * the road.” the firm
purchased the Wateiloo hardware business of J. W. Fear & Co.

The trade of the Elmra store covers the two northern townships of
Washwich and Welledev, and extends into the adjacent townships of Welling-
ton County. The store 1s well stozked with every class of hardware that the
trade demands, and no cusomer cver gors away unserved of unsatisfied.
Jobbing work, tnsmithing. plum'nng nstallation of heating apparatus, ele.,
have prompt attention.

The Watetloo establishment 1 conducted on a large scale along lines
similat to the Elmira store, but the larger population, and the demands of the
many manufactotics of Waterloo and Bedin, necessitate a more varicd line of
staple articles.  Besides handling every linc that is included in the stock of a
general retail hardware store, many specialties are added. prominent among
which are the Dodge wood splt pulleys, the H. H. Barton & Sons Co. sand
paper and cloth, leather and rubber belung, oils, ctc., and many other factory
requisites.  In mezhanics’ tonls every necessary article s found m the stote.
In pamters’ supplics there 15 nothing lacking from the finest striping brush to the

WILLIAM G, WEICHEL

barrel of oil, the latter being bought by the car load and sold in quantities to
suit the purchaser.  The Sherwin-Williams paints are there in every color and
and quantity, and every other supply that a painter needs. For the household
you find the Peninsular stoves and ranges, gas and gasoline stoves and all the
other small necessities for the perfect equipment of a modem house. In
wooden and willow ware they handle everything from a pail or market basket
to a washing machine. They are agents for Stransky & Co. of Germany,
who make the world-famed enameled ware, every picce of which is guaran-
teed  These goods the firm imports direct in large quantities and the customer
who buys from them saves a * middleman’s™ profit. They do tinsmithing in
all its branches. install hot air heating furnaces, sell all kinds of iron pipe, ete.

Another popular branch of the business is the trade in linoleum and oil
cloth, which is laid by expents in any size required.

A few months ago the bargain counter idea was inttoduced at the
Waterloo branch. Hundreds of useful and necessary houschold articles are
placed on the table at five, ten and fifteen cents and sold at the price marked
rxgardless of cost.  Theidea has proved such a success that Messrs. M. Weichel
& Son contemplate opening several stores throughout the country on the
same lines.

Recently the firm purchased the valuable block on the southeast corner
of King and Quecn strects, Berlin, and when the present lease of the property
expires they will open therein another hardware store.

JOHN S, WEIGHEL.

Jacob Bricker.

ACOB BRICKER s the oldest living native of the tovn of Waterloo.
It was here he first saw hght m 1818, only twelve years after Abraham
Exb entered the then cedar swamp.  Although in the sere and yellow
leaf of fife. his 88 years rest lightly upon him. and he is stll vigorous and
healthy and evirces a keen interest the welfare of Watetloo, the town of
which he may be tightly considered the foster father. He is a son of the
late Peter Bricker, who came {rom Pennsylvania with the carly pioneers. In
his boyhcod days he worked cheerfully as boys had to in those carly times.
As he grew to manhood his business instincts and ambition developed, and he
became possessed of a large farm which he successfully worked.  Appreciat-
ing the needs of the scters who were flocking in to the country, in 1848,
when he was 30 years of age, he established a saw mill at Mannheim, on the
border of Wilmot Township, and found ready market for the product of his
labor. His business capabiliies and shrewdness were of the substantial kind,
and his services were sought for i new enterprises, and in 1851 he became a
silent partaer in the firm of Buchler, Booth & Co., who started the first foundry
in Waterloo, and with that business he was connected for thity-four years. In
1857 he built the ™ comer store,” which still stands at the corner of King and
Etb strects and is one of the best business propetics in Waterloo. In 1884
he retired from active business life to cnjoy mn s declining ycars the hard
carned reward of his carly labors, and though he has long passed the allotted
span of three score and ten, he yel possesses much of the vigor of early
manhood.

Afe - 7
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W aterloo Mfg. Co., Ltd.

TIYHROUGHOUT the Dominion of C anada, and in other countries, the
Waterloo Manufacturing Co. is known as a leader in the manufacture of
threshing machinery, and wherever agriculture is followed in Canada the

likelihood is that the name plate of this popular Waterloo Company will be

found on the threshing outfits.

The Company’s history under its present name dates from 1888, when
the firm of Bricker & Co., established in the fifties by Jacob Bricker and con-
tinued “uccessively by his sons and E. W. B. Snider, was amalgamated with
Mermer & Co. of the town of Waterloo and the Elmira Agricultural Works.
The original business, however, was that of Buchler, Booth & Co. commenced
in 1850, and which lived a precarious life under changing management dur-
ing the ten years of its existence.

From the inception of the present Company a gratifving success has been
the result of prudent and progressive management. From the commencement
a fine line of agricultural machinery was manufactured. Rapid growth and
satisfactory development of the business demauded building extension and
decided the Company to confine the output to threshing machinery. The
product includes their celebrated line of * Champion™ threshing machines,
which, with their equally famous “ Waterloo ™ engines, both traction and
portable, are now known practically on every farm in the Dominion. Al the
latest improvements which mschanical skill and ingenuity can devise are

.embodied in these machines with the result that the modern thresherman’s

labor is reduced to a minimum by the use of such labor saving appliances as

J. B. Snider

HE sales record of a manufacturing concern is a fair index of its success

or failure, and the record shown by J. B. Snider, manufacturer of office,

school and church furniture is one which points to success in vivid letters—

a success attained by the excellence of the goods and the aggressive policy and
modem methods employed.

The originators of the business were The Graybill Manufacturing Com-
pany, who, in addition to the business now carried on by Mr. Snider, made a
specialty of the maaulacture of letter fyles. In 1893 Mr. Snider became
proprictor of the establishment, discontinued the letter fyle department and
ncreased the output of the other lines. In this his keen business perception
and integrity asserted its=lf. The articles manufactured were constructed of
the best material by skilful workmen and under rigid inspection with the con-
sequence that nothing of an inferior nature was produced. New ideas were
introduced, modern methods employed and the convenience to be afforded for
the use it was required was carefully studied in every article manufactured.
Methods of this kind built a reputation on a solid fonndation, the fame of the
goods spread, sales increased and export trade grew to large proportions. Office
desks and furniture of every desenption in use, modern school and church fur-
nishings. lodge room fittings, elc., from the factory of J. B. Snider are now
found all over the country where twenticth century progress demands modem
convenience.  The export trade has been growing rapidly and now extends
to every continent on the globe.

The factory equipment and plant is up-to-date m every particular with
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WORKS OF THE WATERLOQ MANUFACTURING GO . LIMITED

Windstacker's sclf feeders, straw cutting attachments, wagon loaders and
weighers, ete.

An innovation in cngine building has been introduzed by the construction
of a suction producer gas cagine.  This engine is capable of generating 38 to
45 horse power with the average consumption of 400 pounds of coal per day.
The firm is using one of these engines in its own plant, which is giving good
service and perfect satisfaction. This style of cngine is an entirely new
departure in Canada. the Waterloo Manulactuiing Company being the first
to successfully manufacture and operate it. It is unquestionably a coming
factor in the attainment of inexpensive power.  The Company’s expansion has
been cxceedingly rapid and gratifying during the past few vears. Extensions
to an alteration in their bLuildings have been repeatedly necessary, with the
tesult that these now cover considerably over cleven acres of ground, with
commodious and convenient floor space and storage facilitics. With first
class shipping conncctions with both G. T. R. and C. P. R., the Company is
m a position from every standpoint to mect the requirements of its constantly
mcreasing business.  In addition to the home plant. branch offices and ware-
rooms are located at Winnipeg and Regina.  The output during the past year
was over $300.000, the business having doubled during the past five years.
There is an average of onc hundred and twenty-five men on the regular pay
toll, which in the busy scason is increased to one hundred and filty and two
hundred.  The populatity of the Company's machinery is shown by the fact
that last scason’s western stock was entirely disposed of. in fact so great was
the demand for more machines that many orders had to be refused.

. The officers of the Company arc:  President, E. W. B. Snider; manager
and sccretary, Cranson W. Snider: superintendent, Horace Longhurst.

the latest improved machines. which combinc cconomy of material and rapid
production. The pay roll includes over fifty employees with distribution of a
large amount of wages per annum.

The cstablishment is one of Waterloo’s most flomishing and growing
industries, and with the rapid advancement of the country which increases the
demand for the goods, an cnlargement is likely soon to be necessary.

E. W. B. SNIDER, PRESIDENT OF THE WATERLOO MFG. CO. Limited.

At 11w
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The J. S. Roos Shoe Go.

HE history of the establishment cenducted by
the above company dates back forty-six years,
when the late J. S. Roos, father of the present
members, opened a shoe store on King Strect, about
three blocks north of the present location. Those
were the days of the hand made shoe. Most of
the boots and shoes were sold to orcler and measure,
; and the good shoemaker was an artizan whose ser-
R vices were in constant demand. Mr. Roos was
R one of the good shoemakers of his day and genera-
\._,// tion. and as the town and country increased in
THE LATE J. S ROOS  population so did his business. Not later than in
the seventies he had from tento twelve men constantly employed, and did one of
the largest custom tradesin Western Ontario  a glowing tribute to the superionity
of the werk produced. The introduction of factory made goods, however,
decreased the demand for custom work and the number of local workmen was
gradually diminished. But, although conditions were changed,Mr. Roos'business
went steadily on and his store was ever well stocked with the goods which his
customers demanded. A few years after commencing business Mr. Roos moved
to larger premises, nearly opposite the store of the present company, and later
on moved to the premises which in 1888 were destrayed by fire and where
he suffered a considerable loss. Though bumed out he was not daunted and
resumed business almost immediately, and the same year crected the building
now occupied by the company.

The lat= J. S. Rovs, whose portrat accompanies this sketch, was born
at Doon.  His father was John Roos. one of the early residents of the county,
who for a number of yvears worked in the couperage of the Hon. Mr. Ferre
at Doon. afterwards removing to Preston, where he died.  The late J. S.
Roos continued s successful business up to the time of his death a litle over
a year ago. when the present company was formed.

The company business dates from Julv 19th, 1905, and success to the
full extent of the word has attended its carcer.  The store is the finest and
best stocked exclusive shoe store in town. and ample capital enables the shelv-
g of a stock that meets every demand. A specialty is made of the Slater
shoe for men and the Empress for svomen. These goods have a national
reputation for supenionty and the sales are consequently large.  The manage-
ment of the company 1s n the hands of Chas. H. Roos, who is ably assisted
by hus sisters, Misses Marv and Annic Roos. In connection with the store a
reparring department 15 mamtamed, with C. Becker i charge, who can claim
thirty-one years' expenence m the busmess, and is a shoemaker who thoroughly
understands every detal of the rade.  The best goods, fair prices and cour-
teous treatment of customers make the establishment one of the most populer
n Waterloo, and ts patrons are numbered by hundreds throughout the town
and surrounding country.

A. E. Sanderson.

NE of the most essential lifc sustaining
O products of industry is good bread, and
in this respect Waterloo is well supplied
with the the best article skilled labor can pro-
duce. Mr. Sanderson, a baker of long experi-
ence, who came here twelve years ago from
iHamilton, conducts onc of the most up-to-date
bakeries in the province outside of the large
cities.  He established the business himsell, and
has installed two modern Marsh ovens of large
capacity, and even with his splendid facilities
limself and stafl of workmen are kept busy to supply the ever increasing
demand. He has four delivery wagons on the road, and in addition to serv-
ing Waterloo delivers bread in Bedlin, Elmira, St. Jacobs, Conestogo and other
outside places, besides forwarding daily shipments by express to various points.
Such a trade as this can only be sccured by producing a first class article, and
such is the reputation attained by Sanderson’s bread.  Cakes, pastry, wedding
cakes, cte., of unsurpassed qualty are produced cqual to the demand.

A E SANDERSON

|
John Bruegeman.
OHN BRUEGEMAN conducts one of the best merchant tailoring

establishments in the county, and the customer who buys clothing from

him is relieved of all anxiety regarding fit or workmanship. He is a
first class cutter, and perfected himself in that most important branch of the
sartorial art under the tuition of the president of the American Cutters’ Associa-
tion. He is in the enjoyment of a large patronage, which is steadily increas-
ing, a fact due to the excellence of his work. A well assorted stock of goods
is found in his store, comprising the latest patterns from the best manufac-
turers.  Every piece of work turned out has Mr. Bruegeman's personal inspec-
tion and he employs only the best workmen. Outside of business circles he is
a popular citizen. a member of several fraternal socicties, and takes an active
interest in musical organizations and legitimate athletic sports.

Jacob Doersam.

O the people of Waterloo Mr. Docrsamis well

known, and his fancy goods, book, stationery

and sporting goods store on King Strect is
well patronized. Sixteen years of business in his
present line has given him an cxperience and
knowledge that cnables him to have in stock just
what his patrons want, and in fact to anticipate
those wants and have the goods before they are
asked for.

Mr. Docrsam is a native of Waterloo County.
e is a son of the late Adam Doersam of St.
Agatha, whosettled in that locality about 60 years
ago. For some years his father kept the Royal
Exchange hotel on the road between Waterloo and Philipsburg, afterwards
taking the City Hotel in Wateiloo. then known as the North American.
The subject of this sketch commenced business for himself as a photographer
in the building he now occupies and after cight years' experience he sold out
and took the hotel from his father, conducting it for four years, when he dis-
posed of it to his brother. It was then that he swent into his present business,
starting on a small scale n a building a few blocks cast of his present location.
By studying carefully the wants and requirements of the people, and selling
only what he could recommend he succeeded in so increasing trade that larger
premises were nccessary. and he removed to the premises where we now
find him. Business 1s stll mcreasing and a necessary cnlargement of his store
has recently been made to accommodate a larger and more varied stock
and class of goods. Mr. Docrsam now has, in connection with his fancy and
sporting goods trade, onc of the most up-to-date book stores and news agencies
in the county.  He is a prominent member of the Knights of the Macca-
bees. who are strongly organized here.

J DOERSAM

E. J. Roos.

MONG the rising and successful business men of Waterloo E. J. Roos,
A jeweler, holds a prominent position. Ten years ago he purchased
the jewclry store of Pequegnat Bros.. when he learned the pl'ac\iczaxl
part of the business. He has never had cause to regret the step to which his
ambition prompted him, and from the first day he cntered the store as its pro-
prictor success has attended his efforts.  He handles a gencral stock, such as
is found in the first class jewelry stores of the country, with a specialty of high
grade cut glass and china ware. Watch repaiting is given prompt and careful
attention, and the satisfaction that his work gives is abundantly attested by the
numecrous orders for repairs that are left with him.
He was bor in Berlin, a son of the late John Roos, one of the old resi-
dents of the county, whose parents came from Alsace-Lorraine province, and
sctiled in the nughborhood of Preston.
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S. B. Bricker & Co.

HAT * experience is the best teacher” is an axiom as applicable to

mercantile transactions as to private life must be admitted by an observant

public. Twenty years' experience in catering to the requitements of cus-
tomers must certainly so acquaint a mercantile house with the tastes and wishes
of a community that entire satisfaction should be the result of every transaction.
Itis a record such as this that S, B. Bricker & Co. have behind them.

The firm is a continuation of Bricker & Diebel, established twenty years
ago last January, and doing business under that name until about a year ago,
when Mr. Dicbel retired to accept the postmastership of Waterloo. At that
time J. O. Motheral entered the firm, which has since been known as S, B.
Bricker & Co. The establishment is onc that can justly claim to have grown
up with the place, and in this respect is in touch with the native aggressive
and enterprising spirit, anticipating the wants of the people before they are
expressed.  Few towns in Canada have so well equipped and progressive a
store as this firm, and a comparison with many pretentious establishments in the
larger cities shows a balance in favor of the local store.  Both members of the
finn are experienced and alert merchants, thorough business men and well
schooled in their chosen occupation.  Stock never gets old. shelf womn or
allowed to become exhausted.  What is wanted is always there, new, fresh
and displayed in the most attractive manner.  One of the factors which brings
success is careful buying and judicious advertising, and the direct importation
of many lines dircct from the onginal manufacturers, besides careful selections
from the best Canadian wholesalers.  The result is always a well selected and
up-to-date steck of staple dry goods, housefumishirgs and groceries.

Few firms enjoy more popularity among a wide range of customers among
all classes of the community.

A. G. Moyer.

QOR the past cleven vears Mr. Moyer has been
the proprietor of the Waterlso Photo Studio,
and during that tme has succeeded in estab-

When quite

voung his inclinations were tawards photography,

and his firt expenence m that direction was the
manipulation of a lile kodac with which he pro-
duced some very creditable pictures.  The further
he delved into the mysteries of the art the more
inter~sted he became, and as an amateur produced
many fine pictures. So successful was he that he
determined to make photography his study and his

usiness  Putting theoryinto practice he purchased
the studio of D. S. Huber, and since *hat time has been accorded a large and
good paying patronage. His work is classed among the best produced in the
counlry, and as a photcgrapher of outside views his services are in {requent
requisition.  In individual portraits, family groups. cte.. his business is very
large, and the excellence of his work brings patrons from all over the county.

In this publication a large number of his photos are reproduced.

hebisg a very successful business.

A. C MOYER

Geo. W. Dodds.

EO. W. DODDS, cnc of Waterloo's young business men. first opened
a grocery store in the town in 1898, in the City IHotel Block, start-
ing in a small way. He soon built up a large trade and the quarters
becoming inadequate to accommodate his increasing business. he erected the
present hand:ome block on King Street, in which his store is now located, in
1902,

A stock of general grocerics is carried, including a variety of fruits when

in scason.
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Waterloo Glove Mfg‘ Geo.

ONE of the youngest business enterprises in
Waterloo is that of the Waterloo Glove

Manufacturing Company. The promotor

and proprietor of the concern is John Schondel-
mayer, who founded the business about a year
ago. Success beyond the most sanguine expecta-
tions has attended the undertaking, and if the first
year's increases of trade may be taken as a cri.
terion of the future, larger premises and greater
facilities will soon be necessary. The growth of
the business is a striking illustration of what en.
ergy, honesty and perseverance will accomplish.
The class of goods manufactured are principally
workmen’s gloves and mitts, such as used by railroad men, motormen and
harvest hands, Astrachan gauntlets for men, women, misses and children, and
warm lined winter mitts, Recently a large wholesale dealer came to Waterloo
to look over the samples, and expressed delight with the goods and gave the
opinion that there were none better made in Canada, and placed a large order.
The goods are sold on their merits and find a ready market throughout the
whole of Canada. Previous to entering into glove and mitt manufacturing
Mr. Schondelmayer conducted a boot and shoe store in Waterloo for ahout
five years and still continues the business in which he has experienced unquali-
fied success, secured by handling honest goods at honest prices. For twelve
years, before coming to Waterloo, Mr. Schondelmayer was engaged in the
boot and shoe and clothing trade in Michigan, where he gained much valuable
expenience. e has no regret, however, for having changed his residence
from the land of the stars and stripes to that of the maple leaf, and i3 particu-
larly pleased that he cast his lot in the prosperous and growing town of

Waterloo.

JOHN SGHONDELMAYER,

Commercial Hotel.

ITUATED on a prominent corner
of King Street, the Commercial
Hotel occupies a commanding po-

sition, and secures a very large share of
the commercial and transient hotel busi.
ness of Waterloo. While the exterior
Prescats an altraclive appearance, the
interior possesses all the comfests that the
average traveler asks or looks for. There
is slecping accommodation for forty guests
and room at the dining tables for hfty.
The parlors, sitting and commercial rooms

are large and well lighted. and from base-

ment to roof perfect sanitary cleanliness, modern heating, lighting and venilat.
ing arrangements are characteristics that help to give the house its present
popularity.  Henry C. Raisig, the popular landlord, is ever alert 1o provide
for his guests the best comforts and conveniences that are available, and in this
he is ably assisted by George Suggitt, the handsome clerk, whose glad hand
clasp, cheerful greeting and enchanting smile have a contagious effect and djs-
pel the worst case of blues that mortal man was ever subjected to.  The Com-
mercial is one of the oldest hostelries in town and was purchased by M. Raisig
from Jacob Conrad about four years ago.
Mr. Raisig was bom in South Germany and came to the United States

in 1881, where he only remained a shont time. Having many friends in
Waterloo County he came to this town, where he opened a bakery and suc-
cessfully conducted it for ten years. Selling out the business he went to
Breshu to take possession of the hotel there, where he remained for sIX years.
Watetloo town, however, had an attraction for him, and on leaving Breslau he
bought out the Commercial, where he continues to dispense comfort and good
cheer to his guests.

THE. GOMMERGIAL HOTEL.




The William A. Greene Go., Ltd.

NE of Waterloo's most progressive and Hourishing industries is that of

the William A. Greene Co., collar and cuff manufacturers, which has

been established in Waterloo for several years. Mr. Greene in 1202

scvered his connection with the Williams, Greene & Rome Co., Berlin, of

which he was a member, and became the promoter of an enterprise to cstab-

lish a factory in Watetloo for the exclusive manufacture of collars and cuffs.

Building operations were commenced in December, 1902, and in June, 1903
the factory was ready to begin operations.

It is equipped in the most up-to-date manner as to machinery, etc., and
with its modern facilities turns out first class work, their goods being shipped to
all portions of Canada from the Pacific to as far east as Nova Scotia,

The goods manufactured are, in point of excellence of workmanship, finish

pu—
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William Snider.

MONG the men who made modern Waterloo, ncne hold a more

honorable or prominent place than William Snider, proprietor of the

Union Mills. The “Old Mill" is one of the town's ancient land

marks and recalls the early days of a struggling community. It is the first born

of the manufacturing industry and its walls are impregnated with the history of

the place.  While men and institutions have come and gone, the old mill has

remamned through the years practically the sole connecting link between the
old and the new.

Ninety years ago Abraham Exb, the first settler in the town plot, erccted

a grist mill on the present site, a small structure, but pretentious for the times,

and it 15 interesting to note that the door sill bearing the date of erection,

1816, is still to be seen in the structure.  The mill passed through various.

FAGTORY OF THE WILLIAM A GREENE CO . Limited.

and style, unsurpas . td The Greene Trade Mark is a guarantee of the
above mentioned quahties.

W. A. Greene, the enterpnung proprictor, 1s cminently well fited to
carry on the business, having a thorough working knowledge of all the details,
and under his progressive management a trade of large propostions has been
built up, about 200 hands bemg now employed, principally female help.  Mr.
Greene is one of the most represcatative men in his line of manufacture in
Canada. He is a hard worker and bestows. close atiention on the minutest
details of the business, and 1t 1s largely through his effonts that the goods manu-
factured have gained such a splendid reputation.

o 1906 Mr. Greene bought out the interests of the other sharcholders
and became sole propiictor. It is propeeed to further enlarge the factory and
add shirts to the line of manufacture at once.

A photogravurc of the factory appears with the wcci-mpanying wate-ur.

hands, eventually becorring the property of Jacob C. Snider, grandfather of the
present propnetor, who successfully conducted the business for a few years,
passing it on to his son Elias, who for a time was associated with his father in
the business. In the carly fiftics Elias Snider disposed of the business to
Mesus. Hoffman & Weber, who conducted it for a few years.  Elias Snider
again took possession about 1862, and since that time it has been continually
under the control of the Snider family.  Elias Snider retiring from active
business the mill passed into the hands of his son Williara, the present propric-
tor. who formed a partnership with his brother-inlaw Aaron Kraft, under the
firm name of Wm. Snider & Co., the partnership continuing until Mr. Kralt's
death, about eight years ago. When this firm took hold of the business
extensive improvements were made in building and machinery, and the mill
became one of the most modemly cquipped and progressive in the province.
Mr. Snidcr is a practical man. In his youth he entered the mill as an
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apprentice under his father, obtaining a thorough knowledge in all details of
the business. Under his management the business has made steady and
marked progress and expansion, making alterations repeatedly necessary. ‘The
large addition to the building at the rear of the main structure was made since
he assumed control, and other improvements, notably the putting in of an inde-
pendent railioad siding under adverse conditions and previous to the laying of
the Elmira extension of the G. T. R, tell of the aggressive and far sighted
business policy that has characterized his direction of its affairs.

To-day Waterloo’s mill is in
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committee. HHe served three years as chairman of the Free Library Board
and was also chairman of the Waterloo Horticultural Society for four years.

The Ghas. Mueller Cooperageﬁ

NE of Waterloo's industries

the fromt rank of Canadian mills,
and its product not only finds a
ready local sale, but its flour is ship-
ped to all parts of Canada and a
large portion to the British Isles.
The machinery and process of man-
ufacture are of the most modern
construction, including the up-to-
date full roller process and plan-
sifter method of bolting, opcrated
by both steam aud water power.
Every care is taken to secure the
best and most serviceable wheat,
such asthe best Ontario grown and
the celebrated Manitoha Hard.
The firm does a large amount of
chopping for the farmers of the
scction, in  addition to handling
large quantities of coarse grains, for
which purpose it has a purchasing
station at Newton, Ont.

In addition to building up a large and successful business, Mr. Snider ha.
found time, or made time, to take a share in the affairs of the town and
county. He has been a member of the Waterloo town council for many
vears, reeve under the old system for four years, and mayor for four more,
besides acting on the county council for a number of years, one of which he
was warden of the county. He has been a member of the park board of
Waterloo since its organization, and chairman for a number of vears. Mr.
Snider has brought to bear upon the public business the same progressiveness,
sound judgment and prudence as characterized the management of his ow.
business, and has proved one of the most efficient and valuable public men the
town has ever had. He is on the board of directers of the Mutuval Life of
Canada, vice-president of the Waterloo Mutual Fire Insurance Co., president
of the Canadian Millers’ Fire Insurance Co. and a member of the Torntu

Board of Trade.

Andrew Weidenhammer.

HE subject of this sketch was bomn ot Hadelberg in the year 1863, He
was educated at the Elmira public s.houl and Betlin Collegiate Institute,
after which he entered the teaching professiun, of which he was a mem

UNION MILLS WATERLOO

which has grown from small

beginnings and attained large
propottions is the cooperage busi-
- 2ss of Chas. Mueller. Its growth
has been gradual and sure and to-
day it is in the first rank of industries
of its kind in Canada.

The business was established in
Waterloo in 1873 by Chatles
Mueller, Sr., and occupied quarters
near the G. T. R. staton. Up to
1898 the barrels were made by
hand but in that year it was turned
into a machine enterprise and from a
small number of barrels per day
the output has increased to several

hundred.

In 1893 ]. Charles Mueller,
Jr., becanme manager, and under his
capable and progressive manage-
ment the business outgrew its pre-
mises and additions were made from time to time to the plant and buildings
until all the available space was taken up and the firm was forced to seek
larger premises.  Three acres of lai«l were secured ‘on Erb street in the West
Ward and large modern buildings erected and the most up-to-date cooperage
plant in Canada was installed, a photogravure of the building being shown
hetewith. A complete system of manufacture has been adopted, the raw
material in the form of staves entering at one end and systematically pro-
gresses until the finished barrel reaches the expert where it is tested under high
steam pressure so that none but perfect barrels are sent out.  The firm also
makes their own barrel hoops. The latest labor-saving devices are in use
and the loss of time reduced to a minimum by a perfect working system.
The output includes vinegar, whiskey, beer and other barrels and also pork
packers’ supplies, the daily capacity of the new plant being about 600
barrels.  The railway facilitics are of the very best, access being had to both
G.T. R.and C. P. R. and switches have been built into the yards by these
two companics.

J. Chas. Mucller is in every way qualified for the position of manager,
having grown up with the business and thus acquired a thoroughly practical
Knowledge of all the varnious details.  He is wide-awake and progressive and
tiass shown marked ability in the management of the business and it ‘was largely
duc to his initiative that it was

ber for over twenty years. He
hest taught at S. S. No. 12,
Woolwich, where he remained
three years, when he took
charge of the Hawksville school,
spending five years here. In
1891 he came to Waterloo
and joined the teaching staff of
the Central School, where he
served until 1903, when he be-
came cditor of the Baueenfreund,
a German newspaper published
at Waterloo. Dumag his resi-
dence in Waterloo he has taken
much intercst in its public affairs
and held a number of positions
of trust, Hehas been a mem-
ber of the town council since
January, 1904, and this year
was chaiman of the finance

THE GHARLES MUELLER GOOPERAGE.

changed in 1898 to a machine
cnterprise.  During the pasttwo
years he has occupied a scat at
the Council Board and this yezr
has been chairman of the Board
of Works committee.

Charles Mueller, Sr., is a
native of Baden, Germany,
being born there in 1836. He
came to Waterloo in 1853,
and was employed at the dis-
tillery where he was engaged
in the cooperage department
until he cmbarked in business
for himself. He has been a
respected and honoted citizen
for over 50 ycarsand a member
of the board of St. John"s Luth-
cran church for over 30 years.
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Bechtels.

RCHAEOLOGICAL research has demonstrated that the making of
A bricks is one of the most ancient arts known to civilization. Dis-
coveries in the ruins of buried cities that flourished centuries ago with
the birth of prehistoric civilization have proven this. Down through the long
line of centuries that followed, brick has been one of the standard building
materials of the people. With the progressive spirit the building arts have
kept pace, and during the past fiftcen years more has been accomplished than
in the preceding centuries  The rapid forward movement of commerce, the
accumulation of wealth and the scientific application of business methods have
worked a revolution modem requirements demand modern methods.

“The making of brick has perhaps mote than any other building matenal
shared in this progressivencss, as it 1s most commonly used in conslruction.  So
far as Canada is concemed, there 1s no brick manufacturing concern that has
mare readily appreciated or mote active'v entered into this sprit of progicss
than that of Bechtels, Watedoo  During a period of fifteen yearsthe firm has
established itselfl as Canada's leading brickmakers and improvers of brick m.aking
machinery. From an ordinary output of a few hundred thousand bricks a year it
has grown to the commarding capacity of over four millions and their improved
machinery and labor saving appliances are used throughout the whele of the
North American cortinent

B. E. Bechtel was brought up a brickmaker.  Fhs native town is Blair,
Ont., but he has resided in Waterloo for 30 years. IHe abandoned the claywork-
ing industry to go into the insurance business, in which he remained for several
vears; but returned to his first love in 1892, On taking charge of the plant,
he remodcled it entirely.  The firm owns here 40 acres of valuable clay land

Byron £, Bechtel.

The Late Isaac Bechtel.
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which is driven a constant current of hot air. Each row in the drier is of simi-
lar disposition, an air tunncl running the length of the row beneath two rests or
supports. When one row has been filled with the brick, it is covered over
and around with burlap. This burlap holds in the heat which is being driven
upwards through the brick, and the moisture sinking downwards finds its exit
underneath the edges of the hurlap on the floor.  About three pounds of
moisture are extracted from caci. »~zk, the brick weighing seven pounds at
the machine and four pounds when dried. The drying is effected in from 20
to 24 hours. The heat is obtained from the exhaust stcam from the two
engines.  This passes into 3,000 {t. of piping and through this piping the air
is drawn by a 100-in. fan, furnished by the McEachren Heating & Ventilat-
ing Co., of Galt, Ontazio. 'The air so heated is blown by the fans into one
mam tunnel header, running at right-angles to the tunnels under the rests or
supports. Each row of brick is 130 ft. in length and holds 17,000 brick.
\When dried, the brick are removed to the kilns by the same truck and on the
same pallets. This drier is the subject of onc of B. E. Bechtel's numerous
patents. Much of his time is spent in building this drier for bnckmakers m all
pats of the continent.

There are three down-draft kilns, holding from 75,000 to 80,000 brick,
and there is one up-draft kiln of 90,000 brick capacity. Slanting grates are
used.  Two of the kilns have five stacks and one kiln six stacks.  The power
of the plant is provided from a 40-h. p. Leonard engine and also from a
12-h. p. McEachren cngine. The buildings of the plant comprise a clay
shed, a two-story main building of frame, a one-story frame drier and a two-
story brick machine shop and one-story brick drier.  The plant also possesses
an outside drying shed equipment which is used in the summer time with a
capacity of 240,000 brick. The work is carried on from the first of Apiil to
the first of February.  AAbout 20 hands are employed, including the machine

Charles 11 Bechtel.

THREE GENERATIONS OF BECHTELS

situated on the limits of Berin and Watesloo, half the plant being in one 2ty
and half m the other.  The transportation facilitics are obtained over the Grand
Trenk. Canadian PMacific and Preston & Berlin electric freight and passenger
line, wlach 1s an auxiliary to the Canadian Pacific R. R.

Yhe day is procured from 250 to 400 {t away from the bnck machine.
1t is mmed with a Quincy clay gatheter of 2-3 cu. yd. capacity. The clay
is a muld surface clav, exteading from 6 to 12 fi.in depth.  Some consider-
able trouble was expenenced at first from the presence of limestone pebbles
which threatened to make proftable production impossible. To overcome
this. the Bechtel disintegrator was devised, and this satisfactonly removes all
stones and gives clay of umform quahty to the machine. It is exceedingly
simple m construction and requires litle power to run 1t The clay is stored
for winter us¢ 1n a large shed, but in the summer it is used straight from the
bank. The storage shed has a capacity of 500.000 brick.  The clay is fed
to the dismtegrator by an c'evator and from there passes to a screen and
through two small rolls with (hilt=d surfaces.  From here the clay goes into a
10-{t. honzontal pugmill and then into a Kells machine, from which it emerges
in a double stream and 1s cut into brick by the latest Bechtel automatie cutter,
The brick passes to a Leader repress, if necessary, but the ordinary brick are
then taken straight to the dner The drier is one of the simplest we have ever

scen, and, on first sight. one wauld deem it to be a freak because of this sim-
plicity, but there 1s no doubt that it does the vork effectively and cce .omicaliy.
The brick are taken from the machine to the Crier on the Bechte! trucks, beng
hacked on pallets holding 106 brick and stacked 10 high.  The truck 1s then
whedled to the drer floor and deposits the loaded pallet on two rests whih
run the whole length of the drier and beneath which is a brick tunnel through

shop and office force.  Three teams are used in the summer time.  The back-
yard at Waterloo was onginally started by a man named Oectzel some
thirty years ago, afterwards passing into the hands of George Moore and
Absalom Merner, who in turn disposed of it to the present ownersin 1890.

For three generations the Bechtcls have been identified with the brick
business, the onginal yards beng just above Watetloo.  Immediately on acquir-
ing the present business, the firm installed new machinery, kept pace with
improvements, and, in fact. in a business scnse, have themselves been the pace-
makers.  Their brick are made by what 1s known as the stiff mud system.
1he product 1s adouttedly equal to the more costly pressed brick, and in some
particulars superior, having all the advantages of the pressed article in the fine
cul face and the addwonal water bond. Bricks are made in all colors, with
white and buff as spectalties.  The kilns, drying apparatus and machinery ate
therr own design and are the most modern procurable.  These machines are
patented n Canada. United States and England, and combine efficiency and
economy and are n general use throughout Canada, und in many of the lead
ing yards of the United States, while other countries are rapidly recognizing
their merit, shipments having been made even to New Zealand.  The machine-
wmclude disintegrators and stone separators, automatic side and cnd cutters for
brick. tile and hollow blocks, and Bechtel's artificial and open air drices. With
the Bechtel machinery it 1s possible to run ten months in the year, as compare”
with six under the old system.

The accompanying engravings show portrails of three gencrations of th
family whose cnterprise and business ability has brought the brick making bus.
ness i Canadato a plane to be envied by their competitors throughout th
continent of .America,
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Conrad Bl" OS.

NE of the piosneer hardware firms of Waterloo county is that of Conrad

Bros. Established in 1857 by Jacob Conrad. Sr.. a photogravure

of whom appears with a group of the mayors on another page. lather

of the present proprictors. it has with cach year grown and prospered until it

now enjoys a large trade not only in the town but also numbers its patrons

throughout the surrounding community, and is one of Waterloo's most substan-
tial business houses.

The premises occupied, which are situated on King street, are thoroughly
stocked with a large and compichensive assortment of shelfl and heavy hard-
ware, cutlery, stoves, inware, paints, oils, glass and in fact everything usually
{ound in a first class establishment of this nature and m wrked at the lowest poss-
ible prices.  Tin, copper. galvanized iron and sheet iron work and gencral
jobbing is promptly attended to. A specialty is made of plumbing, heating and
gas fittings and their work in this hinc is nat confined to this county alone as they
ate frequently called upon to do work of this character in the larger cities.
They are also the sole manufacturers of the celebrated Dobbin Patent Down
Draught Drum.  Estimates are cheerfully furnished on application.

Mr. Jacob Conrad, St., the founder of the business is onc of Waterloo's
past mayers and scrved the towa in that capacity for several ycars.

Willam and Jacob Conrad, Jr.. who have conducted the business for the
past seven years are perseverning and cncrgetic busmess men as well as gener-
ous and courtcous gentlemen.  The former has scrved several years as a coun-

cilllor and for the past two yvears has been a member of the public school
board.

They built up their large trade upon the permanent basns of equitable
dealings together with low prices and honest represcatations.

SEMI-CENTENNIAL NUMBER.

Jacob Uffel manm.

ROMINENT among Waterloo's mercantile establishments is that of

Jacob Ulfelmann, which enjoys a wide popularity not only among the

town's people, but also throughout the surrounding disteict. It is a model
of a bright and up-to-date store, and the constantly increasing trade of the
business is a tribute to the enterprise with which it is being carried on.

The proprictor, Jacob Uflelmann, was bom in Watcrloo forty-six years
ago. where he was brought up, At the age of fifteen he apprenticed himself
to the late Theodore Bellinger, who conducted the Cemer Store at that time,
where he remamed four years, afterwards entering the employ of John Shuh
& Co.,who occupied the quarters where Mr. Uffelmann’s store is now located.
He remained with the firm for five years, when he entered into business for
himself at Breslau, conducting a general store at that place for three years,
when he sold out and removed to Elmira. He remained here for four years,
afterwards buying the stock of John Sluh & Co.. Waterloo, and conducted
the store in conjunction with his Elmira business, subscquently relinguishing the
latter business to confine his whole attention to the Waterloo store, which he
has carried on most successfully for the past fifteen years.

A complete and up-to-date stock is carried in the different departments,
and the store is i every way in a position to cater successfully to the wants of
the general public and is to be numbered in the foremost ranks of the mer-
cantile establishments of the county.

Mr. Uffelmann was for a number of yecars a member of the Waterloo
town council, and held the office of mayor for two years, 1904.05. being in
the latter year appointed a justice of the peace.

Shirk & Snider.

FHLE engraving below shows the mills of Shirk and Snider, Bndgeport.
They are among the pioneer mills of Waterloo county being built by the
late Jacob Shocmaker about the year 1830, by whom they were oper-

ated for twenty years. The business was taken over by Eby & Devitt about

the year 1850. Bamabas Devitt retired alter a time but M. Eby continued
in the business until 1870. At this date it was taken over by Shirk & Snider,
uider which name it has been run ever since, although Mr. Snider has long
since retired.  Peter Shirk, the present owner, has been connected with the
business continuously for the past thirty-six years. Since the mill was first built
there have been many changes in the process of manufacture and method
of shipment. Started with the tme honored mill stones these have long since
been discarded to give place to more modern machinery.  Inthe carly days the
flour had to be teamed to Dundas, the nearest market, and later to Beshin,

However, of late years through the enterprise of its present proprictor a spur

hne has been constructed by the Grand Trunk Railway right to the mills, doing

away with the tedious and expensive hauling of flour and wheat to and from

Berlin, the ncarest shipping point. In addition to a large local patronage this

mill also fills large orders {rom the castern provinces and other outside pomts.

SHIRK & SNIDER'S MILL. BRIDGEPORT.
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there being a strong demand for their well known brands of Buda, Neva, Pride,
Daily, Patent, Coino and Colorado.

Peter Shitk, who also owns and successfully operates the grist mill at
Baden, has an able assistant in looking after his large business in his son Geo.

Shirk, who having practically grown up in the business is familiar with every
detail of the work.

Lancaster Hotel.

HEN you go to Bridgeport by the Bedin
W and Bridgeport clectric line, the first stopping
place is at the comer where the Lancaster
House is situated.  If you requite meals or lodging.
John Grasser, the genial propricter, has all the
accommodation. This hotel is one of the old land-
marks of the county. erected over fifty years ago by
M. Bitzer. It has passed through the hands of
several propriclors, and tea ycars ago was bought
from Hallried Hundeshagen by the present landlord.
who has made many improvements and has now one
of the best suburban hotels in the county of Water-
loo. Mr. Grasser is 2 man who studies the requirements of his guests, and
company with his estimable wife thic hotel i1s conducted dlong the best possible
Lines, and no caller or guest ever lraves disappointed,  Besides the accommo-
dation for guests there is stabling lor about 23 horses and the traveller who
siays theie receives every attention.  Mr. Grasser contemplates making con-
siderable improvement and enlargement to the house to accommodate the
wcreasing trade winch lus first clies catenng has secured him.

JOHN GRASSER.

J. R. Schiedel.
NE of the popular institutions among resi-
O dents of Breslaw and also among the pros-
perous farmers of a wide surrounding coun-
try is the general store of J. R. Schiedel at Bredau,
which is under the progressive management of AL E.
Rickert. a gentleman thoroughly acquainted with all
the detatls of the store business and who 1s familiar
with the wants of the distnct.  So successful has this
mstitution been under the present proprictor that the
purchase was rccently effected of the old Bechtel
store on the opposte sde of the strect with the
object of combining the two businesses. A full line
of general dry goods. grocenes, hardware, boots and shoes, ctc.. is camied,
apeaaal attention bemg paid to supplying the need of the farmer.  Mr. Schiceddl,
the propuctor, is onc of the old and highly tespected tesidents of Waterloo
Townsdup, while Mr. Rickeri, who 15 yet a young man, is a son of the late
Philip Rikent of West Montrose, one of the county’s carly pioncess, who was
bomn at the ~ Two Brdges.” just south of Berdin, m 1835, A. E. Rickent’s
gran ather Lad the reputation of bemg one of the first tarlots in this county .

A E RIGREKRT

AARON BRICKRER.
Maper ol Dorhn

Vean's aldest nstive barn chiren and lor many vears
pracwenest in the spbuitdir g of the Lmm

F - Schaefer.

O Frederick Schaefer belongs the honor of being the awner of Breslau's
largest industry, the Breslau Brick and Tile Yard, which is also one of
the largest in the county. The brickyard presented a busy scene when

the writer visited it, about twenty men being hard at work and every one of
the four buming kilns was doing duty.

Besides the yards at Breslau Mr. Schacfer recently bought out the brick
business in New Hamburg which he is successfully conducting.  lnboth places
M. Schaefer has been fortunate in sccuring the fizest clay beds and these with
the improved machinery which he uses, enables him to turn out a first class
article of both tile and brick for which there is a constant and ready demand.

Mr. Schacfer is ably assisted in looking after hislarge business interests by
his three sons and thus finds time to take a hand in municipal affairs, being an
ex-reeve of Waterloo township, and at the preseat time having the honor of
being a member of the Waterloo County Council.

BRICKYARD OF FREDERIGK SCHAEFER AT BRESLAU.

H. Schade.

NE. of the best suburban general stotes in the County of Waterloo is the
O one kept by H. Schade at Badgeport.  The proprictor has a keen
conception of what the people of the naghborhood require and in

staple articles he has the goods in stock.  Mr. Schadc 1s a native of Waterloo
county. borm in Waterloo town, and previous to buying out the present business.
from John Zinkann had considerable experience in a mercantilé career. Since
acquinng the present business and premises he has made many improvements
and cnlargements rendered necessaty by the mercased business he  sccured.
He is one of those business men whom it is a pleasure to mnect. He has

about him a kind and ceurtcous manner that gives confidence to the cus.
tomer and his busintss policy is honest goods at honest prices.

In conncction with his general store business Mr. Schade is an active
partact in the firm of The G. M. Shuk Co,, who are extensive dealers in coal
and salt throughout a large portion of the county.

J Y. SHANTZ JOS. E SEAGRAM. M. P,

Ntk Watorloo's Representative.




ERLIN stands to-day where onc hundred years ago there was a dense
forest. In 1806 the first tree was cut down by the carly pioneers,
descendants of whom are numbered among the hundreds in this vicin-

ity. and the rough material was used in erecting houses and barns. The
stumps were pulled up and the fine farm land was ploughed and cultivated
for some ycars while the small handful of setilers steadily increased and by
mdustry and confidence, two leading virtues that have always characterized the
mhabitants of Betlin, the foundation was laid for this industrial centre.

Berlin did not become a town in a day, but its growth has been steady
and has been comparatively free from booms and their relapses.  The first
indications of growth were scen as early as 1816, when a goodly number
amived in Betlin after the war of 1812-14. The first industry of the town was
a blacksmith shop opened during 1830 by Phincas Varnum, who also owned
the first hotel, and the same year a store svas opened by William. David and
Frederick Millar. In 1835 the Mennonite settlers erected the first church,

Kranz, John Motz, Wm. Oclschlager and others, and joined with their Penn-
sylvania and German predeeessors in building up the town. The Breithaupt
and Lang tanneries were crected about 1850, and both of these institutions
are now the largest in the Dominion, and their tanned leather has done much
to advertise Derlin throughout the world.

The three pioncer industries of the town are the furniture, leather and
butten manufactories, but dusing the last thirty years numerov other industries
have been added. among them those for the manufacture of boots and shoes,
shirts and collars, gloves and mitts, cte.  Important productions of Berlin factories
are: houschold and office furniture. interior hardwood decorations, store fixtures,
pianos, leather, wood-warking machinery, boilers and engines, fumaccs, gas and
gasoline engines, shitts and collars, rubbers, boots and shoes, felt goods, trunks,
valises, suspenders, gluc, rebes and clothing. clocks, lager, cigars, gas and electric
meters, aluminum goods, whitewear goods, overalls. shoe and stove blacking,
sugar, doors and window sashes, as well as many other lines.

CARNEGIE LIBRARY, BERLIN

which was also used as a schiolheuse, « nd was presided over by one of the
lounders of the towa, Bishop Benjamin Fhy.  Thi formed a nucleus for a
thaving wliage, ats central localitv n the then settled part of the county atiract-
g considerable trade.  Previoue to 1830 there were twn sureesdul furmture
bactones cstablished in Bezlin, the one belomgng 10 S yjeem and . \ldous. 1n
which about $25.000 wwth o manulactured gowdine e tuined out annuaily.
ard the otker owned by lsaac Hoffman, where 20 mon were emploved.
In connecticn with the former induany there v a luss 2 am jump factory.
abuch was the first in this pant of the countre  In 1032 Berin was selected
a the county town. and in 1834 the town war teon L baving a poge
btwm of over 2,200, In 1856 the front porting of 1 i teersit Uentral Scheo |
was erected,

MANUFACTURERS PAST AND PRI SEN

~After the incorporation «f Balin ac a towz 4 be ravnbez f Gernnan

e armved, amongset them Frams Lows Broabonr 80 -0 ndt | e, T ugn

TOWN OF BEAUTIFUL HOMES.

While Betlin is widely known as a busy manufaclurng town and as a
town of large and numerous mezcantile establishments, the educational, rehigious
and arsthetic side of hfe has not been forgotten It is famous as a town of
beautiful homes, neatly kept lawn® and boulevards, and it & a fact frequently
commented on that a larger propottion of Berlin's reddents own the houscs
they lve in than is the case in perhaps any other town of its size in Canada,
The cducational advantages offered are not excelled in any place the gze of
Betlin. There are four well-equipped public schools. a scparate school, Col.
legiate Institate. including domestic science and manval teaining, St. Jerome's
College and the Betlin Business College.  Recreation 1 afforded by \'ictena
Park, one of the finest in Canada, an auditorium that can be used summer and
winter and accommodates thousands, bowling green. athitic sports of all kuds,
opera house, the 2%h Regiment Band aad the Perin Choral Cluls. Bebin
also has some of the finest church edi ers i 1'e provre e amd new ~dhees
will be erected this vear.
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LOCAL IMPROVEMENTS.

The population of the town is estimated at 12,141, and its assessment
now amounts to $5,416,210. From $50,000 to $60,000 is spent annually
on local improvements, which provide work for hundreds of laborers.  The
sidewalks are neatly all of cement and the road-beds are being constantly
improved.

OWNS ITS PUBLIC UTILITIES.

Berlin owns its watcrworks plant, and the quality of water is decidedly
pure, while the pressuce for fire protection is very satisfactory. The light and
power plant is also owned by the municipality and has been placed on a pay-
ing basis. The average price of electricity and gas is lower than in most towns
and cities with a population of over 10,000. This year the ratepayers will
decide upon the question of securing control of the Berlin-Waterloo strect railway
franchise. The sewerage system of the town is onc of the most extensive and
complete on the continent. being constructed at a cost of over $65,000. It has
been operated very successfully, and the Ontatio government recognized the

SEMI-CENTENNIAL NUMBER.

The G. V. Oberholtzer Company,
Limited.

IGHTEEN years ago the fim of Armburst & Oberholtzer began the
manufacture of boots and shoes. On the death of Mr. Armburst in
1891, Mr. Oberholtzer acquired his partner's interest and conducted
the business until 1900. In that year, shortly before he also died, the present
stock company was organized. The officers are: N. B. Detweiler, president
and treasurer ; D. B. Detweiler, vice-president : O. Kinzie, secretary.  Under
the new management changes have been made in business policy and in manu-
facturing. The 2im of the firm is to make the best staple and medium foot-
wear possible to skilled workmanship and modern machinery. It is enter-
prising manufacturers like the firm who are creating a new name for
Canadian shoes aud putting them on a par with the product of any other
country. The Oberholtzer shoes are known for excellence of leather and style
of cut.
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VIEW OF VICTORIA PARK. BERLIN

enterprise of the ratepayersn the solution of the vexed problem of the disposal of
sewage of wland towns by voting $4.U00 towards the cost of its construction.

MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT.

The <iviz governm=n! is on a sound bams. The waterwosks, lighting
plant, sewer system and the parks ate under the supervigon of commissions
composed of somc of Berlin's leading busmess men and heaviest taspayers.
The town council, school boards and bbrary board are cffiacnt and the wel-
farc of the town 1s carclully looked after by the members.  The 1ax r2te of the
towa for the last two years has been 19, mills, and all local improvements are
made under the frontage tax system.

Berlin begins the second century of ats existence with the brghtest pros-
pects of continued growth and prospenty. A hundred years has witnessed the
ruc of a city, in size if not in name, and it is next to impossible to predict what
will be Balin's future growth during the coming years, suffice it to say that
there s nothing to prevent the town from increasing in rize o long as the
Dominion of Canada continucs 1o grow and its large arcas of land in New
Ontaric and the Northwest are purchased by the thousands of settlers who
arz ammiving in Cznada in increasing aumbers from year to year.

The Economical Mutual Fire Insurance
Gompany.

EOPLE have come to realize that only that insurance s valuable that
teally insures only those companics are worth patronizing that pay
Tosses as well as collect premiuins.

Onec of the most substantial of Canadian msurance companics i the Eco-
nomical Mutual Fire Insurance Company of Berlin, Now in the thirty-fourth
vear of its existence 1t is stronger and more prosperous thancver.  The officers
and dircctors are nearly all Berlin business men and all of them men of prom-
inence and financial standing. A strong Board and carclul, conservative man-
agement have made the Economical a safc company popular with the best
commercial concemns as weli as an insursace of residence property. Ther
government deposit i3 larger than that of any other Ontario Cash Mutwal
Company.

The officers of the Company are: John Fennell, president; Geo. C. H.
Lang. viee-president: John A, Ross, inspector; W. H. Schmalz, manager and
sccretary.
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RIVERSIDE PARK. BRIDGEPORT, NORTH BANK OF GRAMD RIVER.

Berlin's Beautiful Suburb.

A BEAUTIFUL subutb of Berlin is the village of Bridgeport, about two

miles distant, picturesquely at-
uated on the Grand River.
The large flouring mill is one of the oldest

wdustrics in Waterfoo County. Long be- =

fore the days of the building of the Grand
Trunk Railway, Bridgeport was a busy
centre of manufacturing  without machin-
ery -and trade.

The trolley line 10 Bridgeport tiav-
erses the north ward with its many fac-
tories including the plant of the Ontario
Sugar Company.

The Belin & Bridgeport  Sticet
Railway Company has at its Bndgepont
terminus a beautiful park of about scven
actes located on both sides of the nver.
In the patk on the high nesth bank of the
river is located the Company's hardsome
well appointed Casino, a substantial
two-storcy concrete building cighty by
fity fcct, containing a beautiful con-

cert hall with polished maple floor and a kitchen, dining roam and all

i OV S -

ONE OF THE FINE CARS OF THE BERLIN § WATERLOO STREET RY.

modem conveniencies. Extending the length of the building there is a

two-storey covered veranda overlooking
the river.  The park on the south
bank has a large basehall and footbalt
ground. A ferry boat working back
and forth on trolley connects the two
banks of the river and row boats, etc.,
are also provided. There is also a
bath house and an attendant supplics
bathing swts. A carctaker living in a
nzat dwelling on the Company’s grounds
is in attendance constantly throughout
the season.

Entertainments, concerts, band con-
certs, clc., are provided during the
scason. The Company has ample and
commodious facilitics to handle very large
crowds.

The park with its appurtenances
affords onc of the most beautiful picnic
and recreation grounds in Ontario. It
is ideally situated and during the sum-

mer months affords a place of recreation and pleasure for thousancs.

RIVERSIDE PARK. SOUTH BANK OF RIVER.
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The Bank

HIS well known institution was established in the city of Hamilton thirty-

five years ago, and has now grown to be onc of the foremost financisl

institutions in the Domirion of Canade. It has always been the policy of
the Bank of FHamilton to be abreast of the times, and they now have branches
throughout the country as far west as the Pacific coast.

The president of the Bank 15 the Honorable William Gibson, one of the
leading members of the Dominion Senate, and with him oa the directorate of
the Bank arc associated men of the highest standing in the financial life of the
country. The general manager is James Turnbull, a man of ~xceptional
ability and of the highest busincss integnty.

The Berlin branch was opened about twelve vears ago under the man-
agement of O. D. Clatke, who has since been promoted to the position of
wspector.

C. L. Laing, the present agent, has been in the service of the Bank for
over fifteen yeats, and is a carcful and painstaking manager. He is assisted
by a capable and intelligent staff, the members of whick are always zeady to
give prompt and courtcous attention to the customars of the Bank.

From the time of its inception in Berlin the Bank of Hamilton has always
done a large and successful business, which has been largely due te the sound
berdanss methods of the Bank of Hamilton, which the puphic quickly realized
and took advantage of. The Savings Bank Department is a favorite place for
people who have money to deposit, because the depositors are always accorded
the best of service and can always get their money when they want it.  They
also reccive the highest cunent rate of compound interest.

THE BANK
THAT PAYS
INTEREST -}-

4

TIMES A

The
Sovereign Bank
ot Ganada

SEMI.CENTENNIAL NUMBER.

of Hamilton.

The-agent and siaff arc always willing to give the fullest information 1o
those swishing to open accounts with the Bank.

"

BERLIN BRANGCH OF THE BANK OF HAMILTON.

THE SOVFREIGN BANK OF CANADA

has 67 Uranches in Canad.. and an agency at 25 Pine Strect, New York
City. Organized less than five years age, the Sovereign Bark openad for busi-
ness on st May, 1902, with a paid up capital of about $300,000. This
has been graduzlly increased until it now stands at neady four million dollars.
During {our years' aperations a reserve fund of over one and a quarter million
of dollars has accumulated, partly from premiums cn stock and partly from profits.

i YEAR | The comparative statenent recently issued by the Bank gives centiscly a
resume of the Bank's progress since organization :
LIABILITIES.

o ANET #ROFI ".\"A - . 7R"’""7' h;;’l"::‘:'- . —T o - *%ﬁ o Aty
_ _ 1 20k Apnd b: 1 v andg . bo"'&::_"&“h Depostts ' Balances die Total Laluhitiea E:y:‘:if:&::;?
_ Amount o ‘;E:’;;;f o bod vy {.".:‘" i Circslation . to other Banks W the Public tu the Peblic.

$51.235 436 1903 $LIO38T6 § 324360 $ 859375 33252916 $ 45,102 $4.157.396  $1.618236
o760 921 | 1903 1300000 372363 1091865 5091453 148363 0931711 1672363
133975 1030 1905 1300000 426,026 1.198,i50  8316,205 428.885 9943280 1,720,626
187467 1035 19006 3585410 1.277.400 1416050 118582906 431,853 13,706,199 4862810
ASSETS
DIVIDENDS P'AID N | Cerht o Haned ornds Gommercml . lmmediately Bank Premines
Ion Age and Dehentere Leans -y Ca'l Loars ! Available and other Total Faacin
Armonrl Fer Cenr st [tanie 3 [ AN | and Discounta Ascela Anzels .
- ‘ ! —— - ! - .~ e
. ! : -
$ .. . 1903 $ 837580 & 465939 §1.7159063 g $2,700.642 : $3,019.492 $ 16498 $5,775.032
63,000 5 14 LI57.850 3458 1960160 T 4760613 | 3782448 | 61013 . 8.604.074
67.0\"(] 3 [0 1626551 #3294 2288017 1 6632665 4.7406,359 « 290,842 : 11669500
102923 t Pritve, 2615287 91654 292731 11,691,782 . 6429672 ' 447555 : 18.369,009
! ! i

The general marager. D VM Newan, 15 one of the most capable men m
Conada, arnd the manvellas prewth of the Sovereigre Ponk 1 1o a large extent
duc 1o the able management of M Stewan, assisted by a very efficient Liead
office staff and excellent bank maragas, of whkom H Fied Boclneer, mor-
ager of the Detln ofcr. « onr of the mest sueereta! The Beds, Loan by

- - R - e — - -

opened m October last, and has already sccurrd a finc and remunerative
busiscss. The Sovercign Bank has over cleven hundred sharcholders and
wearly fifty thousand customers. 1t has made a special cffort to induce small
Jeps itors to make vse of the Pank, and pavs of cempounds imetedt on savings
urents four tmes & year.
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The Brelthaupt Leather Go.
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L. J. BREITHAUPT, ox.M. P P., President of the Breithaupt Leather Co.

HE Breithaupt Leather Co. has the distinction of being one of Berlin's
pionecr institutions. The business was founded in the year 1857 by the
late Louis Breithaupt, who came to Americu at the age of sixteen

years and started in buginess with a capital of $90, and in spite of disastrous
fir>s in 1869 and 1871, M. Breithaupt undaunted, built anew. cach time
arger and hetter than before.  Upon his death 1880. the business was
centinued by his wife and sons for the benelit of the family, and in 1890 th
present Joimt Stock Corapany was formed, with Louis J- Brenthaupt as presi-
dent and Joln C. Breithanpt as secretary.  Both have been brought up in the
trade, and are not cnly cxperienced business men, but also practical tanners.
The Corapany now owns and operates three extensive tannenics in Berlin,
Penetang and Listowel, where the tanning of solc leathes is cngaged in on a
large scale, their product being populaddy known from the Atlantic to the
Pacifc and alio in Great Britain. The Penctang tannery on the shores of

JONN G. BREITHAUDPT. Sweretary of the Breithaupt Leatkae Go.

6S

Georgian Bay is the Company's largest plant and with the large new additions
and modern equipment added during the past year it is the model sole leather
tannery of Canada and can aione produce &G0 sides of sole leather a day.
The Company's large and constantly expanding business furnishes employment

to a large number of men, most of whom have been with the Company for
many years.

The late Mr. Breithaupt was largely isterested n Berlin real estate, hav-
ing bought property when others did not believe in Berlin's future as he did and
was probably the largest individual property owner in the town. The town's

great progress has amply justified his expectations and proven his sound judg-
ment,

Like their father, the present heads of the business are public spirited
citizens, holding various public offices and giving ungrudgingly of their time in
forwarding the interasts of their town and country.

It 1s interesting to note here that Mrs. C. Breithaupt is the oldest native
lady resident of Berlin, having scen Berlin grow frem a hamlet to a prosperous
cily. She is still active and vigorous ard in the enjoyment of good healtls,

s v —

ERLIN buttons beautify the clcthes of all America. “The Jacob Y.
Shantz & Son Company of Berlin and Bufialo are the largest button
manufactuters on the continent and pioneers of the industry in Canada.

In 1870 Jacob Y. Shante built a small factory on King street, Berlin,
and made the first Canadian buttons. By perseverance and careful business
management the business steadily grew, demanding larger and larger quarters
until in 1893, some time after Mr. Shantz's sons had become partners, they
moved into the large factory on Water street. It is four stories high with a base-
ment for storage or raw materials. The eatire building is fitted out with the
best of modem machinery, much of which is designed and made in their own
machine skop. The factory is uniformly lLeated, is lighted by electricity from
the Company’s own plant, and has complete fire proteetion. The machinery is
driven by stcam power.

We, who use such countless buttons, and as thoughtlessly as pins, seldom
pause to consider what a miracle of transformation from the crude material each
one represents, if indeed we know the original substance at all,

The Shantz & Son Cempany manufacture from vegeteble ivory, horn and
mother of pearl.  The ivory forests of South America yield their rough brown
nuts to native pickers, who float loads of them in odd little native boats down
the stream to the coast. Traders. largely German. take possession of the
cargoes. and the nut. find their way through Hamburg and New York buyers
to the button factories.

From the shores of the Mediterrancan, the coasts of China and the West
Indics. are brought the large shells from which pearl buttons are cut, They
look like large clam shells heaped in the buckets beside the machines.

All kinds of buttons. plain and of fanciful designs. are made in this factory
and for these crude materials skilled operatives are necessary and the Company
make every cffort to retain for years a clever workman. Ower 130 hands are
employed in the Berlin plant and nearly as many in the works a1 Buffalo.
From these two factories thousands of boxes are shipped daily to wholesalers
in the large citics of Soth Notth and South Amcrica. 100,000 buttons is a
day’s output at Bertin.  The Company casily holds its rank at the head of the
button manufacturers of the Americar continent.

In 1895. the business was incorporated as a joint stock company. The
officers are D. B. Shantz, president, and S. Brubacher. sceretane
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J. B. Gateman.

NE of the most interesting of Berlin's
many industries  that of ). B. Gate-
man, maker of fine celluloid combs, hom

har pins and novelties, which in spite of two
disastrous fires, 15 domg a rushing business. Mr.
Gateman s a well known citizen of Berlin, hav-
ing hved here for twenty years. He was bom
in the county of Grey and has had a large
experience both in the button business and the
line in which he is now engaged.
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J. B. GATEMAN.
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A. G. Quickfall.

ICTORIA ICE are two words that stand out in large letters on the

huge delivery wagons of A. C. Quickfall, who does his share in keep-

ing down temperatures on hot sultry days.  Albert C. Quickfall is a son
of Richard Quickfall, of near Bridgeport, and since purchasing the Victoria
Lake Ice Plant two years ago, has done a large and successful business.
Besides his ice business Mr. Quickfall makes a specialty of cement bricks,
window and door sills, etc., being the owner of a splendid sand pit within the
corporation limits, and these he has also worked up a considerable business.
He also found time to build several houses since taking up his residence on
David Street, thus showing his progressiveness as a citizen.
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LANG BROS_
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The above illustration shows the new store of Lang Bros. & Co.. Berlin, which is onc of the most up-to-date stores in Waterloo County. Their
special departments are dress goods, ladics' ready-to-wear goods, mantles and furs, linens and ladies’ furnishings, also carpets

linoleums, wall paper, curtains and window shades.

The firm has surounded itsell with a staff of efficient

and courtcous hielpers who are at your service. The firm’s motto is: Good goods and goed value.

J. R- Ha“man.

NE of the nsing youag business men of the town 1s ] R Hallman, who
two years ago opened up an exclusive gents furmishing business n
. Berlin,  Starting in a modest way in a pant of the present premises,
the bisiness grew so rapidly that at the end of the first year he was forced to
enlarge his premises in order to properly handle the increased trade. Mr.
Hallman is a fimn believer in the adage that what is worth doing is worth
doing well, and has fumished his store with the finest interior hardwood fittings
and all the latest appliances for the hest display of gocds, at heavy expense, with
the result that he has now what is generally conceded one of the finest and
most vp-to-date stores of its kind in the province.  The large stock has been
sclew.d with the greatest care, and comprises, Lesides many noveltics, cvery-
thing which the well diessed man requircs.
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Stuebing & Smith.

MONGST Betlin's many mercantile institutions is the firm of Stucbing &
A Smith, wholesale importing jobbers in stationery, fancy goods, musical
supplics. their office and warcrooms being located above the Bank of
Commerce on King Street, with entrance on Frederick.  This business was
started in 1858 by Bocdecker & Stuching, who sold out to Stacbler & Breit-
haupt, from whom the present proprictors purchased the business in 1883.
This firm handles all kinds of up-to-date stationery, fancy goods, cte., and have
on the road travellers 10 cover the country where there s an ever inctcasng,
demand for ther popular line of goods. Louis Stuching and J. S.
Srath are both Germans and har e had over thiny years' experience in the
business.
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E. O. Ritz & Co.

CITY DRUG STORE OF E O RITZ & CO. tloimerly J E Newilla's)
NE of the model pharmacies of Waterloo County 1s the drug store of
E. O. Ritz & Co., King Street, Berhn. It 15 jJust a year since the
firm bought out the old established business of J. E. Neville, who was
compelled to retire owing to failing health, but that short period of time has
witnessed a transformation of the old premises, and a large and gratifying
increase in the business. A handsome new {ront has been put in and the old
fixtures replaced by new ones of finest quartered vak and the interior otherwise
overhauled and redecorated.  Besides carrying a large and well assorted stock
of drug sundries, the firm are the owners of Neville's celebrated standard
preparations and Schaefer's Condition Powders: in both they do a large
business, as well as a good preseription trade.  E. O. Ritz, who 15 a graduate
of the Ontario Coliege of Pharmacy. is not new to the people of Berlin, hav-
ing been with Mr. Neville for seven years before buying out us old employer.
He is young, affable and encrgetic and his success is already assured.

Dr. Gampbell.

LSEWHERE in this issue will be seen two fine tepresentatives of the
E Hackney breed of horses, the properiy of Dr. Campbell, of Bahn,
who has kindly contributed the cuts to illustrate these pages. Since

the Doctor has located hete he has always taken a lively interest in the
advancement of agriculture in general, being for several years a director of the
Farmers” Institute and Agricultural Socicty.  He has, however, interested him-
sclf more particularly in the improvement of the horse.  After a careful study
of the nceds of this county with regard to the improvement 1 horses, he con-
cluded that the heavy breed interests were well taken care of and also the light
breeds intended for speed.  But the most useful of all. the horse adapted for
any purpose, had no typical representative in our county. IHe was instrumental
in bringing to Berlin for sale the imported Hackncy stallion ** Dante,” and aker
scveral weeks' endeavor to effect a sale for him he purchased him alone, and
now as his stock are coming into service, ** Dante ™ is in greater demand than
cver, which spcaks well for the Doctor's judgment in sclecting a representative
of the middle class.  Within the past year the Doctor has purchasea another
member of the same family of the Hackney breed. a fine five year old. in
" Royal Drev ton,” believing that the first principle in breeding is 10 sclect from
the best family and then select the best you can find of that family. It is well
wotth knowing that the strain of * Denmark ™ (177) is the strain all breeders

of Hackneys, especially in England are following for the reason that all the
grand champions are of this blood. In lineage “Dante" stands thrce steps
from "Denmark™ and from “Royal Drewton” five. The grand sire of
* Royal Drewton,” * The Matchless of Londsborough,” stands an unbeaten
champion both in England and America, having been imported to America in
1889. In 1895 he was retired from the show ring unbeaten, and in 1906,
at the age of 22, he was bought by one of the most prominent Hackney
breedersin the Old Land, and returned to England to retain his good qualities
and have them transmitted to future generations. Farmers of the county are
to be congratulated in having at their service two such fine specimens of smooth,
round, compact, active horse, represented in the breed in question.

The Berlin Suspender and Button Co.

WORKS OF THE BERLIN SUSPENDER AND RUTTON GO.

HE Berlin Suspender & Button Co. was established in Berlin in 1895,
Tundcr the management of C. K. Hagedomn. From a small industry,
which was located above the Market Grocery, it steadily grew, and in
1900 the preseat large and commodious building was erected on King Street,

with a total floor space of over 10,000 square feet. The additional accom-

modation provided more roomn for the latest” improved machinery and an

increased number of hands, thiity being employed at the present time.

The firm manufactures suspenders of all kinds and armlets, and job in
buttons, rubber collars and tailors” trimmings. The staff of travellers cover the
Dominion from Sidney, Cape Breton, in the cast. to the Klondike. and every
year has shown a splendid incicase in business. The Northwest and British
Columbia- trade is receiving special attention and shipments atc being made
almost daily.

The firm has adopted the accompanying trade-mask, which is stamped on
every suspender manufactured.  The 50-cent suspender is guaranteed to give
satisfaction. Recently the firm commenced the manufacture of “ The Fault-
less™ suspender, which was invented and patented by one of the cmployces.

The style is shown in the accompanying cut. It is exceedingly comfortable to

the wearer, as it adjusts itsclf to the slightest movement.  For the short time &
has been oa the market its sale has been unusually large.  Mr. Hagedom, the

manager. is a1 enterprising manufacturer and devotes his best attention to his

growing industry.
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The American Motor Gar Co., Ltd.

NE of Bedin's rapidly growing industries 1s that of the American
Motor Car Co.. Limited. They not only enjoy the distinction of
being among the first in Canada to manufacture automobiles, a large

number of which ate at pretent in daily operation, but they are the fust in
Canada to manufacture multiple cylinder gas and gasoline engines for general
purposes.  Their TWENTIETH CENTURY Engines are built on the
threc cylinder principle, and though very light they ate exceptionally strong
and durable. These engines are espeanlly adapted for operating clectrical
machinery, threshing machinery, grinders or any machinery where a smooth
and steady power is required. A very complete catalogue giving {ull informa-
tion of this type of engine will be sent upon request.
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WORKS OF THE ONTARIO SUGAR CO . LIMITED

OHN DURRANT was bom in Suﬁo\k
County. England, on the -4th of Apnl,
1791, and cmigrated to Canada in 1831,

settling in Waterloo Township on Lot 78, G.C.T.,
i 1833, Thi fam was at that time situated in
a wilderness of wood. v his own industry, assist-
ed by that of lus wife and family. he cleared up
and brought into culivation the farm at present
known as Fristoue Villa farm, at present owned
Ly his voungest son Matthew Durrant. The sub-
ject of this sketich was a gentleman of the gen-
winie old English tvpe. jollv. jouial and robust, fond
of a joke, always ready to lend a helping hand
to those in need, and at the same time sugainmg a dignsfied claim to his own
independence.  He was a respected member of the Methodist Church for
over forty vears,and to h< enargy may be largely atnbuted the bulding u)» of
that soacty, as well as the erection of the present church at Wintethoume | of
which he was a steward for many vears and up to the time of lus death.  In
polities he was a staunch Reformer of the Old William Lyon McKenzie type.
He died on the farm named at the tipe age of 91 years and 25 days.

TUE LATE 10NN DURRANY

MAIN STREET, BERLIN.

The Berlin Business Gollege.

D. EULER, whose cut
appears here, s well
known as the cnergetic

principal of the Berlin Business Col-

lege. Since he took charge of the
college in 1902, the attendance has
morc than trebled and the school has

become one of the largest and best in +

Ontario. It has been duly incorpor-

ated and will this year have an at- ¢

tendance of more than 150 students
The principal is personally known
to the wholec business commurity.

This fact. togcther with the high

standard of cflictency maintained by

the college, brings so many calls for
bookkeepers, stenographers and other
office help to the college office that
the demand can not be fuily supplicd.

The employment department of the

school is thus a great benefit to our business men and to the students.

Real, practical b_siness education is to-day the most useful in the world.

its value to farmers, mechanics and others is so well recognized apant from s

valuc asa stepping-stone in the business office, that during the winter months many

students are in attendance to obtainin a short time a useful knowledge of business
arithmetic, bookkecping. penmanship, businesslaw, cerrespondence and spelling.

Mr. Euler takes a close interest in educational and business affairs.  He
is a valued member of the Berlin Public Schodl Board, a member of the Board
of Trade and is examiner and vice-president of the Business Educators’ Asso-

cation of Canada, which body will mect next year at the Berlin Business
College in annual convention.

-~

W. D. EULER.

AHRENS ST FROM QUEEN. - Onc of Beslins Resniential Streets.
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St. Jerome’s Gollege, Berlin, Ont.

T. JEROME'S COLLEGLE. of Berhn, Ontario, Canada, was founded
by the Very Rev. Lowms Funcken, C. R., D. D., with the approbation
of Rt. Rev. J. Farrell, Bishop of Hamilton, and 15 conducted by the

Fathers of the Congregation of the Resurrection. It was incorporated by Act
of Parhament, August 15th, 1860.

At the death of Rev. L. Funcken, 1890, Rev. Theo. Spets. C.R. D.D.,was
appointed president.  He held the office untl 1901, when Rev. John Feh.
tenbach, C.R., D.D.. was appomted to succced hun.  Rev. A. L. Znger,
C.R.. Ph. L., M. A, now president, receved the appomtment i 1905,

The grounds arc extensive, the buldings are roomy and afford splendid
accommodation for a large number of students.  The most approved system of
ventilation, gas and electric hghting, hot water heating, water works, sewerage,
laundry, fire escapes and other features of modern comfort have been adopted.
Reception rooms, a gymnasium, spacious play grounds and garden. and the city
park two blocks distant, offer ample facilities for exercise,games and amusements.

It 1s the object of the college to give Catholic boys and young men a higher
education and to prepare themn for professional studies and also for business
Life, to teach them the habuts and principles of honorable living and to develop
natural talents in every tespect.  Non-Catholic students, if well recommended. are
admitted and, while direct interference with their religious duties is not intended,
they are required to assist at common religious exercises and moral instructions

DISCIPLINE.

Regulanitv and order in a community depend on exact

——— e g e
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A GENERAL VIt O THE COLLUGE

obedience to the rules of disciphine, there can be no successful moral trammng
without it.  The mortals and conduct of cach and tvery student must be the
abyects of carcful observanon, paternal sohicntude and persoral attention.  The
rules of order and disciphine are laid down at the bequnnng of eveny vear and
a copy of them is furushed to every student.  Shont lectures on moral subijects
are given before mght studies several mes o wedk.

HYGIENF.. Games and amusemer ts ate atall times enc oumgrd among
the students.  The good effects of Invely exerase in the open air upon the
health and physical development of bove are well hnown.  \n athletc ase 0
iion 18 a standard  feature of the college and all are obliged to contnbute
towards the maintenance of i and out-door sports  Faery altention it gaven to
the health and comfort of the students and evers care taken to accustom them
1o habits of ncatness and cleanliness.  Good substantial boatd 1« consdered a
secessary condition of health and strenuous work The buddings, halls, rooms
wd domitorics are spacious. comfortable and w-I! kept.  In case of sickness
*he students receive speaial attention liom an wfirmanan, and i senous liness

1e placed. at a special rate, i the splendidly cquipped aty hosptal where the
«n best attention of phyacians and trazacd nutses 1s always available,
STUDIES. St Jetome's College offers to students wha wish to prepare
« commercial pursuits a business comrse, to students who wish to prepare tor
tlessional studics, such as law. mediane, engineenng. pharma v, dentstry,
- «, a High School coutse, contaming the studies sequired by the Board of Fdu.
whon of Ontario aud usually required for matnculation m umversities of the U mited
“tates, and 1o those who intend to study for the Church of wha aspire to acquire
lagher knowledge required for academic degrees, a college or ants course.

THE COMMERCIAL COURSE. Tke studies of the commercial
course are intended for those who wish to acquite a good English business
education ; they are English reading, spelling, grammar and composition, with
some knowledge of standard LEnglish authors, penmanship, arithmetic, book-
keeping in various forms, the use of commercial papers, comespondence, com-
merctal law, geography and religious instruction.  Business college features, such

as shorthand and typewnting are taught in this course.

THF., HIGH SCHOOL COURSE. Students who enter college to

prepare for professional studies, such as law, medicine, pharmacy, dentistry,
engineering, etc., will find in the High School course all that is usually required

for matriculation in the universitics of Canada and the United States. The

studies are those of a liberal education and are presented as follows: Latn,
Greek, German, French, English. grammar, syntax, composition, rhetoric, study
of authors, mathematics, arithmetic, algebra, geometry. Hstory: Great Britan
and Canada, United States, ancient history and mythology. Natural science :
physiology, gcology, botany. physics and chenustry, drawing, peamanship and
christian science.  Specaal facilities are offered for the study of the modern
languages: German, French, Italian and Polish.
THE COLLEGE. OR ARTS COURSE.

First year (Freshman)  Latin, Greeh. Enghsh, German, French, higher

mathematics, natural science, history, religion.

Second year (Sophomore) lLatn. Greek, English, German, French.
mathematics, natural science. histary, religion.

Third vear (Junior)  V.ogies, general metaphysics, ethics,  political
cconomy, Latn, Greek. Fnghs! . German, French, mathemats, histery,
satural science, relygon.

Fouith vear (Scnior)  Ontology. cosmology, psychology, n:tural
theology. h'story, Lztin, Greek,

Eoghsh, German, French, re-

higion.

REV ALUBERT L. ZINCER.CR.PA L M A
President St Jetome's Cellege

SUPPLEMENTARY STUDIES.  Supplementary studies embrace
optional branches of cducation that are not included in the tegular course. but
which contribute an ornamental part, as it were. to the accomplishments of the

students.  Music, indrumental and vocal, clocution. debating. dramatics and
gvmnasiies belong to this class.

THE LIBRARY. A library consisting of about 7000 volumcs is at
the disposal of the students. A well furnished reading room affords students
an opportunity of employing leisure hours in profitable reading.

THE LABORATORY.  The natural science laboratories are equipped

with the latest apparatus and supplics for the illustration of gencral courses in
phyacs. chemistry, astronomy and biology.

COLLEGE ORGANIZATIONS. The principal organizations of St.
Jetame's are the following: The Schoolman Staff who cdit the college maga-
snc: the Literary and Dramance Socicty. St. Ludwig’s Literanscher Verein
(German Laterary): St. Aloysius” Society (Juntor Literary); the students’ Total
Abstinence Union : the League of the Sacted Heart; the Altar Socicty ; the
College Orchestra; the Athletic ~\ssociation, and the Alumm Union.

THE SCHOOLMAN.  The object of the Schoolman s to encourage
the students in htcrany composition, to inform their friends of thewr doingsin ard
out of class, and to mamtain rawtual interest and fncadship between the college
and those who have passed from beneath the fostering care of thewr Akna Mater.

THE ATHLETIC ASSOCINTION.  The Athletic Association s
composed of all the students of the college and has for its purpose the intro-
duction and encowragement of manly <ports and cxercise.

TERMS. Board and tuition with dormitary accommodations. $150 per
annum.

RtV THEO SPETZ.CR DD

73

N e 0

-



-~

74 THE GHRONICLETELEGRAPH SEMI-CENTENNIAL NUMBER.

OFFICERS &ND PROFESSORS:

Rev. A. L. Zinger, CR., Ph.L., M.A., President and Master of Studies.
Rev. A. J. Fischer, C.R., Ph.B., B.A., Vice-President and Disciplinarian.
Rev. Jos. Schweitzer, C.R., B.A., Latin, German and History.

Rev. Theo. Spetz, C.R., D.D., Political Economy.

Rev. A. L. Zinger, C.R., M.A., Philosophy, Natural Science, Latin.
Rev. A. ]. Fischer, C.R., B.A., Latin, Greek, French, Geometry.

Rev. Wm. Kloepfer, C.R., D.D., Christian Doctrine.

Rev. Vincent Kloepter, C.R.. B.A., Philosophy, English Literature, German
Rev. Wm. Beninger, C.R., Th.L., Latn, German.

Rev. A. Simoni, C.R., French, Latin, ltaliar, Spanish.

Rev. Paul Sobezak, C.R., German, Polish.

Mr. David McKegney, Director Commercial Department.

Mr. James Barry, B.A.. Mathematics, English, History.

Mr. A. . Suddaby, M.A., English Classics and Composition.

Mr. Jos. Ferguson, Mathematics and Physical Culture

M. Jos. O'Sullivan, Algebra, Penmanship and Drawing.

Mr. Theo. Zoellner, FS.S., Music.

St. Mary’s Parish.

IN the early fiftics, Father Ebner, S.J., of St. Agatha, who also had charge
of the Catholics of Berlin and Waterloo, began to make amangements for
building a new church in Berlin. and in 1854 Fr. Fbner, assisted by Frs,

Alter the death of Father Louis Funcken, which occurred on January
30th, 1890, Rev. Wiliam Kloepfer, C. R.. was appointed pastor, and is.
attending the parish with no less zeal than his predecessors.

Ti e Catholics of Waterloo built their own church in 1891.  Neverthe-
less the necessity of more room for service was felt more from year to year.
The first steps towards the building of z larger church were taken in the yeas
1892, when the monthly building fund collections were begun ; in 1899 sub-
scniptions were taken up which enabled the committee to buy a beautiful site
for the new church and commence building.

The growth of the parish can be best calculated from the growth of the
school ; whilst the schoolhouse built wy 1858 sufficed for forty or fifty children,
as weli as for a dwelling for the teacher and family, at present 450 children
fill the exght rooms of the school that was built in 1874, since which time i
has been twice enlarged, and the ever increasing high standing of the echool is

to be attnbuted to the good work and zeal of the School Sisters of Notre Dame.

The last Sunday in May, 1900, the first sod was turned for the new
church. In the following ycar it was built to the roof, in 1902 the roof was.
added and in the next year it was plastered and furnished throughout. The
Stations of the Cross in this church which were wmade by Artist Meyers, were im-
ported from Munich and were the gift of Mrs. August Keiser, born Lang; the win-
dows in the chapel, statues and cruciixion are all donations of different mem.

bers of the pansh and cost in the neighborhaod of $8,000.00.

ST MARYS R C CuHURCH, S. SCHOOL AND SISTERS® HOUSE.

Holzer, & J.. of Gurlph, and Fr Baumgaeriner, of New Germany, laid the
corner stone Bulding was then commenced and the wall raised 10 within one
foot of the 100f . work was then discontinued, as the brick had all been used
and there were no more funds on hand.  !n the following year bulding was
resumed and the walls finshed.  On aster Monday, 16856, Fr. Ebner cele-
brated the fust mass in the church, though the inside was not yet completed.
This pniest contnbuted also a great deal waatenally towards the church.

The Right Rev. Bishop John Farrell, first bishop of the new diocese of
Hamilton, as also Fr. Yugene Funcken. C. R., who amved fiom Rome the
same year and was stationed in St. Agatha, took great interest in the Berlin
pansh and did a great deal towards its advancement.

In 1858 the sacristy on the right was bult, and at the same time the firs2
schoothousc was placed under the direcon of Rev. P. Lauthuber, S. ., who
besides many other panshes also attended to Berhn.

In 1863 Rev. Francis Breikopf, who meanwhie had taken charge of
the pansh. built the tower and procured the bells, which were blessed in Sep-
tember of the same year by the Bishop of Hamilton.  After Rev. E. Glowack,
C. R., and Rev. Breitkopf. C. R.. had atteaded the pansh for some time, Rev.
Louis Funcken. C. R., who had just removed St Jerome's College from St.
Agatha to Berlin, took chatge of the pansh, this being in 1866. In the year
1871 the senctuary was built, and shortly afterwards the intenor was deco-
rated and the extericr pamted. m 1877 new pews, a pulpit and communion
rail were placed i the cherch: n 1880 the organ was procured and in 1881
the sacristy on the left built

PONEEL I § f1 The followmg Chnstmas the main altar, which is the gift f

the Aichcenfratemity of the Chrisian Mothers, was placed
therein; the two spires, which will soon be added, are to be
200 feet and 120 feet in height respectively.

The fust school, which consisted of two rooms. was
opened in 1880 by Mother Clotide, who looked after the
cducational welfare of the children. Mother Catia was then
appointed and stll continues in charge, assisted by ten

REV. JOS SCHWEITZER. C.R.B.A.  REV WM RLOLPFER.CR D.D

ten Sisters of Notre Dame. The attendance increased so rapidly that add:-
tious were required, until now there are ten rooms altogether and the school
1 considered one of the largest in the diocese.

Connected with the parish buildmgs is a hall used by the Catholic Young
Men's Socicty. of which there are a great number, and whose mectings are
held every Tuesday. The hall is large and commodious and 1s equipped with
a thorough up-to-date gymnasium.

The grounds surrounding college, church and other buildings are most
spacious and the lawns and teraces, which are carefully looked after, present
a most beautiful sight.  The families in the parish now number 320.

Father Kloepfer's {irst assistant was Fr. Jos. Halter. who died in 1896.
He wasborn in New Germany in March, 1857, was crdained priestin Rome in
Junc. 1880, labored as teacher in St. Mary's College. St. Mary, Ky.; St
Stanistaus College, Chicago, and St. Jerome’s College, Bedin, e died, com-
forted with the last sacraments, in St. Joseph's Hospital, Guelph, in November,
1896, and was burned in St. Bonface Cemetery, New Germany.  Fr. Vincent
Klocpfer was then appointed zssistant and continued until January, 1894
when he was succeeded by Fr. A. Fischer and Fr. W. A. Benninger.

The Chaplain for the Poles is Rev. Paul Sobezak, C. R.

The socictics in the panish arc many and the tembership large.  Fol
lowing 1s a hst of them: C. M. B. A. Branch, No. 12, St. Bonfface Sick
Benefit Society, Christian Mothers' Association, C. Y. M. S, St. Mary
Young Ladies” Society, St. Joweph's Society for the Poles, League of the
Sacred Heart, St. Cecilia’s Socicty.
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'f Town of Galt %

ALT or * Shade's Mills,”" as it was for many years known, was founded
in 1816 by Absolom Shade. Shade was a young Pennsylvanian of
adventurous spirit, who had been induced by Hon. William Dickson,

the owner of the block of lands now comprising the townships of North and
South Dumfries, to seck his fortunes in what was at that time a forest solitude.
Mr. Dickson wed his efforts in inducing settlers to come in, and by 1817
thirty-eight families comprised the population of the entire township, and in
1820 sen buildings all told made up the village, among them being a distillery
and a blackumith shop. By 1834 Galt had accumulated a population of 250,
and by 1837 the village showed signs of rapid growth. The macadamizing
of the Dundas and Waterloo road was undertaken in this year, and naturally
resulted in materially increasing business at Galt.  In the year 1850 Galt was
incorporated as a village, and the energies of its enterprising citizens were
turaed im the direction of manufactures, with the result that as early as 1857

R. C. separate school, a free public library, a fine opera howe, two daily andl
weekly newspapers, a general hospital, a good water supply, a live Board of
Trade, electric railway coanection with Brantford, Preston, Hespeler and
Berlin, three steam railroads and a flourishing Y. M. C. A,

Sheldons, Limited.

HELDONS, LIMITED, are just completing a large addition to their
S plant at Galt, for the making of all kinds of blowess, exhaust fans,
mechanical draft apparatu; and kindred lines of manufactures. This
includes heating and ventilation of .{l kinds of large buildings, mills and facto-

TOWN OF GALT--STREET SCENE)

‘the village had two foundrics, two flouring mills, an ax and cdge tool factory,
a woolen factory, a paper mill, chair and furniture factorics, a camiage factory,
naalt house, brewery, distillery, last factory, planing and pail factory..

The first train on the Galt & Hamisburg branch of the Great Western
Railway entered the village in 1855. In 1871 Galt and Dumfrics granted a
boaus of $110,000 to the Credit Valley Railway, now the Western Ontario
Section of the C. P. R., and thus secured the advantage of competitive rail-
way rates.

The period from 1880 to 1890 was marked by the construction of a
system of water works and by the organization of the Hospital Trust,

Electric railway connection was secured with Preston and Hespeler in
1894, and in 1903 this line was extended to Berlin, the county town.

" Bricfly, modem Galt has: Eight parks, ten churches, a Collegiate Insti-
e, a population of 8,500, three public schools, three chartered banks, one

ries, and the drying of all classes of materials, such as lumber, wool, soap, glue,
leather, brick and the like.

In Berlin they put in a very large heating and drying system for the Lang
Tanning Company. They have also installed their heating systems, fans and
dryets in nearly every factory in Berlin and Watetloo. In neariy every case
where a new factory has been erected in the past few years, this youog and
aggressive fim have been able to place some of their goods.  Just after
starting in business they were able to secure a large order for all the
go Js they could make for the Canadian Westinghouse Company’s Hamilton
factory.

The extensions which this firm are now making in Galt will give them
three times the floor space they previously had. This, together with a full
complement of new machinery, places them to-day in the front rank of Cana-
dian manufacturers.
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Town of Preston

| ¢

:
{ HE land where the town of Preston now stands was originally owned by
; John ard Joscph Etb, the village being laid out by surveyor Wm. Scollick
about the year 1833, By 1852 Preston had acquired a population of
1600 and was in that year incorporated as a village with an area of 997
acres, the asscesment at that time being £3,295, 5s.  The first council after
inccrporation was composed of Jacob Flespeler, reeve, and Jacob Beck, Hanry
Hagey, Fred Guggisberg and C. . Case, councillors.  Otto Klotz was the
first clerk.  Upon the incorporation of Preston as a town in 1900 Geo. A.
Clare, M. P., was clected its first mayeor.
: The town of Preston may justly be called one of the most prosperous in
the County of Waterloo. Its natural facilites are above the average, being
situate near the confluence of the Speed and Grand rnivers, the former flowing

Adam Ferie becanie the first postmaster. A tannery was also built by Henry
Bauman on the Blair Road at an carly date.  The first medical men were Drs.

Ebert and Hugh R. Folsom.

John Ballantine & Co., Lid.

HE. industry of John Ballantine & Co., Limited., manufacturers of wood-
working machinery, at Presten, does credit to its town. It was estab-

lished in 1894 by the present owners arid the Company has never had a

slack period since commencing operations.  The wetks occupy a lloor space of

PReSTON STREET VIEW

dircctly through the town and having in is course numerous water power
prvileges which have been uthzed. The town is tenved by the two great
ralways, the Grand Trunk and C. P. R. with which latter conuection 1s
sccured with the Galt, Preston & Betlin electiic road, the power house for
both being located i this place.  Ameng other things Preston has six churches,
an opera house, skating nnk, clectric lighting plant, zoed fite protechion, a
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over 30,000 fcet, being on one flat. The plant 15 equpped with all the
modem and most improved machines for the manufucture of high class wood-
working machimery. The growth of the business has been so rapid that the
wstallation of additional new machines has been compulsory from time to time.
Only a shott ime since a building 60x42 feet had to be constructed in order
to mcct the demands of the trade. A complete hne of woodworking machin-
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MUNICIPAL POWER PLANT. PRESTON.

®lver band and excellent hete One of the most widely known features of the
town is its mineral springs. It ha< also a well equipped hbrary.

As a manufacturing certre Pie en ocoupies a pronunent place, numerous
large factorics bemng located within ate berders, whose products are <hipped to
all parts of Canada.  John and Je;h Frh are Presten’s pioncer manufacturers,
bulding and operatmg the first gt and ~ o mills, the place at that tme being
known as Cambridge, the mills bearme that name manv veare after Preston
became a village.  The nomes of David Sharp, Adam Fermie, Samuel Leap-
shaw and Jacoh Hespeler are connected with the firt goree and in 1840

cry for planing mills, furmture factones, sash and door factoties, ete.. is
made by this firm.  Nothing but the best material and first class workmanship
15 their motto, and cach machine 1« thoroughly tested before it leaves the works.
The large and increasng trade this firm has acquired in so short a time is the
best possible evidence of the cfficiency of their machines.  The trade extends
all over Canada from the Atlantic to the Pacific, and of late shipments are
beng made to foreign countries.  No belter shipping facilities are to be found
anvwhere, the firm having access to the two great transcontinental ralway lines
of Amenica.




THE CHRONIGLE-TELEGRAPH SEMI.CENTENNIAL NUMBER.

Salyerds” Brush Works.

ROMINENT among Preston’s industries, and by no means a small one,
is the brush works of which E. B. Salyerds is sole proprictor and man-
ager. This industry was established over twenty years ago by M.
Salyerds and under his able and energetic management has grown into a plant
of good dimensions, employing a large number of handsand is a credit lo enter-
prising Preston.  The fim manufactures a line of fine brushes of all descriptions,
a line of hand sleighs and makes a specialty of a high grade hockey siick, which
m later years, owing to its popularity, has found a ready matket both in the
United States and Canada.
Mr. Salyerds is still a young man and is a grandson of Isaac Salyards who
was one of Waterloo's pioneers.  We are sure there isagood field and future
for him and his industry.

The Ganadian Office and School Furniture
Gompany, Limited.

achievements have been such as to place it in the front rank of our Cana-

dian industrial concerns. Originally the chiel business of this concern
was in school desks and office desks, in which their capacily was tested to the
utmost. Their school desks, which they have improved from time to time, have
had a world wide patronage, and many of the largest cities in the Dominion
are using no other.  Large shipments of these desks have also been made to
the British Isles and to South Africa.  This refers alo to the office desks.  For
some years now this finn has engaged largely in the manufacture of fittings and
furmture for banks, offices, public buildings, and commercial furiture of all des-
cnptions, and they have added a line of opera chairs with which they are
cquipping nearly all the theatres being built in Canada at the present time.
Their business in bank work, particulatly, has grown very rapidly, and only
within the past two or three years, in order to meet the growing demand for
their goods, they have been compelled to make very large additicns to their
plant and facilities generally which may again be added to in the near future.

r l VHIS firm is not an old institution measured by ancient standards, but its

P. Bemhardt & Son.

, NE of the oldest concerns in Preston and one that 1s widely known
O throughout the country is the Rock Brewery of P. Bemhardt & Son.

Established in 1846 by Henry Bemnhardt it was successfully managed
by this gentleman up to 1884, when he retired in favor of his son Peter Bern-
hardt who now successfully conducts the business, The brewery, which gels
#s name from the Rock Springs where a plentiful supply of pure spring water
is always available, has a large output, the Casino brand being one of their
most popular lincs.

All the latest machinery and appliances for turning out a first class bever-
age are to be found here including ample cold storage vaults, and improved
machinery in the bottling department,

The venerable founder of the business, Heary Bernhardt, although now
pant eighty-two years of age, is still quite active.

77

Geo. Pattinson, M.P.P.

MONGST the prominent residents of Preston there is none more

popular than Geo. Pattinson, M. P. P., of Geo. Pattinson & Co., who

conduct an extensive woolen mill at Preston. This industry covers a

large acreage and employs about two hundred hands, and it is largely due to

Mr. Pattinson’s energy and integrity that the Company is so successful. Mr.

Pattinson has lived for thirty years in Waterloo County, and as a proof of his

popularity was chosen as a member of the Legislative Assembly for his ccn-

stituency at the last general clection. Mr. Pattinson's worth and ability have

been suitably recognized by the Ontario Government by appointment on
important missions.

Esson, the Artist.

AMES ESSON, Eisson the artist, has risen to the top of his profession by
no royal road. He was born in 1854 and had attained his majority
before entering upen the field of labor in which he has become famous.

He commenced taking architcctural and scenic views as an amateur and finally
embarked upon his career as a professional photographer, opening a gallery in
Preston in 1884.  So excellent was his work that his teputation weat far and
near and he was finally privileged to execute commissions for persons of political
and social distinction. among his patrons being the Marquis of Lotne, now the
Duke of Argyle, and the Princess Louise, during the Canadian vice-regal tour
of that distinguished nobleman. Members of the Senate and Flouses of Par-
liament also became subjects of his camera. e is exceptionally gifted beyond
doubt, but more than ths, he loves his work and it is the great ambition of hig
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ESSON AND HIS ATELIER.
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lifc, apart from pecuniary reward, to excel init.  He has sittings from all over
the country, many of the most famous artists of the stage as well as prominent
ladies and gentlemen from Montreal, Ottawa, Toronto, Hamilton, Brantford,
Waodstock, Guelph and Berlin and other points coming to him when they
desire the best that money can buy.  His atelier is furnished magnificently and
he has all the modern appliances.  He furnishes many novelties and styles of

GEO A.CLARE M P

South Waterloo's Representatine

photographic work—photos in colors and the platinotypes tesembling so closely
fine engravings that only an artist can tell the difference miniatures on ivory
for lockets and brooches, a revival of the dainty portraiture of the seventeenth
century, then a royal token of friendship oft times exchanged between the
princely rulers of the old world, a souvenir of imperial feally. As a citizen
Mr. Esson is modest. popular and esteemed.

THOS. H. ARNTFIELD,
.anager Progress Printing Cempany.

P_E SHANTZ

A Pramicent Prestor Gitizen

§ | Town of Hespeler

-y

ERETH

HIEPKL‘;R. Ontans, has oac of the most beautdul locations wn the

sduated on tie Lanks of the picturesque River Sced, whindi

Lo = pron @ b fiasy sduslat 4008 v - ouise.  Lhie sosdeatial
23l of 1he Lowa i on an ciesation, wide the business partion s m the valicy.
Hesjrdler pacsents the appeatance of an wdeal manufactmng towa, wath ats
rnmense woollen mills fumnihing employment to several hundred. its lumituse
factory, foundries, sww mills, etc.. supplying the remainder of the population
with employment.  A\s an agricultural centre Hespeler ranks sccond to nonce,
i fact war of the most prosperous {xmers in Watetloo County are to be
found m this vemty.  Hespeler has a remakable history.  In 1830 Joscph
Obctholtzer s~cured a grant of land iacuding the present town site. and the
following ycar the beautiful stuation and many natural advantages had attracted
30 many setilers that @t devdloped wato the setilement of Bargeytona, Mi. Bergy
having opencd a saw mill on the flats south of the present Forhes mills
Another saw mill was shordly stanted by Josgph Odahohizen, while Johin Beck
apened the finet foundnn. Several years alterwards the large dam. bnows as
the Brodie dam, was «omstructed. thus guang much mote bullding space along
the banke of this pratty stieam.  In 1533 the lttde sculement adojied the
name of New Hopre, but 2t was the anaal of Jacob Hopeler m 1844 that
wiused new e win the setllement He bl 3 saw mill a gnst mdl and a
distilery, cleared the forets aad draned the swampe, bt roads and spens
thousands @ local improvements.  New Vope was weorpotated as the village
of Hespeler in 1838 wath Jacal Hegpdier an the fust recrie. s an ewidence
of the rapal growth of the whge = the Lt that m the vear 1901 22 was
meotporaled as a lown, and smee il ev=3 ssvaal acw aidusie have sprung
mo extence.  Hepeler has splendid sy faclit-o the two great Imes of
Canada PASmg !h!amg‘l the town and !uuinz swale a3 mto oveny !atlor;, A
mumcygedl elocine bght plant spplies an unkmted supply of Eglt fox the entie

twn. He  ler can also boast of a most up-to-date fize protection and splen-
Jid poliee protection, each of which s essential to make a town.  Every 1ehiz-
wur Jeaumiiativa o ejaeaanted here and better educational advantages are to
Le found nowhere. .\ pubihic bibrary. two chattered banks, two express com
pamcs and telegraph offices complete this pretty spot, which 12 situated midw ay
between Guelph and Galt, twelve miles from Balin and only sixty miles from
Toronto.

William A. Kribs, M.L.A.

N Wilham A\ Kabs, MLLAL Hespeler has o splendid example of what
encrgy and prisererance will do in the maling of a successful carcer.
Mr. Krbs was boin i Hespeler forty-seven years ago, bang the third

soin of M and Mia Lewss Kebs,  Afier receming & common schodl educa-
tioz he stanted work on his father's fanm untll he attained his majonty.  Fle soon
aftes went mto the aw miling and contracting business and handled a large
aumber of big contracts with great success. s\t the age of 26 Mr, Kabs was
clected to the Hespeler town counal, and two years Iater was honoted with
the reeveship, i which eapaaty he served with aedit 10 imself and hi
mumcpality for nine years. By vinue of the reevalip Mr. Kol obtained a
seat i the county councll and had he fionor of the chaimmanship of evay
-ammatee of that badv excepiing that of roads and badges. and it was Junng;
o tenure of ofice as chaimmiva of the county propenty comnites that the
Julass Chaabens hinllng was crected =2} the businesshke manner 3 which
the warh was Jone wis Lugely duc to Mo Kabs.  Mr. Kibs yidded 1o the
camest sokztations of his &icads in 1898 and becamo a candidate for the
P;ovincial Legidature for the Saath Ridmg of Waterloo, and for the fust tme
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since confederation South Waterloo sent a Conservative representative to the
Ontario House. About a year ago Mr. Kribs purchased the flour and saw
mulls formerly conducted by hus father here, which he operated most success-

fuly. Mr. Kribs was married in 1883 to Miss Fidelia Duffield, and -the

union has been blessed by five children.

The R.F orbes Go. Ltd.

HESE immense works are the backbone of Hespeler.  They occupy

five and a half acres floor space and nearly six hundred persons are

employed.  The site, which is pleasantly situated on the River Speed. was
orginally occupicd by a saw mill and foundry. which were removed in 1862 by
Messts. Randall and Farr and replaced by a woollen mill. which this fim
operated until 1873, when the plant was disposed of to Mesers, Schoficld
and Forbes. .

ln 1882 Mr. Schoficld. retiring from the partnership, Nr. Forbes -con-
tirued the business until 1888 when the present Company. The R. Forbes
Co., Ltd., was organized. This firm enjoys a well-carned reputation for court-
cous and carcful attention to its patrons, and to this no doubt is largely attrib-
wvtable the marked progress which has attended the Company since its inception.

79

cloths, tweeds, etc., for suitings, pantings, coatings. also indigo dyed serges, cte.,
equal to the bestimported goods of the same class and thoroughly up-to-date m
style and finish.

NE of Hespeler's most flourishing industries is
that of the Clark-Demill Co., Ltd., manufac-
turers of machinery. which was established

in the Town of Galt in the year 1901, employing
at the outset four or five hands. The business grew
so rapidly that more cxtensive premises were re-
quired and the firm began 10 look atound for a more
suitable site which offered better railway facilities.
The Town of Hespeler offered inducements to locate
in that place. Negotiations culminated satisfactorily
and the Company, with the assistance of several
enlerprising citizens, efected a modern and  up-to-
date plant. covering 20.000 &. feet.  The Com-
pany met with such suicess that they recently found necessary o enlarge their

W E DEMILL

THE FORBES MILLS.

In making cven a casual inspection of the immense manufactuning plant,
oyerated by the Company, one cannot fail ta be impressed with the up-to-
dateness exhibited m #ts vanous depantments. each displaying results of carcfud
study of modem improvements and time-saving cquipments. o\ complete sys.
tem of telephones connects the depantments and busnese office.

The packing and shippeng depaniments sze thoroughly fumished with
every facdlity for expeditious and satidactony kandling of the jmoduct of the
evtensve mlls, which are convemently ‘oarated for the shipment of gonds by
cther G.T.R., C P R.or G. P& H. nes to all pointe i Canzda.

The wools used. @ the goods manufactined, are the product of Canada.,
the colanics and other countiics, and represent al) qualitics of the finest mermo.
“The vanious operations of scouting, carding, combmg and spennmng these wools
-are cach very intaresting. all bemg pafermed by medt modem and up-io-date
machinery of Inest dewgn, wtihemg 2 combir~d water and Scam power of over
&00 h. p.

la addition to woollen and worsted vams, for the domestic trade nd
alio {or manvfactinmg puiposes. such as weaving knitimg, efe. of wheh
wimense quantiics we Wumed oul, 3 fae cass of cther poods e pravuced.
viz, knilted cardigans, sashes, mufflens, toques, ete.. for men and bovs: tanev
Lnitted ool clouds, hoods, caps, mitts, clc.. o5 wemen and chikdrens wear.
In woven goods the Company cafines its looms 10 the better Ines of worged

CLO D. tORBLS,

Majyor of Hevpreice.

plant and install additional new machinery compriang laths, planers. gear cut-
tng and milling machinery of “wmoxt modemn design. the best that moacy
could buy,

The machinery manufactured by the firm finds a ready market and ther
rade cxtends from coast to coant in Canada. an cvidence that the wotkman-
ship of the atticles manufactured is of the best.

Messrs Clark and Demill, the enterrisng members of the firm, afc young
men with a thoreugh workmg knowledge of the business both heing practical
mechanes and by progressive business methods have built up a trade of large
Propostions.

VIEW OF HESPELER.
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Village of Elmira.

Kl

is one of the most important municipalities of the county. The site upon

which it is situated was settled by a few of the hardy pioncers in the
carly part of the last century. They were of a mixed nationality, comprising
English, Irish and German, and people who located there to nake for themselves
and their children homes in a new country. They were fully possessed of the
necessary characteristics and perseverance that achieves success in the face of
sceming obstacles,and those hereditary traits have been amply demonstrated in
the general peogress that has been made by their descenda: ts.

A M. Brstow. who lived on a farm now occupied by Mr. Joseph Emst
oa the southern limit of the present corporation, carly demonstrated his enter-
prise by opering a store. shoe shop, tavern and potashery. and had the henor
of becoming the first postmaster of what was then known as “ Bristows™ or
“West Woolwich.” These conveniences were a boon to the settlers and Mr.
Brstow did a good business. A ycar or two after the cstablishment of this
frst post office it was transferred to Christmann’s hotel. a later enterprise under
the name of “The Anglo-American Hotel” erected on the site of the present
Zilliax house. and destroyed by firc about seven years ago. The little setile-
ment continued to grow and increase in population and on the 22ud day of
February, 1833, it was named Elmira.

Referring to the carly history of the place Mr. Geo. Klinck, publisher of
the Signet. and onc of the most auccessful business men. of the place.

THE village of Elmira, located in the westem part of Woolwich township,

value of property of $490,280. In 1889 a bonus of $10.000 was granted’
to the Waterloo junction branch of the Grand Trunk Railway, and in a short
time thereafter Elmira enjoyed the advantages of railway connection. The
organization of a Board of Trade was effected a little later and the efforts of the:
business men composing it were instrumental in instituting various industries in
the village. In 1883 the present modemly cquipped cight-roomed school
building was erccted.  The Elmira public library was organized in ‘1 885 with
a membership of twenty. From a nucleus of cight books it has now grown to-
near'y four thousand volumes, representing a value of nearly$3.000. In 1888
the Mechanics' Institute was formed with 102 members and the following offi-
cers: President, Geo. Klinck s vice-president, D. Bean:; secretary, A. Wemer.
A reading room was established and well patronized. It later became a free
public library and is.now well officered by capable men and in a flourishing
condition. The church organizations of Elmira comprise six denominations,
cach of which are well supperted.  They are: Lutheran, Methodist, Evan-
gelical, Presbyterian, Roman Catholic and Mennonite. Elmira is to-day one
of the most prominent and important municipalities of the county. and the
advent this year of the Guelph and Godcrich branch of the Canadian
Pacific Raihway, which is now running regular trains to the village, gives
a competition in railway rates that will be beneficial to the alicady estab-
lished manufacturing industries and be a.factor in the cstablishment of many

ncw ones.
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VIEW OF

i his book “Enterprising Elmiza”™ which he produced about two vears ago-
save: “The first white child born w Elmira was Mr. Walter Brstow, whose
birth occutred in a smail log house which stood where now stards the Exhibi-
fien building of the Woolwich Agneulunl Soaety The firsthouse built was
a small frame building which w2l stands n the zear of Dunke’s block, somvang
as a warchouse. while the oldest house vat serang for a dwelling stands oppo-
site the O'Darnell House.

At the begnang of the last half of the 19th century Elmaa began 10
expericnce & deaded impeovement. The opening country surtounding de-
manded a busmess centee and this Elmira somn commenced 1o be.  The influx
of ressdents was greater than the dwelling accommedation and a auaber of
bLrick huildings were tapdly esected.

Mechames ard trademen made ther appearance and woon the young
town grew and ganed the name which we thus Iate gvedt, ™ Enterpnsing
Elmira= It casly outdidanced its competitors w becoming the centic of
attracticn foe the seitlers of a large tr2at of country whote success a1 farmmg
had created a demand fec 2 market T thear produce, a3 well as an opeamg

{or mercantde enterprise.”

Elmira outgrew her swaddlmg clothes, and m 1856, wah a population
of 760 and an asscssmer of $97.000. 1 cbiamed its vhoge chantaa.  The
&t memapal counal and avic officers wose - Reeve, Joka Ratz: camallors,
Auvgun Blatz, Joha Rupyeel. Henry Winger and Hemy Dunke: derk, John
1. Ruppel: teasuer, Jacob Dunle (the same detk and treasurer sl hold
office) s asscasor, D. Levan. board of healkth, Chas. Klmek, J. B. Winger, R.
medical healh officer, Dr. Walmsey . constable, Reuben Winger.
Since that tme progress has steadily contnued.  The gowth m population has
beer of 3 poamancal and substantial <l wacter, and At the presest tame the
ausnbes of inhalitanty withm the corporate Tivits © over 1,500, with an asscssed

Jackson :

ELMIRA:

Elmira Upholstering Gompany.

NE of the infant industics of this go-shead village s the
Upholtering  Co. which commenced acive business in August,
1904. But although the years of its carcer ae small in number, the
volume of s busincss would be a creditable showing for many an older firm,
The promoter and ciganizer of the Comgpany was R. Schleader. the present
manager. a practical upholsterer, who possesses all the capabilities that char-
acte - the successful business man, of which no further evidence s necessary
than the tecord that has been made sice the Company commenced business.
The start was made m a small building. 24x56, of onc anda hallstenics.  Fram
the very fist an excellent Tine of goods was turmed out, the buying public
quickly recognized thar value. and orders pouted in so rapidly that luger
jacmines and greater faclitics became nccessary.  The following year the
present buldmg. 36x63. three stotics, was crected near the Grand Taak
station, additional facilities were installed and motc warkmen cmployed.  But
the trade il increases. the Company produces the goods the people want and
must have. and if the present gate of mercase contmucs, st funther enlarge-
ment will s00n be nocesary.  The development of the busness has been
phesomeral, and the product of the factory finds a place m the finet homes
of Canada from the Atlantic to the Pacific.  Secven travellers are employed
and the result of their labors necemitate many hows of overtime for the afl.
The officers of the Company ares A, K. Duke. tcasurers E G.
Schicthdltz, secretary: and R, Schlender, manager. They are a3 tno of
pushing. aggraisve busncss men, who study the wants of ther patrons and
gve the hest possble value. The customer who buys from them once scpeats
his order, and the Company has the satisfaction of knowing that both dealer
and user are pleased with then goods.  In ponscisng such an wdustry so suc-
censlully conducted Eldmira is fortunate.

g O
Fhola
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Elmira Agricultural Go.

HE history of the business of this successful Company dates from 1886,
Twhcn Messts, P. Jansen of Elmira and A. Merner of Waterloo, secing the

prospects and possibilities in store for the growing community started a
foundry in the village, using the fium name of Merner & Jansen.  The output
was agricultural machinery such as used in the adjacent townships. After the
first year Mr. Jansen retired and Mr. Mermer continued the business, with S.
Laschinger as manager. \When in 1888 an amalgamation of the Memer and
Bnicker foundries in Waterloo was effected the Elmira enterprise became a
branch, and remained so until the carly pait of 1901, when the business was
purchased by a local joint stock company, with an authorized capital stock of
$40,000, and has since besn conducted as a purely Elmira enlerprise.
Among the members of the Company were men of mechanica! skill, who had
been previously caployed as heads of departments.  They were experls in
their line, and financial interest in the.concern was an incentive to still greater
exertions. The goods manufactured by the Company found sale among critical
and exacting customers, and it was necessary to make a reputation for honest
goods that gave the heaping measure of value for the price asked. That was
the policy adopted and it has been faithfully. carried out, and a most successfu)
and ever increasing business has been the result.

The presens executive .of the Company is composed of: Paul Snider,
president; 'F. Stumpf, vice-president: O. M. Umbach, sccretary-treasurer ;
S.H. Ratz, direstor: S. Laschinger, manager. They are all practical busiaess

-men, who theroughly appreciate the patronage which has been extended to

WORKS OF THE ELMIRA ACGRICULTURAL CO.

their Company by using every available endeavor o give, of pesable, il greater
satifaction.  Mr. Laschinger, the manager. has an- expencnce of forty-three
yeus. He commenced as an apprentice m the foundry of S. Memer (now
senator) at New Hamburg, who made the farm implements which were then
used.  His adaptability 10 the wotk, keen pereeption and industrious habits
raied him to the foremanship of the cstablishment, 2 position he held for some
tme.  He aftenvirds went 10 London. whete wider apenicnee further
increased his mechanical knowledge. The Cormpany manufactures hayloaders,
side defivery hay rakes. com cukivators, grain crushers, roct pulpers, food
boters, ensilage cutters, land rollers, and were the fint in the county to make
the hayloaders:  Added 1o the agncultutal Ine they produce a mackine for
maling cxcelsior packing that is vay much i demand.  The mdustsy is one
of the moxt promisug in Elmira, and in the cmployment of libes and digribu.
tion of wages holds onc of the mosnt promment places amang the factoss which
make the village onc of the best business ccatres in the county.

e ————

Ratz Bros.

N the aanals of Elmza the history of the Ratz Bros.” flowr mills form an
I improtant part, and have the distinction of bemng the pioncer manufactur-

* g wdunr, of the place.  Years before Elmira assumed the dignity of
an icorporated willage, and while the mesenl Province of Ontario was named
Uppa Canada on the map, thae mills ground the setfiens” wheat by the oid
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stone process, and from the time the first wheel was turned to the present date
success has marked the progress.

Eary in the year 1866 the need of a mill in the locality was so appareat
that a few of the enterprising business men and farmers organized a joint steck
company to etect and operate the necessary plant.  The original company was
known as *“ The Elmira Joint Stock Grist and-Flouring. Mill Company,” with
a capital stock of $8,000. The stock was promptly subscribed, the heaviest
shareholders being David S, Snyder, John Ratz, Peter Winger, Isaac W, enger
and Samuel S, Weaver. The first meeting of the stockholders was held on
March 31st, 1866, at which David S. Suyder, John Ratz, Peter Winger,
Isazc Wenger and Samuel S. Weaver were appointed a-board of manage-
ment for the first year. The contracts for the mill machinery were shortly
after awarded, and carly in the year 1867 the mill was ready for the recep-
tion of grain. In 1869 the steck was bought up by John and Jacob Ratz,
ard in 1871 Jacob Raiz disposed of his interest ‘to saac Wenger, one of
Elmiras prominent merchants. Up 1o 1875 the mills were run under the
firm name of Ratz & Wenger, when the latter partaer removed to Ayton and
Mr. Ratz became sole proprictor.  In 1881 the “stones ™ were discarded
and the “ roller ™ prozess installed. Afer the death of Jokn Ratz in 1889,
the mill passed into the hands of his ti:rec sons, Simon, Daniel and George,
who have since continued the business.  Daniel is .now serving his secend
term as county councillor for Division No. 7, and was reeve of Elmira for
several years, Simon and George are at present members of the village council,
and as the choice of the people for these elective offices they have beea faith-
ful to the trust reposed in them showing the same integnty in their public
capacity as in private business,

The present mill is equipped with cleven sets of rol's and has a capacity
of onc hundred barrels per day. Besides handiing the bulk of the local wheat
larger quantities of No. | Manitoba hard is used for the production of their
finest brands of flous.  In addition to supplying the local demand the firm has
a large outside trade. especially in the Maritime Provinces, where the fame of
their flour is so popular that orders for shipment tax the mill 1o jts fyll ca-
pacity.  In connection with their main business the fim conducts a saw mill,
stave, heading. shingle and-hoop factory, the output of which finds a ready

market.  In 1894 they installed an clectnic: light plant with a 1000 light al-

termating dvnamo, and are now supplying 800 incandescent lights throughout
the village.  Each member of the firm i Lberally endowed with progressive
ideas and enterprising spirits, and any project they undestake they ultimately
carry lo success,

Elmira Felt Co-, Ltd.

MONG the most succesdul industries not only of Elmira but of the province
A 1s the Elmira Felt Works. Though the vears of its life have been few
the volume of its business has akeady exceeded many veteran establish-
ments and it is still developing a growth that promises to make &t onc of the
gants of industrial Canada.  The Comgpany was cstablished in the fall of 1900
with the flollowing on the exccutive board: A H.Eib, oresidents AL J.
Kimmel, manager; 1. Hilborn, secretary 1 J. P, Luckhardt and M. Weickel,
dircctors.  On the subsequent death of Mr. b, Ak Luckhardy was clected
to the presidency and Mr. M. L. Weber made & dizector, and with that excep-
tion the board continues as st sclected.

The Company’s output is confined exclusively to fclt foot wear, whick
fxds a markel in westemn Ganada, whee dimatic and other conditions render
that class of geods necessary.  From the initial tumont there has been asteady
wnacase in the output and the rapid progress of the West has made 3 concs-
ponding demawd on the capacity of the factory. so much so that mereased
lacllities have been frequentlyy necessary. and at the present time a large addi-
tion to floor space and machineryis under construction.  Aboui 100 cmployees
arc now engaged and the pay roll amountsto birge propontions.  The Company
1s composcd of thorough going busiess men who realize the fact that best
quality commands a good price i the larger markets and Eives an assurance of
fair profits.  Elmira as a village is proud of the enlerprise and the members of
the Company have a keen interest in the welfare and progress of Elmira, The
members of this Company have Iately acquired by purchase the stock and
charter of the Elmra Real Ewate Company which transfers to the Felt
Company the faz new brick houses crected by that Company. These homes
will be wed for the accommodation of Felt Factory employees.

.
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A. WERNER'S DRUG STORE,

ITH the histery of Elmira Mr. Wemer, the well known druggist, is
closely identificd: He is one of the pioncer bustness men of the
village and has been in the drug trade for many years. He. is one

of those enterprising public spirited men, whom every ambitious community
delights to honor.  He has cver taken an active interest in all affsirs pertaining
to the interest and advancement of Elmira.  He can always discern the silver
lining on a cleuded honizon, and where many ancther man would abandon a
peoject in discouragement.  Mr. Werner keeps on in the progress towards the
desired goal which he eventually reaches.  Thers is nothing pessimistic in his
composition, and failure is a word eacluded from his dictionary. He has

frequently held the position of secretary in public matters and is at present:

secretary of the Elmira oard of Trade. He is a member of the Trustee Board of
the BerlinCollegiate Institute. and took an active part in the agitation which resulted
in the technical extension of that institution.  In all matters connccted with his
own private business Mr. Wemer enjoys the {ull confidence of the public. of
which his ammy of customers is ample evidence.  Besides camying on one of
the most successful drug stores in the county he 15 local agent for the Bell
Telephone Company. ticket agent for the Canadian Paafic Railway and has
been a natary public since 1895.

Heimbecher & J urig.

NE of the busiest places 1 Elnira is the factory of the above fimn.
O They manufactute sofa and chair fames for the upholsterers and the
demand made for thar goods keeps the factory running [ull time with
their market eatending all over the province.  Besides the manufacture of these
goods they handle lumber and  builder’s matewal, supplying contractors with
anything required in woodwork.  Both smembers of the firm are practical men
and thoroughly understand every detail of the busness they ate engaged in.
Mr. Heimbechier has been in Eimua over a quarter of = century and has
been closely connected with this business dunng all of this time.  Mr. Jung has
also been in this business since he is able to work.  They are constandy em-
ploying many hands and have in this way donc much for the village.

Klinck & Ahrens.

T is not vesy often in towns the size of Elmura that onc runs across business
cnterprises 5o well cquipped as 10 be able to compete with their outside
competitors, bul such s the firm of Klinck & Ahrens who are the pro-

prictors of an up-to-date hardware and tinsmithing business and in prograssive-
ness rank with the town's bt mercantile establishmenta.

Two years ago the business which was {ormerdy owned by J. P. Lack-
hardt was purchased by the present enterprising proprictors, and as both gentle-
men have had abundance of experience in their particular lines it i3 needless to
aay that success has anisen from perfect knowledge of the business.

Joha Klinck, the senior member of the firm, 5 a hardware man of wide
cxpenience and came from Hanover where he was eminently succenful.  Henry
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A.- Welsnen

Alirens is an expert bookkeeper, and also comes- from Hanover wiiere he has
had valuable experience- both, at bookkeeping as well as at- the retail business.
The firm have an p:to-date siock of hardware, stoves and tinware and the
wants of their numerous. customers can be at afl times supplied. They makza
specialty of heating and furiace work and.are prepared to Jo expert work on
short. notics.

As both gentlemen thoroughly understand their - businzss the public can.

rest assured that their wants in this line will be promptly. attended to.

The Traders Bank of Ganada.

WENTY-ONE years ago, in 1885, when first the Trader's Bank was

started, the Elmira branch was one of the first to be opened. A numbier

of the local business men took stock in the conczm. The business at
once became established and the people gained confidence init.

From that day to this the bank has retained its prestige. It holds the con-
fidence of the public and enjoys a large trade.  From a small beginning, with
very few offices, The Traders Bank to-day has 68 branches in active operation
in various parts of the Dominion and has just increased its capial. stock to
$5,000,000 with a view to further expansion. The Elmira branch is fully
equipped to satisfy the needs of the banking public and solicits a continuance
of your confidence and banking: business.

: E
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THE TRADERS BANK OF GANADA.
Head Office, Turonto.
Highest Gommercial Building in the Bntish Empire.
C. D. Warren, President. . S. Strathy. Ganeral Manager.
D. D. Ratz, Mansger Elmirn Branch.
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GEO. KLINCK.
Editar and ‘Proprietor of The Elmira- Signet.

W. Steuemage!.

HE old time travelling days are vividly recalled
T when vou pazs M. W, Steucrnagel's livery
stable. provided ‘you have a lutle time to
spare and Mr. Henry Steuernagel, the proprictor’s
father is theze to recount the adventures of the old
staging days when he carried the roval mail, pas-
sengers and packages between Elnra and Berlin.
He has been a resident of Elmira since 1855, and
in connection with the stage route conducted o suc-
cessful livery business. A few years ago this busi-
uess was takea over by his son. Wnai, Steuernagel,
who later bought out Bulgin Broe.  He has one of
the best equipped livery stables in the - county, con-
ducts the bus line between the town and G. T, R,
station and cajoys th= confidence and csteem of his patrons.

. STECERNACGEL.

M. T. Bechtel, V. S.

T. BECHTEL is a gradu-
ate of the Ontario Veteni-
nary College and McPher-

son's School of Veterinary Dentistry,
Toronto, from which institutions he re-
ceived his diplomas in 18389. Hecis
a descendant of the old pioncer stock
of Wateiloo Township and a son of
the late Isaac Bechtel  Alter his
graduation he practiced at Hanover
and in Huton County. His native
county possessed strong altractions for
him. and a hule over four years ago
he located i Elmira. where lus skill
and courtesy have secured for-him a
large and successful prachice. He
makes a specialty of disesses of cattle and in that line he is one of the most
succesiful vetennary surgeons in western Ontario. He has lately built a com-
-modious office and equipped himself with all needful dental and surgical instru.
ments and therefore can also give good satisfaction in these lines of his profession.

-

W. D. Ludwig.

D. LUDWIG, whose por-
trait appears in connection
with this sketch, is one of

Elmira's progressive and enterprising
citizens, although he has only been a
resident - about three years. He is a
native®of Peel Township, Wellington
County, where for some years he fol-
lowed farming, As he advanced in
years, his inherent commercial instincte
developed and he moved to the village
1 enter a mercantile career, purchasing
a flour, feed, grain and seed business.
Imbued with an artistic taste and an eye
for the beautiful, he became an expert
photographer, making a specialty of
outsidp work. and abaridoning the prosaic work of dealing out staple com-
mo:]itjcs. m 1905 he went into. buaness as a dealer in amateur photographic
supplies, pictuzes, artiste" <upplies and picture framing, in addition to his work as
outdoor photographer. He has had no trason to regret the change, as ke
finds the present business both pleasant and profitable.  He will open-in the
near future a regular photo studio, and his fame as a clever manipulator of
the camera assures him success without anxiety.

F.W. Lipphardt.

YAE customer who patronizes Mr.
Lipphardt’s tonsoria} patlors  does
not wait long to hear the welcome

call of “neat™  His well cquipped shap
on Atthur Sireet has three chairs and
youre alwavs “neat.” but if “the Satur-
day night " hair cuts™ come in too num-
crous and make you tired, thers is a nice
cigar counter there where you can buy
the best, from five to fifty, and have a
soothing smoke that will make vou glad
vou had to wait.  Mr. Lipphardt is an
Elmira bov, born hete in 1872, and
descendant ot the pioncers who came to
the county many years ago. When very
voung his parents removed to Listowel
where he leamed his trade. Returning
to Elmira, where the associations of carly
vouth had for him an amraction. he launched nto busness for himsclf and
success hae attended his efforts cver since. e is a neat and quick wetkman,
and cducates his employees in the same way. Pleasant in manner. courtteous
in treatment, he s popular with his customers.  As a tobaccotist he has a
lacge trade, being careful in th= selection of his stock and sclling nothing that
he cannot conscicntiously recommend.

-~

w..D. LUDWIG.

F. W. LIPRHARDT.

-~ -

The Elmira Advertiser.

HE Elmira Advertiser was established as 3
an English newspaper in 1882 it had
anisted as & German paper-since 1870
wder the name of “Elmma Anzciger.” the
Germun cquivalent of its prasent name.  The
German paper was published by Delion Bros.
Dclion Bros. sold the business to the late George
Beavers. who, after conducting it for a number of
years sold out to Chas. Delion, who published
the Advertiser unfil 1895, when his brother
Henry Delion, and C. Zicgler became propric-
tors.  Three years after Mr. Delion sold his
terest to C. W, Schictholiz, the present pro-

prictor, who bought out M. Zicgler's intereat G. W. SCHIERHOLTZ.
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two years later and formed a partnership with Henry Delion.  This lasted
for about two years when Mr. Delion sold his interest to his partner, who 'has
since been sole proprictor.

Mr. Schictholtz was bom on a furm about two miles cast of Elmia.
Alter attending school at No. 11 Woodlwich, and later the Bedlin High and
Model Schools, he taught.school for nearly twenty years in his native township,

Since becoming propnictor of the Advesuser Mr. Schiettioltz has coastant.
ly aimed at making it a live, newsy home paper, and in that ‘he has been
successful, so that the Advertiser 15 now one of the newsiest country papers of
the province. On the first of October fast Mr. Schuetholtz inade another
venture and.turned the Advertiser into a seni-weekly, a step which has become
very popular with the progressive citizens of Elmira.

SEMLCENTENNIAL NUMBER.
Elinira Furniture Go., Ltd.

HIS is onc of Ehair's-largest instituticns and going ahead concerns in its-

liie. ‘They have an up-to-date factery wlhich was erected three years.

agoand the latest impraved .machinery at the present date has been installed.
They are making a specialty of diners, rockers, chalrs and patlor tables and a unique:
line of miesion furaitvre in weathered ouk and early English finish. “This-firm
has had marvellous successzivith the trade in intrcducing their goods and their:
designs are up-to-date and it has'become the most saleable line of -its kind.
They are conztantly producing new designs and ideas through their designer
and with the excellent shipping facilities of having a G. T R. sidingand C.P.R.
connection the Company can reach any point in Canada: from the Atlantic
ccast to the Pacific. The inanager. A. Gleaser, tells us that their principal
business is in carload lots for the west and it is only a question of time when
the firm will be compelied to double its capacity.

¢ | Village of St. Jacobs | §

HE carly foundations of the village of St. Jacobs were lad about the
Tycar 1848 when one Solomon Baum.n built a saw mill on the Cones-

togo river.  This mill was w1850 purchased by Jacob C. Snider, Sr..
grandfather of 2. W. B. Snidur, who m 1851 bult the large brck gust mill,
About the same tmie o number of enterprising persons had building lets sw-
veyed and disposed of them for bulding sites, anong them being Jacob Snider,
Eph. Kress and John B. Bauman. Settlenient went on rapidly and before the
end of the fust decade St. Jacobs could boast quite a population.  We gne a
list of these engaged @ pronzar enterprises and the date of thetr establishmenc:
J.C.Smider, St saw mull, 1848, gt mill, 18531 Valentine Harns, hotcikeeper,
1850 Beams & Chalmars, meschants, 1854 Gregory Hallenburger, cooper,
1851. Geo. W. Lly, merchant, 18525 John Genrge Menges, blacksmth,
1850 : Geo. Avan, blackemuth, 1852 Hopking & Buck. tanners, 1832,
John George Welz and £ WV olz, camagemakers, 1834 . JoW. Niergarth,
butcher. 1834 : John Ruchl & Sons. furntue manufacturers, 1654, Geo W
Eby. general stere, 18530 P Wukler & Comrad  Sclumdt. general store .
Tobias Yost. merchant, shoe and hamess shop, 1834, L L. Bowman, tan-
nery. 18581 Jacob Lby. large trame fumiture factery, 1832, later camed on
by Joel Good, Waterlco,  ©ne Fry was the first tatdor and P. Winller and
Geo. Scheifele were the first shovmakers, the former later gomg wto the mer-
cantile busnces zud seling cut 1o J. L. Wideman . J. B. Smder, gencral store,
1876. Dr. N. B. Wolte was the fint physician, commenang practice i 1853,
and was succeeded by Dis. Nicol, Pipe, Hughes, Crooker, Geat and Robinson.

W o et e e A

Elias Weaver Bingeman Snider.

- ¥R, SNIDER, miller and manufacturer, St. Jacebs, Ontario. was born
M in the town of Watcrloo, Watezloo County. Ontatio. on the 19th
June, 1842, Fhs father was the Reverend has Snider, his mother
Mannah Bigeman  In his younger days his father was mterested in fanming
asd w four and saw mills m Waterloo town and township and was the
owner of the Watetloo and Gennan Mills.  He was a member of the Menno-
mite church, Lemg ordamed w..cn quite an clderdy man and took gieat micrest
with Mr. Jscob Y. Shantz and others m getng Russian: Mennomites to sctile
in_ Manitoba from 1872 to 1874,

Mr. Smder has a most interesting 1ehc i lus possession . this 1s an old
German Iramily Bible, panted i 1360, and puzchased by Johannes Schneider
in 1564, m Switzetland.  This bible gines record that a descendant Johannes
Schnerder cmigrated to Peansylvama, m 1736, Itwasm Pennsyhama that the
areat grandtather of Mr. Suider was born m 1738, he crmgraung to Canada
in 1806, locating in the coenty of Waterloo, then nothing but a wilderness.

Mr, Snider statted work very catly in hfe. working on his fathesr’s farm
from the time he was twche untl he was eighteen years of age.  In 1800
he started woek m lus father's mills, st German Mills, and while serving his
apprenticeship made himself so famubar with the details of the busimcs that
when but twenty he was gnen the general conduct of same. In October
1864 he aanged with lus fatker to run the German Mills on share interest,
this being continued w1371 In January 1871 he received posseasion of the
St. Jacobs Flour Mhlls, 1cmoving wath lus {amily to St. Jacabs and has resided

there cver since, making flour milling his principal business.  Since 1902 he
has confined himsell to flour milling in St. Jacobs only, having other interests in
iron foundries, saw mills, cte.

Ouwing to Mr. Snider’s constant i estigations. the four milling industry .of
Canada has reaped great benefits.  He was one of the very first to abandon
the old. French Burr grinding system and the reducing of wheat on mill stanes.
into flour i cne reduction. In 1861 through the representations of John
Brown, a German, he and his {ather were induced to adopt a gradual reduc-
tion system on mill stones and by this process were enabled to produce a much
superior article of flour and althcugh this -aas a slow process.in the primitive
stage the profits were such as to inducs them to fusther make imprc cments on
this svitem.  About the year 1873 owing to wfermation gained as to the
success of rollers mstead ‘of mill stones it reducing wheat uito-flove then being
used in Buda Pest, \usuia, Mr. Snider, alter a great deal -of mvestigation,
opened -correspendence with mill machinery manufacturers in Ausina, France
and Switzerland and in 1875 imaported the first roller machine from Austaa to
America and by 1878 had as near as possible a full roller flour mill. The
toller has completely supplanted the mill stones and has simply revolutiofized
the system of Hour milling.  Although an extremely busy man commercially
Mr. Snider has still played an important past in the affars of Cariada politically.
He voas a member of the Ontario Legislature from 1881 to 1894 and tro-
duced a most important measure relative to municipal fire insurance which had
for its object the enabling of townsl:p muuicipalities 1o do their owa fire
insurance under the supervision of its officers. ’

M. Suider is president of the Waterloo Manufacturing Co., Waterloo:
president of the Toronto Foundry Co., Toranto: president of the Snider L_um-
ber Co., Gravenhurst.  He was vice-president of the Ontario Sugar Co., Berlin,
in 1904, but owing to want of time resigned. "7« is a director of the Nisgara.
Peninsular Power and Gas Co., St. Catharite., vas promoter of the Waterloo
Juncion Railway, subsequently taken over by the Grand Trunk Raitway Co.
and chairman of the Ontatio Power Commission appointed under the Ontario:
Power Act, passed dunng the scssion of 1903, for the purpose of reporting.
upon the cost of developing, transmitting and distnbuting Miagara power clec-
trcally 0 the various interested municipalitics.  This report s zompleted ardin
the hands of the municipalities.

In 1884 he bought the Brcker foundry from Jacob Bricker in Waterloo,
entening into co-partnership with Levi Bricker and continued until 1884, At
this ime amangements were made between E. W, B. Saider and Absalom
Memer and ‘others toincorporate the Watetloo Manufacturing Company, amal-
gamating the Bncker foundry and the Memer foundnes m Watesloo and
Elmira..E. V. B. Snidcr hoiding the presidency continually ever.since.  The:-
business has been concentrated gradually until now the whole worksare located
en King strect where the Bricker plant has been greatly extended. The
business now extends to nearly all parts of Ontaro, Manitoba and the North-
west, cmploying at the works from 150 10 200 men in the manufacture and
sale of engines and threshing machinery, making a specialty of this line of goods.

On the 19th of April, 186+, Mr. Snider married Nancy Weber at Pres-
ton. Of this union there is isuc as follows: Clara, Aldied, Cranson, Fer—

nando, William, Edwin, Elias, Ada, Franklin {deccased).Lola and Amy.
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The Sovereign Bank of Ganada.
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THE SOVERCIGN-BANK OF GANADA. - 1St Jacobs Branch)

MONG the banking institutiors of Canada the Sovereign Bank of
Carada ha< rapidly grown in faver and s numerous branches
throughout the ceuntry transact o very large Lusness.  Qn October

3rd, 1904, a branch was op=ned at Si. Jacobs and has proved a gr.at con-
venicnce to the manufacturrrs and business men of the vllage and fammers of
the adjacent territory  The office is located in the Rutter Block. with hand-
some interior. fitting< of quartered oak and ail the cquipments and cuntemences
‘necessary for the large and growing business transacted.  Geo. 1 Lackner,
the present manager. i< well and favorably known i the dustnct. 1~ became
connected with the stafl a litde over a year and a half ago and by fus energy
and integrity worked himeell to the managership, a position he holds with
cred’t to himsell and benefit to the institution.  Ever since the opening of the
branch business it has <hown a steady increase, and a staff of four cerks are kept
busy. Sub-offices hav~ heen opened at Hawksville and Conestego. the former
open on Tuesdays and Fridays and the latter en Tuesdays and Saturdays, which
atc a great conveniene to the peop'e of thase neighborhoods.  From an msti-
tuticr so well and favorably known as the Sovercigr: Bank of Canada cvery
possble facility and the most courteous treatment may be capected by the
public.

~ .
Thomas Scrivener, V. S.
Tl-{O;\I.»\S SCRIVENER is one. of the

tecent additions to the business citcles of
St Jacobs. having come here in 1905,
when he opened a livery stable i connection
with the practice of his prefession-as a velerinary
surgeon. e is a native of Vaughan Town-
ship, York County, and graduated with honors
fram the Ontario Veterinary College n 1904,
Y Since becoming a citizen of St. Jacobs he- has
THOMAS SCRiveNLF_ v §  secured a lucratine business, and lis shill in the
treatment of the discases of horses, catile, and
domesticated animals brings frequent demand for his services in a ten mile
radius surrounding St. Jacobs. He is a young man who takes a pride in the
work which his chosen profession demands, and with him graduation s by no
means the termination cf his studies. He has the only livery stable in the
village. where he keeps a number of good horses and rigs suitable for all occa-
sions and business priposes, with the demand upon his stable rcsources con-
stantly inczeasing.  He likes St Jacobs and evinces a keen intetest in. any
peoject that has the advancement or benefit of the place for its objeet.

v
oL
»
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T. M. Robinson, M.D.

MONG the well known and popular men of
the village of St. Jacobs and Woolwich
Township none have a higher place in the

esteem and respect of the public than Dr. T. M.
| Robinson, who has been a medical praciitioner here
2| since 1886. e ‘was born in Drumbo, Oxford
County. in 1859, and came to St. Jacobsin 1867,
where he received his primary education at the
public school. In 1878 he maticulated at the
Berlin High School.  His ambition led to the study
of medicine and he graduated from Trinity Medical
T. M. ROBINSON, M. D. College in 1886, after which he took over the prac-

tice of his-father, Dr. O. W. D. Robinson. He is
in the enjoyment of a large and constantly growing practice in the district and
holds a popular place in public favor, both professionally and socially.

Ganada F elting Co.

ROMINENT among the recently established manufacturing enterpriscs

of the county are the works of the Canada . elting Company of St. Jacobs.

But although an infant so far as its years are concerned, it has made a
vigorous growth and is numbered among the important manulacturing estab-
lishiments of Canada. The Company is composed of local business men whose
commercial instincts prompted organization in 1903, The members are:
‘E. W. B. Snider. N. W. Gingrich, W. H. Suyder, Alfred Snyder, Edward
Miclke, Israel Snyder. Wm. W. Snider and E. Roos, all men possessed of
the modern spirit of enterprise and progressveness, who in adding another
industry to Canada's large list did so after mature and carcful consideration.
The old woolen mill propeity was purchaszd; equipped with the most modern
machinery. and the manufacture of seamless boots. shoes and shopers and the
celebrated red cross knit boot was commenced.  Ener since the wheels made
their fust turn success has marked the progress of the enterprise, and the output
1s being coastantly increased to sipply the demand for their goods. Their
trade extends over the whole of Canadz and the high quality of their produc-
tions make an cver increasing demand.  The red cross knit boot which they
make is very pepular and finds a very large sale, being the warmest and best
article of the kind made ia Canada.  About fifty hands are employed and the

establishment is one which the people of St. Jacobs are proud to have in their
midst.

and equip-
ped village hotels in
| the county, and.in
fact. in the province,
is' the Dominion of
St. Jacobs, of which
“mine nost™ L. Hol-
linger is the genial
proprictor. He s
an ideal landlord,
and the accommo-
dation that he rro-
vides for his patrons
is not equalled or eurpassed in many of the large towns, e has a magnetism
about him that makes the traveller feel at hone as <oon as he enters the door,
and whether the stay be a day or a month anticipations arc lully realized.
The hotel is one of the oldest in the county and M. Hollinger Las been its
propricter for many years, during which time he has made a wide acquaintance
withthe travelling public, whose apprzciation of his cfforts to please makes his
house a popular stopping place.  Atmnong the thousands of people throughout

DOMINION HOTEL

it NE of the
best kept
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Canada who reccive this: book the picture. of ‘the house and its poprietor

‘which- is here shown will be readily recognized and ta many it will bring

pleasant memories of time spent beneath its roof. Commercial men find good
sample rooms and the traveller who is there over night is accommodated with
an airy and well fumished bedroom. The dining ‘room is large and well
conducted and the sanitary arrangements of the house are complete in all
details,. Few houses in a village the size of St. Jacobs possess the coavenience

afforded by the Dominion.

Riverside Greamery.

HIS is one of three factories built by Gales, Woodcock & Co. in 1879.
They operated it for two years as a butter and cheese factory, it was then-
purchased by Bowman and Brubacher and run as a cheese factory only
for two scasons. This being one of the best farming communities in Westem
'Ontario, and farmers heavily interested in the breeding and feeding of stock,
they did not take kindly to the cheese business. Consequently, they took over
the factory and formed themselves into a co-operative creamery company called

SEMLCENTENNIAL NUMBER.

the St. Jacobt Creamery Co,, on the cream gathering system. It was carried.
on with varying success’ until 1890 when it was purchased by Brubacher and?
Sayder.

In 1899, on a dissolution of partnership, it was taken over by the present
proprictors. The business has gradually increased from an output of 40,000
Ibs. to 200,000 Ibs. in a scason.  The water supply, .an important feature im.
the creamery business, is furnished by two artesian wells flowing into the prem-
ises. The plant is modern, comprising pasteurizer and cooler, combined chums

and all appurtenances for making a good article, also a refrigerator 20x50 ft.
for storing purposes.

W. & A. Snyder.

& A. SNYDER, gencral merchants.  This business was founded.
in 1876 by Juo. B. Snyder, who successfully carried it on untd
his deccase in 1885 when it. was taken over by the present

proprictors.

? Village of New Harﬁbﬁrg §

g,
ot S

PEEL STREET, NEW HAMBURG.

]

FE incorporated village of New FHamburg, Waterloo county, is situated

fourtcen miles west of Berlin and an cqual  distance cast of the city of

Stiatford. It ison the nver Nith and is almost girdled by that strcam
whose turbulent waters emerge from the sombre woods at the north of the
village and after wending their way along the foot of the hills that encircle the
business portion of the corporation, depart on their long journcy for Lake Erie.

There arc no records of the fivst scttlers but legend hath oft been repeated
of the first comers that setiled on the river banks.  They numbered about fifty,
English and German. When the first epidemic of cholera swept over the
‘provinze in 1834 they fell victins to the scourge.  They had come across scas
to find a home here but they nearly all found a stranger’s grave. They lie
buried under \Wilmot street about fifty yards south of East and West atrect.
The Hessians i this httle colony gave the place the name of Cassel but it was
soon after changed to New Hamb -+ It was about this time (1834) that
Wilhamn Scott took up considerar.. .and where the village now stards and
bought the small gnst mull that was buslt a short time before by Absalom Shade
for one Cushman.  Mr. Scott also built the saw mill and distillery.  All these
industrics were situated w the rear of where the Wm, Tell block now stands,
Chatles Kirkpatnck was the fist to open a general store which he carried on
for a couple of years. 1le returned 1o Scotland on the death of his father Sic
Charles Kukpatnch, m 1835, T. G. S. Newlls was the second pioneer store-
keeper and was soon {ollowed by the sad Wm. Scoit.  In the ycar 1852
M. Scott built the big four story frame flowr mill on the south tde of East
and West street that stood for half a century like a monarch of the surround.
wgs ull it fell a vietm to the flames in 1902, From the cathest sctilernent to

the buildmg of the Grand Trunk Railway i the fifues all store goods and

supplics were brought in from Hamilton by means of teams, principally ox teams.

All the surplus product of the community was taken cast to Ferric's Mills,

which were situated about fiftcen miles cast on the Huron Road, or to Galt or

Hamilton. There wasno road open to Hayville except by way of Helmer's hill

and the first settlers had to go that way to Haysville for their letters or fcllew

the blaze down the river. 'But at last the stage coaches that carried His

Majesty’s ‘mail from Hamilton to Goderich brought the mail here and a post

office was estublished. The coming in of the Grand Trunk changed the con-

ditions under which business was done. It ended the carrying by wagon to-
market, and provided the facilities for reaching the outer world {or passengers

and freight. In the year 1858 the village became incorporated.  Up to that

time it had been a part of the municipality of: the township of Wilmot. The:
first council was composed of T. G.S. Nevills, reeve; Theobold Seyler, George

Morley, Fredeick Memer and Joseph Hartman, councillors; Jacob Seyler,

clerk.

There are few eatraordinary events to chronicle in the history of the village.
There was the cpidemic of cholerain 1834 above referred to.  There was:
also the cholera plague of 1837 that dealt a severe blow ‘to the place. Many
- narrative has been told by those who outlived that trial of the industries all
standing idle for want of men to man them; of the gristmill silent for want of
a miller; of people long in want of flour and no one to start the mill;
of farmers coming in and statting the water wheel themselves, there being no
oue to toll them.

There is another cvent that will long be remembered- ~the great flood of
1883, caused by a “cloud burst,” when the water rose in the niver four feet
higher than cver known before.  Great was the destruction of that flood. The
village was almost entirely cut off from the outside world, The Hartman
bridge. the Rau bridge and the FHelmer bridge were all swect away. The
Hartman bridge, a beautiful structure of iron, had but recently been built at the
cost of many thousands.

The village has gone on in the even tenor of its way, growing slowly but
steadily in population and asscssed value, but much more rapidly in asscssed
value than population.  This can be accounted for by the statistics which go to
show that thirly ycars ago nearly cvery house contained a good sized family
whercas to-day such familics are f{ew and far between. We have to-day
three or four times the number of dweellings that could be found here thinty
years ago but the population has scarcely doubled.

The manufactuning industries of the village have-given employment to a
large portion of the population and centinue to be the potent factor in its bife
and cnergy.  Among the principal industrics are the Brass Foundry. manufac-
tuning furniture supplics and supplying nearly all the furniture factoriesin Canada
and the New FHamburgManufacturing Co.,whose engines and threshing machines
find a rcady sale in the Northwest andin the different grain growing sections of
the Dominion.  The | amburg Felt Boot and Shoe Co.’s goods have become:
so popular that their factory, one of the largest in thccounty and equipped with.
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- large number of hands, find it difficult to keep up with their cver increasing
-orders.  The.Hamburg American Wagon Co. have been sending their wagons

and sleighs to the West and the Eastern provinces, The Stuart Bros.' big
-brick flour mill supplies the demand for a large section of country. Thexr brands
of flour have long since ensured the success of the mill. The Sash and Door
Factory is ever on the hum and is one of the growing industries. The Cana-
dian Meter and Supply Co. occupy the factory formerly used by the Canada
Furniture Co. and has now one of the finest factories in the village. The Rau
Brewery, established three generations ago, sl produces the same popular
brand. Two weekly papers issue from the press, the Volksblatt and the Inde-
pendent. Both are published by Danicl Ritz. Two chartered banks furnish
the facilities for trade, the Western Bank of Canada and the Bank of Hamilton.

The present council is composed of E. R. Beger, reeve; John Katzen-
meyer, F. H. McCallum, Werner Brodrecht and Jacob Hahn, councillors ;
William Millar, clerk. W. R. Plum has repressnted the village in the County
*Council for the past ten years,

The reeves who have presided over the deliberations of -the council since
the iacorporation of the muaicipality have been: T. G. S, Nevills, Frederick
Metmer, John Allchin, Dr. W, Boullee, Samuel Mesner, Thompson Wilson,
-Otto Pressprich, Joseph Laird, Louis Peine, L. G. Pequegnat and E. R.
Beger.  Education, secular and religious, has- reached a development in the
village that would do credit to a-much larger place. The number of the
-churches and their construction, together with the splendid public school, fully
show }:ow deeply sensible the ratepayers have been of their responsibility in that
tespect,

The advantages of natural drainage, of a splendid stream: of water where
steam launches carry their occupants for miles, of being the centre of an un-
equalled grain growing section, of beautiful scenery, all this, together with the
financial strength of the business interests, the fine brick business blocks, and

the bcauli_ful tesidences, make the village of New Flamburg a most desirable
place to live in.

et D

Imperial Hotel.

{MPERIAL HOTEL

PP HIS beautiful hostelry is situated in what is known as the Impenial Hotel
block East and West ar:d Mill streets having a frontage of 60 feet on
cach street and is three storics in height.  There is accommodation for

about fifty people and as the rooms are commodious and comfoetable and

fumi;hcd with all modern conveniences the guests may be assured of thorough
comfort.

The dining room is of spacious dimensions and will scat upwards of forty
persons and the best evidence that its cuisine is of the best 1 that it s generally
pretty well filled.  There is slso a first clase bar amply supplied with the
finest liquors and cigars, splendid sample rooms, up-te-date lavatories, sitting
‘Tooms. etc., the whole lighted by electriaty and heated by hot water. This
hotel has also in conncction a- splendid feed barn and good stables and is a
lavorite stopping place with the farmer there beng accommodation for 50
horses.  The owner and proprictor is . John Buckel who purchased the
building a number of years ago and since has much unproved it having but a
short time ago spent upwards of $8,000 in unprovements, adding another story
and furnishing it throughout with up-to-date furniture. The hotel 15 also pro-
vided with water by their own system,

Me. Buckel was born in East Zorra and was at different pentods s
«career butcher and farmer.  Since purchasing the house from Dan O’Connor,
it former owazr, he his doas much to mike it a shiing mark i hoteldom,

Dominion Garriage Works.

R. BEGER is the proprietor of the principal carriage works in New
o Hamburg, lozated coraer of Huron and Waterloo streets, where the
premises, including his own buildings and yards adjoining have a
frontage of 130 feet on Huwron Street and 175 feet on Waterloo Street, using
one brick main building, thres stories, 40x60 ft., with blacksmith shop 38x40
ft., and implement warchouse about the same size. The main building is used
for wood shop, show room and storage room on the first floor, with the second
floor for paint and trimming shops. The different departments are equipped with
every convenience, employing from 8 to 10 experienced workmen.  Particu-
lar attention is given to manufacturing light buggies, carriages, democrat- and
delivery wagons, road carts, bike wagons, etc., including pneumatic and cushion
tired rigs, etc., using the best material in all departments.  His annual output
will aggregate from 50 to 75 new jobs of all kinds, including cutters and
sleighs, and this shop has made most of the delivery wagons in use by business
fims in New Hamburg. His country trade in new work covers several town-
ships in Waterloo, Oxford and Perth counties within a radius of 25 miles, and
a good business is done in all kinds of carriage repairing. One specialty is -in
horseshocing, turning out all kinds of light and heavy shoeing and keeping an
experienced horseshoer employed. The business is of long standing, having
been established by Mr. Beger in 1873. He has had over fifty years
experience as a practical blacksmith and carriage maker, being one of the
oldest in the county, and has been a resident of New Hamburg since 1858,
enjoving a wide acquaintance throughout Waterloo and adjoining counties. He
is a native of Saxony, Germany. Mr. Beger during his residence in the town
has taken an active interest in municipal affairs and has served in the council
for many years, being at the present time reeve of New Hamburg, which
position he has held for several years.

Jacob Ratz.

ACOB RATZ was born.on August 213,
J 1828, on the Adantic Ocean, while "his
patents, Mr. and Mrs, Valentine Ratz, emi-
grated tothis country from Germany. They arrived:
in the now town of Waterloo in September of the
same year, where his father built the first house
after the: place was surveyed into village lots. In
1856 he went into the saw mill business on the
Huron Roead, Wilmot Township, which he con-
tinued for about twenty years, and accumulated
considerable ‘wealth. He took an active part in \
municipal affaits, serving for several years in the °  JACOB RATZ.
council of Wilmot. In 1882 he contested the South Riding of Watetloo for
the Legidature in the .Conservative interests against the late Isaac Master.
For the past 22 years he has lived retirod in New Hamburg.

———— i

Williamgchaaf.

R. SCHAAF conducts the only wholesale
liquor store in New IHamburg, which he
opened in 1897, and has successfully

carmied on ever since. Although the beginning
was on a emall scale he has now one of the best
stocked and equipped establishments of the kind
in the county, and by prompt service and strict
attention to business has secured a very large cus-
tom throughowt the district. Mr. Schaaf is a
native of Waterloo township, where he was bormn
in 1847, of parents who were among the carly pio-
ncers.  He has been a member of the pubic school
board for 20 years, doing duty as chairman for
several terms I his capacity as school trustee he has performed good service
and won the confidence and esteem of the people,

He is an ardent and practical suppotter of legitimate focal sports and
athletics and is ever ready to contribute his quota of work and mflucnce to-

wards anv projeet that has for its object the interest or advancement of New
Hamburg.

WM. SCHAAF.

»‘, .
Il I
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New Hamburg Planing Mills.

HE above mills are operated by J. J. Berger

& Co, the fim being ccmposed of J. J.

Berger and Lawrence Amold, who have
been doing a successful business here for the past
five years. Abcit tivo years ago they erected
the present fine cement building near the G.'T: R.
staticn, in which they irstalled a modetn plant that
is cpcrated by steam. They do a general planing
and watching business, and manufacture sash, dooss,
meu'dirgs ard all kinds of timber and wood wodk
required by Fuilders.  In addition to this they take
cottracts for butldings, and throughout the village
and ccuntty there are many fine structures erected
by them which give evidence of the thorough knowledge of the business
they are engaged in.  Mr. Amold. whose portrait accompanies this sketch, is
a native of South Easthope, Perth County, where he was lor a number of
vears a successiul fammer and where ke still owns one of the finest farms in the
.counly. e has also served 106 terms in the township council.  Mr. Berger
is also a native of South Easthepe and leamed the trade of capenter and
builder. He is passessed of good business abilty shown in the thorough man-
aer in which he conducts the business.

LAWRENCE ARNOLD.

Ernst & Gressman.
AMONG the business m=n o New Hamburg Mr. Cressman occupies a

prominent place as a member of the fim of Ernst & Cressunan. He

i a descendant of one of the pioncer families cf the county and was
born in Wilmot township near New Hamburg m 1850. Both his parents
were natives of the same township, but his grandparents were among the early
settlers who came fiom Pennsylvania in the early pioncer days. Untl 1885
Mr. Cressman followed farming, and although successful in his work his ambi-
tion led 10 a commezcial We. and m the year mentioned he opened a general
store at Baden.  Hle carned on a profitable business theze for eleven years when
he sold out to Chas. Lederman, remosed to New Hamburg and in company
with Jacob Ernst purchased the general store business of Peter Rieder, where

he has continued his commercial career ever since with success to himself and
«atidfzction to his many lundreds of patrons throughout the swrounding country.
He is one of those straightforward Lusiness men with whom it is a pleasure to
deal. and in social circles his naturally kind and genial pessonality make for him
warm and lasting friends in every class of the community.

J. Lautenschlaeger.

IS is the only photo studio in
} New Hamburg, eccupying a fine

swic of rooms, where the best
comemences arc at the disposal of the
rumerous patrons.  Mr. Lautenschlac-
ger came here thuteen years ago frem
Berlin, where he secured a thorough
knowledge in his chosen profession
with A. Fl. Huber, Berdin,  He pur-
chased the photo business of J. Johan-
nes and success has attended him ever
ance. e s enthusiastic m s work
and ever ams to produce the best
results, e has the most improved
faciiies foe photos up to 14x17
inches, makes a specially of colored
and outdoor work and has a lasge
trade in bromides. s country trade
covers a radus of twehe miles in the townships of Zoira, Noth Easthope,
Wellesley and Wilmot, and all the neighboring villages.  Mr.l witenschlaeger
is a natve of Waterloo County, bang born at Petersburg, and. takes a keen
interest in all matters pertaming to the best intezest of the county, and cspecially
New Hamburg, whete he has made his home.

J. LAUTINSSHLAEGEER

THE CHRONICLETELEGRAPH SEMIGENTENNIAL NUMBER.

The Rau Brewery.

NE. of the oldest business establishments of New Hamburg is the Rau-
Brewery, which was started away back in the fifties by a man named
Franke. After running the business for a few years he sold out to
the late Stephen Rau, grandfather of the present proprictor.  He came here
from Germany, and after purchasing the business, successfully conducted it
until his death in 1867. The establishment then passed into the hands of his
sons Joseph and John. The latter, who was father of the present proprictor,
dicd m 1881, and the business was continued by his brother Joseph until his
death in §891. The propnetorship was then assumed by Mrs. John Rau
and her son ). F.. who at present control the business.  J. F. Rau, who is the
present general manager, has a wide acquaintance throughout the district and
enjoys a personal popularity among his hundreds of customers, The product:
of the cstablishment 1s draught lager and porter and bottied champagne lager
for export, for which the demand keeps the plant continually busy to its fullest
capacity. ‘Trade extends over a radius of fifty miles, and some idea of the
volume of business may be formed from the fact that from ten to twelve thou-
sand bushels of malt arc annually used.  J. F. Rau is a practical brewer and
thoroughly understands every detail of the business, a fact which is fully attested
by the excellent quality of the goods manufactured.

H. McCALLUM, the enter-

Frederick H. McGallum.
prising  diuggist of New

Hambueg, was bora in the

ety of Terento in the year 1850,
where he was educated, gaining his
primary knowledge at-private schools,
and latterly atternding Upper Canada
College. At the age of .15 he was
apprenticed to a preminent druggist in
Teronto. and after serving five or six
years came to Waterloo County
about the year 1870 and started a
drug store in- New Hamburg and
has continued the business until the
present day. Mr. McCallum 1s a
prominent military man, having joined
e was in the first firing line at the time of the
Fenian invasion. and has been in service for the past 40 years, probably longer
than any other man in Canada other than those holding permanent office.
Mr. McCallum having reached the age mit, is about to be retired (without
pension), but however he still.remains an cuthusiast as regards patriotism, and
{eels that he is satished in having done his duty.  Mr. McCallum has been an
efficient and valuable member of the New Hamburg municipal council {or the
past 6 or 7 vears, and during his —egime has lent his aid and ability towards
making the cerporation more progs tssive than at any other period in its exist-
ence. Mr. McCallum is also prominent in social affairs and holds offices in
several fiaternal societics here.  He is also secretary of the Conscrvative club.

FREDERICK H. McGALLUM.

the militia at an carly age.

Bridgeport.

IS is onc of the pioncer villages of the county, being situated on the

cast and west sides of the Grand River cqually distant from Berdin

and Waterloo.  The portion on the west side of the nver was founded
by John S. Shocmaker, a character well known throughout the province in his
day. e came to the place in 1820 and immediately established a grist mill
and saw mill which are at present owned and operated by Shirk & Snider.
The pestion of the village on the cast bank of the river was laid out by thelate
John U. Tyson scveral years after. The village was then called- Bridgeport,
but previous to this it was only known as Shocmaker’s Mills or Lancaster.
Bridgeport at one time gave promise of growing into onc of the prosperous and
thriving villages of the county but at the time of the building of the G. T. R.
through the section about the year 1852 the linc passed through Berlin two
miles distant from the village and this had the effect of 1etarding its growth,
while Berlin continucd to forge ahead.
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Village of Baden.

WH!LE the thriving village of Baden has not Tnade uninterrupted

advancement, it is not to be classed as a commercial centre of

secondary importance, its location, natural advantages and the
splendid agricultural section surrounding it being positive assurances that'its real
estate will never decrease in value.

It was sometime in the year 1854, when no sign of a village existed and
the surrounding country was yet sparsely settled that Jacob Beck setiled in the
neighborhood.  He had formerly carried on a small foundry at Preston, Ont.
but in that year moved to the present site of the vilage of Baden. "He pur-
«chased 200 acres of land as soon as the G. T. R. was completed and laid out
a large part of the land in village lots after which he built a flour mill. A short
time afterward he' established a foundry in the village but financial reverses
overtook him and finally the vast concern passed into other hands, his misfortune
being a serious blow to the village.

Prior to the construstion of the Grand Trunk, the village w=3 known by
the name of Weissenburg, named in honer of-an oid bachelor who resided in
the village.  But the nsme did not seem acceptable to Mr. Beck and among
other names suggested were Beckville and Baden. The latter was finally
-adopted, it being more classical and the name-aake of Baden-Baden, the famous
health resort of Germany, Mr. Beck's native town.

The Livingstone Bros. came to the neighborhood a short time after the
advent of Mr. Beck and established one of the largest oill:manufacturing con-
cerns in the. Dominion of Canada. Perine Bros. wrere also indentified with the
industrial interests of the village in its pioneer days, establishing a flax mill. But
the latter,as well as the Beck estate, was finally absorbed by the Livingstones.

The village 1s distinguished for some picturesque natural featwres. A
short distance east are several high hills and pinnacles from whose summit an
inspiring view of the surrounding country can be had and is pethaps the most
extensive view of beautiful rural landscape to be obtained in the country. The
highest of these peaks is reported to be 960 fect above the level of the lake at
Hamilton and the highest point between Sarnia and Niagara.

Baden is the municipal scat of government of Wilmot Tp., a position it
has lizld for many years.

Abraham Hunsberger.

HERE are few more emineatly successful in

their respective businesses than Abraham Huns.

berger of Baden. Heis a son of Enos Huns-
berger who was a son of one of the early settlers in
Wilmot township, and was born near Baden. After
a number of years” experience in the store business he
&Y/ purchased the business of Isaiah Shantz which con-
/1. sists of a ‘complete stuck of dry goods, grocerics,
crockery, boots and shoes, millnery, ready-made
clothing. ctc.  This store s situated centrally and
requires two large floors to contain the complete
stock which is up-to-date in all its branches. [t s
unnccessary to go into a detailed description of the
many departments of this modern establishment, suffice it to say that the stock s
general and complete and as Mr. Hunsberger is continually adding new lines
it is sxle to say that the customer will not be dicappointed-in getting what he
requires.

This store enjoys a large patronage amongst the farming community who
find there the best value for their money in anything they roquire. Mr. Huns-
berger is but a young man in years, but possessed of those sterling qualities
“which contribute so much to the make-up of the.modem business man, and es
he is encrgetic and attentive he should meet with unlimited success.

Allen Bechtel.

LLEN BECHTEL conducts the only hardware store in the village at
A the west end, corner of Sayder and oundry streets, where the prem.
) uses in his own brick building have a frontage of 25.feet, extending
40 feet in depth, with storchouse at the rear. The house carrics a full stock
-of hardware, including house furnishings in cutlery, silverware, lamp goods and.
-other specialtics for house use; also all kinds of builders' hardware, including

ABRAHAM HUNSBERGER

paiats, oils, varnishes, glass, pulty, etc., handling the Sherwin-Williams mixed
paints and those of Jas. Robinson & Co.; also machine oils and coal oil in
large quantities, In sporting goods may be mentioned a full assortment of fish-
ing tackle, guns, rifles, ammunition, etc., while in farmers' supplies the stock is
full and complete. comprising all kinds of farm tools, fence wire, wire fencing,
rope, chains, binder twine in season. His counlry trade extends in some
directions to a distance of 8 or 10 miles, with a good village trade from all
classes. This firm has also a good business in hard and soft coal, carrying a
good stock at coal sheds in rear, which 1s delivered to any address throughout
the village and vicinity, and both coal and binder twine are purchised i car
lots. The business is of long standing, having been established for about thirty
years. .M. Bzchtel succeeded to the control in 1902, coming from Guelph,
where he was superintendent of the Robt, Stewart planing milt. Mz, Bechtel
s a thorough business man, ever alert to thenceds of his customers and exert-
ing every effort to please, characieristics which make- his establishment one of
the most.pepilar and best patronized in the county. In connection with his
other business he holds the local agency of the Waterloo Mutual Fire lnsur-

ance Co. ]
Frederick Daub.

HE stranger who goes into the shoe store of M. Daub at Baden meets
Twith a surprise. Baden is only a small village, but it is the source of sup-

plies for the community of a large radius.  Mr. Daub is fully alive to this,
and keeps an up-to-date stozk, such as is found in the stores of.the large towns
and cities. In his establishment the mostparticular customer finds what he
wants and the natural consequence of such enterprise is a very large trade.
Mr. Daub is a practical shosmaker of twenty-two years' experience, and has
been in business at-Baden for seventeen yeats. For soms years he has been
an exhibitor of footware at the county and township fairs, and on the goods of
his own manufacture has been awarded thirty-six first prizes. He makes a
specialty of work for deformed feet, and the many orders he receives is an
evidence of his proficiency in the production of this class of goods. He is s
native of Waterloo County, born in Wilmot Township, son of the late Andrew
Daub, one of the early settlers who came there direct from Germany in
1846. He takes a keen interest in all matters pertaining to the welfare of the
village. -He also finds tims to attend to the duties pertaining to the office of
secretary-treasurer for the patrons of the Siver Spring Creamety. in which he
has given eminent satisfaction.

N. M. Steinman.

MONG the rising, young, caergetic and ambitious business men of

A Watcrloo county Mr. Steinman is entitled to a prominent phce in the
froat rank. He is the son of Jacob Steinman, New Hamburg, and

was bomn in Baden, his grandfather being one of Waterloo's carly settlers and
one of the pioneers of Whilmot Township. The best evidence that M. Stein-
man is a business man is shown in the fact that he is not only able to conduict
one line of business, but has successfully engaged in others. He purchased his
present business from Chyis. Hondrick in November. 1905, and his knowledge
of the different fincs has enabled him to make a success of his business. An
inspaction of his premises will reveal the fact that he deals in furniture, flour,
feed, sceds, groceries, stock foods, ctc., abso lime and cement. He is also
equipped to do undertaking. M. Steinman is the owner of a curb whizh is
used in placing cement in the interior of cisterns and s the only one in the
section. M. Sicinman's business is of the best and mcreasing daily. He
reports trade as being brisk and is maturally quite satished.  More so, because
he has within the past winter taken unto himself a wifc in the person of a
daughter of Christian Gascho. The Souvenir Number of the Chronicle-Tele-
graph wish Mr. Stcinman a continuance of his success -and him and his good.
wile a long and happy life.

J. C. Shelly.

HE Hawkesville Roller Process Flouring Mills now owned and operated
by J. C. Shelly were cstablished in 1847 by the late John Hawke,
founder &f Hawkesville. The mills subsequently changed hands a num-

ber of times finally coming. into the posscssion of Mr. Shelly on June 10th,

1898. The present proprictor who is a miller of thorough experience, was
born in Berlinin 1852. He completed his trade with E. W. B. Snider, St.
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Jacobs, having previously wotked in the old B. P. Rothwell steam mills at
Beein.  From St Jacobs he went to Elkhardt, Indiane, in 1872, remaining
‘at this place one year when he moved to Minnesota where he was employed
for ecme time by C. A. Pilisberty, the fomous miller of Minneapolis.  Frem here
he removed to Berlin, subscruently entering into partnership with David Leh-
nen, being alo a partrer with Menno Shantz while at Bexlin, He later tock
charge of the mills at Blair for fohn S. Bowman ard subsequently engaged
with Menno Snider, Conestogo. where he remained 15 years, resigning his
positicn in September, 1897, 1o cometo Hawkesville.  The mills are equipped
with the most modém machinery and its reputation for tuming out a first class
grade of flour is well known far and wide. The capacity of the mill is four
stands double 1olls and one set single rolls and stene chopper. The moter
power is furnished by both steam and water, the latter being contributed by
the Conestogo river.  There is always a demand for flour made in these mills
and large quantitics are shipped to the Lower Provinces.

Jacob W Schweltzer-

Rt 2

e R l YHE late Martin Schweitzer who

for ncarly fifty vears conducted

the Conestogo hotel, was cne
of the best known and respected men
of- the-county and after his deccase, a
little over two yeats ago, many people
maourned the less of a staunch and
faithful friend.  The house s one of
the histeric landmarks of the county

and if s walls could speak many

interesting  stories  of pioneer days
would be told. To.day under the
Jaceb W. Schweitzer the houses is one of the best
cquipped and kept village hotels in Carada, furmshing acconmodation not
fourd in many of the largur towns.

THE CONESTCGO HOTEL

proprictership  of

The present propricter is a son of the late
Martin Schwiitzer, and being reared in the hotel business has a thoraugh know-
ledge of what is required for the comloit and convenience of his guests. The
picture which accowrpanics this shetch gives an idea of the exterior appearance
of the place.  Inside nothing is neglected. rooms are large and well fumished
and the menu at the Jdining table is not surpasted in the Ceurty of Water-
loo. A prvate system of waterwarks provides the heouse with sanitary
baths and lavatories.  The stables.afford accemmedation {or thirty herses and
the best possible attention 3s given o every patron.

The Conestogo Ml“S-

HE piloncer of  Conestogo
manufactuneg industries is the
flouring mill now operated by
Menno Snider.  The bith of the
enterprise was in 1843, when the
caginal mill was crected by the late
David Musselman, one of the pio-
neaes of the distect, who came to
the counly from Pennsvlvania in
1819 and setled in Woolwich
CONESTCGCO MILLS AND ELEVATCR. Township. As the scitlement in-
creased in populaticn the need of a

mill was keenly Icht. and Mr. Musselman undeitook the responsbhility of sup-
plving the want.  The centraat fer the Luildng was givento Jenzs Wenger.
In those old days the crecticn of such an important bislding was cee of the
significant events of the tmes ard the old-fashicned “raising™ was 2n cecanen
of cembined wetk and lestivity.  Of rech cceasicns the “rang™ of the old
mill is a memerable cne.  The werk centinued for a whole week. and thae
arc yet hving in the neghbothood a fow aged men who participated and who
tell of the grenveus wal that was palommed m putting the heavy tmbers in
place ard cearpleting the frame. Mr. Museclman cenducted the mill {os ten
years, when ke sold cut to the late Henry Snider, and frem him &t passed to
his son Mezo Suder., the present jaegnetor, whose son, \W. J. Snidar, 1s now
the cfficient and cncgetic general manager of the business  In May, 1904,
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the old mill was destroyed by fire, but rebuilding operations ccmmenced
befcre the ashes of destruction had ccoled, and one of the best cquipped
flouring mills of the ccuntly now cccupies the historic site. ' With ten pairs of
tolls the mill has a capacity of one hurdred barrels per day, and is constently
busy. Besides doing gristing end supplying the local trade, large shipments of
flour are made to the castern provinces, where it is in popular demand.  In the
manufacture of flcur for shipment western No. | hard wheat is.a'most exclus-
ively used.  But, while doing a large manufacturing and shippir g trade, the
fim dces not neglect to give prempt attention to the lecal faimers” gristing ard
chopping custom, which is of large proportions. Prompiness and good wark
has made the mill popular and the first dissatisfied customer is yet to be found.

Geo. A. Bowman-

NE of the landmarks of Cones-

togo is the business block of

George A. Bowman. For

many years it has been the popular
trading place of the citizens of Cones-
togo and also of the farmers from a
wide surrounding district, who have
always been able to have their wants

filled and in many cases in a more
satisfactory way ard at less cost then
they would have had, had they driven
further to perhaps larger business
centres.  The shicwd farmees of
Woolwich and Waterlco were net
slow to appreciate this fact and ke
present large business caried cn by
Mr. Bowman 1s the result.  The lute
Noah S. Bowman who established the A
busmess and by whom it was catried on with distnguished ability and success
up to the time of his death first entered the store of his uncles, Joseph B. and
John B. Suyder, at Winterbeurac. about the year 1855, The business was
some six years later moved ta Cenestogo where it was centinued by the late
John B. Sayder.  After three vears Mr. Bowman entered into partnership with
Mr. Snyder. which was continued for five years. when the former bought cu
his partner’s interest 2nd became sole prepricter.  Mr. Bowman later pur-
chused the block of the late Chas. Hendry ard moved his Lusiness to that
place where it was camricd onby Mr. Bowman up to Apnl, 1903.  The busi-
ness was then taken over by his son Geo. A. Bowman, the present proprictor..
who during his many years of association with his father in the business gained
a wide cxpenence in every depariment of the work and a thorough acquain-
tance with the wants of the store’s many patrons. The store i1s onc of the
largest and most up-te-datc country stores in Ontario, the large stock beirg
kept in order with scrupulous care by the staff of obligng clerks whose readi-
ness at all times to serve the public is one of the popular features of the siore.

THE LATE NOAH S. BOWMAN.

The Blalr Flour Mills.

NE of the pioncer milling cstablistments of Waterlco county 1 the Elair
Roller Flour Mills, owned and operated by Joseph Hibowm. The
building of these mills dates back to the year 1847 whea they were

crected by the late Samuel Bowman, who operated them for a number of
years. After changing ownership several times the mills were in 1884 bought
from Allan Bowman by Jacob Hilbern, father of the present proprictor.  Jacob
Hilbom was boin near Prester in 1833 and brought up in the same reighbor-
hood. Hc moved to a fanm near Conestogo in Woolwich lowxis]ﬁp in 1872,
and from that place to Blair in 1884,  He disposed of the business to his soa,.
Joseph Hilbon. in 1905, moving to New Dundee where he is living retired.
Since assuming the reins of managemest the peesent proprictor, by industry
and cnterprise, has succceded in largely increasing the business.  Besides sup-
plying the local market, a large trade has been established for their flours in the
East, frequent shipments being made to points in the lower provinces. such as
Halifax, St. Johns, Moattcal, cte.  Mr. Hilbomn is also local agent for the
Great Nesthivestern Telegraph and Bell Telephone Companices, and good!
service with outside poinls 13 given.
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FACTORY OF THE WILLIAMS, GREENE & ROME CO.

The F oster-Armstrong CO‘,

INCE the first pages of this edition went to press the Foster-Armstrong
Co.. a wealthy American syndlicate of piano manufacturers with exten-
sive main factorics in Rochestar. N. Y., has bought owt W. H.
Snyder & Co., of Berin.  This accounts for the advertisements of both firms
being found in this issue. The Betlin pianos are no longer made and i their
place the new firm will manufacture the celebrated Haines Bros, and Marshall
& Wendall pianos, so well and fasorably known on the other side of the hne.
L. P. Hawkins, the Company’s western 1epresentative and formerly manager
of the Lee Piano & Orzan Co. at Guzlph. is the new manager.

HA bietrich-

TTYHE accompanying cut represcnts
H.A Dictrich.ore of the mest pro-
miaent bakers of Berlin,  Me.Die-

trich’s busincss carcer s a a fair illus-

tration of what can be accomphished
by industry, perseverance and enter-
prse. Commercing in a small way in

1898, on Foundry Sircet. with enly

one baker and onc delivery horse. the

business has devcloped into a large
tade requiting no less than nineteen
employces. with cleven delivery herses.

The business is now situated on Kirg

Steeet in a newly renovated and up-

to-date block, having in rear of the

confectionery sales room, a beautiful
and well equipped icc cream padlor.

In the manufacturing department an

immense dough mixer with a capacity

of ten owl. of flour, with a moulder
of cqual capacity operated by a gasolene cngine, is used.  The baking
process 15 accomplshed by the use of three huge Marsh nvens, which
are capable of baking the bread as fast as it is made.  Me. Dictrich holds the
teceipt and the solc nght of baking aad selling the brand of bread known as

“Butternut Bread™ in the localty.  Large shipments of bread are made daily

to various points in western Oatanio. The head bakers of brcad. and cakes

employed ate specialists 1 ther hne and a man is kept whose sole duly i to
altend to the horses so that no delivery man need come in contact with the
animal he dnives.  The samtary effect of this precaution is apparent.  On the

H. A. DIETRICH.

whole, this baking outfit, together with the system adopted in its management,
compares favorably with any institution of the kind in our larger cities.

Joseph Zuber.

HE subject of this sketch was bomn in the town-

ship of Pilkington, county of Wellington, forty-

two years ago. Me was brought up on a*farm
and received a common school education, Alter
being in partnership in the hotel business in Galt for |
a short time, he decided to rent the Grand Central
Hotel, Berlin.  About twelve years ago he took pos-
session of the premises, and at the expiration of his
lease of five years bought the propetty. In connec-
tion with the Grand Central Mr. Zuber bought the
Market Hotel situated on the opposite side of King
Street, in 1906, and at preseat the two lurge hostelries are operated under
onc management.  Mr. Zuber bears the reputation of being a first class hotel

JOSEPH ZUBER.

“man, possessing an affable disposition, good business ability and an untiring

anxiety to provide the best possible accommodation for the public. His:dining
rootns, sleeping apartments and other hotel appurtenances “have justly:merited
favorable comment by those who have enjoyed them, while the-stabling:and
barn accommodation is both commodious and systematic.  Mr. Zuber-is ‘the
first man in the province of Ontario who took out two hotel licenses in his own
name.  There are few hotels which furnish as suitable and appropriate aceon:-
modation for as many classes of gussts as the Grand Central and Market hotels.
In addition to the two hotels meitioned Nir. Zuber also owns and operates a
large cigar plant on Young Street, Berhn, gwing employment to a large number

Wellesley Vi'“age-

HIS prosperous and thriving metropolis of Well-
esley Township is situated in the eatreme south
western portion of the township and s the centre
of onc of the richest farming scctions in Ontario. The
site of Welledey was first occupicd by John Smith,
asqualierin 1847. He came in some time prior lo
thesurvey.  When the post office was established in
1851 it was called Smithville, but the following year
the name was changed to Wellesley. Wm, Brown
was the first postmaster.  Smith was followed by
such noted pioncers as Christian Boshant, Chas.
Ottmann and John Zocger. The latter was the first
License Insdector for Moot Water. Mcrchant and hotelkeeper, Peter Schmidt and Doer-
i S powis Selieter ing Bros. being also among the first ‘merchants, the
tise. latter crecting a grist and saw mill. The: population
of the village now numbers about 800 souls. W ellesley poszetzes a number
of good-busiress places including a flax mill and woolkn mills,

FERDINAND WALTER.

William Keltéfgom-

HIE merezntile cetablishmert of Witliam Kelterbemis to be numbesed among

the prominent business places of the thriving village: of Wellesley-and is

onc of the most up-to-date stores in the county of Waterloo. Its entes-
prising proprictor was born in Lisbon, Oat.  Me served-his apprenticeship with
Geo. Docring who conducted a general store in the village of \Wellesley where
he remained three years when he accepted a position with Peddic & Erns,
Betdin, A year later he entered a general store in Saline, Mich., and after
being here a year he came to Linwood where he was employed in the store
of D. R. Pollock. In 1896 hc bought out the stock of Geo. Doering and
conducted a store in Withclm's Comer for three years, after which he moved
to Docring’s Block whete he remained until 1905 when he purchased “the
Zinkann block,  Mr. Kelterborn has conducted a general store business in the
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village for ten years during which time he has successfully catered to the wants
of the general public evidenced by the large patronage the business enjoys.
The stock carried is well assorted and up-to-date. On the second floor is
located the china hall and shoe and gent's fuinishing departments.

Ghas. Ottmann.

HIS well known citizen came to the village on October 7th, 1877 and
is ono of the pioneers of the place. In that year he opened up a harness
shop which he has since successfully conducted.  He built the present
brick block which he occupies three years ago.  Mr. Ottmann takes a great

interest in music and has for the past 27 years been leader of the Wellesley
band snd it is Jargely through his effortsthat it has reached its present high state
of efficiency, the average membership bemg about 24.  Mr. Ottmann has also
held the position of leader of the St. Paul's Lutheran Church for upwards.
of 28 yesn.

William Loebsack.

LTHOUGH Conestogo is a small, unpre-
A tentious vilage, where the waters of the
Conestogo and Grand rivers meet, in the
township of Woolwich, it has its quota of ambitious
and caterprising business men, and among them Mr.
Locbsack has worked-himsclf to a prominent place.
Thirty-cight years ago he came here with his par-
ents, from Germany. IHe learned the mason trade,
in which he became very proficient, and after serv-
ing hus time his ambition led him to go into business
‘ for himself as a building contractor. This work he
WILLIAM'LOEBSACK. . 1ried on successfully and there are many substantial
structures in the vicinity that he has erected. Four years ago he inaugurated
the brick making business, of which he is now proprictor. Having thoroughly
learncd his trade as a bricklayer and mason, he understands what a brick
should be and how it should be made, and the result of such practical experi-
ence is to the benefit of his cusiomers.  The plant is modern in all its equipments,
and the clay used produces the finest quality of red and white brick, of which
the output is about one millio 1 per year. In addition to the brick manufacture
he makes a superior class of tile, for which there is a large demand.

Ferdinancj %oxﬁi)ﬁch.

T ERDINAND ROMBUCH
was born ncar Freiburg.
the Grand Duchy of Baden.

About 1840 he came to Canada,

shortly after locating half a mile

west of the present village of New

Germany. where he opened a tav-

em. Later he added a country

store, but his steck in trade was
incomplete and it sometimes hap-
pened that articles most in neced in

a househo!d could not be obtained at

his store and when at such times cof-

{ee, sugar or the like was asked for

he would answer: ™ Colfee und

Zucker haben wir chen nicht:

aber Hosentracger,  Schaupltue-

cher, Gebethuecher, Rosenkracn-
2¢c. Pllugschare und so weiter.”

About 1837 a post officc was

cstablished here under the name of “Fraiburg™ in honor of his native county
town in Germany.
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FERDINAND ROMBUGH.

W. B. SHERK. of Bredau. is the proud possessor of the first deed
issued by Richard Beasley for 280 acres of land purchased by his
grandfather, Joseph Sketk, Sen.  The decd 1 dated Nov. 15th. 1800.

The ink used in printing this Semi-Centennial Souvenir was
manufactured by the Ganada Printing Ink Go., Limited. Toronto.

‘body letter, and {rom press room to bindeiy and stock room.

SEMLGENTENNIAL NUMBER.
Miller & Richard.

MONG the prominent type founders of Europe is the firm of Miller &
Richard of Edinburgh, Scotland, of -which firm R. L. Patterson of
Torouto has for many years been the Canadian représentative. Miller
& Richard is not only one of the- largest type houses in the:world, but many
years of experience in the Chronicle-Telegraph:o®~~ have proved their type
products the best on the market.  There is nothing -equal to the Scotch type
for wearing qualities. [t is made on honor-and lasts that way. Al the needs
of the printing trade can be supplied by Miller & Richard and a call st their
well stocked wareroom at Jordan St. Toronto will repay any printer-or news-
paper man.  The goods are always.right and sell on their own merits. M.
Patterson has a long and enviable record as the Canadian tepresentative of the
firm aud the secret of its firm .hold on the printing trade throughout Canada is
explained by a long record of fair and honorable dealing and good values.
The growth of the business sometime ago necessitated: the opening of a ware-
house in Winnipcg.

Toronto Type Foundry Go., Litd.

HE Inland Printer, one of the finest publications of its class in the world,
recently contained a very interesting atticle upon aleading C_anadian industry,
the Toronto Type Foundry.  The popularity and progressiveness of this firm
amongst the prnters of Canada is tangibly shown in the very rapid growth of their

business and the manner in which they kept pace with the very rapid growth of-

the country generally, in frequent extensions of their business.  The following
extracts we take from the Inland Printer’s article: “The comprehensive plan of
this orgamzation is of a character to.appeal very strougly to the printer. It
maintams a fine corps of experts in all the branches of the trade, and has
studied the technical field in America and Europe and acquited. the agencies
of the various machines of superior merit used” in the trade.  The Company is
i a positon to furnish a complete printing plant, from Linotype machines to
Its motto 1s
“Everything for the Printer.”

Copy of Ongmal Deed.

LIAS B. KOLB. Belin, has in his possession a copy of the onginal deed
of Waterloo Township which was formerly held by the late lsaac
Tyson. who received it from hus father.  Itis a very interesting docu-

ment and is an indenture made on November 25th, 1796 between Captain
Joseph Brant of the Grand River in the Home District of the Province of
Upper Canada, attorney for the Six Nation Indians and Richard Beasley of the
County of Lincoln, John Baptiste Rousseau and James "Wilson, whereby the
former convey to the fatter three persons a parcel of land situated on the Grand
River, lerming a square. 12 miles in length and 12 mudes m width, the ra
running through the centre, Zor the considerstion of £9.597 16s. 3d. The
decd is over 100 vears old.

The Late P EW- Moyer

EW men in Waterloo county were better known than thic late P. E. W,
Fa\']oycr to whom [cll the pavilege of lounding the first daily newspaper in

the county, ncarly forty veats ago. e was horn 1 the village of Pres.
ton., Waterloo county, October 3rd. 1836,  When he was only about a year
old his parents moved to what is now known as the Williamsburg ncighbor-
hood, Watctloo township. where his caily years were spent working on ‘the
[arm in summer and going to school m witer.  When cnly fifteen years of
age he commenced to teach a public school and spent some four or five years
between teaching i winter. helpug on the farm and engaging in some minor
business aflairs.  Feattended Vicionia University at that time located in Cobeurg,
for four years and graduated i ants receiving the degrce of B. A, and three
years later the degree of M. AL In 1866 he purchased the Waterlco
Chronidle. which he conducted for some four years, and greatly crcased the
number of its subscribers, the amount of its business'and its financial value.
Duning the first of these years he wrote a hustory or sketches of the carly
scitlements and pioneers of Wataloo and published them in a series of arucles
in that paper.  They were highly interesting, and have been made the foun-
dation of all succecding attempts 1o write shoter or longer accounts of those
carly cventlul davs.  Disposing of his carly business he purchased a daily paper
in St. Catharmes which hie succeafully carned on for cight years. [Having a
good offer to dispose of that cstablishment he accepted 1t and thea returned
with his family to his native county and shertly after started the Berlin Daily
News, of which up to the time of his death, July 9th, 1896, hic was theeditor
and proprictor,  Ie manied Elizabeth H. Ardagh, daughter of the late Wm.
Ardagh of Toromo, in 1868, who suraved him cight years, she having
passed to the great Beyond on February 21st, 1904,
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The Late Rev. James Sims

HE subject of this sketch, the late James
Sims, took a leading part-in the education
and religious life in thie carly years of the

settlement of the County of Waterloo.

~He was bom in 1812, in the Parish of

Insch, Aberdeenstiire, Scotland. His education
was received at the Parish Schools and, though
not extensive, the foundation was laid upon which
by selt study, extensive reading and.an excellent
memory, he became a man of general information
and being a good conversationalist he readily com-
municated such information to others. His early
years of manhood were speat in farming swwhich did not afford much time for
literary wotk, but every spare moment was spent with books and in reading.
In 1837 he marticd Janet Robettson, widow. and in the summer of that
year sailed {rom. Aberdeen in the ship “Hercules™ with his wife. step: children
Alexander, John, and Jane Robertson; accompanied by his father James
Sims, his mother, his brothers Peter and Andrew, and lus sister Margaret
(Mrs. Wm. Fowler) and:his nephews James and Peter Sims.  Alter a voyage
of cight wecks they landed at Quebec and immediately proceeded by boat
up the St. Lawrence River, through canals and lake to Toronto, Ont., where
they spent their fist winter in Canada.  In the spring of 1838 they went by

THE LATE REV. JAMES SIMS,

boat to Hamilton and thence by wagons and on foot to the Queen's Bush and’

lozated on Lot 2, Con. 13, in the Township of Wellesley aboit one mile from
Hawksville. At that time the country surrounding was practically an unbsoken
forest, there being only a few settlers in the neighborhood, with small clearings
and no roads except trails through the bush.

The nearest grist mill was at Waterloo village and many of the carly
settlers carricd their flour and other provisions on their backs to their homes.

Mr. Sims went to work with the energy of the carly settlers of. those days
and in a short time had a small clearing and a home. His carly years were
devoted to clearing the land; in summer going to the older setilements to work
at the harvest which provided a little ready money for the necessarics of life.
Settlement was rapid and in a few years the township of Waellesley and sur-
rounding townships. took on the activities of municipal, educaticnal and social life.

Roads were made, bridges built, schools and churches were erected and
villages sprang up with the attendant industries of grist and saw mills. black-
smith and carriage shops, stores, etc.. so that in the shert space of ten cx twenty
years, the country, from .an unbroken fcrest took on the appearance of well
settled farms, comflortable homes and peosperous communities.

A few ycars after Mr. Sims located in Wellesley, Mr. Juo. Hawke be-
gan putting in a dam on the Conestogo River and made preparations for
building a grist mill at Hawksville. The mill was built and put into operation
in the year 1846, which was a grcat benefit to the settlers in providing &
market for grain ncar by and obviating a long- drive through bad roads to
Waterloo to get gristing done.

Though James Sims took part in the material operations readered neces-
sary to clearing up a farm, his work was chiefly in the cducational and religious
life of the community. Spending a summer or two at Doon assisting at the
work of building Fermies’ flour mills, he associated himself with the Baptist
church at Blair. He was ordained a Baptist minister in 1842 and was
appointed pastor of the church at Blair, which position he filled for twenty
years. He was populatly known as “Elder Sins™ aud there are many still
living who will remember him in his capacity as pastor of the church at Blair.
During the years 1845 to 1860 he was a well known personage, for cvery
two weeks on Saturday, he was scen proceeding on horse-back from his home
ncar Mawksville to the village of Blair, where he preached twice on Sunday
and returned home on Monday.

There were other Baptist communities in which he conducted religious
scrvices, more particulatly at a small meeting house near Elmira.  He was
called upon.frequently to perform the marriage ceremony and there are many
still living who weie married by “Elder. Sims™, He wasa good public speaker
and had an casy and ready flow of language, logical in argument und forceful
in delivery. His desirc for knowledge led him to study the Hebrew and
Greek, so that he might read and study the Scriptures in their original tongues.
Many houts did he spend with the dim light of the candle. pouring over

=

Hebrew and Greek lexicons, studying the meaning of obscure verbs and
writing excgesis on scriptural teaching and doctrine.

His principal study was the prophecies, and like many other students of
prophecy, his mind ran to the fixing of years and dates for the Second Coming
of Christ.  Reading the works of Dr. Thomas, a writer on prophecy, he
gradually drew away from the Baptist church and joined the Christadelphians,.
as did many of the members of the Baptist church at Blair, forming an Ecclesia,.
M. Sims being the principal teacher.

When Waterloo County was formed from the District of Wellingtonin 1853,
Mr. James Sims was appointed superintendent of schools for the townships of
Woolwich z~d Wellesley, which position he filled for some years. Al that time
there were five superintendents for the county and the,‘ constituted the Board of
Public Instruction. The board met a number of times cach year to grant
teaching certificates and transact other business relating to education.  Mr.

Sims ;vaaé lthe fust chairman of the board which position he occupied until the:
year .

Taking a lively interest in education he encouraged settlers to establish and
support schools. He was a friend to the teacher and many a young man was
encouraged to engage in the profession from his advice. He was brought into
contact with those having the management and control of educational work in
the early history of the Public School System 1 Ontario. Trustees and teachers
frequently went to his house to consult him on school matters, Both he and
his wife were very hospitable, visitors and strangers being ahways welceme and
entertained in true Scottish simplicity.

He took an active interest in the temperance cause, and when the Sons
of Temperance movement started he took 1t up warmly, speaking and lecturing
in its favor and became a chartered member of the lodge of the Sons of Tem-
perarice that was organized in the village of Haw kesville in 1854, and ke
assisted in organizing lodges at other plices. The lodge at Hawkesville for
some years had a large membership, many of the young men in the village and
ncighborhood joining,and it hzd a marked effect upon the habits of the community,
many of the people taking the pledge of abstinence and: young men fermed
habits of strict sobricty which became leading traits in their characters for life.

Under the leadership of the Hawkesville ‘Lodge of Temperance annuz
soirces were held in a grove on the farm of John Fawke adjacent to the village,
being attended by other lodges in regalia. These soirees were very popular,
the young.men and women entering into the spinit of the cause with great
enthusiasm.  Music, speaking and refreshments were the leading featutes of
these annual gatherings and Mr. Sims always gave an encouraging word and
helping hand and was one of the principal speakers.

In 1867 Mr. Sims sold his farm on-which he had lived for 29 years and
retired from active lfe. He died at Waterloo: Ont.. in 1880, His widow
survived him to the year 1881, The family of James Sims and his wile, Janet
Harvey, are: James C. Sims (retired from the Post Office department after
42 years' scrvice), Montreal, Que.: Peter H. Sims, Secretary of the Buitish
America Assurance Company, Toronto, Ont.; William A. Sims, farmer, Swan
River, Man.; Janet, widow of the lic John McQueen, Hillman, Mich.

His only descendant living in the county of Watérloo, is his grandson,

Harvey J. Sims, barrister, Berlin, Ont., son of P. H. Sims, Toronto, Ont.

Hawkesville.
HA\VKESV]LLE. which is perhaps the most picturesque village in

Watetloo county has' an interesting history. The first white man to

come from the east and make his home in the wildemess on the pres-
ent site of Hawkesville, was a squatter named Philip Schweitzer, who came to
the place in 1839,  From that time on the section began to assume a civilized
aspect, Schweitzer being followed by other pioneers, among them being Jacob
Aument, Philip Valter, Nicholas Ball, Sr., Geo., Fred and William Lackner
and John Hawke. It has grown in population and now is one of the mest
prosperous villages in the county. Hawkesville when an isolated settlement
of a few straggling huts came in for its share of prominence in public affairs.
About 1848, at.the time of the agitation to locate the county scat the contest
was a bitter onc between Berdin and Gal. The Galt people finding them-
sclves being outwitid directed their influerice to Hawkesville., Mr. Hawke,
the founder of Hawkesville, who was also at that time reeve of Wellesley town-
ship, had the casting vote givingit in favor of Beslin.
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Journahsm in Waterloo County

HE first newspaper: venture .in Waterloo County- was .the creation of

the late Henry William Peterson, who on the 27th of. August. 1835,
issued Das Deutsche Museum and continued as its editor and proprietor

until 1841, when he-received the appointment of Registrar for the Wellingt.a
.District, out of which emerged the counties of Wellington, Waterloo and Grey.
On removing to Guelph Mr. Peterson disposed of the Museum, the .plant
falling into the hands of the late Henry Eby, an employee of the office, who
dropped the old name and rechiistened it Deutscher Canadier, Christian Euslin,
a somewhat noted citizen becoming editor. "The Morgenstern wat the second
to enter the field making its bow under the pilotage of one Bcn)amm Burk-
holder and catering to an uncertain constituency from 1839 to 1841, when it
was gobbled up by the Canadier. In.1848 Martin Rudolph established a
German paper. in Preston, and the Germanizing of the other parts of the coun'y
led to the founding of the Canadisches Volksblatt in New Hamburg. This
paper still lives, its only German contemporaries in Waterloo to-day being the
Betliner Journal and the Waterloo Bauernfreund.  Preston is heing well served
by an English newspaper, the Progress, its editor and manager being Thomas
Amthield. The neighboring town of Hespeler has to-day-a bright weekly
called the Herald, the editor and proprietor of which is Oscar Eby. Just here
let it be said that the:Bauernfreund first saw light in Preston under the pro-
prictorship of Joseph Exb, with Jacob Teuscher as editor. In a few years it
was sold to Moses Springer, afterwards M. P. P., and for several years shenff,
and removed'to Watetloo. Other German newspaper ventires in this county

include the Elmira Anzeiger, now published in English, the Deutsche Zeitung.

of Berlin, and last but not l:ast the Berliner Journal, launched by the late John
‘Rittinger and John Moz, the latter now sheriff, a position given to him for
services, well performed, by the Liberal government at Toronto.  The Joumal,
now in the hands of the sons of the founders, John Rittinger and Wm. Motz,
practical printers and excelleat business men, is Canada’s leading German
newspaper. It has for many ycars been a money maker.  The first issue of
the Journal saw light on the 29th day of December, 1859. it is a credit to
the nationality it represents and is splendidly Canadian in tone. The opinion
held of its editor, Mr. Motz, by his fellow citizens tvas a kigh one, his elevation
to the mayor's chair bespeaking their confidence in him as a civic representative.
About the time Messis. Rittinger & Motz went into business in 2 humble way,
the Berlin Weekly Telegraph came into favorable notice with the late D. Mc
Dougall (afterwards registrar) as editor. It was aggressively Liberal and for
many years was under the control of Alex. Macpherson.  About 1899 it fell
into the hands of David Bean of the Waterloo Chromclc, a weekly once known
as the, Bedin Chromdc before its proprictor, the late William Jaffray (for thirty
vears postmaster of Berlin, until his death in 1896) sold it in- 1860 to John
Julius Bowman and Christian Kumpf. Like Mr. Jaffray, Mr. Kumpf became
postmaster and mayor for a couple of ycars of his town. In the foundation of
the Chronide Mr. Jaffray had as partner the late Caspar Hett.  When M.
Bean bought the Telegraph he continued the issue of the daily, the weckly
going out as the Chronicle-Telegraph. It is a fine piece of newspaper property
and has been such for a quarter of a century. Thomas Hilliard, the present
general manager of the Dominion Life Assurance Company was the publisher
of the Chronicle in the seventics, IHe was an able editor and a shrewd
manager and found the job a paying one.

The fust daily newspaper in Waterloo county was established in Bedinin
1877 by the late Peter E. W, Moyer.  The town 2t that time had a popu-
lation of 4000 and scores there were who predicted a short kife for the News.
But the proprictor stuck to it and made it a power locally as a Conservative
organ, with strong National Policy leanings. Flis death occurred in 18935 and
the News in 1896- -7 passed into the hands of the Company that had a short
time previously entered the limited field with the Daily Record.  The amalga-
mation produced the News-Record, with W. V., Utiley as editor and manager.
At the present time Mr. Uttley is to the fore in municipal circles, being finance
chairman of the town council.  The Daily Telegraph which alio shows every
sign of prosperity is under the management of D. A. Bean, the son of the pro-
prictor of the Chronicle-Tclegraph, who shovss the effects of good training and
a liking for the business, the Telegraph being a clean and newsy sheet.

Newspaper lfe in Galt practically started with the establishment of the
Weekly Reporter sisty yeats ago by the late Peter Jaffray, who had recently

‘to the Federal Patliament taking him out of active neWspapcr life.

arrived from England, whcxe in Shrcwsbmy he'had edited_and . published the
News. The first issue-of the Reporter occurred in July, 1846, and the paper
has been in the hands of the family ever since. In the early fifties the foundet
took his son William into. pmncnhxp. the latter subsequently, wh\lc doing work
on the. Reporter, starting’ the Berlin Chronicle. Other.sons of thie founder,
Richard, Harry and George, succeeded to the property in 1865; the firm be.
coming Jaffray Brothers. The first and sccond gcnerations have pasted away
and the paper is now in-the handl of James and Robert, sons of Wm. Jaffray,
who died in Berlm in 1896, the present proprietors having bccn publishers in
the United- States from .1882 to. 1897.. The Hon. James Young is the oldest
and most conspicuous ex-}ournaist now living mWntc:loo county.. He graduated
from the Reporter office: in- 1856.and at the age of 21 established the Galt
Reformer, which he. successfully conductcd for.about thirteen years, his election
The
Reformer has had -many proprietors since and at present. is- in the hands of a
joint stock company. Both Galt: newspapers have béen isued. as dailies for
ten years. Other English newspapers published in Waterloo county are. the
Ayr News, New Hamburg Independent; Elmira: Advertucr and Elmira Sngaet.
Wellesley Maple Leaf and Wateroo Daily Citizen. Forty-five years ago
Ayt had a weekly published by James Somerville. who afterwatds became M:
P. for Nocth Brant,. All of these papers mentioned in this paragraph are doing.
fairly well, the localities in which they are published: being prosperousand pro-
gressive. J. P, JAEFRAY.

F. G. Gardiner.
‘G. GARDINER, is one of Berlin's enterprising citizens. He
conducts a successful piano and organ business, having fine warerooms
on Queen St. in which such well known makes as Heintzman.& Co,
Bell & Co., Dominion, etc. pianos and’organs-are on display. Besides attend-

ing to his business dutics Mr. Gardiner finds time _to take a lively interest.in
municipal affairs, having had a seat in the Town Council fora number of years:

<

The Trustees of the

Estate of Louis Breithaupt

Oldest in Rentals and Real

Estate in Berlin

Lessors Of

Stores, Dwellings, Manufacturing Premises, Etc.

FOR SALE

Dhwellings, Choice Building Lots and Manufacturing Sites on
Railway and Trolley.

North Ward. East Ward. Centre Ward.

OFFIGE: 56 KING ST. WEST, - CANADIAN BLOGK.




ALMOST AS OLD |
= P. E. SHANTZ
PRESTON, ONT.

MANUFAGTURER OF .

Agricultural Implements.

UNRIVALLED
PRICE 25¢.

FOR THE GURE OF PAIN IN MAN OR BEAST.

Mowing Machines, Hay Loaders,
Side Rakes, Roller Plows and

Harrows.

NEARLY EVERY HOME.

Also special machines for sowing and

= cultivating sugar beets.
NORTHROP & LYMAN GO., Limited. TORONTO

Proprietors.

AS THE OLDEST INHABITANT AND A HOUSEHOLD WORD IN

The F oster~Arms’trong Company
of
Rochester, N. Y.

desire to announce that they have purchpse& the piano factory of W. H. Snyder & Go. (formerly Berlin Piano Go.)

THE GELEBRATED

HAINES BROS.
MA;{N;HALL & WENDELL PIAN OS

wiil now be produced in exact duplicate of the American designs. Gatalogue and full information on request.

Foster-Armstrong Company.,
Berlin, Ontario.
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SPECIAL DUGK QUALITY.

ASK FOR *'DAISY RUBBERS."

L}

SECOND QUALITY.

FOR SALE EVERYWHERE,

Eranches ot

The Berlin Rubber Mfg. Go. QUEBEG. e
LIMITED LEATHER INNER.HEEL g%r_ir&ml. SALGAR{'
Berlin. Onl' Design Registered 1905, A TORONTO ANCOUVER

Labor S&VGI‘S fOl‘ F armers.

e 1 _E } "~ Litter Garriers

Stanchions

i
H
\

gt W aterbowls

AKE work-easy, save lime and expense and increase the flow of milk
by making cows more comfortable.

Up-to-date farmers all over the country are installing them. Read
what they say about them in our catalogue.

Does you barn nesd a new Roof  Our Galvanized Gorrugated Iron
is as cheap as shingles. is fre-proof, lightning proof and will easily last for
50 years.

Gatalogue sent free upon application.

The Metal Shingle & Siding Geo.,

PRESTON - - - ONTARIO.

This Souvenir

is printed on

ART GCOATED PAPER

manufactured exclusively by

THE BUNTIN REID GO.

TORONTO.




GEORGE MOORE, President. Y. T. BARRIE,
HUGH WALLAGE, Vico-President.

W. J. SIMEON,

Sccretary-Treasurer. General Manager.

THE

Berlin Robe & Clothing Co.,

Limited.

MANUFAGTURERS OF

"ARGTIG BRAND” Buffalo Robes,

Persian lLamb Coats and Buffalo Ulsters,
Fur and Fur Lined Overcoats.

Ask for the “Arclic Brand.” BERLIN, ONTARIO. GANADA.

BREWERY,

- T Tumegg s
b0 VA oGz CARDMINE 2= WiLLIAM STREETS YS!

S IWAT NTARIO. 7%
@@g@.@gﬂgﬂ@.

. F THREE IN ONE
Picture Frames Bel
erliner Journal PER TE0R IN-

Made to Order. 150 styles to choose frem. Established at-Berlin, 1859, ADVANGE !

ARTIST'S MATERIALS Ontario Glocke | §

and Established ot Walkerton, 1867. 3‘%

R k)

I 12 PAGES . . i

PHOTO SUPPLIES I EVERY WEEK Canadlscher Kolomst
We mzke any thing i the line of Rubber Stamps, Key Checks, Corporate | — Eotablihed at Suadfond. 1963,

Seals, Ete. Cat.\log free. Leaa‘ing German Newspapers in Onlaﬁo.

S tarnaman % SOH Gombined and publisked at Berlin, Ount., by Berlin's oldest business firm j§
RITTINGER & MOTZ. !

“Atit forty-seven years.”

OVER POTTER'S HARDWARE STCRE,

PHONE 577, BERLIN, ONT.




Jos. E. Seagr‘am

Distiller of

Fine Whiskies|

Waterloo, Ont.
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AGRES 1 9 O 6 AGRES
FREE ' FREE

The Ganadian West

Its Opportunities

Thirty years ago the Canadian West was practically unknown.  To-day the eves of the world are

upon it—-and with cause.

Thirty years ago there was not a mile of railway in all that vast region. To-day there are over
6,000 miles for traffic, and between 3.000 and 4.000 miles in contemplation.

Just as sure as “Trade follows the Flag." settlement follows the railway surveyor, and to-day, in

Western Canada, the surveyor and the construction gang are both busy.

Last year nearly 150,000 people flocked to the fertile prairies of the Canadian West, and it is con-

fidently expected this year that over 200,000 will follow.

The last chance to obtain free land for settlement in the temperate zone, in a civilized country, is

offered in Canada to-day. Do you want to take advantage of the opportunity ?

Advice and Information
160 ‘ 160
GRES can be freely had from :— GRES
A . W, COSiY. Deputy Minister of the Inierior. Ottaws. Ganada., A ES .
FREE W. D. SCOTT. Superintendent of Immigration. Ottawa, Canada. FREE
J. OBED SMITH. Gomm. of Immigration. Winnipeg. Manitoba-




SNYDER PIANOS

Are receiving more favorable comments to-day throughout Canada
from an artistic point of view than all others combined

We Challenge Gomparisons.

Prospective buyers would do well to ask us to send our Catalog which contains an accurate half-tone photo, as well as a full description
.of our latest designs. It is no exaggeration to say that more highly and dependable pianos have never been made nor offered, the proof of which
is contained in the many testimonials we have and are receiving daily. No matter where you live our special offer makes it feasible fer anyone to own
.a renowned Snyder Piano.  Time paynierts granted if desired.  Write us.

W. H. SNYDER & GO., BERLIN, ONTARIO.
The Chief Objects of Boiler Insurance

are the Prevention of Accident and the Attainment of Economy in the operation of steam plants.

The Value of Boiler Insurance to the Steam User

depends upon his receiving Thorough and Regular Inspections of his boilers by Competent, Skilful and Experienced Inspectors and upon
their Ability to Give Espert Engineering Advice on any matter connected with the construction, installation and operation of a steam plant.

THE ENGINEERS AND INSPEGTORS

of The Boiler Inspection and Insurance Company of Canada, which has been in business since 1875, have had many years experience in
the examination, not only of Steam Boilers, but of entire Steam Plants, and are well known for. their skill, ability and competency.

WRITE FOR PAMPHLET ON STEAM BOILERS AND BOILER INSPEGTION.

The Boiler Inspection and Insurance Go. of Ganada
CANADA LIFEY BUILDING, TORONTO.

BLOWERS,
EXHAUST FANS

. OF EVERY DESCRIPTION,

Heaters
and

Fans E

FFor Heating of Mills,
Factories. ctc.

LUMBER DRY KILN APPARATUS.

Natural Draft and Blower Systems.

Most of the factories in Berlin
and Waterloo are equipped with
our Ileating, Ventilating and Dry-
ing Systems, Fans, Blowers, ctc.

wor



Waterloq Threshing Machinery

Is Up-to-Date and Always Reliable.

WA repoW
P s AR Lt
¢ é‘m_{\mm\L u‘tmg_j

Our Supremacy

As Makers of High Class Threshing Machinery 1s fu"y

acknowledged by all expert threshermen.

We Man'uf‘actu‘re» Complete Outfits

Gonsisting of Traction and: Portable Engines, Separators, Wind Stackers, Self Feeders,
Straw Gutting and other attachments belonging to a first class threshing outht.

Gas ‘Engines and Suctiqn Producer Gas Plants

The new motive powsr, much mora eccnomical than steam. Intending purchasers

should investigate this. Gorrespondence invited.

Waterloo Manufactuﬂng Company,

} Limited
Branch Warehouses at Winnipez and Reginc. Head :Office: WATERLOO, ONTARIO.




HEAD ‘OFFICE-~BERLIN, ONT. ESTABLISHED 1871.

THE

. ECONOMICAL MUTUAL
FIRE INSURANGE GOMPANY OF BERLIN

Amount of Insurance in force - $18,000,000
Assets - - $375,000

BOARD OF DIREGTORS

Ward H. Bowfb;., K:C. Berlin  John Fennell.. Berdin Geo..C. H. Lang, Berlin. "P. S. Lau!enschlagcr, Berlin
Gco Pattinson, M.R.P., Preston  ‘Fred Snyder, Berdin Chr. Pabst, Hespeler H. L ]anze:n. Berlin
REWE Brcnt‘mup& Berlin Jos. 'E: Scagram, M.P.. Waterloo  Frank Turmer, C.E., Toronto Hon S. Mcrncr. Senator,. Berlin
_ BANKERS , . SOLIGITOR:
The Canadian Bank of Cominerce Alexander Millar, K.C
‘ \ OFFIGERS. 7
Joi V:’l'l;NNEL}.. Peesident GEO. C. H. LANG;Vice-President JOHN.A: ROSS, Inspector

W.. H. SCHMALLZ, Mansger and Secretary

“Equal to 2 (;ci}:ara
Hcmtzman .. -
“Bult Similar tor a
Gcthard Heintzman™
" Resénbles-a Gcrhard

Heintzman™. . . .

These  ard  other  similar
clums are fregiently cnd weor-
reclly made by rival ‘manufac-
turers and ‘dealers, all' of which.
1s simply their aclno“lcdgmcrl.
of the Gethard Heintzman
supcrionity.

, I B IR \\ [N S URANCE
Gerhard Heintzman | \\UELIELM
PIANO

If you want a Piano exactly like a Gerhard Heintzran, the only

way isto get a GERHARD HEINTZMAN: PIANO: N ’
Address the manufacturers direct. . Coo .
| | OF WATERLOO.-
GERHARD HEINTZMAN’ Limited, Buckberrough &.Co., Agerts - WATERLOO

TORONTOQ: HAMILTON: . Louis Pcinc, Agert . NEW HAMBURG
97 Yonge Strect. 127 King Street East. E. Weiler. Agent - - BADEN
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!
é» The above cut represents a. commodious. sarmary and K
i welhlighted Factory, where a busy hive of : happy worl\ers
i ' are engaged' in- ‘turning out thé famous .. Y / {,« P ;
; - brand of: Shirts.and Collars under ideal’ condmons
§ We are- celebratmg ouf '75th blrthday
Y
-~ | The Wuﬂﬂn@mgo @H"@@Iﬁl@ & R@ﬂm@ @@x,
g ‘ Berlin ‘Canada
j’ ‘N..AB.—% We have just compléted a largeé -thréé-storey addition o thé .above building.

o

‘HAVE n sod she-Bell & Co Domimca Pranos. Patmer,
Berbin, Mocriv. Wormvoech -Hamazman & Co. Pianos.
‘Seven Gfferers maves o Pands. all on the .one floor 16

seleat from Few i any odwer warcrooms carry  many

tines of Paancx .
1 hawe i Belt & C-
Oraans

famoss Crtams and  Damitwon

The Peerless Peninsular

»

R W .
'

It i3 like buying goods wt home 1= puchase a

PENINSULAR RANGE

They- are made in Preston. and at any ime & half-hour « Al
ride will tale.you 1n the foundry. PENINSULAR RANGH.
are made 1n a large varkery of stiyles and sizes. and: each one
i sold with 3 GUARANTEE BOND covering the wasrkuen.
material, wodkmanstap and “cperation.

EATATIR AN
H. WOLFHARD & CO. M. WEICHEL & SON

UERLIN WATLRLOO

MADE UV

Clare Bros. & Gb., Limited

Winnipeg Preston

Vancouver

The areve & Wl TOAr Grand Pano. made by Bell &
~v i Guoph. ¢ e P and scleed bv The Independent Order
of Forciters frty [+ shar halle all fied owt with illimitable
Quick tepeating acon

T hawe Paarns fecer 3
of paymems

Wres ty suitand catalogues

F. G. GARDINER

QUEEN STREET SOUTH"
Orpdure Osera Hovve

BERLIN

203 up to $1000.00. Easy rerms

Enaldidied . 1584




